AGENDA
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
September 26, 2011
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
CALL TO ORDER 5:00 P.M., Board Room, District Office
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California
ROLL CALL Directors Reinhart, Matheis, Swan, Withers and President LaMar
NOTICE

If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file your name with
the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table. Remarks are limited to five minutes per speaker on
each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one motion, without discussion, unless a request
is made for specific items to be removed from the Calendar for separate action.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

1. A. Written:
B. Oral: Mrs. Joan Irvine Smith relative to the Dyer Road Wellfield.
2. ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED

Recommendation: Determine that the need to discuss and/or take immediate action on item(s)
introduced come to the attention of the District subsequent to the agenda being posted.

PRESENTATION

3. PARTNER COMMENDATION

In celebration of the District’s 50™ anniversary, the IRWD Board of Directors
will recognize key “Partners in Service”. This evening the Board will present
Certificates of Commendation to representatives of the Discovery Science
Center and the Sea & Sage Audubon.

CONSENT CALENDAR Next Resolution No. 2011-41 Items 4-18

4. RESOLUTION OF COMMENDATION FOR JOSEPH BREITER

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a resolution commending Joseph Reso. No. 2011-
Breiter for his dedicated and loyal service to the District.




IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
September 26, 2011
Page 2

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued Next Resolution No. 2011-41

Items 4-18

5. RESOLUTION OF COMMENDATION FOR MARY KAY HASSETT

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a resolution commending Mary Kay
Hassett for her dedicated and loyal service to the District.

6. MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the September 12, 2011 Regular Board
Meeting be approved as presented.

7. RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT
MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board approve the meetings and events for Steve
LaMar, Peer Swan and John Withers.

8. STRATEGIC MEASURES DASHBOARD

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Strategic Measures
Dashboard and information items.

9. AUGUST 2011 FINANCIAL REPORTS

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment
Summary Report and the Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary for August
2011; approve the August 2011 Disbursement Summary of Warrants Nos.
322230 through 323091 Workers’ Compensation distributions, wire transfers,
payroll direct deposit ACH payments, payroll withholding distributions and
voided checks in the total amount of $27,334,132.01.

10. ACWA COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT NOMINEES FOR THE 2012/2013
TERM

Recommendation: That the Board direct staff to submit the list of ACWA
Committee Appointment Nominees for the 2012/13 term to the Association of
California Water Agencies prior to September 30, 2011.

11.  ACWA REGION 10 ELECTION FOR THE 2012/13 TERM

Recommendation: That the Board support the candidates as selected by the
ACWA Region 10 Nominating Committee.

12. 2011 STATE LEGISLATIVE UPATE

Recommendation: Receive and file.

Reso. No. 2011-



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
September 26, 2011
Page 3

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued Next Resolution No. 2011-41 Items 4-18

13.  FREE SPRINKLER NOZZLE PROGRAM EXPANSION

Recommendation: That the Board approve an increase of $113,750 to the Fiscal
Year 2011-12 operating budget from unallocated conservation revenues for the
Free Sprinkler Nozzle Program, and authorize the General Manager to amend the
existing agreement with Western Municipal Water District to reflect the program
budget increase.

14. STOCKDALE WEST PILOT PROJECT FACILITIES — FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board accept the Stockdale West Recharge Facilities
Pilot Project; authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for
the work; and authorize the payment of the retention 35 days after the date of
recording the Notice of Completion.

15. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION GRANT FOR JOINT ENERGY AND WATER
COMMERCIAL AUDIT PIL.OT PROGRAM

Recommendation: That the Board authorize an increase of $136,000 to the
Fiscal Year 2011-12 Operating Budget and authorize the General Manager to
execute an agreement with the Bureau of Reclamation for the implementation of
the Joint Energy and Water Commercial Audit Pilot Program.

16. WELLS 21 AND 22 DESALTER CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Recommendation: That the Board approve an Expenditure Authorization in the
amount of $577,500 for project 10286 and approve Contract Change Order No.
7 in the amount of $316,182 to Pascal & Ludwig Constructors for the Wells 21
and 22 Desalter, project 10286 (1081).

17.  CATHODIC PROTECTION OF SIX STEEL RESERVOIRS IN SANTIAGO
CANYON — EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION

Recommendation: That the Board approve an Expenditure Authorization in the
amount of $37,400 for the Cathodic Protection of Six Steel Reservoirs in
Santiago Canyon project 11484 (1637).

18.  LAKE FOREST WOODS SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT CHANGE
ORDER AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute
Contract Change Order No. 3 with Insituform Technologies, Inc. in the credit
amount of <$95,117.93>; accept construction of the Lake Forest Woods Sewer
Rehabilitation, project 20747 (1111); authorize the General Manager to file a
Notice of Completion; and authorize the payment of the retention 35 days after
the date of recording the Notice of Completion.




IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
September 26, 2011

Page 4

ACTION CALENDAR

19.

20.

21.

22.

LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE CONTRACT AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute
three-year landscape and irrigation maintenance contracts with Tropical Plaza
Nursery, Inc. for $631,440, Pinnacle Landscape for $240,923 and Merchants

Landscape Services for $262,080.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT SERVICES

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill in the amount of $300,000
for construction management consultant services.

ENTERPRISE ASSET MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE NEEDS ASSESSMENT
AND EVALUATION — CONSULTANT SELECTION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the addition of projects 11619
and 21619 to the FY 2011-12 Capital Budget and accompanying Expenditure
Authorizations in the amount of $125,000 each, and authorize the General
Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with EMA, Inc. in the
amount of $196,880 for the Enterprise Asset Management Software Review
project.

ORANGE PARK ACRES DOMESTIC WATER PRESSURE REGUILATING
STATIONS AND FIRE FLOW IMPROVEMENTS BUDGET ADDITION AND

CONSTRUCTION AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board approve a budget increase of $312,000 for the
Orange Park Acres Domestic Water Fire Flow Improvements, project 11410
(1297); approve an Expenditure Authorization in the amount of $599,600 for the
Orange Park Acres Domestic Water Pressure Regulating Stations, project 11409
(1287); and approve an Expenditure Authorization in the amount of $852,700 for
the Orange Park Acres Domestic Water Fire Flow Improvements, project 11410
(1297); and authorize the General Manager to execute a construction contract with
Paulus Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $1,143,821 for the Orange Park Acres
Domestic Water Pressure Regulating Stations and Fire Flow Improvement,
projects 11409 (1287) and 11410 (1297).




IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
September 26, 2011

Page 5

ACTION CALENDAR - Continued

23.

24.

ORANGE PARK ACRES CHAPMAN AVENUE ON-SITE PIPING
RELOCATION CONSTRUCTION AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board approve a budget increase of $275,000, from
$10,713,900 to $10,988,900 for the Orange Park Acres Chapman Avenue on-site
piping relocation construction award, project 11408 (1279); approve an
Expenditure Authorization in the amount of $275,000 for the Orange Park Acres
Chapman Avenue on-site piping relocation construction award project 11408
(1279); and authorize the General Manager to execute a construction contract with
L & S Construction, Inc. in the amount of $154,751 for the Orange Park Acres
Chapman Avenue on-site piping relocation, project 11408 (1279).

MWRP PHASE 2 EXPANSION AND FLOOD PROTECTION IMPROVEMENTS
— BUDGET INCREASE, EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION, CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER, AND VARIANCE

Recommendation: That the Board authorize an increase to the FY 2011-12 Capital
Budget in the amount of $112,200, from $733,200 to $845,400, for the Michelson
Water Recycling Plant (MWRP) Sand Canyon Zone A Strainer Replacement,
project 30038 (1643); approve an Expenditure Authorization in the amount of
$377,900 for the MWRP Sand Canyon Zone A Strainer Replacement, project 30038
(1643); approve Contract Change Order (CCO) No. 46 in the amount of $476,789
with J. R. Filanc Construction Co. for the construction of the Sand Canyon Zone A
Strainer Replacement; and authorize the General Manager to execute Variance No.
1 in the amount of $121,595 with Ninyo and Moore for supplemental construction
phase pile foundation services for the MWRP Flood Protection Improvements,
projects 20542 (1150) and 30542 (1118).

OTHER BUSINESS

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask questions
for clarification, make brief announcements, make brief reports on his/her own activities. The Board or a
Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to
report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a
future agenda. Such matters may be brought up under the General Manager’s Report or Directors’

Comments.

25.

A. General Manager’s Report




IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting
September 26, 2011
Page 6

OTHER BUSINESS - Continued

25. B. Directors’ Comments

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

C. Adjourn meeting to Tuesday, September 27, 2011 at 12:30 p.m., to Payne & Fears Law Office
Jamboree Center, 4 Park Plaza, Suite 1100, Irvine, CA

* %k ok ok ok ok * % % %k %k ok ok ok ok ok ok Kk x Kk Kk ok ok ok Kk Kk ok Kk Kk Kk ok Kk

Availability of agenda materials: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all
or a majority of the members of the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject
to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the
District’s office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”). If such writings are distributed to
members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the
District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed
one hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available at the entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the
District Office.

The Irvine Ranch Water District Board Room is wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability-related
accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949) 453-
5300 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. This agenda can be obtained
in alternative format upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled
meeting.



September 26, 2011
Prepared by: M.B. Gingras
Submitted by: W.D. Posey

Approved by: Paul COOV%

CONSENT CALENDAR

RESOLUTION COMMENDING JOSEPH BRETTER
FOR HIS SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT

SUMMARY:

As Mr. Joseph Breiter has retired from the District following 30 years of dedicated and
outstanding service, staff has prepared a resolution, which is provided as Exhibit “A”, to honor
him.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT THE BOARD ADOPT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:
RESOLUTION NO. 2011 —
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT COMMENDING

JOSEPH BREITER FOR HIS DEDICATED AND
LOYAL SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT.

LIST OF EXHIBTTS:

Exhibit “A” — Resolution

Resolution for Services






EXHIBIT “A”

RESOLUTION NO. 2011 -

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT COMMENDING
JOSEPH BREITER FOR HIS DEDICATED AND
LOYAL SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, Joseph Breiter began his career at the Irvine Ranch Water District on May 11,
1981 as a MWRP Operator I; and

WHEREAS, Joseph was promoted to a MWRP Operator II in November 1982; and

WHEREAS Joseph was awarded a District “Incentive Award” equivalent to an AA Degree
in February 1984 for completing 71 Utility Science college level units; and

WHEREAS Joseph served as “Process Owner” of the MWRP Primary Sedimentation
Process since 1994 and created Standard Operational Procedures (SOP’s) for Primary Skimming
and Odor Scrubber Operation and Acid Washing, and operational and equipment checklists; and

WHEREAS Joseph was promoted to a MWRP Operator III in November 1996; and

WHEREAS Joseph honorably served as the MWRP Operations representative on the
District’s General Safety Committee (GSC) for 15 consecutive years since 1996; and

WHEREAS Joseph was awarded a District “Certificate of Appreciation” for his award
winning 1999 Nikon International Calendar wildlife photo that is on permanent display at the
District’s Headquarters; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch
Water District commends Joseph Breiter for his long and loyal service. His dedication and
outstanding service to the District stands as an example to all employees. On this occasion, the
Board extends its best wishes to Joseph Breiter in his retirement.

SIGNED and APPROVED this 26" day of September 2011.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER
DISTRICT and of the Board of
Directors thereof

Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof






September 26, 2011

Prepared by: Alex Aguilar
Submitted by: Tony Mossbarger
Approved by: Paul Cook /m,.

CONSENT CALENDAR

RESOLUTION COMMENDING MARY KAY HASSETT
FOR HER SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT

SUMMARY:
As Ms. Mary Kay Hassett has retired from the District following 30 years of dedicated and

outstanding service, staff has prepared a resolution, which is provided as Exhibit “A”, to honor
her.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION BY TITLE:
RESOLUTION NO. 2011 —
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT COMMENDING
MARY KAY HASSETT FOR HER DEDICATED AND
LOYAL SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT.
LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Resolution

Resolution for Services






EXHIBIT “A”

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT COMMENDING
MARY KAY HASSETT FOR HER DEDICATED AND
LOYAL SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, Mary Kay Hassett began her career as a Clerk Typist 1 at the Irvine Ranch
Water District on October 20, 1981; and

WHEREAS Mary Kay was promoted to Purchasing Coordinator in June 1982, then
promoted to Buyer I in March 1984, then promoted to Buyer II in July 1996, followed by a
promotion to Senior Buyer in July 2002; and

WHEREAS, Mary Kay is a respected purchasing professional; and was a source of
Purchasing knowledge who provided guidance to her many internal customers over the course of
her career; and

WHEREAS, Mary Kay was an active member of IRWD-sponsored Toastmasters
International, holding the position of President during the course of her 20 years of active
participation; and

WHEREAS, Mary Kay was Chairperson of the IRWD Recycling Committee and hosted
the annual IRWD Earth Day event for Sand Canyon Headquarters and Michelson Operations
Center; and

WHEREAS, all Board members, employees and other colleagues who have come to
know Mary Kay will genuinely miss her; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch
Water District commends Mary Kay Hassett for her long and loyal service. Her dedication and
outstanding service to the District stands as an example to all employees. On this occasion, the
Board extends its best wishes to Mary Kay Hassett in her retirement.

SIGNED and APPROVED this 26™ day of September 2011,

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof

Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
and of the Board of Directors thereof



APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Bowie, Arneson, Wiles & Giannone
Legal Counsel — IRWD




September 26, 2011

Prepared and ‘_;l/\%/
Submitted by: N. Savedr

Approved by: P. Cook

pproved by /M .

CONSENT CALENDAR

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING
SUMMARY:
Provided are the minutes of the September 12, 2011 Regular Board Meeting for approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
APPROVED AS PRESENTED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — September 12, 2011 Regular Board Meeting

Minutes of Regular Board Meeting Cover Sheet






EXHIBIT “A”

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING — SEPTEMBER 12, 2011

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District IRWD) was
called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President LaMar on September 12, 2011 in the District office,
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: LaMar, Matheis, Reinhart, Swan and Withers
Directors Absent: None.

Also Present: Interim General Manager Cook, Senior Director of Finance Cherney, Senior
Director of Operations Pedersen, Director of Engineering Burton, Assistant Secretary Savedra,
Treasurer Jacobson, Legal Counsel Arneson, Director of Water Resources Heiertz, Director of
Wastewater Operations Posey, Director of Water Quality Hills, Director of Human Resources
Wells, Ms. Kirsten McLaughlin, Mr. Paul Weghorst, Mr. Jim Reed, Mr. Bruce Newell, Mr.
Yannick Gagne and Mr. Yves McGale of Aon Hewitt, and other members of the public and staff.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: None.

ORAL COMMUNICATION:

Mrs. Joan Irvine Smith’s assistant addressed the Board of Directors with respect to the Dyer Road
Wellfield. She said it was her understanding that currently wells C-8 and C-9 will operate in
accordance with the District’s annual pumping plan. Wells, 1,2, 3,4,5,6,7, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14,
15, 16, 17 and 18 will be off. This was confirmed by Mr. Cook, Interim General Manager of the
District.

With respect to the Orange County Basin Groundwater Conjunctive Use Program being
coordinated by Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) and Orange County Water
District (OCWD), a Notice of Completion was approved by the OCWD Board of Directors on
March 19, 2009. Metropolitan Water District has given notice to OCWD to extract 22,000 acre
feet in fiscal year 2009/10. The extraction is being performed by agencies that constructed
conjunctive use wells under this program. IRWD is not a participant. This was confirmed by Mr.
Cook.

With respect to the OCWD annexation of certain IRWD lands, on June 5, 2009, IRWD received a
letter from OCWD noting that OCWD has completed the formal responses to comments they
previously received on the draft program Environmental Impact Report. The letter further noted
that with this task completed, OCWD has exercised its right to terminate the 2004 Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) regarding annexation. OCWD also indicated that due to the lack of
progress on the annexation issue, the draft program Environmental Impact Report will not be
completed. On June 8, 2009, OCWD completed the Long-Term Facilities Plan which was
received and filed by the OCWD Board in July 2009. Staff has been coordinating with the City of
Anaheim (Anaheim) and Yorba Linda Water District (YLWD) on their most recent annexation
requests and has reinitiated the annexation process with OCWD. IRWD, YLWD and Anaheim
have negotiated a joint MOU with OCWD to process and conduct environmental analysis of the

Page 1 September 12, 2011

A-1



annexation requests. The MOU was approved by the OCWD Board on July 21, 2010. This was
confirmed by Mr. Cook.

With respect to the Groundwater Emergency Service Plan, IRWD has an agreement in place with
various south Orange County water agencies, MWDOC and OCWD, to produce additional
groundwater for use within IRWD and transfer imported water from IRWD to south Orange
County in case of emergencies. IRWD has approved the operating agreement with certain south
Orange County water agencies to fund the interconnection facilities needed to affect the
emergency transfer of water. MWDOC and OCWD have also both approved the operating
agreement. This was confirmed by Mr. Cook.

ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED — None.

CONSENT CALENDAR
Director Reinhart made a correction on the agenda for Consent Calender item No. 4. On

MOTION by Reinhart, seconded and unanimously carried, CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 3
THROUGH 9 WERE APPROVED AS AMENDED:

3. MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the August 22, 2011 Regular Board Meeting be
approved as presented.

4. RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve the meetings and events for Steven
LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Douglas Reinhart, John Withers and Peer Swan.

5. REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Recommendation: That the Board adopt the following resolution by title:
RESOLUTION NO. 2011-40
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF IRVINE RANCH
WATER DISTRICT, RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2011-28

AND ESTABLISHING REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES
(FOR POLICY NOS. 38 AND 39)

Page 2 September 12, 2011

A-2



6. RECYCLED WATER DECHLORINATION STATIONS FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board accept construction of the Recycled Water
Dechlorination Stations, project 30206 (1701); authorize the General Manager to file a
Notice of Completion; and authorize the payment of the retention 35 days after the date
of recording the Notice of Completion.

7. LAKE FOREST WELL NO. 2 DESTRUCTION AND DRILLING CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Contract
Change Order No. 3 with Layne Christensen Company in the credit amount of
<$89,343.75>; accept construction of Lake Forest Well No. 2, project 11461 (1498);
authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion; and authorize the release
of retention 35 days after filing of the Notice of Completion.

8. LOS ALISOS WATER RECYCLING PLANT LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION
PROJECT — FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board accept construction of the Los Alisos Water
Recycling Plant Landscape and Irrigation Project, projects 20243 (2940) and 30134
(2915); authorize filing of a Notice of Completion; and authorize the payment of the
retention 35 days after the date of recording the Notice of Completion.

9. STRAND RANCH WELL DRILLING AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECT — FINAL
ACCEPTANCE

Recommendation: That the Board approve Final Change Order No. 4 in the amount of
($768,440.80) for project 11289 (2812); accept the Strand Ranch Recovery Facilities
Project - Drilling and Construction of Extraction Wells; authorize the General Manager
to file a Notice of Completion for the work; and authorize the payment of the retention
35 days after the date of recording the Notice of Completion.

ACTION CALENDAR

2012 MEDICAL INSURANCE COVERAGE RENEWAL

Interim General Manager Cook reported that the District currently utilizes the CalPERS medical
insurance program and receives premium rates each year in advance of open enrollment in
October. For the 2012 calendar year, CalPERS notified the District of premium increases for
each of the specific plans from which IRWD employees can choose, with an overall annual
premium increase of 4.1 percent. He said IRWD will be retaining a consultant team to review the
District’s overall retirement and health benefits package to maximize value to the employees and
develop an equitable cost sharing method to minimize increasing exposure to rising costs. The
results of that study will not be developed in time to make adjustments to the 2012 medical

Page 3 September 12, 2011

A-3



insurance benefits. As a result, staff recommends the District make adjustments to the employee
contribution rates for the CalPERS medical plans in line with the increases announced for each
individual plan. With the recommended adjustments to employee contributions and assuming
similar plan enrollments as for 2011, the District’s overall medical insurance costs will increase
by 3.6% over FY 2010-11.

Mr. Cook said that given the scope and timing of the benefits study which is expected to get
underway as open enrollment is beginning for the 2012 calendar year health benefits, staff
recommends that only minor modifications be made to employee contributions at this time in
percentages consistent with the increases announced for each plan.

Director of Human Resources Wells reported that there are a few notable plan design changes
which have been made by CalPERS effective January 1, 2012. Under the PERS Care, PERS
Choice and PERS Select Basic plans, a new value-based program will be introduced for three
frequently used outpatient hospital procedures: colonoscopy, cataract surgery, and arthroscopy.
She said that a maximum thresholds has been set for each whether the procedure is conducted at
the site of care or at an ambulatory surgical center.

Director Swan reported that this item was reviewed and approved by the Finance and Personnel
Committee on September 7, 2011. On MOTION by Reinhart, seconded and unanimously carried,
THE BOARD AUTHORIZED THE CONTINUANCE OF THE DISTRICT’S HEALTH CARE
COVERAGE WITH CALPERS FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2012 AND APPROVED
CHANGES IN EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION LEVELS AS RECOMMENDED.

CONSULTANT SELECTION FOR EVALUATING POTENTIAL CHANGES TO
RETIREMENT AND HEAL TH BENEFITS

Interim General Manager Cook reported that on June 17, 2011, the Board approved a process for
selecting consultants to develop and evaluate potential changes to IRWD’s retirement and health
benefits. As part of that process, the proposals from consultants interested in providing the
requested services were evaluated; multiple rounds of interviews were conducted by both staff
and the Finance and Personnel Committee.

Senior Director of Finance Cherney reported that the District received seven proposals in
response to its Request for Proposal (RFP) for Evaluating Changes to IRWD’s Retirement and
Health Benefits Package. A Working Group was established to review the proposals and make
recommendations for consultant selection to the Finance and Personnel Committee and to the
Board. The Working Group consisted of the Interim General Manager, the Senior Director of
Finance and Administrative Services, and the Director of Human Resources as well as two
outside resources: the District’s outside labor counsel from Payne & Fears and the Assistant City
Manager from the City of Newport Beach.

Ms. Cherney said the list of consultants that submitted a proposal and summarized their scope of

work included: Buck Consultants, Aon Hewitt, PFM, Bartel & Associates, Chang, Ruethenberg,
Hanson Bridgett and Liebert Cassidy. She said that staff reviewed the list of consultants and

Page 4 September 12, 2011



reviewed a preliminary list of interview questions with the Committee members, and the
Committee provided input regarding additional questions to be asked during the interview.

Ms. Cherney said the Working Group interviewed the teams from Buck, Aon Hewitt, PFM,
Chang Ruthenberg, and Hanson Bridgett. Based on the Working Group’s evaluation of the
proposals and the information obtained during the interviews, recommendations were presented to
the Finance and Personnel Committee at its meeting on August 19, 2011. At that time, the
Committee directed staff to set up interviews with the recommended team of Aon Hewitt and
Hanson Bridgett. She said that on August 31, 2011, the Finance and Personnel Committee and
staff met with representatives of Aon Hewitt and Hanson Bridgett. Both teams provided an
overview of their respective proposed scopes of work and approaches, and how the teams would
work together to provide the comprehensive study services that the District requires.

Ms. Cherney introduced the representatives from Aon Hewitt, Yves McGale and Yannick Gagne
who then made a PowerPoint presentation to reveal some of their modeling tools that would be
used for the actuarial analysis, financial impact modeling, and tools for identifying where changes
would most impact the District’s employees.

Mr. Yves McGale said he would act as the engagement manager and Mr. Yannick Gagne will
oversee and manage the entire project, and the interaction between the consultants and Hanson
Bridgett. He said, the project will be to review the district’s existing retirement and health
benefit package currently offered to employees through CALPers. He said that Aon Hewett will
look at the current program in detail with a particular focus on adequacy, what benefits are
provided to the retirees and employees; sustainability from a financial point of view; and
efficiency of delivery of benefits.

Mr. Yannick Gagne reported that Aon Hewitt has had public and private sector experience
providing holistic view of retirement and health benefits trends and landscape; access to a large
pool of consultants for broad spectrum of innovative ideas and validation; and lastly resources in
the industry supporting plan design such as benchmarking database and interactive modeling
tools.

Ms. Cherney reported that Aon Hewitt and Hanson Bridgett will continue to have several
meetings with staff and has a scheduled preliminary project timeline in place beginning with a
Board workshop meeting on October 7, 2011 to establish the board’s objective setting for the
project.

Director Swan reported that this item was reviewed and approved by the Finance and Personnel
Committee on August 9, August 19, August 31 and September 7, 2011. Discussion followed and
it was proposed by Director Swan that the recommendation be amended to increase the Operating
Budget to $335,000. On MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD
APPROVED THE RETENTION OF AON HEWITT AND HANSON BRIDGETT TO
EVALUATE POTENTIAL CHANGES TO THE DISTRICT’S RETIREMENT AND HEALTH
PROGRAMS; APPROVED AN ADDITION OF $335,000 TO THE DISTRICT’S FY 2011-12
OPERATING BUDGET, SUBJECT TO VARIANCES IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PROCUREMENT POLICY; AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A

Page 5 September 12, 2011

A-5



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH AON HEWITT FOR AN AMOUNT NOT-
TO-EXCEED $150,000; AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH HANSON BRIDGETT FOR AN
AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $50,000.

INTEREST RATE SWAP NOVATION FROM CITIBANK TO WELLS FARGO

Interim General Manager Paul Cook reported that during the recent letter of credit substitution
process, Citibank, N.A. (Citi) requested the District consider novating (substituting) the three
interest rate swaps with Citi as counterparty, and replace them with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as

counterparty.

Senior Director of Finance Cherney reported that the District currently has three interest rate
swaps with Citi as counterparty. During the recent letter of credit substitution, Citi requested that
the District consider novating Citi with Wells Fargo on the three swap transactions. Citi is
interested in novating its swap positions as part of a corporate initiative to strategically sell assets
that reside in the Citi Holdings unit of Citibank. This novation would result in the District
entering into a new International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreement with
Wells Fargo with terms that are consistent with the existing Citi ISDA agreement. Wells Fargo is
a higher rated counterparty than Citibank (Aa2/AA/AA- vs. A1/A+/A+), and Wells Fargo has
agreed to increase the current collateral threshold requirement from $15 million to $50 million.
The District will not be responsible for any legal expense or Financial Advisor expense (should
one be required by Citi or Wells Fargo), as Citi and/or Wells Fargo will pay and expenses. She
said Citibank is currently holding District collateral in the amount of $8,416,629, which will be
returned to the District when the agreement with Wells Fargo is executed.

Director Swan reported that this item was reviewed and approved by the Finance and Personnel
Committee on September 7, 2011. On MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously carried
THE BOARD APPROVED NOVATING THE CURRENT CITIBANK, N.A. INTEREST
RATE SWAPS TO WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

STRAND RANCH GROUNDWATER RECOVERY PROJECT PIPELINE FACILITIES AND
WELL EQUIPPING CONSTRUCTION AWARD

Interim General Manager Paul Cook reported that that IRWD is nearing completion of facilities
at the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project in Kern County. Seven wells remain to be
equipped and pipeline and Cross Valley Canal (CVC) turn-in facilities need to be constructed in
order to extract and convey banked water.

Principal Water Research Manager Weghorst reported that IRWD and Rosedale-Rio Bravo
Water Storage District (Rosedale) are partners in the Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project
(Project) with Rosedale operating the Project on behalf of IRWD. The purpose of the Project is
to provide water supply reliability to IRWD, as well as to augment the recharge and recovery
capacity of Rosedale’s Conjunctive Use Program. Project facilities that have been constructed to
date include 502 acres of recharge basins, two CVC turn-outs, two water supply channels, a

Page 6 September 12, 2011



siphon under the Pioneer Canal and six new groundwater recovery wells. One well that existed
at the time the District purchased the Strand Ranch has been rehabilitated and will also be
incorporated into the Project. A total of seven wells need to be equipped. In addition,
conveyance pipelines and three turn-ins to deliver recovered water to the CVC are required to be
constructed. In July 2010, the Board approved a Professional Services Agreement with
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (KJC) to design these facilities.

Mr. Weghorst said on July 13, 2011, IRWD invited contractors to submit bids for equipping the
seven wells and for the construction of conveyance pipelines and CVC turn-ins. The invited
bidders were Pascal & Ludwig Constructors, SS Mechanical Corp., Gateway Pacific Contractors
Inc., W.M. Lyles Co., Bakersfield Well & Pump Co., Wood Brothers Inc., Nicholas Construction,
HPS Mechanical Inc., Specialty Construction, Inc. and Schuler Engineering Corp. Bids were
received from Pascal & Ludwig Constructors, W.M. Lyles Co., Wood Brothers Inc., Nicholas
Construction, HPS Mechanical Inc., and Specialty Construction, Inc. He said the low bidder was
W.M. Lyles Co. in the amount of $3,281,860, versus the engineers estimate for the project at
$4,700,000. He said that W.M. Lyles Co. recently worked as a subcontractor to Wood Brothers
on IRWD’s Stockdale West Recharge Facilities Project and staff has been satisfied with W. M.
Lyles Co.’s past performance on this and other IRWD projects.

Mr. Weghorst said the project construction is to completed within 325 days of the notice of
award. Construction of the CVC turn-ins will not begin until February 2012. Early occupancy of
the facilities on the north side of the CVC will occur in late April 2012. The entire project is
expected to be completed in December 2012. He said staff is coordinating with Rosedale and the
Kern County Water Agency (KCWA) in developing an agreement to construct the CVC turn-ins
in the CVC right of way and to discharge water from the Project into the CVC. The terms of the
agreement call for the turn-in facilities within the CVC right of way to become CVC facilities.
IRWD’s ownership of facilities will occur immediately beyond the CVC right of way on the
Strand Ranch. The agreement also requires KCWA’s review and approval of the designs for the
CVC turn-ins. The design of the turn-ins has been closely coordinated with the KCWA and they
have provided comments in several reviews. All comments and requirements provided by the
KCWA have been incorporated into the designs for the Project.

Mr. Weghorst said the agreement will require that the quality of water from the Project to be
discharged into the CVC must not alter the CVC’s ability to meet the Department of Water
Resources’ (DWR) water quality criteria for acceptance of non-State Water Project water into the
State Water Project. The Project wells have been designed and constructed taking these criteria
into consideration and adequate blending capabilities have been incorporated into the designs for
the pipelines and CVC turn-ins to ensure that water from the Project will not result in CVC
violations to the DWR criteria.

On MOTION by Reinhart, seconded and unanimously carried, THE BOARD APPROVED AN
EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,681,700 FOR PROJECT 11289
(2812); AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH W.M. LYLES CO. IN THE AMOUNT OF §3,281,860
FOR WELL EQUIPPING AND CONSTRUCTION OF PIPELINE FACILITIES AND CVC
TURN-INS.

Page 7 September 12, 2011

A-7



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Interim General Manager Cook reported that this Saturday, September 17™ the district will hold
its 50® Anniversary Customer Appreciation event at the Michelson Operations Plant. A tree
dedication will be made at the site and planted at a later date.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

Director Reinhart reported that he attended UWI annual conference. He suggested that UWI and
SCWC join these agencies to lessen repeated information. He said he attended WACO and the
WateReuse board meeting and symposium held in Arizona. He ask the board to save the date
November 20 for the scheduled SCWC meeting with speaker Judge Wanger, who recently retired.

Director Swan reported that he attended the ACWA Finance Committee and Budge Committee
Meetings. He stated that the ACWA staff is proposing to increase their dues, however the
Financial committee is strongly against the increase and will recommend no increase be assessed.
He reported he attended WACO and UWI conference. He also reported that a committee is
currently planning ACWA’s Regions 8-10 annual conference for October 19th and 20th.

Director Matheis reported that she attended the Irvine Valley College 9/11 Commemoration
event. She said it was a brief ceremony presented by Chief Dave Maggert. She reported he gave
a meaningful and uplifting address that was well attended by Orange County Fire Authority,
Police and the Orange County sheriffs.

President LaMar reported that he attended ACWA'’s Federal Government Affairs meeting and the

last day of legislation session in Sacramento. He also said ACWA is doing a good job with their
federal efforts on the Clean Water Act guidelines that were proposed.

MEETING RECESS at 6:25 p.m.

Meeting was recessed to allow a meeting of the Commission of the Irvine Ranch Water District Joint
Powers Agency to be held. Following such meeting of the Joint Powers Agency, the meeting of the
Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors was reconvened.

CLOSED SESSION

President LaMar said that a Closed Session will be held with legal counsel relative to existing
litigation - Government Code Section 54956.9(a) — SEMA Construction vs. the City of Tustin and
City of Tustin vs. IRWD; and Public Employee Appointment/Employment - Government Code
Section 54957. Title: General Manager.

Page 8 September 12, 2011

A-8



APPROVED and SIGNED this 12th day of September, 2011.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Assistant Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel - Bowie, Ameson, Wiles & Giannone

Page 9 September 12, 2011

A-9






September 26, 2011

Prepared and \/\/\b,
Submitted by: N. Savedra
Approved by: P. Cool%m .

CONSENT CALENDAR

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND EVENTS

SUMMARY:

Pursuant to Resolution 2006-29 adopted on August 28, 2006, approval of attendance of the following
events and meetings are required by the Board of Directors.

Events/Meetings

Steven LaMar

9/15/11 Transportation Corridor Agencies Briefing

9/20/11 Monthly meeting w/Interim General Manager Paul Cook regarding District activities
Peer Swan

9/15/11 Transportation Corridor Agencies Briefing

9/20/11 ACWA Delta Task Force Finance Planning Meeting

9/23/11 Southern California Water Committee Urban Water Planning Workshop
9/28/11 Southern California Water Dialogue Meeting

John Withers

9/21/11 OCWA September Meeting

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RATIFY/APPROVE THE MEETINGS AND EVENTS FOR STEVEN LaMAR,
PEER SWAN, AND JOHN WITHERS AS DESCRIBED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None

Board Mtgs Events.doc 7






September 26, 2011
Prepared and Submitted by: Various

Approved by: Paul Cook//; 7

CONSENT CALENDAR
STRATEGIC MEASURES DASHBOARD

SUMMARY:

Provided as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C” are the Strategic Measures Dashboard and informational
items for Board review.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RECEIVE AND FILE THE STRATEGIC MEASURES DASHBOARD
AND INFORMATION ITEMS.

EXHIBITS:
Exhibit “A” — Strategic Measures Dashboard

Exhibit “B” — Dyer Road Wellfield Status
Exhibit “C” — Reservoir Data

Strategic Measures Dashboard.docx









IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Reliability-Potable/Nonpotable

Metric Owner: Water Ops

Definition of Measure:

The relative magnitude of system outages due to failures or scheduled maintenance for Potable and Non Potable
Water.

Method:

Summation of the time any part of the system was out of service times the number of customers affected by the
given outage during the month.

Data Collection

Data was derived from the CSR database for customer based reports of "no water" and from the work order
database for scheduled maintenance requiring the shut down of water service during repairs.

Current Issues

1. None
Month Value Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 95.80 Thru: August2011
October 2010 57.80 Goal: 200.00
November 2010 65.83
December 2010 69.17
January 2011 103.20
February 2011 20.33
March 2011 59.22
April 2011 120.60
May 2011 45.68
June 2011 283.80
July 2011 62.33
August 2011 148.10

Thursday, September 22, 2011 A-2 Page 1l of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Sewer Spills

Metric Owner: Gregory Springman Collection System Manager

Definition of Measure:

Number of sewer overflows of any quantity, regardless of cause, in IRWD's sanitary sewer collection system.
This does not include spills from private sewers within IRWD's service area. IRWD has no control over private
spills and is not responsible for them. However, it should be noted that IRWD will assist the County Health Care
Agency in responding to and cleaning up private spills in the interest of the community.

Method:
Total number of IRWD sewer spills

Data Collection
Data is obtained from the California State Water Boards CIWQS data base for reporting SSO's.

Current Issues

1. September, 2010 - Irvine, 8" VCP. 100 gals SSO with 100% gals of wastewater contained and
recovered. Caused by root intrusion.

2. October, 2010 - Irvine, 8" VCP. 200 gals SSO with 100% of wastewater contained and recovered.
Caused by root intrusion.

3. June, 2011 - MWRP MPS-3 Forcemain Pigging Operation, blockage occurred at the termination
point of the 18" MPS-3 forcemain due to debris accumulation. 250 gals SSO with 250 gals of
wastewater contained and recovered.

4. July, 2011-MWRP MPS-3 Forcemain Pigging Operation (2nd Phase), blockage occurred due to
same cause. 25 gals SSO with 25 gals of wastewater contained and recovered.

5. August, 2011 - Irvine, 8" VCP. 165 gals SSO with 100% of wastewater contained and recovered.
Caused by root intrusion.

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 1.00 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 1.00 Goal: 0
November 2010 0
December 2010 0
January 2011 0
February 2011 0
March 2011 0
April 2011 0
May 2011 0
June 2011 1.00
July 2011 1.00
August 2011 1.00
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page2 of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

OCSD CORF Flows

Metric Owner: Wayne Posey Director of Wastewater Operations

Definition of Measure:
Estimated CORF flow for current FY. CORF flow ownership as of the end of FY 2009/2010 was 8.62 MGD.

Method:

IRWD's CORF flow is derived by using the actual Main Street Flume Meter flow and subtracting the MWRP
biosolid discharge flow and all non Revenue Area 14 (IRWD) flows tributary to the Main Street Flume
meter/MWRP and adding in the San Joaquin Hills Planned Community flow and flow discharges from the Gas
Recovery System (Formerly Laidlaw) for the FY four calendar months with the highest flow totals multiplied by
three, averaging the result thereof with the same result of the same calculation for the preceding two fiscal years
and adding in the current IBC transfer flow.

Note: All of the Newport Coast flows with the exception of the San Joaquin Hills Planned Community and Gas
Recovery System flow are excluded from IRWD's CORF flow calculation. The OCSD's 1988 Downcoast Area
Agreement only requires for IRWD to provide local wastewater collection service and requires OCSD to provide
wastewater regional collection, transmission, treatment and disposal for that area.

Data Collection

The OCSD's Monthly Gallonage Flow Summary Report provides the actual flows used in calculating IRWD's
COREF flow. This includes the Main Street Flume Meter actual monthly flow. All non Revenue Area 14 (IRWD)
flows that are tributary to the Main Street Flume Meter is adjusted every year based on the results of OCSD's
Flow Verification Study. The San Joaquin Hills Planned Community flow is adjusted every year based on the
results of IRWD's Flow Verification Study. The Gas Recovery System flow is the actual monthly meter flow. The
IBC transfer flow is adjusted every five years based on the results of OCSD's Flow Verification Study.

Current Issues

1. None
Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 4,69 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 4.68 Goal: 4.95
November 2010 4.70
December 2010 4.78
January 2011 491
February 2011 4.92
March 2011 4.92
April 2011 4.92
May 2011 4.93
June 2011 4.95
July 2011 3.71

Thursday, September 22, 2011 A-4 Page 3 of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

OSHA Recordables

Metric Owner: Ken Erwin District Safety& Security Manager

Definition of Measure:

OSHA Recordables are a monthly measure of injuries and illnesses that occurred and must be entered on the
OSHA 300 (Log of Work Related Injuries and Ilinesses), in conformance with OSHA requirements. This measure
is standardized not only in the water/wastewater industry, but throughout industries nationwide.

Method:

OSHA Recordables = Number of OSHA Recordable cases occurring during the subject month.

Data Collection

All injuries/illnesses and near-misses are reported to the District Safety & Security Manager immediately when
they occur. All are investigated and cases meeting the recordable definition are logged. This measure simply
reports the number of accidents whose occurrence date is within the calendar month.

Current Issues
1. Scientist - infection of both eyes from sewage splash in face while collecting sample of secodary
sewage
2. Accounting Clerk - working at computer workstation, pain to upper right back, thoracic myospasm
3. Collection Sytems Technician incurred mulitple bee stings to (L) hand, middle fingers, (L) bicept
and top of head when opened man hole

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 2.00 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 2.00 Goal: 0
November 2010 0
December 2010 1.00
January 2011 1.00
February 2011 1.00
March 2011 2.00
April 2011 1.00
May 2011 1.00
June 2011 2.00
July 2011 2.00
August 2011 3.00
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Paged of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

MWRP Energy Cost per kWh

Metric Owner: Wayne Posey Director of Wastewater Operations

Definition of Measure:
Actual MWRP Cost per kWh used at MWRP with new generating facility.

Method:

MWRP cost per kWh is calculated by the monthly total energy purchased from imported SCE electricity,
purchased natural gas for the generators from Coral Energy, and SCG natural gas transportation charge divided
by the total monthly kWh generated and imported from SCE. We then add in actual maintenance costs, including

g/a.
Data Collection

Data collected from actual monthly SCE, Coral Energy and SCG Invoices. Total kWh is collected from the two
generator kWh meters and SCE main electric meter.

Current Issues

1. Information not available.

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 10 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 .09 Goal: .08

November 2010 .09
December 2010 .09
January 2011 .09
February 2011 .09
March 2011 .09
April 2011 .09
May 2011 .09
June 2011 .10

July 2011 Not available
August 2011 Not available

Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 5 of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Wastewater Cost

Metric Owner: Wayne Posey Director of Wastewater Operations

Definition of Measure:

Total cost of collection and treatment (primary, secondary, and solids disposal) of wastewater, on a unit basis
($/million gallons) for this month.

Method:

( MWREP cost of collections(G/L #530) + MWRP cost of treatment(G/L #551,552,565) + OCSD cost(G/L
#535,555) + SMWD cost(G/L #531,556) ) divided by the total sewage flows emanating from OCSD District #14
(Includes MWRP flow + OCSD flow + SMWD flow)

Data Collection

Data used for this measure are collected from the general ledger and from Orange County Sanitation District
(OCSD) and Santa Margarita Water District (SMWD) staff. Costs and flows from OCSD District #7 are not
included in the calculation.

Current Issues

1. None
Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 2,169.00 2,362.00 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 2,167.00 2,356.00 Goal: 2.378.00
November 2010 2,206.00 2,363.00
December 2010 2,183.00 2,358.00
January 2011 2,155.00 2,355.00
February 2011 2,492.00 2,380.00
March 2011 2,277.00 2,375.00
April 2011 2,297.00 2,378.00
May 2011 2,143.23 2,375.00
June 2011 1,973.19 2,378.00
July 2011 2,393.00 2,380.00
August 2011 2,390.00 2,386.00
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 6 of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Water System Cost--Potable

Metric Owner: Denise To-Nguyen Accountant

Definition of Measure:;

Total cost of potable water delivered to IRWD's customers this month, on a unit basis ($/acre-foot). These
monthly costs can vary greatly due to variation in water sales and power cost billing cycles. Thus, monthly
expenses do not match up with their corresponding water sales.

Method:
Sum of all potable water costs accrued this month divided by the quantity of potable water sold this month.

Data Collection

Potable water costs collected from current month general ledger. This cost includes labor, power, distribution,
and other costs. The quantity of water sold is collected from the Water Usage Variance Report, which
summarizes metered water sales. Wide fluctuations in this measure may occur due to the billing delays for such
expenses as electrical power (ie, bills are not paid in the same month as the water is sold).

Current Issues
1. None

Month Value Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 834.75 837.90 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 857.34 868.51 Goal: 855.00
November 2010 1,109.19 862.36
December 2010 1,172.08 878.12
Januvary 2011 957.53 902.95
February 2011 937.62 903.89
March 2011 1,031.46 897.43
April 2011 951.24 873.74
May 2011 728.69 920.18
June 2011 1,005.05 943.89
July 2011 798.49 854.55
August 2011 773.00 789.00
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 7 of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Water System Cost--Nonpotable

Metric Owner: Denise To-Nguyen Accountant

Definition of Measure:

Total cost of nonpotable water delivered to IRWD's customer this month, on a unit basis ($/acre-foot). These
monthly costs can vary greatly due to variation in water sales and power cost billing cycles. Thus, monthly
expenses do not match up with their corresponding water sales.

Method:
Sum of all nonpotable water costs accrued this month divided by the quantity of nonpotable water sold this month.

Data Collection

Nonpotable water costs collected from current month general ledger. This cost includes labor, power,
distribution, and other costs related to tertiary treatment and reclaimed water distribution. The quantity of water
sold is collected from the Water Usage Variance Report, which summarizes metered water sales. Wide
fluctuations in this measure may occur due to the billing delays for such expenses as electrical power (ie, bills are
not paid in the same month as the water is sold).

Current Issues
1. None

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 393.78 405.18 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 508.51 473.71 Goal: 432.00
November 2010 840.22 547.10
December 2010 854.69 597.27
January 2011 1,186.35 722.95
February 2011 905.02 607.02
March 2011 1,000.90 707.32
April 2011 777.61 563.92
May 2011 424.12 452.90
June 2011 471.96 413.85
July 2011 394.00 432.00
August 2011 338.00 408.00
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 8 of 12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Enterprise Return

Metric Owner: Jayne George Debt and Investment Analyst

Definition of Measure:

This is a monthly measure of performance by IRWD's various enterprise activities, including residential and
commercial real estate, Strawberry Farms Golf Course, and wireless communications leases.

Method:
Enterprise Return = Actual Net Income/Budgeted Net Income x 100

Data Collection

The various enterprise activities generate revenues and expenses at different frequencies through the year. Except
for the real estate projects, the enterprise projects are primarily revenue generating activities with relatively little
associated expenses. The measure reflects a comparison between the actual and budgeted net income of the
various projects on a monthly basis.

Current Issues
1. The August measure is below budget at 0.98. The two apartment complexes posted above budget
returns. Waterworks Way continues to operate under budget; however 230 Commerce was well
below budget at this time due to lost income caused by Mortgage Direct being evicted for defaulting
on their lease.

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 -89 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 98 Goal: 1.00
November 2010 94
December 2010 .76
January 2011 1.17
February 2011 1.04
March 2011 1.02
April 2011 1.06
May 2011 1.02
June 2011 1.05
July 2011 1.04
August 2011 .98
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 9 of 12

A-10



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Overhead Ratio

Metric Owner: Jessica Craig Accountant

Definition of Measure:

Overhead Ratio is a measure of general and administrative (G&A) overhead expenses compared to direct labor
expenses.

Method:
Ratio of total G&A expenses to total direct labor (including regular and overtime wages).

Data Collection

G&A expenses are summarized from the general ledger and include all costs incurred that are not directly
accounted to mission-critical work (charged to g/l #792). Direct labor expenses are the hourly staff charges
accounted to mission-critical work (generally charged to expense codes #110 and #120). Benefits are considered
G&A, not direct labor expenses.

Current Issues
1

Information not available at time of reportin

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 1.73 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 1.58 Goal: 1.80

November 2010 1.54
December 2010 1.87
January 2011 2.13
February 2011 1.72
March 2011 1.92
April 2011 1.72
May 2011 1.06
June 2011 1.36

July 2011 Not available
August 2011 Not available

Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 10 of 12

A-11



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Customer Satisfaction

Metric Owner: Gina Jackson Customer Service Manager

Definition of Measure:

Customer Satisfaction is measured by IRWD's Customer Satisfaction Index. The index is measured by sending
surveys to a statistically-significant, random selection of customers that have called IRWD for some type of
service. Services range from answering questions about water conservation or billing to repairing a sewer
blockage in the street. The surveys allow the customer to rate IRWD's response to their request in eight
categories. Each category is rated from 1 to 5, with 1 indicating the highest level of satisfaction. A total score of
100 indicates the highest level of satisfaction in all eight categories. The scores of all responses in the subject
month are a weighted average for the monthly index figure.

Method:

Data Collection

Surveys are mailed at the end of each work week for the customer requests completed that week. The monthly
index reflects the surveys received within the subject month.

Current Issues

1. Total Overall Satisfaction: 96%
Satisfaction: 89%
Timely: 95%
Phone: 98%
Field Contact: 100%

Month Yalue Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 96.00 Thru: August 2011
October 2010 100.00 Goal: 90.00
November 2010 98.00
December 2010 99.00
January 2011 98.00
February 2011 100.00
March 2011 97.00
April 2011 98.00
May 2011 98.00
June 2011 98.00
July 2011 95.00
August 2011 96.00
Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 11 of 12

A-12



IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
STRATEGIC MEASURES

Employee Satisfaction

Metric Owner: Gretchen Maswadeh Human Resources Manager

Definition of Measure:
Level of employee satisfaction with employment at IRWD.

Method:
Average of all scores on surveys for performance evaluations presented this month

Data Collection

A survey is sent to each employee receiving a performance evaluation this month. The survey simply asks the
employee to rate his/her overall employment satisfaction on a scale of 1 to 6 (1 being very dissatisfied and 6
being very satisfied). The ratings are compiled and averaged by Human Resources.

Current Issues

Month Value Goal From: September 2010
September 2010 3.86 ; Thru: August 2011
October 2010 5.38 Goal: 5.00

November 2010 5.13
December 2010 5.56
January 2011 5.00
February 2011 5.20
March 2011 5.50
April 2011 5.46
May 2011 5.33
June 2011 5.50
July 2011 5.63

August 2011 Not available

Thursday, September 22, 2011 Page 12 of 12

A-13






EXHIBIT “B”

DYER ROAD WELL FIELD STATUS Aug-2011
Well Production Ref. Point Depth to Water Water  Depth of Bowl Feet of Water
Number Mo./YTD  Elevation 8/29/2011 Level-MSL Bowls Setting-MSL Above Intake
1 0.0 AF 34 N/A N/A 270 -236 N/A
0.0 AF
2 1.0 AF 37 55 -19 270 -234 215
1.8 AF Static
3 0.0 AF 55 65 -10 215 -160 150
0.0 AF Static
4 0.0 AF 38 57 -19 216 -178 159
0.0 AF Static
5 0.0 AF 48 61 -13 290 -242 229
0.0 AF Static
6 0.0 AF 43 57 -14 250 -207 193
7.5 AF Static
7 0.0 AF 40 59 -19 290 -250 231
0.0 AF Static
C-8 431.8 AF 37 107 -70 305 -268 198
DATS 850.4 AF Pumping
C-9 324.6 AF 23 109 -86 305 -282 196
DATS 640.0 AF Pumping
10 0.0 AF 47 60 -13 250 -203 190
6.3 AF Static
11 0.0 AF 40 58 -18 300 -260 242
0.0 AF Static
12 0.0 AF 51 65 -14 300 -249 235
0.0 AF ‘ Static
13 0.1 AF 40 56 -16 300 -260 244
0.2 AF Static
14 0.0 AF 47 60 -13 311 -264 251
0.0 AF Static
15 0.0 AF 44 57 -13 300 -256 243.
0.0 AF Static
16 0.0 AF 47 63 -16 280 -233 217
0.2 AF Static
17 0.0 AF 52 65 -14 250 -199 185
1.6 AF Static
18 0.0 AF 45 57 -12 300 -255 243
0.0 AF Static
Clear production: 1.0 AF for the month
FYTD: 17.5 AF
DATS production: 756.4 AF for the month
FYTD: 1,490.4 AF










RESERVOIR DATA FY 11-12

30000

Irvine Lake Storage (25,000 a.f.)

25000 wec

.
20000

STORAGE(a.f.)

5000

0

Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12

15000

10000

o

Jun-12

i ~—a~Storage(actual)

—— Reservoir Management Pian

]
|

rvine Lake is not spilling due to the installation of the flash boards Aprif 1st.

3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

STORAGE(af.)

1000

500

0

San Joaquin Reservoir Storage (3,000 a.f.)

/ .

N

'/

N T

J

Jun-12

Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12

‘ - Storage(actual)

—&— Reservoir Management Plan

All Lake Forest reclaimed demand is being supplied from the East Irvine Zone B system.

C-2




September 26, 2011

Prepared by: Fournier/Jaco
Submitted by: Debby Cherney
Approved by: Paul Cook (3

CONSENT CALENDAR

AUGUST 2011 FINANCIAL REPORTS

SUMMARY:
The following is submitted for the Board’s information and approval:

A. The Investment Summary Report for August 2011. This Investment Summary
Report is in conformity with the 2011 Investment Policy and provides sufficient
liquidity to meet estimated expenditures during the next six months, as outlined
in Exhibit “A”.

B. The Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary as of August 31, 2011, as outlined in
Exhibit “B”.

C. The August 31, 2011 Disbursement Summary of the tabulation of Warrant Nos.
322230 through 323091, Workers’ Compensation distributions, payroll
withholding distributions, payroll direct deposit ACH payments and voided
checks in the total amount of $27,334,132.01.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

As of August 31, 2011, the book value of the investment portfolio was $394,998,829 with a
0.46% rate of return and a market value of $395,551,107. Based on the District’s June 30, 2011
quarterly real estate investment rate of return of 10.66%, the District’s weighted average return
for the fixed income and real estate investments was 1.86%.

As of August 31, 2011, the total notional amount of the interest rate-swap portfolio was $130
million of fixed payer swaps. Cash accrual in August from all swaps was negative $663,900
and negative $1,267,401 fiscal year to date.

Wire transfers, ACH payments, and checks issued for debt service, accounts payable, payroll
and water purchases for August totaled $27,334,132.01.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3 Section 15378.

BOARD-Monthly Financial Report 8-2011.docx



Consent Calendar — August 2011 Financial Reports
September 26, 2011
Page 2

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not submitted to a Committee; however, the investment and interest rate swap
reports are submitted to the Finance and Personnel Committee on a monthly basis.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RECEIVE AND FILE THE TREASURER’S INVESTMENT
SUMMARY REPORT AND THE MONTHLY INTEREST RATE SWAP SUMMARY FOR
AUGUST 2011; APPROVE THE AUGUST 2011 DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY OF
WARRANTS NOS. 322230 THROUGH 323091 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
DISTRIBUTIONS, WIRE TRANSFERS, PAYROLL DIRECT DEPOSIT ACH PAYMENTS,
PAYROLL WITHHOLDING DISTRIBUTIONS AND VOIDED CHECKS IN THE TOTAL
AMOUNT OF $27,334,132.01.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:
Exhibit “A” - Investment Summary Report

Exhibit “B” - Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary
Exhibit “C” - Monthly Summary of District Disbursements



%E0°0- adueq)
%S8'T %99'01 %6P°0 Amp *sarmpuadxa pereuInss SYHUOL XIS XU 1) 199w 0) Arprby Juaroggns saproad pue
%981 %9901 %90 jsniny Ao1[0d JUOUSIAU [ [0Z T A AITLIOFU0D U st Podoy AP JUSWSAU] ST,
winpy (£) onopa0g ofop0g i
oy porSm sy oy JRENSIAUY SORON [Te3 ON (1)
€81 KuneiA 0, skeq Jo equnp 93e15AY - 0foNI0g W pus 1ouenb J0eaT 1500 U0 Paseq ST UINIAl JO STel afelse [ey (€)
%St ‘0ged 3G3CT 9TEY I[GULE A 0} JUSUTSIAL] 13014 10/310.%, 3N JO YuBg £q papraoid aupes Surpen oy Jupsn anyea A1eo 15UreSe pare[nofes (ss0) ueD (z)
TH6'TEG'E6ES ‘300B[RE WSUHSIAU] *8utopd Jareap 3{01q J0/pTe
0005119528 (sdems 1aked-poxyy U0 OF 1§ $§91) 199CT 1Y JGULEA SWPUEISING 19N 8roquoold (,Se01q SUIPRIL,) FI0X MON JO YUeq SUIST PAUNILIOISp ATk SONTeA JOHIPW AIBN0ag
000°S11°98€$ 143(1 918y J[QEIR A, SupmeIsing 3Tv71 49 pawodas se pua-1surenb Ju30aX SOW A0} JO ST 5] ANEA IIHIPU ATV (1)
BOLIBIIY JO YUeE (‘o0mm) Tegl Yoeg
useD Anad
06'901°155°S6€$ 0Z'628'866'76€8  2€ 690TO0SEES YET'6HOPOES INANLSAAN TVIOL
96'829°912°TI$ 96'829°91TTIS  96'829°91TTI$ 629912°TI$ TV10L-90S
00'000°008°E 00'000008°€$  00'000°008°€S %9600 000°008°ES YousY S usoda TeaTeo) 1/10/60  T1/80/80  LU/6T/80
96'879°91¥°8 968299188 96'8T991'8% %9600 629'911'88 dno1p-mo ysodaq] fe1arElI0D T/I0/60  1I/10/80  11/10/80
HSVD QaIOMLSTd
69'LLTTSSS $6 LLY'PEE EBES $TO0TTRLZRES  9EOVH'SBLTBES S09°ZELTBES TV10L-40S
000000096 00'000°009'6 00°000°009°6 %061°0 000°009'6 AN Lo 1588 OMIA ANPYVV/ZRY  #) 1I/1€/80 TLOE/R0 TIAWS0  TULTHO
00'000°00Z°6 00'000°00Z°6 00°000°00Z°6 %OLI'D 000°002'6 M TISEE 159M OMIA ANVVITEY ®) 1/1€/80 1L/0E/80 11280  L1/S0/SO
00°000°006'L 00'000°006°L 00'000°006'L %OLT0 000006°L VO 1810 I TN WIIsey OMIA HYVIVYITY @) LI/1€/80 1I/OE/80 1IAW80  OLELRL
00°000°006'% 00°000°006°% 00'000°006'% %0910 0000067 I ASEM VT OMIA VYIVYV/IEY &) 1/10/60 11/1€/80 11/S/80  OLSUIL
00°000°000°S 00'000000°S 00'000'000°S %OLLO 000°000'S I A 28me1Q O@IA VVVYIVVV/IEY () T/1€/80 11/0€/80 LIAZ80  LU/10/90
0000000001 00'000000°0T 00°000°000°01 %091°0 00000001 ULM ORI OMIA ANIVVVREY ) 11/1€/80 11/06/80 1IAT80  OL/9L/80
00'000°005°L 00'000°005°L 00'000°005'L %OLL'D 000°008°L Jarep Uei(odonsy O@IA VYVIVVV/IEY ) 1/10/60 LI/I€/80 11/S2/80  OLAOTLO
00°000°00L‘9 00'000°00L9 00'000°00L‘9 %HOYTO 000°00L'9 QN BIOJITED) 0YouRy O@IA ANVIEEY  © 1/I€/80 TLOE/B0 LIATB0  60/10/80
00'000000°C 001000000 00000000 %001'Z 000°000'T D S9018S JAM 2D OMIA amvvvieey o 11/10/60 11/1€/80 11/ST/80  80/60/0L
00'000°082°11 00°000°08Z°11 00°000°082°11 %091°0 00008211 ] wseq o) OMIA ANIVVVRRY () 1/I€/80 TUOE/80 1IAT80  80/ST60
00°001°D) 000068667 000000005 00'000°000°S %0S90 %0590 %0§9°0  000°000°S 2085y 33e3MOIN FEN Pad 10N - VIANA AN/+VV/ERY Y1/3T/80 TL/8T/80 11/62/80
(69°€96°F) 00°055°€66'% 69°€15'866'F 000058667 %0890 %0990  %0S9°0  000°000°S JUeg UB0'] SWOH Pad 310N - THA AN/+VV/ERY YUTUSO TUTURO 1172480
99'850°L1 00'00LYZ0°S PEI59'L00°S 00°000°000°S %HTH0D BTIEO  HSTI'T  000°000°S 0085y 98310 HBN Pod 10N - VINNA AN/VVVEEY YULULO TUTIILO PO
00'001°2€ 00'001°Z£0°01 00'000°000°01 00'000°000°01 %0S0'T %O0SO'T  %O0SO'T  000°000°01 FUBE HPAID) WIB] Pad SI0N - €D ANRVV /Ry YULUIO TULT0 TULU90
00'050°6 00'050'600°S 00°000'000°S 00'000°000°S %0STT %OSTT  %OSTT  000°000°S e 288810 Te0] AWOH Ped  AON - DWTTHA ANIVVVIVN YI/8USO 1LBUILL 1/LUSO
T6'ESTOL 00'008°600°S 80'9¥5°666 00'005°666'7 %OLTT HESTT  %OSTT  000'000°S Joeg oBeBUOW 0T SWOH Pl AON-DWIHA  SVVV/VVVREY YUEUSO TUEULL /€450
6L140'8 00°00$°900'S 1T'8SE°866'Y 00'0SZ°866'Y %80L'T %TTI'T  %OIT'T  000'000'S 2055y 282310 [1EN pod AON-VIANA  VVV/VVV/EEY PU6LH0 11/6T/90
0000811 00'008°T10°S 00'000°000°S 00'000°000°S %00L0 %OOL'0  %00LO  000°000°S JUBE We0'] SWOH Pad 0N - FTHA ANIVVV/ERY EVLT60 TULUO 1I/LT90
0T'6LE 6€ 00'00£400°S 08'0ZL'¥96'Y 00'686°656°Y %HPY0 BOVO'T  %BSTIO  000°000°S JuBg oBeSIOW WEOTAWOH P JON-DWTHA ~ VYV/VVV/ERY ELEUSO TUEULL L1/6TE0
00'05K'ST 00'0SK'S10°S 00'000°000°S 00'000°000°S %0SLO BOSL'O  %OSL'O  000°000°S JUBE UHO'] SWOH Pad 310N - THA YNPVYVV/VN EVSTHVO  TUSTHO /ST
79'86¥°91 00'0SS°ZL1S 8E'150'960°S 00°0SS°ZLT'S %BLISO  %OTL'T  000°000°S Jweg 28280 WEOTAWOH P WON-DWTHI ~ VVV/VVV/eRY S0 T1/€2S0
00001y 00'001'%00°S 00'000°000°S 00°000'000°S %0050 %EIOT %000 000°000'S Jueq o8eUON TROTSWOH Pod  WON - DIWTHA ~ AN/VVV/ERY EIHI/E0 TIHLIED A0/
8779807 00'00+*010°S TLLES'686Y 00°005°586' BYPIT BLE6D  %HOSEO  000°000°S Jweg o8eBON WROTSWOH P JON-DWTHI ~ UNPVVV/ERY €1/80/20  T1/80/20 11/01/20
PY65TEL 00'051'800°S 95'068'V66'Y 00'005'266'% BHI06'0 HIT80  BOSLO  000°000°S JUeg Hpax) tIey Pa 310N - €D AN/VVV/ERY EL/TI/10 § T/11/10
9LLOLT 00'052°000°S YT THSB66°% 00'005°L66'F %0650 HSISO  %OSHO  000000°S FURg UPAL) Wrey pa 0N - €04 VVV/VVV/REY T1/97/01 OTAW/IL
Y1'L0T'8 00°000°010°S 98'76L°100°S 00°0S§°210°S BP0 %000T  000°000°S 2085y 932310 BN Pad AON-VINNA  VVV/VVV/EY 1EULL OU1ZH0
760921071 T6'092°105°1 26092 10%°1 %6000 T6'092°10%'] EILISUTY JO JuBg saatosoy ASL v Jo g 11/10/80 LU/I€/80 LI/IOB0  TT/1€/80
OL'LTT'R0T 98°+10°€62°TEL ST'LBLYBOTEIS  STLBLYROTELS %08€°0 L8LYB0TEL *AS], ETOIOJI[ED) JO STRIS SAVE AV 11/81/60 I/1€80  TU/10/80  11/61/80
LTLLO'T 18'6SE489 $9'8LT'E89$ $9'8LZ'E89% %08€°0 6L7'€89 *£s], TTHIOJED) Jo ATl 46002V 11/90/60 171680 TU/10/80  T1/L0/80
LTLLO'T I18'SSE°89 +9'8LT'EB9S ¥9'8L2'€89% %08E'0 6L7°€89 *ASL BIOIOJ[ED) JO 2YEIS V600Z-HIV'T 11/90/60 1/1€/80  T1/10/80  T1/L0/80
05'€Z8'8L 05°£78°8L0°05 00000000058 00'000°000°0S$ %080 000700008 *AS 1, BIWOJI[ED) JO YRS Va1V 11/0£/60 TI/1€/80  1U10/80  11/8T/90
YO'LOLTS YO'LITI98'SE 00'000°008'8ES  00'000°008°8€$ %08€0 000°008'8€$ A8, BIWIOJ[ED) JO YIS V1 T1/0£/60 TI/IE/80  T1/10/80  1I/1E/80

L1/1€/80

2<3 HMQMH—Nm 130ddd AGVIAINNS INHWISHANI
LOMILSIA YHLVM HONVY INIAYL



%60°€

%SE0

%9L81

%TS’1T

bLTS

*$9)BI 1$919)UT UO Juepuadap ST Te1a1e[[od pajsod Jo Iy 4

OI'TOA1LY0d 4O %

6C9°912°C1$

192°10¢'1

000°080'PL

000°000°68

YrETSTTLLY

%00°001

YET'6V6'V6ES

STVIOL

000°000°ST

%08'¢

000°000°S1$

¥10T/0¢/6 - ¥10T/T/L

000°000°ST

%EE9

000°000°5T$

Y10T/0L/9 - ¥10T/1IY

€10T/1¢/C1 - €10T/1/01

000°000°S

BLTT

000°000°S$

£10C/0€/6 - E10C/T/L

000°000°ST

%08°¢

000°000°S1$

£102/0£/9 - £10¢/ 1Y

000°000°ST

%08'¢

000°000°ST$

£10T/1¢/€ - £10T/1/1

000°000°S

BLTT

000°000°S$

C10T/1€/CT - T10T/1/01

C10T/0£/6 - T10T/1/6

629°912°C1$

192101

000°080°vL

000°000°S

Ye162°7eTs

%YL 6L

YET'6V6'P1ES

TVIOL-90S

62991CT°CI$

19T°10¥°1

000°080°vL

000°000°S

Yre1sTTees

BLTT

%8Y'8L

000°000°¢$

YET'6V6°60ES

(4%}
(477>
(4%,
(4715
(4714
(49}
Clre
(49!
11/C1
/1t
11/01
11/6

SHIL-NLVIN 40 AIVININNOS

11/1€/80

YET'6V6'V6ES

JORLLSIA 9LV M HONVY HNIAYTTL

Or'104.L390d



Collateral Deposit

SWEEP Account
0

2.5%
e 18-24 Months

0.0%

7.6%

11.4%

H’”‘m 24-36 Months

-3

A






Wd 9¢-Z1

LLOZI6LI6
al & & A LR Q
S1ep 0} 39} + ]S99l + Moy | | & \%r & \% > oa@ a@&u% %, < $ zbm o&oao a.n.O %%. %ﬁt& > mm& ﬁaa &«ao%o il 4 0&%% i aaaO %.ao mvo
yses dems sapnpul dnayuAs, - | @, & ¢ & e © VoV N
(Biequiooig - sejes 3| petewnsa) | | e C : S = e SN : - (00°000°sS)
L0~B Ul %E6°Y pue ‘gg-unp g - R j : o L
UL %01-G Je pansst 1Gop a1el poxiy -} e ——————— e 00°000°st) .
SUCHAWNSSY (00°000°SE) 2
) =
GGZ'lop'eyS = eley paxi4 | e e : . o s T el (00°000°ST7) m.
cogosuers  =poxdoneyuAs | | Preo o e e e e ————— S : (00°000°sT) m.m
 _ | : —=Z (00000%)  §
31ed 0} MOIJ USeD | m
g ” u
,,,,,,,,, X w1 | MO[J SE)) IGI( PIXLY swereammerer 2
B o oIS | || Mot pa pond [ERIOY YsE) dApEnmn)
T —— MO YSED OQUA/JEMS - = = = orjoppa0g demg djey Isaa3)uy
000°000°0€}L $ sdemg pajeulunsa] g Aoy
Jeaj Juauns [ejol

1o%eN - “moid ysen
sazeinuing

aouaJsallq
[euonoN

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ sdemg pajeuiuia)
lea) juaunyg [ejol

ey J} mordused sid [ wuoly | Yuc | eieupexiy | i . euogoN | Aued | sjeq ejeq
0} yiey jusuny aagejnwng | { ) ) i I I 5«::00 Aumew | aanoeys

(czo'vie'sy) $ L116'S2L'Z8 $ (ocg'60s'¥Z) $ (1LO¥'292Z°L) $ (006°c99) ¢ (1L0S°€09) $ 000°000°0€L  $ sdemg aAoy

JeaA juaing jejo)

(czo'vLz'Ly) ¢ Lle'szlze ¢ (9€8°60S'vZ) $ (1L0v°29Z°L) $ (006°¢99) $ (L0S°€09) $  %6V6'S 000°000°0€L  $ (x4 sBAy pajyblapysieioL
(cev'voeTH) 106°660°LE  (prO6618)  (0LL6LE)  (GerovL) § (GHeZEl) § %.89°S ¥OgIT  dXd  000°0000€ $  ©I S'LL  620Z/0LIE L00Z/0LIE
(6z6'9veT)) L20°S9°LL (vv9°661°S) (011°622) (s61'opk) ¢ (S16°ZEL) $  %L89°G ¥0gIT  dxd 0000000 $ =W S'LL  6Z0Z/OL/E LoOZ/oM/E
(ooc‘ras‘e) 00L°G1¥°0Z (Zov000°9) (1zzzog) (sze'ssL) ¢ (ceg'cyl) $  %OFL9 ¥0gIT dXd  000°000°0€ $ 99 8'L  6L0Z/ILLI9 900Z/LLI9
(6¥2°305°9) LSLL6PEL (020°550°Y) (os¥°c02) (L65°90L) ¢ (688'96) $ %0029 - ¥OgImT dXd  000°000'0Z $ 99 8L  6L0Z/v/9  900Z//9
(150°0€5°9) § 6v6'69P'Ch $ (ozo'sso'y) ¢ (osv'eoz) ¢ (165'901) ¢ (698'96) $ %0029 ¥OoglIT  dXd 0000000 $ TN 'L 6L0ZTH/9  900Z/v/9
sauasayig jouen ["Molduseo | QLAIEoSid | wuow | wuom soud | [ eveu pexia jwy [euogoN - Qunewy | 9jeq ajeq

JeuoyoN 0} YieW JusLIny aAeINWNg Aunew

A9

18juno) | o} sueap

LV LSIMILINI

,m ﬁni,xm— b | .. . . . Lioziiers






sTqeTIobaN 09°999°2 ONI ZMVASAINOD TT-S0Y-¥0 - 592TZE
*ONI

STqeTIobaN TT ELS'% ‘SWELSAS HODNAWOD TTI-D0¥-%0 $S222¢
*ONI
‘ZINNOD HONYHEO

sTqerzobsy ZZTIST'T J0 ¥00a TYIDIAWWOD TI-OH0W¥-%0 €£6222%
ONI HOUWNOSIH

aTqeTIcheN 00"00E’S SNIIYO0D TYID¥EWWOD TI-ONV-%0 zSzZEE
ONI ‘SWALSAS

@TqeTI0baN 00°589 DIJAVEL TILSYOD TI-DOV-%0 15222¢
ONI AQVOIHAYE

a1qeriobay §Z° 954 YINNO4ITYD TI-DA¥-%0 0§z2zZ¢
ONI STHIRILYA

arqerieban ¥ST6% ‘ST ANTTIATd STTIM D TI-O0V-¥%0 6%222Z¢
NOTIREOIACD

aTqeTioban 9% 260 PET Y HOLYEA 3 MOwIg T1T-DOV-70 8vzLes

atqeriobay S 0ET'ST . ONI DIDWWOIE TT-B0¢-%0 LYZZZE
SAILTEIDAAS

a1qeT1059N 06°S£9 A¥ALIVE TT-O0¥-%0 9%yZZz¢E
HONAT TTTHNEN

arqeTjobay 96 €ZT ST YOTYSWY 40 ¥NWE TT-DAV-70 SYETTE

oTqeTI069N ST ¥8%'% ISIY TT-DOY-%0 ¥y2ZTE

aTaqeT3Ioban £E°0S IZI¥  TT-D0¥-%0 £$2TTZE

a1geTiobay 99°285°T IZIY  1T-90¥-%0 ZyTTTE

atgerioban PO LLL'OZ NOIIVN0O&U0D ISY TT-D0¥-%0 T92ZZ€E
ONI

argetioban LOTLTR'T ATMOE TAIVIDOSSY TT-DOV-H0 0%ZZZ¢

atqerioban 00°€%0°'GT JTT INTOJLIASSY TT-DO¥-%9 6£TEZE

a1qeTI069N TEEVL L TONI ‘°S§°Q SIQYO¥Y  TI-DOv-¥%0 8£ZZTE
oT1
YD - SEIOHOTONHOIEL

aTqeTIobaN 0L798%°¢€ TYTELSAANT dAITddY TT-20¥-%0 Lezzee

a1qeriobay 09°S¥P%v'T SSO¥D ENTY WAHINY TT-DO¥-%D 9€22Z¢
ONI SHOIAN¥IS

sTqeTioben 6L°L8Y' LS IDVELNOD HAUNYXITY TT-DO¥-%0 SE€ZZZTE

aTqetioban 18°8¢ ‘ONI ’ISHM-SYDAIY TT-90v-%0 vEZ2ZE
DNI STDITAUES
TYINLSNANT

aTqeTIo0aN 00°%EE'TF JIONYAQYE TT-DAV-%0 £€ZTZE
SNOTLJO

arqeTioban 67012 TIYD HIIYEH ddv¥  TT-Da¥-%0 ZEZEZE
FONVELSNT

atqetiobaN ?9°86%°2CT SANTOM S3a A4I7 TYSIONTEd TT-DA¥-€0 1€zzee
ALT¥OHIOY
HONTAOSNI

3TqeTioban 00°19s°TLE AYd SSAIXT OVSO TT-OOY-T0 0€TETE

MOFHD aMJI ¢ Jusumdog uswied

snaeas JUNIOWY PaIxesTd ojeq Junouy suswieg 231§ awey TotTddnsg 97eq uny souanbes saquny juswded
raIRaTd
ON :ssaxppy aat1ddns Aeidsta 11% 2diy Juswles
{ TeTICd sn ) dsn :Aousxan) Iuswied ( IBTTOQ S0 ) ASQ *ADUSIIND WMOOIY Hued
T :9beg ¥4 pue d¥ BuTOSUD :3unodoy goTebuy s07 @ youead YN BOTISUY IC Uued :MNVE
0%:ST TTIGZ-48S-T0 :®3eq 3xodsy TI-90¥-I€ O TI-DOV-T10 IoJ I1938iboy suwswled z96paT aMAT

« Dy NQIIXY



aiqetioban

aTqeTIobaNn
otqetioban

aTgeTioben
3TqeTI0BeN
aTqeTioban
a1qeTioBoyn

a1qeTichen

aTqeTICBaN
aTgeTIcBaN

aTqeTiohban

sTqetioban

oTqeTIckhaN
a1qeTaicben

atqeTioben
aTqetrioban
aTqeTiobsn
sTqeTI060N
aTqeTIobeN
sTqeTIobaN
aTqeTIobaN
oTqeTI0boN

oIgqeTIoben

2TGeT 069N

sTqeTIobaN

aTOETI05oN

snaieis IUOU PaIvaTd

>

0%:GT TT0Z-dd5-10

00°568°8

8% 2901
00°0T9'¥
LT EPI'E
18 L6V

52°489°8

6T°92€°T
TO PLLIT

SF 09T

96°2EL°T
§5°5€2°1

ST 652
08- €22

00 IOL’E

6%°28¢°T

8T %67 0T
SLT0LS'T

6€E°S¥Z°T

T ¥9S

%999

TIT €08

00" €%S P0OE

00°STE

oleg IUNoWY 3Juswied

[sER-EY o)

OM
{ xeTTOq so ) dsn

:ggaxppy I2i1ddng KAerdsta

:Aouszang juswdeg

1abeg 44 pue d¥ BUTHOSYD :IUNODIY

:93'g 3xodey

TI-D0¥-T¢ O&L TT-D0¥-TO0

IOULNOD ANV

OFOIA TYI¥LSNANT
ANVAWOS

FONTINSNT UNVANH
ONT ¥s0 104833 AWOH
ANYAWCD TYOIWAHD
SYIHIO¥E T1IH

ONT

DI¥IDIATE NOADTYH
ANWSHOD HOYH
UADNITYD

O HONVITAWOO
JOog] dLWIS NITTOO
*ONL “YOTJdEWY

40 sdWid KIAGOO
WRIOLSNOISNT

OTT ANWAWOD
OIAIINATOS ¥AHSTIA
ANYEWOD HONWIASNT
HLTYEH GNY

HATT HITIYEH LS¥YI4
SEOLAYES

dDIOHD §LSYid
X534

SILVIDOSS5Y

¥ TIHEEYS

OOaINE
ANOTYALOETH

ONT

SINIWAYLENT FAAMA
AN

M HLANNTY ‘TIvId
dDIA¥ES TC0d

NOS ® NCSTaN 0J
DNI 'digy¥o

T IEIM QEENYT
"ONT SWHLSAS
YII¥M H 7 T

DHI

SAI0M Y35V WOISNO
ALTEOHLOY
FONTINSNI

SSIOXI D¥SD

ONI

" TENMOILYNIALNI -IdD

2315 sweN I=1Tddng

TT-20¥-~-%0

TT-20¥-%0
TT-20¥-%0

TT-90¥-%0

T-POd-%0
ﬂ|wD4|wo

i ed

1T-90¥-%0

TT-00¥-%0

1-90¥-%0
1-90%-%0

1
1
11-009-%0
TT-90%-%0
11-20¥-%0
TT-90¥-%0
TT-D0¥-%C
TT-D0¥-%0
TT1-90¥-%0

TT-20¥-%0

TT1-D0N¥-%0

MOFHD aMdT

T8CZZE

o8zezze
6LCTTE

8L22TE

¥Lzeze

€L222¢E
cLZZZE

Tizzee

oLzzze

o2zt
gazeet
c9zzeL
T9czze
ggeezee

6522ZZ¢

T 444

L5zZeee

EETA4A4

Jusunoogq Juswied

?3eg wny 2ousnbsg Ioqumny JuswAed

TI¥ 2dAyl juswled

( TeTTOd S0 ) 4SO :AJUSIAND IUNDDSY YUwed
saTobuy soT @ youeid

a03 193sthey uswled

*YUN eDTISWY JO Hued NNV

125peT aMNI



STRTIOBaN

o1qetioban
S1qeTiobaN

atgeTio5eNn

s1qeTIofeN

sTqeTIoben
S1qeTIehaN
oTqRTIobeN
S1qRTIOBSN

stqeTIoboN

2TqRTIObeN
a1qetiohoN

atgaTIchan
a1qeTIohaN

a1qeTiobaN

atqerioboN

1qeTIoben
21qeT3069N

oTqeTIchaN

a1gqeTichen
21qeTIobaN
a1qeticban
aTqeTI0baN
aTqeT 105N
aTaeTiIobaN

snjeas

€
0%:9T TTI0Z-d35-T0

AUNOWY PIIARITD

ZLT95%° PG
05°LEB ¥

6T FIE’T

L87LeT

00°005'T
00°0SL'E
%9°0%2°C

oL TEL'L
c0°0g

€€ LGS
€8°LBF 09
¥L 0LS

00°00¢

61665

00°€Z8'ET
By "¥LE ST

€6°6T9'T1

TZ 6¥%0'8B€E

00°00€8T
00°056'%

23eg Jjunowy juawled
jsER1-E2 fo]

Ol :ssoxppy IaTTddng Aerdstg

( reTTOd SO ) asn :Aduaxan) juawded
:abeg ¥d pue ¥ SUIAISYD ¢ IUNOIDY
r9nea 3zodod TT-D0¥V-T€ OL TT-Da¥~T0

z04 x31stboyd

“ONI

104 SYITANIL

DNI

ONIYTINIONT S0TOVd
ONT AFIAYYE T 'I0Vd
TELNIR

AL¥Wd 5I4IDVd

dg0d

X109 LSY0D DIAIOVd
I3TULSTA
HOIIYIINYS
ZINNOD HONTUO
SYOLNATALSTA
EOUN0SIANO
IAOdANs

gYT INAWNDISSY NC
., NOIIWACdHOD NITO
TOWId TOOMHI¥ON

J0 ALID

'HOVEE TUOIMAN
ADUIONHDEL HNALJIAN
CD ILIUINOD AEXTIMW
XQ¥Id TYNOIIVM
SHIYOIVIOEYT HMW
0D AIdans

LIS VALSYW SW
SHONZIOS
TELNENNOATANT
aITTAdY OEW

SOAS FDNTINSNI

? MSI¥ HSUYW

ONI ZIN¥Id WIODTYH
dd00

DNIIWHEd0 SIMII
LOTHLSIA

FALEM ALNOOD

HOoVAD YNODYT

ONI ‘SIDIANHS
NOLIDMILSNOD Sdd%
TEL NOOS “WIX
STOTAYAS TOTLINOD
IS8d aN¥ HIIWNHEL
SONg-N-TIIY

SYAOD TAVHOIW NHOC
ONI A1dd0S

® F4Id ANIANI

2T1

suey zatrddng

{ FeTTOa SO )
youeig

saTabuy ST :
JuPwAeg

TT-D0¥-%0

T1-DO¥-%0
TIT-D0¥-¥%0

TT-D0Ov¥-¥%0

TT-20¥-%0

TT-D0¥-%0
TI-D0Y¥-¥0
TT~-00¥-%0
TIT-00¥-%0

TIT-D0¥-%0

TT-20M~-¥%0
TI-20Y-¥%0

T1-D0¥-%0
TT-00¥-%0

IT-90Y¥-%0

IT-20V¥-%0

TIT-90¥-%0
TT-D0¥-%0

TL1-D0Y-%0

TT-90¥-%0

TI-90¥-%0
T1-00¥-%¥0

e
4]
Q

T
T - %
TT-00%-%0

ADEHO dM¥I

s0eTeE

50e22¢E
rogeze

€0gzee

zogzee

TogcEE
gogzee
66222¢
8622Z¢

L62ZZ¢

9622T<
G622TE

rezeee
€6222E

z67ZZ¢€

88geee

L82TTE
98BZZTE
G8zeee
yg8zece
€8ZLLE
Z82TzTe

auswnoog JuswiArd

23w uny 9ouanbas Iaquny JuswARg

TTY odAL
ADURZIND JUNODOV Yurd
YN POTISIEY IO yued :NNVH

asn

ausuied

T2bpeT aMul



HIVISANYL

a1geTioben 05°256'T MNd ¥TIIA
ONI

s1qeTi0bsN SL 602 YINNOIT'TED NOZIEIA
YLOAYA N DOSSY

aTqeTI056aN 00°0ST T T,IYN MNYE S0
DN

SNOILATOS OMIdWRAE

3 NOIIVELIIA

sTqeTI0ban 88°9%0 T TYSHINTNA
aTqrTI0baN 8L PPT’T OIJTIINIIOS WILIO
3TqeTiobaN 85°8%5°E ANYIWO2 §Y9 JHL
aTqerichan 05°48€°9T ONI ’HOEL VdldL
ONI ' SEINCIVIOEYT

STqeTiobaN 0% "88¢°T COTYINWELSAL
aTqeT3i0baN SL°69 o177 VIAQEWdAdNS
. ANTANOD

MOSIdd V¥INZ0ATTYD

aTqeT2063N ¥Z STE'08€E NYHEHIAOS
a1qeTIobaN 397181 dIIYM LSYCO HINOS
ONT

aTqeTiohbaN 3L°8LT 0D AIddns XOOUWWHS
aTgetiobeN 00°058°¢€T ONI DNIAYE SIHANYS
HOHL WHLSAS

aTqeTI069N G99 aIaTs ODITA NUS
oTqeTI0baN 08°22Z'9 d0odD NDISHO Wad
JrLo 4T INQD

sTeT1068N 00°6L6 AIND LSEORADON
ONI SWHLSAS

aTqeTiohban ces¥s’e ITEMIIOS S0
“ONI ¥EINED

2TqeTI069N $9°000°CT A209L NOONIXE
aTqeTIobeN 90 ERE'D ONI WICOHY
a7geTIcheN 60°956°T d sEWEL "asEd
ONI FONYLSISSY

STUeTI0DSN 087808 EHAOTIHT HOVAY
sTquTIchaN 9S°LG6TT DNILINSNOD A8qS
ONT

oTgRTIobaN €€°526°¢ IT0E % ION MOENIVY
oTgeTI0BeN 00 0PE‘S ONI IDHd4% FdNd
ATddns

s1qeTI0beN %S €08 TIVAHAC TYLLNIANNE
2T

2TqeT1063M 00°00Z°%2 HOYYESTY AAST0908d
. ONI NOILREIMISIA

aTgeT 069N ¥8 6LE HIVXTEE
snaels Junowy paIesTd s3eg junouy 2usuwied 2318 swey x=2TTddng

pPIIBITD
on :ssaxppy zsrTddng Aetdsta
{ xeTTOd SO ) asn  fAouszan) Judmded
4 :aBed dd puUE 4¥ BUTMDIYD :ILNOIDY goTobuy soT *
0%:5T TT0Z-ddS-T0 :=23eg 3xedey IT-0NY-T€ OL IT-DO¥-T0 I04 I31s5THoH Juswdied

TT-90¥-%C XA XAAS
TT-20¥-%0 ZEESZE
1T-90¥-%0 TEEZZE
TI-20v-%0 ogezee
TT-20¥-%0 62E2TE
TT-20¥-%0 82TETZE
1T-20¥-%0 LZeeee
TIT-D0Y-%0 9Z£ZCe
TT-D0¥~%0 SZECZE
TL-D0Y~-%0 YZETTE
TI-DOY-%0 £ZETCE
TT-D0OvY-%0 ZZEREE
TT-S0¥-%70 1Z€22%
TT-D0¢-%C 0ZE2TE
TT-90¥-%9 6TETZE
TT-D0¥-%0 8TEZZE
TT-90¥-%0 LIE2ZE
TT-90¥-%0 9TEZZE
TT-20¥-%0 ERR XA A
TT-90¥-%0 yiezee
TIT-D0¥-%0 €T€2ZE
1T-90¥-%0 [ARXAAN
TT-90¥-%0 11€22¢€
T1-90¥-%0 0TEZZE
TT-D0¥-%0 60€EZ2¢E
1T-90¥-%0 80€CZE
TT-90Y-%0 LOEZZE
MOFHD aMYI ¢ Juswnoog Jusuded

23pg WnN SOULNDIS

{ ITefTOQ SN ) dsn
yorexdg

Tacumy Juewied

IV :adA1 juswieg
tAousIan) AUNoODoY uega
‘YN BOTIR2WY JO Yueg (HNVE
x2bpaT aM¥Y



SHONIIOS
TEINZRNOYIANE

sTqeTI06aN 00°000°T QITIIIY 28W  TT-DAY-%0 89€22¢

STarIIOo6aN 0L"C68'T 071 SNEMAVD NIAIYW TT-O0%-%0 LSEZZE
SOAS HONTENSHI

sTqeTioben G£79L48°%9T T ¥STY HSAYW IT-90¥-$0 95€ZZE

a27qetTicheN 00 00L’E 077 INTHI-LENEYW TT-D0¥-F0 S5€2ZE

sTqeTI0b8N £€°559 AY¥0 ‘HAILIEGAAT  TI-90Y¥-%0 FEEEEE
AITALAS

sTqeTachon 0052 IONEATS TINFIINTI TT-2a¢~-%0 €SETTE

sTqeTichan 2L705L ONI VS I0d3d HWOH TT-DA¥-%0 ZHETTE
ANYAWOD TYOTIHRIHD

sTqeTicBan SETEET L S¥AHIOYE TIIH TT-DA¥-P0 TS€22E
ONT

oTqeTIoben ¥E 67L°SC ONTYTANIONT ¥aH TT-90Y-%0 05ETTE

aTqeT106eK S0°G8T DNI ¥YISTYEOTD TT-DO¥-¥0 6HETZE
. cavod

oTqETIIcEeN $H L9 T XVL FSTHONYES IT-DOY-~F0 8PETTE
SINAWLSIANT

oTqeT1069N [JUaKiE4 4 ALITAICTE TT-9OY-F0 LVETEE

“ONI 'ONIIOVEINOD
QY ONTEIHANIONA

oTUeTIO0SN 00°TLE'S TIINGWNOITANT  1T-90¥-F0 9veZZt

Eleeasteisting ST #LS ASAOHONIVYITD T1-DOV-F0 q¥eeze
ONI STYIFELVRN

aTqeTI06eN 89°%2Z'0C INITIFAT STTEM O  TT-DAV-#0 P¥EZEE
NOLIWACAHQD

aTqeTI0baN 90°6¥0 162 HOIVAA ¥ dOVIH  IT-O0Y-F0 £¥ezee
oI
‘ONTLTIASNOD aNY

Ele1-elelsEN Q070002 ROTIIYIDI4S GIITdd¥ TT-DA¥-¥0 Zreeee
OTI SIDIAYES

3TqETI069N QL7982 DNIDYSSIW NYIINEWY TT-90V-%0 T#ETTE
00 FOIAYFIS

2TERTI06N 597699 TYOICHW HFIZ  TT-90¥-$0 ovgeete
ONI ATAdnS

aTgeta06eN LT LL8 ALAAYS ISYOD ISIM TT-OO¥-%0 &egeee
ONI

a1gerachen 00° 02T SATEOLWEOHYT dOHEM TT-90¢-%0 8EEETE
ONI ‘SESTYIYFINI

sTqeTicheN [\ 541 S.,3I¥%¢M  TI-80Y¢-%0 LEEZZE
AINNOD FONWIO 40

STORTICHaN 8E L¥6 T INSWITENYN HISeM TI-D0OV-$0 9eeTTE
2TEIOETH

sTqeTIchaN Ze° 68 HTYSHIOEM SYALTEM  TT-S0Y-%0 i X 44

aTgeTIchaN 00 88€’8 ONI ISdA  TT-DOV-F0 Feeeee

MOHHD MMI © JUSumocG juswAzg
snaels Junouy paIeaTy 23eq Junowy Julawleg 2318 sweyn Tat1ddng saeq wny scusnbag  xaquny Juswled
pazeaTd
ON :sssappy I2T1ddns Aeydstg TIV :adAy auemied
( xeryog SO ) asn  AousiInd ludwAed { IeTTOO SO ) gsh ADUSIIND JUNOIOY HURH
[=1 :aBeg ¥d purR 4¥ BUTYORUD §Juniosdy sarabuy soT @ youweag "YCN ROTISWY 3O xued :¥NYd

0%:GT TT0Z-435-T0 :9d3eq 3xoday TT-90V¥-I€ O TT-DAY-T0 04 Ioastboy juswled I2DpeT aM¥I



argeTIcban CO"T6% T ALI¥COES A¥d  TT-90Y-TT Z8eETZE
UN ANYEINOD
LEOHL NOTTIW

21grT3I06eN 00°99%°T MPOA MEN J0 ANYE  TT-DAY-IT 18€TTE
(¥ed) SELINS

aTgrTIohaN 0¥ 92€’9 NY TELOE S3¥AY  TT-90¥-T1T 08EZTE

aTqeT3068N €2°258°T ISI¥ TT-Da¥-TT 6LETTE
T
YO - SIIDOTONHDIL

sTqeraocbawn 8T BST TYT4LSAGNT QIITddY TT-DOV¥-TT 8LEZZE

a1qeT3ohan SE°ZY% g XWSHEC ‘EdWNY TT-90¥-TT LLETTE
ONI X7ddns
aNY NOTLOOMLSHOD

a1geTiobeN €T ¥65°60T NYIINHIWY TT-DO0W¥-1T 9LEZZE
"ONI ‘SHISOTONHOHEL

aTqerIoban €9°LLT'Z . LRTIIDT  ITT-D0¥-TT EYANAAN
SHDTA¥ES ENITHEAII

aTqeTiobLN 00-008°S ITEVAY0AdY TL-DOv-TT vLEZTE
ALTYOHLAY SLIJINIH

oTqeTIOoBReN ZL 869°CE HLTEEH ¥MOY TI-DOV¥-1T €LEZCE
J400

argerioban £0°61¢ OI¥IDITE NOILOY TT-Da¥-TT zLezcE

aTqet3ioban 05°88L YIIML ‘SWYITTIIM TT-DOY-¥0 TLEZZE

aTqeTI058aN 0% LLY’9 OTI JALRO¥EI S0 TT-DOV-¥0 oLezee
SEIDOTONHIIEL

oTqeTI0baN TL 8LY AINTd qE¥ROXol  TT-DO¥-%0 59€2ZZE

oTqeT30baN 00 8%9 A0D FONEJ FHL TT-DOY-%0 83£2ZZ¢
ONI

sTqeTIohaN 00°008°6 TEOTLATENY TYES TT-D0¥-%0 LIEZZE
ONI 0D

oTqeTIchaN LZ 58% TESO4SIC MOSNIVE TT-D0Y¥-%0 99gzee
ONI

2TqeT3062N LB ZFE'E TAAYHD ¥ AN¥S IId TT-Da¢-%0 S9€£2Z8
ip:-19)

sTqeTI0ben 8% " S88 T WAL ONOT S¥Ed YI-D0Y-%0 $9ETZE
ONI FHYD

a1qet3ioban eCc 0%Z ONTIQIINd DIZIOYd TI-DaY-%0 €£9€22¢
HIUYHW

aTqeTIobaN 05°8¢9 YIHINAD 'ZENC@MO TI-D0¥-¥%0 z9gzee
dT7T NENEHSTA

aTaeTichon Q90" %T THOYH NOSTC TI-DLV-%0 TIEET

NOLIVAOZHOD

aTqeTiI0boN 0¢ 0ST VOI¥NEWY ASLTYON TI-DOV-%0 c9gzZee
. ONT

aTgeTi0baN 0o'zin’e TTYOINHOALOID 9N TT-O0V-%0 [N A4

MOAHD GMET : Judwnooq usufed
SNBSS JUNOUNy pPaIEdTD ajeqg junowy JusiAed 23ITS swey xstTddng a3eq wnpy sousnbag  Isquny Jusuled
PIIWSTD
oN :ssaxppy zoTTddns Aetdstq 11Y :odAl juswded
{ TeTTOQ Sn )} asg Aouszxnd Jusudeg { TeTICod SO ) OSA ASURIIND JUNCODY MUued
9 :abeq ¥& pue gy Buryosyl :junoooy soTsbuy SOT : UDURIH “YCN BOTISWY JO Ued :MNVE

0%:GT TIOZ-43S-T0 :=3eq 3xodey TT-90Y-T€ O TT-9Da¥-I¢ Iog I93stbey juswded IS5pPST aMII



ONTHHINTONE
STqRTIONSN 00°00Z'¥ SWHLSAS TYOLVLDATE TT-OOY-TT 50%2Z€
STQeT3053N 00°2Zo¥ QNOETILOETE  TT-90¥-TT 80%ZCE
SETYISNANT
oTqeTI0boN 99°595°¢€ TOUINGCD AD0TIODE TT-OO0¥-TT LOPZZE
aTqet3ohban 9% LTS ONI ALIAVYS ¥WEDEYIC TI-H0¥-1IT 90%2Z¢
ONMI ONIYHINIONH
STARTIObaN €0°8TE89 SWELSAS ARLIT TI-DAV-TT S0TEZE
aTgeTIohon 00°S2P‘Y ONI 3500 TT-Ha¥-TT v0%ZZ¢E
aTqeTichen 86685 SNDIS 9 ¥ ¢ TT-80¥-TT €0¥2TE
AIIVIOTIOOMI
aTqetioben 86°TT % I TT-90¥-TT zoveze
ONILINSNCD ANV
atqeTiobsn TS 6TIS'T SOINGAIJETE §40 TI-DO¥-1T T0¥22¢
DNI
arqeTIoban 00°0£8°'T SHINYANOD O0dd¥dod TTI-9DO¥-IT 00%2ZE
AYAS DNIIITALNOD
a1qeTio0bon S6°90S°T JITYATTOSNOD TT-20¥-TT 56E2ZE
aTqeTiobeyN F0°G68°T ONI TAVHEAHANOD TT-HOV-TT B6EZTE
ONI SH)IAYAS
ONIHOLINOH
aTgeTIOobaN 00°GEE’8 NOILIANCD TT-9A¥-T1T AN AAN
ONI ‘STCUINCO
aTqetTiobeN 80°0TL'2 ¥ NOLLINDI TUYLISYCD TT-9a¥-TT 96€22¢E
3TqRTIOnaN ST 82 VIAAVID ‘SEAAASHED TT-90Y-TT ) SEEZTE
aTqetiobaN ST PPT'T DT LNIRNAEEACD MAED TT-D4v-TT FEETTE
STqeTichaN £%°0 HAYA ¥EIEYD  TT-O0¥-IT €6€TTE
“ONT ONTLANIY
oTqeTI063N ZT° 98 HONMATANY HATIAYD TI-DOY¥-TT ZEELCE
ONI SIoIANIS
2TqeTI06aN €0 SRE'L TYIDNUNIZ MONYD TT-OOv¥-TT T6CZTE
ONI HOTITHIYE
9TqRTI06aN 00° 069 YINGOIITEO TU-D0¥-TT 06¢£2Z¢
NOIIXOIJIANG
sTqeTIobaN 00° 08 WAINM TID TT-O0¢-TT 68€2ZE
) ONI STYIHHI
aTgeTI0beN §9°059°2 ENITHATE STT3M O TT-90¥-TT 8B8EZZE
"ONI ‘ONTSAVA %
aTqeTI0haN 00°0€0'%2 ONIAIANGS TEYHOHOd TT-O0W-TT LBEZZE
o1qeT3IobaN Z5°920°¢ ONI DIOWWOI"E TT-O0¥-TT ggezee
ONI HDTANES
aTqeTiohaN 00°0€Z°T ONIJIAIMS S, TIIE TLi-O0Y¥-TT Ll xa4
sTaRTIobaN 00 0TZ EE ONT ILSSHEE TT-D0W-TT ¥8gzee
. ONT
sTgeTI0beN 00°I%€’T JALILOD NVRRIDAE TT-O0YW-TT £8€2Ce
MADHHD aMyEI ¢ Juswndog duswled
snaiels Junowy psIeord 23eg Junowy juswiedg 23TS swey x2TTddng saeg wny sduenbag  JocqunN JudwAed
paIB91D
oN :ssaxppy aar1ddng Aetdsta ITY 8dAz auswdeg
( zerTTOd SO ) dsn  AcuRxinD JjuswAeg ( aeyTOod SN ) ASH ADUSIAMD JUNOIDY Yued
L 1abeq ¥d pue 4v¢ Burosyd :Iunoosoy sarebuy SOT : UIURIF YN BOTISUY JO e NNVH

0%:ST TICZ-ddS-T0 :23eq 3xodsd 1T-D0Y-T€ OL TU-DOY-T0 03 aeisthboy juswied T2bpaT aMAT



JTARTIONSN
oTqeTIoBeN

sTqeTlIobeN
STqeTI06=N

STgeTI0HeN
sTaeTIobeN

eTqeTiobeN
sTqeTIobeN
STqeTieden
a1qeTIobaN
STqRTI059N

TaRTICHSN
oTqeTI0saN

STqeTIC5SN

s1qeTiobaN
STUERTINESN

STqeTI06aN
a1qeTIcben
aTqeTIcben

sTgeTicban

a7qeTI0boN

aTqeTIoboN
STqRTI0bsN
aTqeTI0baN
aTqeTI0baN

a1geTIobaN

aTgeTIObSN

sTqeTI069N

snjelg

8
Q0%:9T TTO0Z-4ES-10

JUNOWY PARIRITD

paxeSTd
on :ssazppy xoTTddng Aerdstq
{ TeTTOd SO )} gsa :ADuUSIIND JUBWARA
1obeg dd pue g¥ bBuryoey)d :junoooy
i93eg 3xodew TI-D0¥-TE oL TT-I0¥-T0

AZAR"1 14

86°92¥%'C

T8 LLO'S6E
8Z°STT'T
BB 6LS'0T
LotLz

207862

¥8°8ZL°S

80°82ZZ’'¢E
6357 €T
00°0L
S6°6£8°8T

10°625°'%

ZBT9IT’E

230 Jumowy JudwWAed

NOITIVIOad0D
NADCHLIANT
NOIITWOLAY

3 JATEA THINLESNANT
ONIMIOMLEN
TEIILSAANT

ONI sTERA XTI

ONT 'NOLLA"IALSIA
XX3aTI

ONI ¥Sl LO&Ed ITWCH
ANYAWOD TIITWEHD
SYTHLO¥E TIIH
ONI
ONIIAANTIONT JAH
SAIYIDOSSY
HLIOMSNIYH
YIIYTH 3 RATIYH
SSILNINE “TIUH
ANYAROD HOWH
HIORIED

OTT FONIITANCD
Jogv¥l JAIYLS NITTOD
‘ONI “YOINIWY

40 SJWRd NIMICD
0D HHAWNT THYNTD
“ourl

‘389 uoITIBTA
OTT ZNYIWOD
JOIJILNAIOS YAHSIA
A¥ISTA

TEIMIC LSNIL
SIDITA¥ES

HOTIQHO LESdId
ANYIROD

HONTHASNT 2411
ALT¥NOES ALITHATA
SHIOMEILEM
NOSOS¥AA

¥3qa4

ATYSSTEAXT

Mg ¥8H

ONI SSH3dXT
TYINTWNONTANT
“d¥00

THNOTI IUNAALNT
NOQUIANT

DONZI

sureyy xsrTddn

L]

soTabuy soT :

304 I9351hay uwswlea

youexd

TT~-D0¥-TT

TT-DOV-1T

TT-o0¥-1TT
TT-50¥-1T

TI-o0¥-1T
TT-D0¥-1IT

TI-20¥-TT
TI-90¢¥~1T
TI-90¥-TT
TT-90¥-1T
TT-90¥-TT
TI-O0¥-TT
TT-o0¥-TT

TT-O0¥-TT

TT-D0¥-11T
TT-DO¥-TT

TT-Da¥~3IT
TT-D0OW¥-11
TT-O0¥-TT

TT-90¥-TT

TT-20¥-1T

TT-90¥-1%

TT-DA¥-TT
TT-DO¥-TT
TI-D0¥-T1
TT-oN%¥-1T

TT-90%-TT

TT-90¥-1T

ADdHO IMYI ¢

oaeg uny souanbag

LEFTZE

9EPZCE

SeEveze
7EPZTE

EEPEEE
ZEPEEE

TEv2ZL
0EPZZE
[J44442
8Z¥CLE
LTHFLTE
it a4
SZ¥eee

vZwee

mMm

[-244
[Ax4A4

oo
™

34444
oZecee
61%¥ZZE
8T¥ZEE

LTI®ZTE

3TYZEE
ST¥eee
¥ivcce
£1%22¢
Ndwwmm

TI%2ZE

0IvECe

UBUNDOQ JudARI

IaqunyN juseied

1Y :adil juswheq
( ZRTTOQ 50 ) asn :ASUSIINg JUNODOY WUeRH

‘YN ¥DTISuNY IO qUes MNVE

I35paT aMAT



oTqeTI06uN

STaRTIObeN
STqeTIehbsn

aTeTIobon

oTaqeTIobeN
oTURTIObSN

STaeTIobsN
oTqeTIoboN
aTqetiobsyn
STaeTiobaN
aTceTIobay
STaeTIobeN
oTaetTioban
oTeTI0baN
STgeTiobsy
aTqetTI06aN
arqeroban
aTqeTI0beN
a1qeTI0ban
a1qeTIoban
oTqeTIoban
a1qeTI069N
a7qeTIobaN
aTqeTI0baN
a19eTIobaN
asTgeTi06eNn

sujelg

6
0%:9T TTQZ-dd5-TG

JUNOWY PIXVITD

{ r=21T10Q S0
:obed
:83eg 3xodey

y
7

68°LG

€T°296°T
000002

00°00S°6

v8°828°2
g°ZL8

a8'69Z°1
GE£°69
€Z°€T0'T
S9°ZZE ETT
£L°I¥9’E
0G°9s
98°6¢
(41"

0C GL8

86 °SBE’TIT
L8°L90°3
00°SeT

¥8 %1t

SLTL08’T

co 00T

00700

™

00°00T
00°00T
S€°9TT'6

o3eq Junowy Iuswled
pozeard

oN :ssaxppy Jottddns Aerdstq

asn AousxanD auswAed

¥d pue d¥ BUTOSYD :IUn0DOY

TI-DA¥-I€ ©OL TI-DO¥-T10

DNT

NISNCOSIM A0 “IDN
0D FIJTUONOD TILIN
LAO¥Ed TYNOIIWM
SATIOLYHOTTT HMW
ONI EDIAMAS
SUOLSIANI S, AJOOW
ONI SILVIDOSSY
LSEM~GIN

ONT OQTIOL-JIILLAN
0D ATdAns

WA YILSEW OW
OXIHIHSOR ‘WANSYW
ONI HIN¥IE WIODTYW
ONI FINNIE WIQDTYW
TONT ' SEEENTONT
NOITWOTHENT

STYHD ‘OXSHET
ONARM ‘EAT

IO TWIN
SIDTANIS TOJINOD
IS3d ANV SIIWNEL
SoNg-N-TIIN

ONI SINYLITIASNOD
SANAL/ ATINNTY

DNY ‘SAINIDOSSY
SAUOLS ¥ SIANOL
TONT CCTd
SOZIATTY "D NHOL
ONI SHIYISANYT
TIIAA NHOL

ONI STYOIWZHD
SANOL IDL
NYIQOLISND

HSYO ALLA4-OMEI
IOIMLSIA TOOHDS
GIILINO ENIAEI
EDIULSIT TOOHDS
QITAING ENTANI
LOI¥LSIA "TOOHOS
QIIAING HNTIANT
IDTHELSIA TOOHDS
QITITNO ENIANI
DMI XRIddns

¥ FdId ANIANI

suen Ix2t11ddng

satabuy so7

104 zasstboy juswleg

youexg

TT-00Y-TT

TT-90¢-TT
TT-DA¥-1T

TT-DO¥-1T

TT-O0Y-TT
TT-OOY-TT

TT-O0Y-TT
1T-DOY-17
TT-20¥-TT
TT-90W~-11T
TT-90¥-TT
TT-Da¥-TT
TT-90¥-T1
TT-20v-TT
TT~O0¥-TT
TT-DOW-1T
TI-D0¥-TT
TI-DO¥-TT
TT-O0%W-TT
TI-DOW-TT
TT-20¥-TT
TT-9M¢~-1T
TT-20¥-TT
I1-NY-1T
TT-90¥-TIT
TT-90¢-1T

MDHEHD GMAT -

27%g uny sdianbag

£9%ZT¢€

Z29%Z2¢
T9%22¢

C9%ZC¢E

6G992TE
85%2C%
LS%TCE
ssbece
savZee
k454
£G9¥CCE
(43444

18%2ce
cS¥IzZe

vvvece

£%vace

cr¥ece

TeFece

ovFece

5€%TCE

gEPZTL

AJusumood Juswied

ISqURN JuswAed

1iv 2dir juswled

( TeTTod SO ) aSn ADURIIND JUMCODY Fued
SYCN ESTIBWY IO qued INVE

xa6paT gMNI



01-D

“ONI CSUOIOVELNOD

sTqeTIOobaN £2°928’8 TANDAS  TT-DAY-TIT 68%27¢€
ONT

oTqRTIObeN ST TI9L TYOIIATYNY TYAS TI-90¥-1T B8YZZE

s1qeTIcheN Ls°9z 40 ALID UMY WINWS TT-D0¥-TT L8%2ZE
INTNA

s1qeTI0boN 9L 8%9°Z INIE VIR YINYS TT-DaY-TT 98%ZZE

sTqRTI0BON 00°095°S¢E ONI SNIAYE SWAUNYS TLT-DOW-TT S8HZZE
"ONI 'dnodn

oTqeTI0BoN 00°000°6 SNIIINSNGD SI¥AE0Y TT-9aY¥-T1T ¥8tzzE
ONI SWALSAS

oTqRTIebaN C0°S£Z’T TAYMIAOS SCE  TL-90¥-TT £8%22E

TqeTIe6sN 00°9% MOIN ‘SOZIE  IT-9A¥-1T z8%ZZE

aTqeTioboN 95°621 OTT WEATOONIN TT-DaA¥-1T 18%2Z¢
DNI

o1qeT3oboN T2 1¥S ‘€ ‘EEOTAANA ASMOASEE TT-DO¥-TT cs%Cee
ONT HINYLSISSY

sTqetI08aN 08°L8L FIAOTAWE HOWFY TT-DAY-TIT 6Lv2ZE

arqetioban 00°0SE ONI DNIAVA TI¥OIND TT-90%-TIT BLEZZE
X1dans

sTqeriobayn BEELE TIYHINO TYIINAANNA TT-D0%-TT LLvzZE
ONI
DNIEOIINOW WAYTY

aTqeT3063N v9°5€T HNO NOIIDALO¥Md TT-D0¥-TT 9LBZZE
ONI

oTqetiobaN 9B LPV'S STTYS dAWAd SSHOONd TI-Da¥-TT 5L%ZZE
HONVAENSNT

a1qeTI06aN $0°963°C HATT TEATONTdd  TT-DAY-TT TLBZZE
NI ANYAHOD

s1qeTIobon zZE 8ES'T STONINGS @ATEd TT-DAY-TT €LBZEE
ONI NOILOANLSNOD

aT1qeTIo6aN 09°0Z6°92Z 001IHd  TL-9a¥-T1T ZLBZZE
DNI SYONZIDS

s7qeTIobsN 537092782 HITYRH ¥EWIANINYEd TT-Da¥-1T TLvEZE
ONI T

aTqeTiobaN 66°5069°0T ONICTIINE DI4IOVA TT-90¥-1IT oLyzZE
TANSTHAL

s1qeTiobeN TT €vL°LT ALNNOD IONVNC TI-OA¥Y-TT 69%zzeE
OTI SYOIOEIULSIA

sTqeTiobeN 68°009°9 IOYNOSENG TI-D0¥-TT 89%ZTE

STqeTIoboN 05°L09°€C NOIINNSOJY0D MITO TT-O0¥-T% L9%ZTE
INT

arqetioban 08°8TL'B TYOINHDELOZD DWN TT-90%-11T 99%zzE

aTqeTIobaN SZ 6%E 8T $HOOW % OQANIN TT-90¥-TT 59v22E
A0 XLID

sTqeTI05aN 61°869 'HOVAE LHOAMIN TT-90¥-TT 79%Z2E

AOTHD AMII : FuSWNDOQ Juswhed

snieag Junowy paIesTd 53 JuUNOWY JudwAed SATS sweN xatTddng o1eg wny scusnbag  roquny cuswdAedg
POIBSTD
oN :ssaxppy xorTddas Aerdsta TTY :odiy auswiAed
{ TelrTod sSo } asi  Aouszan) susuled { TefTod SN ) dSA ARURIIND JUNOIDY MUeg
0T :9bea dd pue 4¥ SUTOSYD iunossy soTebuy soT : udueig YN EBDTISWY IO NUued CNVE

0%:ST TT0Z-dES-1C :23eg 3xodsy TT-90¥-T€ OL TT-DA¥-T0 204 x93sTHay juswdeg Z26paT aMAI



[1-D0

STqeIRohaN LE" BT NEHJELS ‘ONuM  TT-O0¥-TT STSZZE
DIALOTIA

9TqetIobenN 557208 ATYSTTIORM SEITTYM TI-O0W-TT ¥1G2ZE

sTqeTIocBeN Sz°TTE T DONI ‘ONILTIASNOD WA TI-DOY-TT £1SZZE
ONI SSITARIM

sTqeTI0baN zZL' 0L XITTIHON WSO TT-20¥-1T 215228

sTqeTIoken co-sez'1 OTT EAIX0¥A4 S0 IT-50¥-TT TTS2ZE
HOIA¥AS TYISOd

a1GeTIcheN 9E" L6 SAIYIS QIIINO TI-S0¥-1IT 0152ZZE
ONI FJIAJHES

sTgeTI0beN 69°LIZ TADHW QALIMD  TT-D0¥-TT 60SZZ€
YINIQIITID
NMIHILAOS
20 TEETY TOIANES

aTqeTIobaN 00°6LS GNACYONAGNN  TT-DAY-TT 80SETTE

argeTiohsn 50°6T9 OIATINITOS WHIIN TT-DOV-TT L0522Z¢
o711

sTqetichsN teezLiez FILOANTT NIZIEONML TT-90¥-TT 90522Z¢
OMI

sTqetichben T6° 602 ONILENYYIN O¥JIMI TI-O0W-TT S0SZTE

oTqeTIObeN 0T ¥ NOY¥ °aNESNMOL TT-D0¥-TT $0GZZE
0T

a1getioban 8Z €€9°L ANYINOD ANTANT THL TT-90¥-TT £05zee

aTqrTIobeN L0"0z ANYAWOD S¥D FHL TT-80¥-TT (o)t 4 4%

arqetrioban 80° 52 HNTG OW¥HL TT-90W-TT Toseze

STqRT3069N 6T LBL TT ONI ‘HOEL W¥ldlL TI-90W-TT coszeze
ONI ’SHINOLVIOSWI

sTqeTacbeN S E6T’e YOITHEWYISHL TI-90¥-TT 66¥2TE
ONI

sTqeTIobeN 00°GLL ADIANIES HOSTIIN A5 TI-o0W-1T 86HCCE
: SAITANAS

sTqeIIoboN vLSZE 51O0ACAd 1E04d0S  TI-90¥-TT LE¥ZZE
TOMI SEDIANAS

sTqeTIoboN 00"800°¢E ONTLINASNOD JHINVYLS TT-D0OV-TT S69ZTE

sTqeTIobaN 6Z°29¢ SLITDINYAS TIT-O0¥-T1T S6%ZTE
“ONI
‘YEINTD ALTENDES
TINHOIITED

TaqetaIoben 9Z° 5% NMFHIACS TI-90¥-TT B6VZTE
ANYINOD
NOSIQHE VINMOAITYO

a1qeTicban SL706¥%'2T MMFHINOS TT-D0¥-TT g€6vzee

aTaqeTIobaN 99-91Z HEIYM ISY0D HINOS TT-DOV-IT Z6%2ZE

aTaqeTIobEN 9€°6 INEONIA ‘HLIWS TI-DOV-TT T6%2CE
ONT SNOIIANTOS

2TqeTIo0aN 00°05% MALAGWOD SRTUIS TT-O0¥-IT 06722

MOHEHS GMHMI : 3juswnoog udwded

staels JUNOWY POXEdTD 298g Junouy Juswieg 23T swer xot7ddng e Wy sduonbdg  Iaquny Juswied
paIesd
oN :ssai1ppy xeTTddns Letdstq 11¢ :odiy auswleg
{ xe110G 50 ) asa :Aousaind juswieg { TeTTOQ SO ) dSA :ADUSIAND JUNOROY HUEBH
TT rabed ¥d pue gy BUTHODYD :3UNODDY soTsbuy soT ¢ youeddg SYN BOTISWY O MURE ANVD

0%:ST TT0Z-d¥S-T0 :@3eg 3xodsy TT-90¢-T€ OL TT-Da¥-T10 Xod I91stboy jusuwled Z9BpeT aMul



<10

a1qeTyoben €8°906°1T ONI FSVHSRANGD TT-DAY¥-ST 08szZE
a1qetiohan TT° 102 NILSAL S0 ALID TT-D0Y¥-ST 6vSTZE
51qeTI069N 08" tE VEOVT CENOVSSYHD TT-O0-ST §v52z¢
s1qeTIchaN 00°0¢€ 0 SYAOHL 'TISEdWVD TT-90¥-ST LYSTZE
arqetiobsn 0s-ze AFTINTE ‘NVHYITYD TT-90¥-ST 9%S9ZZE
STWOH
STaRTI06aN oL PEY OTAINYd VINJOAITND TI-90Y-ST STSETE
DNI FQYITHEVE
21qetiobsy 60969 YINNOAITED TT-90¥-ST F¥STZE
SEDITAFIS
21qeTI069K 00-sz8 LANMEINT I2IY  TT-90¥-ST €£¥52ZE
ANYAWO0D
a1qeTI069N L9°T0F% ‘€ STTYS DOTUIIW-YAOY TT-DN¥-ST zZvszze
-ouy ‘dnoxn
31qeTI0beNK ST COT IT AboTounpar pa211ddy  TI-DOW-ST T#522Z€
a1qetIoban 0Z°LEC'® SSOUD EOTE WIHINY TT-OOV-ST 0¥STZE
s1qetioban v ot AHIVD ‘NITIY TI-90V-ST 6€5ZZE
arqerioban 907859 DI¥d ‘INIFIY TT-DOV-ST 8E€STZE
arqetiobay SSTOFZ L da ¥ ‘ONI 0D SWYa¥ TI-20U-ST Leseze
arqetioban SLU€ET eTUZTIZRA BHOS TT-O0Y-1IT 9€S2ZE
a1qetioban 00052 Zo{RZUCH X938d TT-DOY-TT SESTZE
a1qerioban 5ELE 29x3d UTITIIN TT-O0¥-IT yESTEZE
91qeT106sN 06" €2T 1$2UTH SouURT TT-O0Y-TT £€SZ2E
sTqeTiobay 00° €€ 2ZOUTITBW 9SO TT-90W-TT ZESTZE
a1qeTioban 00°2Z€T ZeullIeW ssof TT-80V-TT TESZZE
s1qeTI059N 00°0T y3lws Asiyysrc TT-O0¥-TT ceszze
a1aqeTi05en 00 60% uebng Asxyzer TT-O0¥-TT Et4-1443
STqeTI0obaN 1 €2 uosyORQ BUTH  TT-D0¥-TT 8z52Z¢
3TqeTI0baN 00708 UT3IIEY 9USPTQ TI-00W-TIT [X4-t44%
2TORTIOBAN 00°6¢€ TTeH urIixeq TI-D0%¥-1T $ZSZZE
2TgeTI05RN 0018 ISUUTHE STIYD TI-SO¥-TT 5252Z¢
a1qeTIoden 00052 vewxsy uhfored  IT-O0¢-TT ¥ZTSZ2E
o7qeTI0BRN 0E°S% pIemsis atuuog IT-90%-TT £ZS5TZE
aTqeTIoBeN 00- 0L opreleg OIIeInY TL-OOY-TT zzszze
aTqeTIobaNn LE9TT TUeTIN I°9pqY TI-O0¥-TT TZ522€
a1qeTI0obaN T6°SGE STHINYT TOATUEAOOM  TI-DOV-TT ¢zszEe
ARVAWOD
HOLYNTHEILRT
aTqeTIcBeN 00°00€E NNATSIM  TT-90¥-TT 6TSZZE
DNI
sTqeTaIcbsn 00°00T'% SITHOIVHOEYT HDEM TT-D0¢-TT 8TGZZE
ONT ‘SHSTNI¥AINA
sTqeTIchen 80 8PF ‘T S.FIXYM  TT-S0¥-TT LTSZZE
: XINAOD IDNWEO 40
aTqeTI06eN L6°FE3 Y INAWADYNYN JLSYM TT-D0¢-TT 91SCZE

AJEHD GMET * 3usunood uswhed

snyels junowy paIesTd 3B JUNOCWY JudwAeg 9318 swey z2tr1ddng a3eq wny soustnbsg Iscuny IuswAed
paIesTn
oN :ssoippy 1a17ddns Aetdstg 11w 2ddy juswledq
{ TeTTOU SN ) @GSa  :Adusxim) JuswAed ( TeTTOC SN } dSA :ADUSIIND IUMOIDY NURE
zT ioBeg ¥d pue gy BuryosyDd :3unoooy soTabuy soT ¢ yduelg YUN edtTIswy JO NumRg (MNVd

0¥:ST TI0Z-daAS-T0 :93eq 3xodsy TT1-90¥-T€ OL TI-Da¥-10 o3 I935THey duswdled x9BpaT aMMI



aTqeTIobaN

aTqeTI00eN
aTgeTI063N

9TqeTIobsN

oTqRTI06aN
aTqeTI063N
aTqetIobeN
STqRT 083N

aTqeTI069N

aT1qeTIobeN
o1qeTIoban
aTgeTI0E9N
a1qeT1083N
aTqeTI068N

aTqeTioben
aTqeTIObeN

2TqeTI0563N
2TqeTI0b3N

2TqeT1063N
2TqeTI0baN

STqeT108aN
aTqeTI085N
sTqeTIobaN
aTqeTIonaN
aTqeTi069K
aTqetiobaN

aTqeTI06aN
srqeriobay
arqeTioban
21qeTI089N
oT¢eT 063N

a1qetI0bay

€T
0F:GT TT0Z-435-TO

12beg
s23eq 3xodsy

JUNOWY PIIEITD

93eg JUNOWY IUSWAEd

ANS)

§9°8€9°ST

T Teg
06°9¢

9L FT

O0T°LTS
8€°2ZT
9z 99
T8 6%

96°TIZ'5

Z0°LT
9T 22
80 ETC
Z1°6C
69°8¢C

6719
7€°29

9L LEE’S
ST ZEE'T

S6°0Z%°2C
€6 162

ST 8£E’T
Lo E6€E
8°g¢
<6985
00°€6T
L% 319

9z €%5°9
00°sET
€ vITB
T0°L9T
8T %2

00 0ES'TT

paxeard

ON
( reITOQ SO ) asn

Ti-8N¥-T¢

:ssaxppy x2t1Tddng Aetdstg

:Aouazany uswied

dd pue dy Hurosyd :3unoddy
oL TI-9N¥-T0

x04 Zaistbe

NOILWIOJJ0D NITO
00 HIFIDHOD AEXIW
AOQYHE TYNOLIYN
AYLNYS 'YIDNWN
0D AT4dQs

WEVD VALSYW IW
TONI ‘SY¥ZENIDNI
NOIIWOXddnT

¥NILI ‘ODIACOOT
ONOH TEM ‘NMIT
O0DYIS ‘I

s our
‘52TBOTOUYISL §I1
DONT

ATdd0NS ALHIYS €Y1
IFAANGL  TYDWANN
QIAWTHON  ‘ INYTY
ST¥A ' ONVA

g50%  ‘OXENYA

DNI XA1Iddns

¥ HAId FNIAWI

ONI ¥SQ I0dHd JWOH
ANVANOD TEOIWIHD
SYAHIONE TIIH
LAY ' NOLTTWYH
ANEIWNOD

DOINLDATE WYEEID
FADNTYID

ONI SINYIINSNOD
VHEILINGD

0D ¥EEWNT THYNYD
ANOL 'Z3M0IE
XHAHI

UIYSSHAIKA

wmMd €53

-]
TYNOTLENIALNT
NOJITIANA

SUIVAAV F@WOSNOD
J0 INIWIEYIad

ONT ‘H78YD

7 FEIM NYENYa
SNDIS D2
SHAANYIL ‘QOVETIN0D
ONI

SEINYAWOD OFJTAI0D

aweN xstTddng

TT-DO¥-4T Z8szze
IT-O0¥-ST 18522¢
IT-90¥-ST 08422¢
TT-O0¥-ST 6LG5ZEE
TT-90¥-ST 3LS52ZTE
TT-O0¥-ST LLSZZE
1T-90¥-ST 9L522¢
IT-20¥-ST SLGeTe
TT-o0¥-ST $L5ZZE
1T-90¥-ST €LGEZE
TT-2¥-91T ZLGEZZE
TI-ON¥-S1T TLGZZZ
TT-D0¥-9T 0LSZZE
TT-20¥~4T 6952Z¢
TT-9A¥-&T 89G6ZZ¢
IT-9aQ¥-5T L9GZT¢E
TT-DA¥-5T 9962zZ¢
TT-00¥-ST $9GZ2Z€
TT-90V¥-ST $95Z2Z2€
TT-90Y¥~ST £949Z7Z¢€
TT-90¥-ST 295ZT¢
TT-O0¥-GT T952Z¢
TT-90%-8T 09522¢
TT-90¥-ST 6552Z¢
IT-90%¥-ST 8652¢C¢
TY-00v¥-S1 L992Z%
TT-O0¥-ST 9498ZZ¢€
TI-20¥-ST GGSZZE
Ti-90¥-S5T ¥S8ZZ¢€
TT-90¥~-ST £98ZZ¢€
TT-90¥-ST [4-1-f44
TT-90¥-ST 1562Z¢€

MOEHD QMY¥I ¢ Juswnood JuswAed

83 uny 20uINbag

T1Y odAiy Iuswieg

Taquan Iuled

{ TeTTod S0 ) dsn :ADuUsIInd JUMOIDY HUed
sarobuy so7 : yourag

auauwled

‘YN elTIswy JO jued MNYYE
x2bpaT aMdl



TRt 305eN
aTqeTacben
oTaqeTI0boN
STqRTI069K
STqeTIOHSN
STqRTIoboN
STgRTI0SaN
aTaqeTIoboN
aTEeTI059N
aTqRTI0olaN
9TqRTIOSIN
STqeTIobaN

STqRTI0baN
aTqeTiohaN

aTqetiobaN
aTqeTICHaN

aTqeTicbon

a1qeriobaN

atqerioban

aTqeTIchaN
a1qeTiohon

oTqeTIobaN
2TqeT3069N

aTqeT1063N
STERTI06SN
aTqeTIobsN
STqeTIehsN

STqeTIcbsN

sn3els

ATMOUy PIXEITD

v1-O

00°0Ss%
§L°LTE
Z5°1T

4% g1
00°0T

SH T6T LLY

90 TFT’'T
507 8¢
0T €0L"L9
C0 %%

s§°s1Z’
007854

ot

v vLL
2T ST

Q0°5GT
82 8EL'T

867 ESE

00°00S

6E°59L

€687 TE

60°S£E°E

687918
.0S°9087ZT

8E°L9%’T

98°SS%

€0°9€T'T

66791
L% 00T

279eg junouy Juwmied
paIeaId

oN :ssaxppy asTTddng Aerdsra

( TeTToQ Sn ) @sn  tADURXIND JuswAed

:abeg
ra3eg 1zoday

¥d pue d¢¥ BUTYD9ID :Iuncddv

Ti-80¥-T€ OL TT-20¥-TC

0DZ0OX0 GARISND
ZIYOULS RUOTH
BYSETE ¥YTIF
eTToIRZZEN PIARI
Hasqusbueds TIED
TONI ‘- s0¥8 qOooM
o111

' TYNOTIUNTALNT AMA
WIDITE ‘OMLCOA
YLOXYC

HI¥ON NQIIVIDOSSY
T.LUN JANVE S

o211

FAVOANYT NIZIONUL
QOUVdoNIL
TTITSTIVIL
SHILIEI0U]
TINLEN-O3IL
ANVAROD SYD HHI
ONI ‘SITYOIVAOTYT
WOTYIANYISEL

ONI AHETIVL

ONI SDILSONODYIC
OIDALTILS
NOILOEASNI

ONY ONILSAL
STYTAZIVA AI0LS
07T SINYITEEAT
SATINNOD NAFHLOOS

ANYAWOD

NOSIAT YINJOIITEO
NITHLAOS

LOTELSIA

HEI¥M ISYOD HIOOS
ONT

0D ATddNS MIOUWTYHS
ONILTASKOD Jdgd

ONI ONI¥AANIONS
[IV WA

ATddns

TIYIIAC T ILNIAEE
ONI ANYEWOD
STCAINCD FAIUS

ONTI SHEDONZIDS
HLTY3H HIATANINIIE
NEIVY HAFEVE

2118 swey x2tTdéng

T1-Da¥-LT
TT-209-LT
TT-DAY~LT
TI-DOW-LT
TT-O0OY-LT
TT-20¥-GT
TI-dN¥-9T1
TT-00N¥-ST
TI-9N¥-ST
TT-20¥-ST
TT-oN¥-ST
TT-o0¥-ST

TT-90¥-ST
TT-20¥-ST

TT-o0¥-ST
TT-90¥-ST

TT-00¥~ST

TT-90¥-5T

TIT-O0¥-ST

TT-29A¥-5T

TT-O0¥-ST

IT-DO¥-Gt
IT-D0W-ST

TT-DO0Y¥-g1

TI-O0¥-&T

TI-00¥-61

TT-O0¥-5T
TT-O0¥~-ST

AOFHO aAMUI

sara wny sousnbag

gtecee
6092Z¢
80922E
L09zeE
5092¢¢
¢0seee
¥09ezTe
£09zce
Zoszee
1092zt
ooszct
66522¢

86GZZE
.652Tt

g652eCE
56822¢

T65TCTE

€£6G2CE

[43-144

0652CE

68sZZE
8852¢c¢t

Lescze

9882cC%

585zZ¢%

¥8SzZee
£8scee

Jjusunocg uswAed

Taquny Juswied

ITY :oddr auswmieg

( IBYTOQ SO ) (SA :ADUSIIND IUNODIY ued
sayebuy soT I youweld

104 I23sTHRY JuswhAed

‘YN e0TaBRuY IO FUes ANYdE
I2bpaT aMar



e@TqeTichen
a1qeTIohban
TqeTIobaN
1qeTIoeboN
a1geTIoben
21qeT 058K

oTgeTIoben
o1qeTIobsN

a1qeTicboN
aTqeTIchan
a1qeTioban
a1qeTichsn
a1qeTIchban

atqetricbeNn

a1qerichbsn
a1qeTIchbaN

a1qeriobay

21qRTI0obeN
aTqeTIoban

21qeTI0baN
a1qeTioban
STqeTIobaN

sToRTI06eN
27qReTIOLbSN

sTqeTIO6BN
a1geTiobsN
sTqeTIobaN
STqeT3I00sN
STqRTIofeN
aTqeTIoheN
s1gqeTI0baN
3rqeTIobaN
s1qetIoban
aTqeTIohaN

ShteR=tet: Jjunowy pPoxesSTD

st
0%:4T TIOC-4I5-T0

:abeg
r33eq 1xodsy

SI-O

L0 FLETE
96°T60°TIT
€1°95
00°96Z°6
¥8°085°
98°2L8

86 1T
00201

66°5%8°0T
gLy

08 VLT

9T L2Z°0%
0C'089°T

057805

00°95%
6L°LE

507620 %P1

mo.%MH.m
€6 HSE'CT
G0 06T
S0°C¥T
6% 0LT
€0°56%
32766
00°2¢EL
00°STE
0093

331 juncury Juswied

peiesTd

ONI ONIVHENIONE
SWALSAS ARIIA
NOIIFIQOJYOD XINOIJ
NIT ‘YIC

1 DNILEAIVYN 1730
ODSHY-53

SIAYI DIVED
ATLYIOJHOSNT

¥ 3 3D

ONI ZIWYAGAENMOD
OMT

SWELSAS DNINVATO
TLLOETAACD

NHOL “MEYTIO
NILSOL 40 ALID
ONI 'TTIIH WZHO
OTT INIWNMIIACD MOD
TOOHDS JONVITIWCO
VINJOAITED

ONI FAYOIHYVE
YINICAITVD
IANYS  “TIISSNE
ONT

2IALOYE DYILNNIIE
ANCNNYIO & SHTIM
‘NOSENEY ‘FIMOH
ONT DIDYWOIS

oD

X1d4d0s8 ® 348 11ad
IIIV

I3ILY

o1

'ONILINSNOD aNY
NOIIYIDHLS CHITIY
“ONI ‘LSHM-SVYOHIY
ONI ONTUTENIONE
ATV BIVANDOY
ACTTEW USAS3S
Ia8tTqey 9a918
ysma oy xoy

oue) COIBW
Yosucg usIvy
Z3utT31Ie ISor
JPueH sswer

STTOS AIusH
ZSYOUES ICAD2H

21318 suwey x217ddng

on :ssoxppy xa11ddns Aetdsta
{ rerrod 50 ) asa :Aousiany Juswied
id pu® 4¥ BUriosyD :umoddy

T1-D0¥-1€

QL TT-2A¥-T10

TT-20¥-LT
TT-00¥-LT
TT-DO¥-LT
TT~20Y-LT
Tr-Da¥-LT
TE-OOY-LT

TL-DOY-LT
TT-OO¥-LT

IT-90¥-LT
TT-DAO¥-LT
IT-90¥-LT
TT-DOY-LT
TT-DO¥-LT

TT-90W¢-LT

TT-DO¥-LT
TT-90¥-4%

TT-O0¥-LT

TT-DOV-LT
TT-DOV-LT

TT-90V-LT
TE-O0¥-LT
TT-D0V-LT

TI-DO¥Y-LT
Hﬂ:@DﬁchH

TT-DON-LT
TT-20¢-LT
TT-00OV-LT
TT-00¥-LT
TT-o0¥-LT
TT-D0¥-LT
TT-D0¥-LT
TT-OA¥-LT
TT-9NV-~-LT
TT-90¥-LT

v¥9cTE
£¥9cee
z¥9zce
T¥922ZE
2v9zee
6€9CCt

BESZTE
LE9TZE

9g€92ZCE
SE€32CE
»L9ZTC
£E92TE
[ T4AS

Lzszee
9Z39Zee

523z
vZ3cee
€Z9¢ce

zTocee
TE9ZTT

Gg9eTe
61922%
8192Z¢
L1T9ZZ¢
g19cceE
eT9ZzZE
¥T92Ct
£T%2C¢t
[AIaA
TT9TTE

YOTHD GMUT © 3usunoog auswied

532d wny sousnbsg  Iacumy Juswieg

{ 221700 SN ) dsn
saTabuy soT : uouelg

z04 xe3sTbey auswdArg

11V :edAz juswded
:ADUBIIND IUNODDY Wueg
‘YN BOTIZOWN IO ued MNYd
T28paT (MY¥T



91-D

IAO0d4ANS
91qeTI0baN 08" %¥2'T YT LNJANDISSY NO TT-D0¥-LT €L922¢
TqRTI0baN $5°G08°TT NOIILVIO4YOD NITO TT-DA¥-LT cL9zee
GO FLTIONOD JEXINW
o1qeTiobaN L9°896 AQ¥IE TYNOIIUN T1-90¥-LT TL9CZE
oraeTiobaN TE"TEEC YNNYIAQ “TIINMOW TT-909-LT 0L92T¢€
oTqeTIobaN ¥E'8¢ WAYH IOWOW TT~DOY-LT 6992ZcC¢t
ONI
SHEDIAUAS AJTOSANTE
aTgeTIobeN ¥S°98¢€°C SINWHDOYIWN TT-O0V¥-LT B99ZZE
sTqeTI0baN 8T 6¢€ OAVYISNS °IMIHOTIEW TT-90Y¥-LT L99zZ2Z¢
atqetioban Ze €g I¥d IHD ‘A¥W  TT-90%-4T 9992Z¢
sTqerjoben £6°0S RO¥L ‘HOT TI-DOY-LT §99zzZ¢E
JHOD
aTqeTIonaN 0C-Co06°T ONILTHHIC STMET TT-DAOV~LT ¥99zZzt
STReTIObsN %7991 QUNINTHOM “uSYNNYIN TT-90v¥-LT £99C2%
oTgeTiobeN 9427621 . ONOOA NOF ‘ONYL TT-90¥-LT 799zcCt
DNI A144NS
aTaeTiOobeN €9°8CTT’‘6 ¥ HAId ANIAYT TT-DAV-LT 19922¢
ONI ZNTANHSENYI
NOIIVWEOANT
aTqeTiobsn Z20°L19°T NIYINOOW NONI TT-D0¥-LT g9gzee
NOIINMWOLAOY
aTgeriobsy L 03%% 92 T HATVA TUIHELSACGNT TT-DOY-LT 659ceCe
oTqeTI069N 16792 ONI ¥SQl 10d3d TWOH TI-90Y-LT 8992E¢€
aTqeT30b3N TE BEE JADNIVID Ti~-D0V-LT £592C¢
NOIINIDOSSY
SIIDTAIO
oTqetiIobsNn 00°0€¥ FONUNII INTWNNIACD TI~OOV-LT $592ZC€
aTqeTI0baN 89 %ET IMFGOY UNVES  TT-ONW-LT S59Z2¢
OTT ANYJNOD
a1qeriobay §6°¢99 DIAIINEISS ¥IHSIA TT-O0¥-LT vS9¢ee
. SHIOMTIIEM
a1qeTioban €9°%3%6'¢ NOSNOIdd TI-90¢¥-LT €£892Z¢
02 TOYINOZ
a1qetTioboN LZ €S8 NOISOWd0od LSEMNYA TT-DRY¥-LT zG92Z¢
STI¥IDOSSY
a1qeTiobaN 42798 7 TITNEYd  TT-DOV-LT TS9ZCE
aTqeTIoban 5€° 8¢ HYSYS ‘A¥aEWd  TT-90¥-LT 08922t
IOTYULSIA dHLYM
aTgeTI08aN ST TTL°0S AINAGD JDNYHO IS¥E TT-DA¥-LT &¥9Zee
ONI
a{qeTioboN 61°0S8L°Z SINAWOYISNI dIAMd  TT-DOY-LT 8v92TE
STqeTI06aN 62 BYPBET X3ang  IT-90¥-LT LTITCTE
aTqeTIobaN 8€°S0E ONI ALHAYS WEDIAYST TT-90¥-LT 9v9ZCt
aTqer3obaN 9592 A¥YN ‘HETIXOT TT-90Y-LT S¥9TTE
NOFHD CMYI : Iuswn2og Juswhed
sniels IUNOWY RIIVSTD 22BE UNOWY JUdWAed 2318 suey ratiddng a3eq wny »ouenbss  JIequny suswAeg
poxesTd
ON :ssaippy a=TTddns Aerdsta 1TY 9dAL uswi=dg
{ TeITOC SO )} asn :Adusim) Juswied ( xe[(Tod SO ) G4SN :AQURIIND JUKROIDY ued
9T abeg ¥d pue gy SUTHOLYD :IUMOODY seTobuy SOT : youwid ‘YN BDTISUN IO ueq MNVY

0%:ST TT0Z-d3S-T0 :@ieg 3xodey TI-90¢-T€ OL TI-DAY-T0 JIoJ roisThbay usudeq ZabpaT aMu¥l



L1-D

ONT
srqeraobay % LE YINJOAITYD NOZIAHA TT-OO¥-LT 86922¢
sTqeIIcheN S5 EBSTET DT FATXO¥Ad SN TI-90¥-LT L6922€
DNI

SNOXINTOS DNISWAd
® NOILWILILA

sTqeTIcheN 8% %06°T TUSHIATNG  TT-DO¥-LT 969z2¢
ORI

STaeTI065H 0z 08 ONIIIAYYN OWdIdL  TT-DOV-LT S692Z¢

oTgeTichbeN 657382 ANVAWOD §Y¢9 HHL TT-DOY-LT ¥692Z€
ONI ‘SHINOLWAOEYT

STURTIODSN 00°0093 WOIHANYLSEL  TT-90V-LT £6922¢

aTqeTIoseN 09°19¢ NOSINMOW ¥OTAYL TI-20¥-LT Z69ZTE
NOILSOJ¥OD
SLoaaodd

aTqeTIcheN S6°LTL TYTALSONANT FIYLS TT-DOY-LT 169Z2%
. ANTIWOD
NOSIOE YINHOSITHD

a1qeTIcbaN %8 ZHF ‘¥0T NJZHINOS TI-90¢-LT c6922E

aTqeTIoboN 00° 0% ¥AIYM ISY0D HINOS TI-HAV-LT 6832C€

arqeTtiobsy Z9°6ST AMOSEED ‘HIINS TI-DAW-LT 8897C¢E
DNTI SNOILNIOS

o1qeTI06aN LY 6ET’09 ARLOGWOD SOTHIS TT-90¥-LT L89ITTE

argeTaIvbaN T9°9L2 ONI HOILNQTY-VWOIS TI-90Y¥-LT 989TTE

TqeTICbaN 88 6SE€°L INI¥d OLOY AYMALIY TI-DAv-LT S89TZE

sTqeTIchaN 7L 0€£8°92 ONIITASNOD 458 TT-DAV-LT ¥8922Z¢€
ONI ONIEIINIONZ

a1qeTIcban CL TLB’E IY WYy TT-90v¥-LT £892Z¢
ONT

aTgeTI0BIN TE'T0S TIATID 3 ANES ILd TT-DOV-LT z89zee
FDAN0SIIANS

a1gerIcben S€°198°% ONILEMNVIH IHI 254 TTI-O0¥-L1 189Z2¢
A7d4NS

STqRTIONIN TE€"0E TIVAIAO TWIINZAA¥d TT-DN¥-LT 089ZZ¢€

STRTIO05N 27T ANNIG ‘I0¥d TT-90W-LT 6L92ZE
ANYIWNOD DTIMLOITH

oTqRTI0B3N T LE aNy S¥9 DISIOWd  TI-DOV-LT 8L92T¢
WTANSTAAL

aTqeT306aN 00°L9T ALNQOD FONWUO TI-90V-LT LL92Z¢
IOTaISId
NOIIWIINYS

PepPTOA : 00°0TT ALNAOD FONVHO TI-S0¥-LT 9L92Z¢
D SI¥E¥Aa

aTqeTIONSN 90°LTIT OLOY AINACD HONVNO TT-S0V-LT GL9ZZE
0771 SUOINEIVLSTA

atqetichay 68°€TT HO¥NOSEANO TI-DO¥-LT ¥L9ZCE

¥OHHD CQMET @ JUSUND0G JUSAWARI

snjeas unowy pexes1D a3 IuUmouy IuBNAEd 2318 swey rotTddng aied wny osusnbeg Jaquny IuduAeg
poIeSTd
oN :ssaxppy xoTTddug Ae1dsTg TI¥ :odAy juswied
( xerTod so )} asn :Adusxany) juswiAed { xef1od SN ) 4sn :AdULIIND JUMODDY Hued
LT :abea ¥d puR 4Y¥ SUTYORYD :IUNOIDY satebuy soT : uosu=Ig SYCUN BOTISWY O MUed YNVE

0%:ST TT0Z-dIS-T0 :93ed 3jxoday TT-90Y¥-TE€ O IT-DAV-10 Io4 xeisiBey auswied zebpeT aMur



aTqeTIubsN
a1qeTIobsN
2TqeT1052N

aTgeTioben
sTqerioben

21qeT306aN

S1qeT30BaN
aTqeTicheN

aTaeTiobay
aTaeT1069N

STqeTI0baN
s1qetTIobaN

a1qeTiI0baN
aTqeTjobaN

a1qetioban
qetachan

a1qeTivbeN

a1qeT1069N
arqeTiobeN
a1qeTiobaN

aTqeTI0bsN
2TqeTI0EEN
sTqeTIobsN
arqerioben
sTaeTIoben

STqeTIehaN
STRTIONSN

0%:ST TT0Z-4&5-TO

810

0S§°ZST’0T
¥E'6LS 98T

00°0S%°0T

SZT°%9T°T

00°06%°T
vL°Z86°L

00°060°S
Z6°LS0'T

61°99€°Z
S EPT'TH

00" 162’559
0t TI2°2S

00°LLE’ZS
0€°Z0T 2T

00°0T&

€T $28"S
7€ 0E2
LO"3%6°6T

0G"6LT°89
06'3LE
(4485
9L ¥
€8°2T

90 TT8’9
00" LT

93eq Junowy juawked
paIestd

Junoury paxXeaTd

on :ssaappy xattddng KAerdstq

( Iertog sn )} gsn  :Adusaand juswied
:abeq ud puR gAY BUTHDSYD [ IUTODDY
ra3eg Jxodsy TT-90¥-TE ©OL TT-26¥-10

3T

ONI SNOILNIOS
AXLOAWOD SNTALS
ONI

NOTIIONUISNOD TWES
DNI SWELSAS
TIYMIIOS S0d
FOUNOSYAANS
ONILENAYW AHL E5d
IMOdans

71 INANNDISSY NO
NOIIVEOJEOD NI'TC
00 FLIYDNOD CHEXINW
AGYTY TYNOIIYN
AINOOD

FONYIC JO LOIULSIC
dAIYM TIAIDININ
FONUNIL

INTHIINGE AHA
oMI

OI¥IOITE NOADTWH
*ONI TIDO0D

“ONT ‘YD INENY

J0 SdWNd NIMGOD
TONI ‘ SUOLOTILNOD
DIAIOVd AYMIIVD
‘ONI ‘SEOLOWAINOD
OIATOYd AEMELYD
ONI C¥UAH-SNYAT
¥IINTD

HONAIDS A¥IAODSIA
ONI SUYIEXINOD
ONI HAWOI¥NYE
FINIOITTED
‘ArvdEd INAWIIO0A
AAYHH NIDYOE

ONI DIOVWOIS
YOIHIWE A0 MNYE
03 dWnd

X TIIM QTITISUANVE
‘ONI ‘ISIM-SYDAIV
RMEAL YAEYMZ
S CO¥X

FINNY ‘0X

ONI 400HD
YTHIVEM NIITISHM
TIVD " AOTHCNOA

swey xetrddns

TI-D0¥-8T $ZLZZE
TT-290¥-8T1 GZLZZE
TI-90%¥-8T YZLZZE
TT-90¥-8T £CLEZE
TT-DA¥-8T zZLeee
IT-DO¥-8T TZLZZE
TT-90Y-8T ozLece
IT-DNY-81 BTLZZE
TT-DN¥-871 8TLZZE
I1-90¥-8T LTLZZE
1T-2D0Y-8T 9TLZZE
1T-DA¥-8T STLZZE
TT-DO¥-8T FILZZE
TT-20¥-8T ETLZZE
T1-9N¥-8T TTLZZE
TT-20¥-8T TTLZZE
11-90¥-8T OTLTZE
TIT-20¥-8T 50L2ZE
TT-90¥-8T 80L2Z¢E
TI-2O¥-8T LOLZZE
TT-DOW-8T 9gLeTE
IT-D0¥-38T qo0LTTE
TIT-90¥-8T roLzee
TI-DO¥~-LT €042T€
TT-90¥-LT TOLTZE
TT-DO¥-LT T0LZZE
TI-O0V¥-LT 00LZZE
TT-2A¥-LAT 6692TE

MOHHD aGMyuI ¢ Jusunoog juswdeg

aseq wny 22uonbag  Iaquny JuswAEd

1TY :odAr 3uswied

( TeT1od S0 ) dSN ADUSIAND IUNOIDY MUBRE

sarabuy so7 :

z04 Ioisthboy zusuleg

youelg

"YUN BOTISWY FO NUued MNYE
TobpsT amuT



a1qeT10baN
aTqeTIosaN
STGgETIOsN
sTqeTIoboN
sTqeTI06e
aTqeTIoban

9TqeTIobaN
eTqeTIOobeN

STaRTIOEN
aTqeTIobaN

a1geTIobeN
sTaeTlobeNn

aTqeTIohaN
sTaeTIoheN
sTaRTI069N
STaeTIobaN
aTgeTIcboN
aTaqRTIcHaN
oTqeTIcboN

sTqeTI0beN

STqRTIobeN

eTqetiober

a1qeticban

PSPTOA

aTqeTiobaN

21geTi0baN

a1qetioban

6T
9T TT0Z-dd5-T0

JUNOWY PIIESTD

61-D

$T°09S'T

00°0%%
007907
00°05%
TT°292°1

007296755
00°5L8°%
8%°¥89°T

YT 68E'C
9T %LS

00°02L 1T
ST°26S°¢E

¥7°¥16°C

£0° %6
9 ¢CL
0°L%
95°LL8°8T
SE"E€EF9 T
T 8L6 S

09°90£s

05 Q€5 LYS

1

Q0°sL

™
<
I3}

05°699°L

£6°Z00 %9

86°9€T°V

TE'CIT

0z°696°1

23eg Junowy Jjuswied
paxEsTd

oN :ssoappy 1aTiddns Ae1dstq

( TeTTOQ SO ) @SA  :ADuRIIND Juswied

:abeg
:93eq jxodesd

¥d pur 4¥ Bupooys :3junossy

IT-DA¥-1€ OL TT-DAV-TO

OTT ANYdWCD
JDTAIINIIDS WFHSIA
SINIALSIANT
ALITEGTA

ONI TIO NIZEOWIAZL
ANOETILOFTH
NOLIVHQAYOD XENOTIJ
SHOUEN0SEY MALYM

40 ILNIWLIYIAT

ONT H53a

ONI FAYIFAENOD

00

HONVINSNI INFAIDOY
¥ H4IT TYINQTIOS
ISACHONTIVATO

ONT

SALVYIDOSSY ¥ HSOd
DIMIDETE HENIHLI¥A
CHTVATY LNEWS 1003
AAYAH NEDYOH

e’}

AIddNs ® IJI4 ITEE
IRIY

IZIY

ONI ‘°§°0 SIOVDNY
TONI LSHM-SYDMIY
OV'LIY

ONT ONTHFEANIONA
IV dIVHENOOV

ONT

AVAONIYHEANTONA SNTAYd
NOIIVI0du0oD

TELNTNNOT LANT

RONEZ

ANYIWCI

VOLUNIWAAILXE

NAALSEM

SIDTA¥IS

JIYLSdE TYdd LIOA
ANVARWCD S5¥D dHL
LOTHLSIA
INTATOVNYN ALITIA0
YT ILSYOD HINOS
LOTELSId
INTWIOUNYN ALITYNS
UIY LSYOD HLNOS

3ITS owey zstrddng

TT-Da¥-2Z
TT-00¥-22
TT-baOv-2gc
I1-9¥-2¢
TTL-DOv-22
T1-baOv-ZZ
TT-bav-cc
11-DOY-Ce

1T-bOv-22
ﬂdu@DﬁnNN

Ti-DOY-22
TT1-20W-22

T-9n¥-ec
Ti-DA¥-ZZ
TT-DN¥-22
TT-90%-TT
TT-20v-2T
T1-90%-¢Z
TT-baw-2e
TT-20w-Cc

TT-20¥-CT
TT-20¥-3T
TT-DAY-8T
TT-o0Y-8T1
1T-DAv-8T1

IT-DO9-8T

IT-DO¥-8T

ADEHD

€SLZZ¢E

25L22¢%
TSLZEE
08LTCE
6%LEZZE

8%LZZ¢C
L%LETE
9¥LZZE

S¥LZZE

theze

£7L2TE
[(ATRAAN

T%L22E
oFLZCE
6gLgCE
3ELCZE
LELZZE
scLgee
SELECE

TELZEZE

0ELCZE

62ZLEZZE

8ZLZTE

LTLTTE

JUSWNO0Q JuewmAed

s3ed wny sousnbss  IPqUnN AusuARg

1TY :odAr juswieg

{ TeTTOod SO ) d5a FASURIIND JUMODOY yued
mvﬁmmﬂﬁ SO : ybueld

x04 xoasthoy juswieg

‘YN esTIswy O jued NV

126poT AMNT



0D

at1qeTichon 65°08€°C ONI NOIIWWOLOY €%¥ TT-90¥-2T 8LLEZE

sTqeTiobaN ¥T G6L SYWOSd TT-DAY-ZTT LLLZEE
ONI SEOIANES

aTqeTIobaN ZEBRL'T TIDAT QIV4-THd  TT-D0¥-22 9LLZZE

a1qeTIobsN 08295 ONT XEIAV¥E ¥ IO¥4 TT-DO0¥-22 SLLZZE

oTqeTI06aN 00°0S ARNAOY ‘UENNYd  [T-DO¥-22 BLLZTE
ONI SIIDOTONHOEL

aTqeTIobaN 00°SLE'® OI&IOVA  TT-DAV-2Z £LLZZE
0D

e1qerichaN TE°900°T IT09 ISY0D DIAIOWd TT-DOY-2T zLLzZZE
HETUVIN

aTqeTIchbeN 05°8€9 VIHINAD ‘ZENCQMO TI-DOY-ZZ TLLZZE
IDINLSIO YEIYM

aTqeT3IebaN 0% B0T’68 ALKOCD EDNWMO TT-DOV-ZT 0LLZZE
00 HELTEONOD TEXIW

sTgeTI06aN 95" Z%E . AQYHd TUNOIIWN TL-DA¥-TZ 69L2TE
ALNROD
FONTIO J0 IOTVLSIA

sTqeTI0BaN 00°009°66% WALYM TYIIDINAW TT-DAV-2Z 89L2TE
0D XIddns

sTqeTI0beN 06°89T°T WEYD HALSYW OW  TT-D0V-22 LoLzzE

a1qeTI06oN 000§ NISOM 'NdT TT-DOY-2T 99.22¢

aTqeTI0oboN 00°006°LZ “ONI 'SHINOWVATWEN TI-DOY-TT seLzee
"ONI ‘EDIANES

sTqeT106oN S8 6TF'T “LNIYN SEACHE HOC TT-DOY-ZT v9L22€
ONT AId0S

oTqeTIobsN 88°6LZ’'9 3 HdId ENIANT TI-DOV-ZT €9L2TTE
FOTANES

sTqeTI0baN 00752 FONIATYE TENIINT  1T-209Y-22 z9LzZE
0D ATEdnS

aTqeTIoneN 05 9L TYIEN TYTELSAANT TI-80Y-ZZ 195,228
ANVAWOD TYOIWEHD

sTqeT3I053N 05°LZH'T SMEHIONE TIIH TI1-S0¥-ZT c9LzeE
ANYAWOD
HONWVANSNI IMAGIDOY

sTqeT3IobeN 0z"T0Z aNY FATT @HOATHVH TT-D0Y-ZZ 65.22¢
ANYAWCD

s1qeTiobaN 52°8€2'02 DI¥ILDITE UVEAYED TT-9D0¥-2T 85LZZ¢

a1qeTjoboN 8% 1% "0D HSMWGT THYNYD TT-DOY-ZZ LSLZZE
TONT ‘SOILXTUNY

a1qeTI069N 6991992 WONIDELS TTnd  TT-90%-22 9GLZEE
aEvog

sTqerTIobaN PFOLOTT XYL ASTHONWMA 1I1-90V-22 ssLzze
. o771

a1qeTIobaN SZL66°€E SNOTIOTOS LTI TI-DAY-ZT %5.2Z¢

MOAHD aM¥I ¢ Jusumdog uawfed

snielg Jjunowy palesT) ageq Jmmoury jusudeg 23TS sweyy IaTTddng 212Q wnyN 9ousnbag  xaquny Juswied
POXBITD
oN :s82Ippy¥ IeT1ddng Aerdsig ITY :odA1 auswheg
( xeTTod Sn } @sa :Aousiin) juswied ( xefTod Sa ) asn :ADUDIAND JUNODIDY URF
0z :efbeq ¥d PUB 4¥ BUTHSIYD :JUNODOY sorabuy 07 : youeag “YCN BOTIRWY JO ued NNV

0%:6T 110Z-4dS-10 :92eg 3xodsy I1-90¥-1€ OL TT-90¥-10 X¢d 1935tboy juswieg 12BpaT aMux



3TqeTIobaN

aTqeTi0heN
aTqeTI06aN

aTgqeti06ey
STqeTI0baN
aTgRTIO0aN
STqeTI06N
oTqRT3068N
aqeTIoben
219213069

3TqeTI063N
o1qRTi0B62N

aTqeTIoheN
aTqeTI0RSN
a1qetichsn
Tqetioban
21qeT 06N
a1qetichsN
2TqeTaoban
STgeTIobaN

STqetT30BaN

s1qeTIoboN

a1qeTIoban

sTqerioban

STqeTI069N

snaels

Tz
0F-ST TT0Z-4Z5-10

JUCOUR; PaIeRTD

tabeg
1@3eg 3xodey

12D

60°SST
08 FIT'T
8§6°8ST'T
00°008
TL'69E°2T
00°%ZT‘T

¥8°€IC° %
TETBLL'T

687ELT'S
09°5%% T
05884
00°STE'T
00°$70‘€
00°008'%
1€ 5288
T6 EET 2T
SFTE0879T
L8 8LE SE
007562
007085

99°1TT'%

Te"2TIT

238 JIMOWwY juswiArg
pP3IRITI

o :ss3appy z2rTddng Reidsta
{ TeTTod SN ) dsn
A3 pue ¥ BUTOSYD :3uUMondY

1 Aouaxind JuswAed

IT-D0¥-T€ OL Ti-20V¥-TC¢

YIONTHAD

ONI

TYOINEHD FAVTIVD
XATTL

ONILINSNOD aNY
SOINOYLIOATI SdD
ONI

LOYENT FDIIWAOCD
INIIOS ‘MYNNYHD
O INSAIFAOD MAD
ONI FAYOTENvE
WINICAITYO

ONI SI¥INHIVH
ANTIEAId STIEM O
SEDTA¥ES

TENNAINT I3IY
L3IV

131Y¥

olaips

¥O - SEISDOTONHOHL
TYTELSAANT QIITIAY
SSO¥D HNTE WIHINY
YIAML ' SWYITIIM
TEOIALSTTE
JIISANIAS ® LSaM
DNI

SETHOIVE0OEYT HOAM
*DNI

'THOINVHOAW NOSIVM
OHI ISdA

ONI ‘ONILIASNOD WA
ONI A¥ISHUAN

VZV¥id TYOIJONUL

ONI ‘HOHEL WALAEL
D0SSY QUO4HSY ‘1 L
AONYNALNIEN

NASYYI S ANV L
“ONI SHDIANAS
ONILIOSNCD DELNVLS
LOTALSIC
INFWIOYNTN ALITEN0
¥IY LSYOD HINOS
IOTALSIA YRIVM
VIIIUOEUN YINVS
ONI ONITIANIONE
ATV WA

swey xsTTddng

sa7abuy SO ¢ youexd
z0g I23sTHay JuswARg

IT-90¥-¢€2

TT-o0¥-€Z
TT-DOY-€C

TI-DON-EC
TIT-D0¥-¢£T
TT-DOW-ET
TIT-DOV-ET
TT-DON-£C
TI-DOV~-EC
TI-DO0¥-€E

TI-DOV-€EZ
TT-DO¥-€2

TT-DO¥-£2
TT-90¥-¢€C
TT-90¥-22
TT~20¥-2z
TT-20¥-2C
TT-DONY-TT
TT-20v¥-2tT
TT-onv-c2
TT-DO¥~-2T
T1-20¥-22
TL~DNN-22Z
TT-DoN¥-2T

TT-onN¥-22

TT-D0¥-TT
TT-DOAN¥-ZZ
TT-20¥-2C

23eg uny ssuanbag

g0geee

s08zee
v082Z¢E

€£032eE
ZORZZE
T08BEZZE

ooBEZTE

66LTCT

LBLETE
S6LTCE
CBLTEE

¥eLZZL
£€eLeeE
[4YX4A
T6LTTE
0BLZZE
&8LEZTE
g§8LCZE
L8LTEE
88LZZE
SgLECE
v8LZCE

€BLEZE

28LTTE

igLZTE
08LTZE

6LL2TE

Isquny JuamAeg

1TV :2dAr Jusuled
{ TETTOT SN} OsSn ADUSIIND JUNCOHOY Mued

‘YN BOTISWY JO Mued :MNYE

T96paT GMII



(€4S,

ONI SHEOLOYALNOD

STARTIORSN 00°9T0°C JTEHASY A 3 ¥ TIT-20%¥-SC SE82Z¢
S1gqeTIobaK 8% ST UoSSaM WRTTTIM TT-O0W¥-52 vE82Z2¢
aTqRTIObSK [({9 =1 AOTTeW U2A235 TT-0N¥-§2 £E€8ZZE
oTYETIobeN €€ ESE Tyso[ Ispusazubey TTI-DOV-5Z ZE€BZZE
aTqeTIOonSN 00-0ST UOSUTqod TTSU2ITH TT-20¥-5Z 13%: 1443
aTgeTIohaN ZTEET zagad UTIXEW TT-DOA¥-ST 0gszze
aTqeTIohaN 00°TL sexbuto dxeW TI-90¥-ST 628ZZ¢€
a1qeTicban ¥0 LET utTubneIon usisITy T-009-52 8TBZZE
a1qeTiobay 62°8LTZ BITSIRZZEBN PTARI  TT-DRY-5C LZTBEZE
aTqeTIoban FO'TTIT 2M0ILD prard TT-DRY-ST 9Z8ZzZ¢
o1qeTI069N 00°g0Z TTI90sE) Brexd TT-30V-5C sz8zZ€
21qeTI0baN ZEET auoog sefIeyy TIT-ONY-ST $Z82Z¢
a1qeTi0baNn 00708 uedzey AssEy TT-DOY-SZ £282Z¢€
21qeTI062N c0-8L BTI0D oxpuelaTy TIT-9AY-ST zZ8zZE
ANTAWOD
HOLENITIET LT
o1gqeTIoban 00°569 EILSImM  TT-D0V-eT 12822t
ONT
s1qeTachban TL G6E YINMOAITYD NOZI¥NAA TI-O0Y-€2Z. 0Z82Z¢
q2I440
aTqetiobey 00°0SZ'6T L50d SELYLS CILING TT-20¥-¢C 5T8ZZ¢
91qeT3IcbeN e ZLY ANYGWOD SYD dAL TI-D¥-tZ 8T8CZL
FDIANIS YOIOW
a1qetavbsn 09°620°T DIALDETE SNIYMS TTL-D0V-€Z LT8ETZE
NOTINZITYADI
aTqeTI068N 00 °stge6 A0 @¥¥0od dAIYLS TT-D0W-EZ2 8T8zZZt
ANTIHOD
NOSTICH YVINNOATTYD
oTqeTIobeN ¥ %0%’'9s MMIRINO0S TI~20V-&T S182CZ¢
HDO3L WILSXS
argeTIobeN L5 GTT aIels 09aId NYS TI-9D0Y-€2 $1922ZE
ONI SHIDOTONHOEL
stgqetachbsn 00°§LT'% OI4IDVd  TT-DAV¥-£2 £1822¢
ONI STIOWLNOD
atgeTIoban £1° 568 3 5i¥¥d J2IJIJ¥d 1T-D0¥-£2 £18Zc2¢
ateeTiobay 00°&TE A0 ALNQOD 'IONTEO  TI-HAY-€£Z Ti8ZZ¢t
0D X1ddns
aTqeTIobaN 6T 00E TYIALSOANT DSW TT-9QY-£C greeee
IDTHLSIC
HILYM ZINOCD
a1qeTiobon 06" 6LS HOwEY YNGOTT TT-DA¥-~€EC 50822¢
atqeTioban €0 €2t ONI ¥SO LOd¥d JWCE TT-DAY-tT 808¢CZ¢
ANNIWNG) TEOTNIHO
sTarTiobay 9.°965°T SYFHLOAE TITH TT-OOY-ET L0BZZE
NOTEHD GMIT ¢ qusumoog jusuded
STI3R3S QUNOWY P3XvRTD 23eg Junowy JudwiAed 2318 awey xattddng 23eq wny 2susnbag  Isquny suswied
pPaaeaTd
on sssappy zoriddns Aerdsta 1TY :odAl uswied
( X2T10C SO } dsn  :Adu=Iin) jusiwdeg ( TerTod SN ) gsn ADUSIIND qUNODDY NURE
zz :abeg ¥ pue gy SUTMDSYD :IUNODIY satebuy so7 : youead YN BOTISWY JO Yuwrdg INYL

0F:5T TT0Z-dAS-T0 :238d 3xodey TT-90Y-T¢ O TT-50¥-T10 JIod i9381boy juowkeg x26paT aMur



aTgeTI0BaN
atgeriobey

sTqeTI0ban
aTqetiohban

aTgeTI0baN
atqerioban

aTqeTI069N
aTqeTI0baN

aTgeTI06aN
ITqeTI063N

2TqeTI0beN
aTgeTI05eN

aTgeTIOonEN

sTqerIobeNn
atqetichan
aTqerloBan
2TqeTI062N
atqeTiIoben

aTqeTiobaN
a1getioban

aTaeTI063N
aTqeTiobaN
aTqeTIobeN
oTqeTI053N

aTqeTicban
aTgqeTI0BaN
aTqeTIcEaN
sTqeTIobeN
21qetioben
sTqeTiobaN

a1qetioban

€T
0%:5T TTICE-4ES-T

Jumowy paresrd

{ IeTioa sn )
:abeg
azeq zxodayd

€CO

s1'88£’e
9€°0E6 LS

90°zgz'L
LB 6L9°S

9T SIg’E
00 L8

65°€00°T
%6 F¥6°¢€

36°9€6°T
Tg ¢T

¥T2%E

00 ves
€T°€T
6T°90T
YL Z6%
[13 At 0h 4

00°0€8
€T TV
9z 8I% T
0%°6¢8

00 TEL'8Z2
0Z° %48

00 -98€ 22
0€°90€
00"00L L
9€° 985

¥LE8Z

33 Jurnowy juswded
DaIL3TD

o :ssaxppy roT1ddng Aerdsta

asa :Aouszan) juswded

dd puer d¥ BUTHOSUD :IUNOISY

IT-90Y-T€ OL TT-DOW-I0

"ONT YOIy
J40 SdWNd NIMa0D
" ONT

HOLIOGUISNOD IDD
077 ANYAWOD
JIATINEIDS ¥IHSIS
arTAvd ‘NOSNSYHIA
SAAOMATLEM
NOSASIHI

XHAAL

SALYIZOSSY

R TITINYS
FIYSSTUAXT

ONI ¥ICEW

-TLION SYNITIH
ONT

SISTAIAAING THSTH
ONISNIS

g5 ‘INI A20Ed
STYHD ‘EI34Ia
GUOD SINTWNYISNT
NOIIDALIA
NOTIIWEOEN0D
MDEHD TYILNITIED
INYL AUYW YXOD
SNOIIVOINHOD X0D
ZYNIYA  ‘ OENONLOD
ONI HNVIHAENOD
ONI

FETY aNY ONIIVIH
ONTHEROTI LSY0D
YWISS ‘DIIWD

ONI SEWOI¥NVE
YINIOITTYD
SYWOHL ' NMO¥H

ONI DIDWMWOIH
TLSYM TYIDHEAS Dad
03 dHad

T TIEM CIATISHANYE
I3IY

IRIY

I3IY

NOIIW20J¥0D LSY
ITYM ‘QEOJHSY
d¥0d

DIEIOFTE NOLLOY

swey xoTTddng

1

seTebuy soT @ youwead
zod ze3sT1HBoy JuswArg

TT-D0¥-42
TL-DOV-ST

TT-d0¥-52
TL-DOV¥-5¢

TI-DOV-5T
TI-O0v¥-g2

TT-OfI¥-5T
Ti-DOW -5

TT-O0¢¥~-5T
1T-dON-S5¢

TT-D0¥W-52
TT-20¥-52

TT-90¥-52

TT-0QV¥-~-SE
TT-DO¥-5C
TT-90¥ -5
TT-DO¥-5C
TT-oN¥-9T

TT-00¥-52
TT-9A¥Y-SZ

TT-2a¥-ST
TT-20Y-52
IT-D0Y-52
TI~-PO¥Y-5T

T1-90v¥-S2
T1-20¥-5C
TT-20Y-52
TT-DO¥-5
TT-O0¥-52
TT-20%~S<

TT-D0A¥-52Z
ADIHD MEI ¢

s3eg wny =ousnbos

a98ece

s982¢¢E

vIBZZE
£98CZL

z98zee
198zee

09gzee
6G822¢

849822¢

L88CCE

59822¢
5582T¢

¥s8zze

£5822¢
<S8CEL
T98Z2¢
¢e8ece
6%82Z¢

8%82C¢
LFBZTE

978ECTE
§v8¢CCE
4144
£vBece

Ivgeey
T¥8cZe
09%8z2¢
6e8zee
8£82zZ¢
LE8ZZE

9€£822¢

U/UMDOT  AUBWARF

Tacumy yuswled

TITY -2dAL juswied

{ ZeIYO0 SO ) QSN :ADUSIIND IUNODOY NUBH
TN BOTXOWY FO xued :NVE

T2BpaT amur



vC-O

NI
aTqerioban 63 FI¥ STIOOTONHOIL ¥OW TT-9DA¥-SZ 96822¢
ONI TIOLINEOS
arqetioben 00°S¥9'C S.MIMIDOW TT-DAY-ST $6822¢
arqeriohban 00°08s SINFWOILSNI NMIVEOW TI-90¥-S2 ¥6822¢
sTqeTIobon 0L° 8¢ DIWED ‘ZASYIVW TT-9N¥-ST £68¢2ctE
aTqetTI0bon 8082 NIE0 ‘HOVW TIT-92A¥-52 2687TE
sTqetiobsn 85°LL TSSO ‘OTTIHYOYW TT-90¥-S2 Tée8BZZE
aTqeTIoban 2,709 I¥Es ‘ONOT  TI-DOY-S2 068zze
AOIAYAS HIAL
aTaeTIoban 00-°008 ZAAIYHD IDMYNOET IT-dA¥-S2 688EZE
ONI NOTIOMMLSNOD
arqeTIoben g€°825'%CT JOOMYIHLYET TT-DO¥-GT 88822¢
DNI NMOLLONELSMNOD
aTqetrioban 8L GEL’0CT’T AOOMYTHIEAT TL-D0¥-GZ LBBZZE
IDIELSTA
dHIEM ALNOOS
@Tqetioban 85 €68°9€E HOYEE U¥NODVI TI-O0¢-ST 988CCE
argetiobanN Q%-ze NVAS ‘NYWIOM TT-DOV-4¢ S88CCE
SHALSAS
aTqeTiobeN 00°89£°T ONCHEWHW HOOA IT-DAY-SZ v88cCe
oTqetiobaN LZ 9c NYHD 'WIX TT-DA¥-SZ £88¢Z2¢
SADIAGIS TOELNOD
ISHEd CON¥ HIIWEAL
STURTI069N 00°<Sg¢ Sond-N-TITH TT-920¥-68 [A:]:TxAN
aTqeTI06aN 6L LT NYAYY "HOYENZLTYN TT-DN¥-S2Z 88Z2E
TONT "0°d
aTgeTI06oN 9% LSL SOZTARTY "D NHOL TT-90Y¥-SC 0882Z¢€
aTqet06aN 00°0¢c ZADYANT % AWWNID TI-90¥-52 6L822¢
NYIQoLsno
aTqeTI06aN ZLTTO0'T HSWD ALLdd-amdr TT-90¥-SZ 8LBTZE
oTgqeT=chaN Q0°gL9 NOILWIQAH0D WTI TT-DO¥-ST LLBZECE
2TqeT306aN §5°0¢€C DNI ¥SH L043d HWOH TT-9DO¥-ST 9LBZTE
ANYIWCD TYOTIWIHD
sTqeTIchaN 8%°806°S SYAHICHE TIIH TL-20Y¥-52 GLBTEZE
) TAVHI TN
aTqeTIchan gg-ce ‘NOSMDIHANIH TT-PAY-GZ ¥L8ZZE
NOIETHOJE0D LITFED
oTqeTIobaN TE'0€E’T SSANTSNE CNYILUVYAEH TT-DIV-SZ TLBEZE
sTqetIoben LE FEE JATISYH TT-DE-S2 zL8czTE
aTqeTioben £9°€C SIAY 18000 TEEAYVH TT-DA¥-ST TL8EZE
wﬂﬂdﬂuommz 9% 92 WYHHYHS ‘IHOIHOvWH TT1-9A¥-GZ QLBETE
aTarTiobeN LL790¢ ANVANOD HOVH TT1-DA¥-5Z 6382Z€
arqerichban 16 698 YAONIVED TI-0a¥-&C 8982Z¢C
aTqeIIobeN ST v¥ HEYW 'NOCECH TT-DAY-SE€ L982cE
ADFHD QMUET @ JUSUNDCE Juswied
sna1els JUnouy pPaxeaTd 93eg JUnouy Juswield 233T8 cwen I19T1T1ddng oaea uny sousubsy  IaqunN auswled
pa1ea1d
oN :ssoappy rorrddng A=1dsIq 11¥ :=odAr juswieg
( xe1Toq Sa ) dsa  Aouszan) juswded { ZBTIOQ SA ) dsA FADURIAND JUNODDY HUEH
$Z cobreg ¥d pue 4d¥ BuTydeyn :1umoooy soTobuy $OT : dUeRIH YN BOTISWNY IO Xued NV

0F:ST TT10Z-d4IS-T10 :23ed 1xodsy TI-DOY-T€ OI IT-DaY-T0 03 x2351Hsy Juswieg x96paT aMAL



STUqBTIOtaN
atqerioban
a1qerjobay
a1qerioban
aTqeTiodaN

a1getickan

aTgeTI069N
atqerjoban

arqericban
S1qeTIobaN
a1qeticban
aTqeTI063aN
2TqeTI063N
RTqETI00aN
FTERTIOOaN
2TFeTI063N
STGRTI0baN

21GgeTI05aN

21qeTI06aN

@TgeT3chan

ToeT3059N
TqeTIceN
ToeTIchaN
oiqeTioben

LY

L

aTqeTIobaN
a1geTiohbaN
aTqeTichban

aTqeTIobaN

14
TTICZ-dAS- 10

QUNOUY PAIRRTD

CO

Ly Lz
00°82€°0T
05°%LZ°9
£€9°5¢C
00°G6Z°T

6£°T2S

89°00L
BT ELT'EL

00°892°1
00°008’€
0% " Ge¢
68° 1%

8L EFE
§Z'e1
Z6° €86 %
2€°CT¥
05°9€6°T

ZL'869°0E

0S5 TOL'T

9% " 00L"SE

Q0°00S'T
Z8°¥6eT
6% 6TT T

QC " 0S¢E

2300 JuUnNowWy Juswied

paxXRITD
oN :ssaappy IzTrddns Aet
( TRTITCQ Sa ) asn  Aouszind juswded
:abeg ¥d pue gy Buriyosud :juncooy

:a3eq 3x0dsy TT

~DN¥-TE

oL TT-Da¥-T10

TIANYS ‘TIESSOd
ONI

SAIVIDOSSY * HES0d
ONI

OIAIOYd DOVINNIHd

AITATE  NIFAG

‘ANd TIIMINOT

ONI SLDNA0Ad

DILNIGYAEIHL XG08

VINYATASNNI

A0 &¥0D XOd AIWI"

ONI DISWWOIH

ONI HOIANM3S

ONIGHIME S, TIIH

NOTLIQHULSNOD

NV ONIATA J%d

(V€a) SILINS

QY TALOH SEIRY

L3IV

L5IY

L3N

ONI 4nous

AD0TONEDAL qdITddY

ONI SOIHAVID CLdvY

DTT 5Td

ALITYOHLOY SLISENET

HITVEH YMOY

JE800

DITALIEATE NOILIOY
LOTHLST

NOILVIINYS

ALNOQQD BDNYHO

OTT SUOLNEIYLISIA

FOUOOSENO

NOIIWACINCD NITO

TIO00W ¥ OANIN

ADOTONHOAL INOLIIN

ALNOOD

IDNYE0 40 ADTALSIC

VALYM THATIINAW

02 &13éns

TYIILSOANT OSH

SOIHAYD ASOA0W

ONT

FI¢ISANTT

SINTHOUTA

77

SEIIA¥ES

swey IatTddns

dsta

TT-20¥-TE
TT-20¥-1¢
TT-DON-TE
TT-DA¥-T1€
TT~-2N-T€E

TT-OAY-TE

IT-D0ONY-T€E
TT-D0O¥-T¢

TT-D0¥-1¢
TT-ON¥-T1€E
TT-DO¥-TE

T-D0¥-1€E
TT-ONY-1E
TT-90V-TE
TT-DA¥-1¢
TT-20¥-~-1%
TT-90¥-1€

TT-o0¥-1¢

TT-00Y-T¢€

[T-O0W-&T
T-DOY-ST
11-DOV-~ST
TT-90¥ -8

T1-90¥-S2

TT-D0¥-£Z

TT-90¥-SZ

TT-9O¥-SZ

NAOEHD GMHr ¢

o7eg wuny sousnbog

{ XBTToQ sz ) dsn

so18buy so :
I03 19isthoy juswiledg

youexg

6S62ZE
8562T¢
LG62Z¢8
9862C¢E
G862CE

$S6ETE

£96TZE
[ASY 3 AAS

Tg62Ce

pgszee

<

@ G
ot gt
LAl A=) B o) )

0
<

[4 1144

Tv62ZE

S06ZZC

v0622t
£0622¢€
zoeeee
T0sEZE

00&TeE

6682C¢
86822Z¢€

L68EZTE

Jusumocg Juswies

Faquny uswled

TTY :odAr 3usuwded
AJusxan) JUNCIDY ued
‘Y'N BOTISWN JO Yued :MNYE
z2BpaT auut



9¢-O

OTT ANYIWOS

o1qeTIchaN LLTBSL'T TALINAIOS AHSIA TI-DOY-TE 98622¢

aTqeTI0BeN 08°T98°6 A¥ISIA  T1-S0VY-TE §8622¢
ANVIWOD
SONYERSNI A3TT

aTqerI0baN ¥8°8ZL°S ALI¥ODFIS ALITHATS TT-DNV-TE $8622¢
SHYOMYILEM

aTqeTIohoN [T A8 TARAN NOSCH¥EA  TT-D0¢-TE £8622E

aTqeTIcheN 8z 258 XIaTd  TI-DAY-TE Z8622E
47 SNOILOTIOS

a1qeTIchan 06 BEE’Y ADYANT NYSEHELXE TI-DO¥-T€ 1862C€

oTqeTIobayR LT 0LT 0T ¥Md €S8 TT-DA¥-T 08622€
ONI

aTqetIchbaN 00°0ES’9T ONTIIINIONT ORIT  TT-DAV-TE 54622E

a1qeTIchaN €€°8LT ONI AIDZTVIC TI-DOY-TIE 8L6ZTE

o1qeTI0baN TT LLZ NOLLYMOAH0D YANOIC TI-20¥-T€ LL6ZTE
NOIIWIOAHOD

oTqeTIobay SZ°9z8 NYTID YIVG TI-DOY-1€ SL6ZTE
“ONI SWELSXS

a1qeTIobeN 80°€92°¢€ ¥AIVM H ® @ IT-90¥-If SL6ZZE
NOIIW¥SOJACD

o1qeroben 00°00T MOFHO IYILMEOEE) TL-9a¥-1I€ YL6ZTE

sTqeTI0hoN zsezet SNOIIY¥ITNAWKCD X0 TI~DAY-IE €L62TE

aTqeTiobeN 06°ZT ONT DIDOTTHCD ITT-DAY-TE zLEZZE

oTqeTI0baN GG 816 ONI TAVIHAANOD TT-D0Y-TE TLEZZE
ONTI
‘4IV¥ GNY ONILIVEH

TaRTI0bDN 006°02T ONIEWATd ISYOD TT-DO¥-T1E 0L522¢

argeTioben ZT- 8¢ NIATYD ‘ONIHD Tr-9a¥-I€ 59622¢€

STaeTIoBoN Z1° 8¢ NERNZL ‘OSH NEHD TT-90Y¥-TI€ 8962Z¢
ONI TUNOIIYVNHIILNT

eTqeTIobay 0Z°192°9 HOEI WIHD TT-DO¥-IE L962ZE

STqeTI08sN LT 1€ WIM ’Y¥LED  TT-90Y¥-T€ 9952Z¢

sTaeTIohey zg- Lzt OTT INEANYIAOD MAD TT-DOV-TE G962Z€
2T

STqeTI089K 00° 098 ANIATT ¥ TIEEAWYD TT-O0V-TE ¥962ZE
NOIEITIOL
'RIISIIATNO

a1qeTIobaN 00°588°¢€ FIYLS YINWOAITYS TI-DOV-1E €9622€
SEILITILO
TEATOINAN

a1qeTI0beN 00°T6%'6 YINMOATTYD TT-DO¥-TE Z7962Z€
ONI HAYDIYIYS

oTgeTIcheN 06°GOT'ST YIMHOAITYD TT-90¥-T€ T962ZE
. ONI STUINELUA

aTgeTIchaN 987 LLSEZ ANTTIETd $TIAM D TT-DOY-TE 0362T

¥OIHD CMAI : ausunoog suswied

sn3els UNouY PaIEsTd 23®g junowy JuwRwlzd 2118 suey zat7ddng o3eg wny scusnbas  Isqumy Jusuded
PIIVITD
oN :ssaappy xatTddns Aerdsta 1TV :9dAr auswlhed
( xe1Toq SN ) asn c:Rousxand Juswdeg { xeTrIod SO ) OSA ADUSIAND JUNORNDY AU
9T 19624 ¥d pue g¢ BUTHOSUD :IUNCITY saTebuy SOT : youeig YN BOTISUN O NUed MNYd

0%:ST TT0Z-d3S-10 :93eq 3xodsy TI-DO¥-TIE OL IT-DOY-T0 03 I93IsTHaY juswleg xabpaT aMul



LCD

aTqeT3068N 0L €6S°2 OTT SNEMMYD NIAXWYKN TT-D0Y-T€ 9TOEZE

sTqeTi0beN 6E° LY daoLl ‘SAO¥WKM IT1-90V-TE gToEzE

STaeTI0beN LT 0L SANAD 'OTUNYA TL-9N¥-1€ y1oeze

STaeTIobaN 86°8C8°C ONT JINEIA WIODTYW TT-20V-T¢ £10€2e
“ONI ‘SUTANIONG

atgqeTiobaN SL°68E L NOLIVOINENT TT-OA¥-1¢ jAN N AN

oTqeTI05aN 8% 6T V¥SSANOA ‘MOT  TI-DAY-~TE TI0€ZE
da0D

aT¢eTI053N 007685’z ONTIWVHEAO SIMAT TI-9N¥-1€ Q1gece

a1qetiohban Lz 82 NHOL ‘@31 TT-90W-1€ gQ0teee
ADITFIVS

oTgeTiIoban 90°0¢€ INAHSHAVAYT TT-DAV-T1E coeze
SAIVIDOSSY

aTqeT30baN 0o°sLE’E ¥ JOYVAd WAVI  IT-D0W-1€ Loogze

oTqeTIobaN 00°906°T DONI SANYHOENOX TI1-DOY-1€ 900tEE

a1qeTioban ¥0° 1% WYQY 'IHOINM TIT-DA¥-TE SO0ETE

a1qeT1069N T6°0¢€ . FOYED ‘EWI¥  IT-DO¥-TE ¥O0EEE

SHDTA¥IS "TOELNOD
LSad GNY JLIWRAL

atqerioben 067099 SOONE-N-TII¥ 1IT-DA¥-1¢ €00¢ETE

aTqeTiobeN 16°0€ qo¥ ‘dWad  TT-D0O¥- 1€ zoo0gee
ONI ATEdAS

aTgeta0ban ST°20G°T 3 d4dId INIAGT TT1-90W-1€ TOoCEZE

aTqeTioban 8L°6T ZANY ‘OYHSEI IT-O0W-T€ 000€Z€

STGRTI06aN 5€°%L9°0¢ ONI STdEAd ITI TT-DOY-TE 6662Z¢€
FNIANI SHIVIDOSSY

eTgeTI06aN L8 TES J YEAYSNAH TT-DOV-1€ 8662Z¢€

a1qetrackbaN 5%°090°T ONT ¥5A LOdEd HWOH TT-9D0¥-1¢ L6622¢€
ANZAWOD TEOINZHD

aTqETI0baN 0S°2S%'T S9aHLO¥E TIIH T-0NY-1¢ 96622¢
ONI ONIMHEANIONA
SAIVIDOSSY

STq@TachaN 00°959°T ¥ ¥AJYYH TT-9D0%-T€E 9662TE
SHINTOOSSEY

aTCeTIctaN 00°088°T HIMOMSIWIYH T-90Y-T€ T6622ZE

aTgRTIOo0AN €9°89T°T ANYJWOD HOWH TTI-90V¥-T€ £662TE
. ONT

STqeTIoteN 0z " vLZ'¥y ¥SN NOIIWAORNI OZH TI-DO¥-1¢ Z66ZZT¢

a1gqerioben 92 %09 'S EONIVED TI-DOV¥-T1¢ T1662C¢

STUeTiobeN SL°G9€‘€E ‘0D WIFWOT THUNYD TT-D0V-1I¢ 066TIE
ONI LNIWZOUNTA

oTqeTiobeN . 6972962 ANITINO¥I TTI-20¥-T€ 586TT¢
ONI ONTIVNIWISLXH

sTqeTIohaN 00" SLT YO¥Id ¥ ANWdd  TT-O0¥-1IE 886¢CC¢E
9T

STgqeTI06aK LT 19% SNOILATOS 13314 TI-DOV-T1E LBGTTE

HWOSHD aMdT ° 3Iusumdod Iuswied

snieas JUNOWY PaIeaT) a3eq Iumowy Juswied 2318 swey rsTTddns ojeqg umy souenbas Iaquny usSwARg
paIRaTY
oN :ssexppy xa1Tddng Aerdsta 1TY :odAr juswied
{ X2TTOQ SA ) OSD ADUSIIND JuswARg { TeTTod SO ) dSn ADUSIXR) JUNOIDY Nueg
Lz abeq Ad pue gy BUIHDIUD :IUNnoddy saTsbuy soT : youesd YN BOTIDWY JO NURE MNVH

0F:ST TT0Z-4ES-T0 :23ed 3xodsy TI-9a0¥-1€ OL TT-DOV¥-T0 Ioi zeasthoy jusuded 22BpaT aMYI



8¢-D

A1340S

stqerloBan 6 FLY TTINIAC THIINIANEE TT-DA¥-TE Zhoece
A1ddans

oTqRTICHeN £€1°8LS TTTIIAO TYILNIANHS TT-DAY-TE T#0cZE

oTgqeTIOoboN 99°%98 % DONI S¥amo¥p odd TI-S0W-1E 0%0¢eCt
AONYANSNL

STqRTICHN ¥0°959°2T HATT TEITIONIYd TT-80¥-T¢ 6£0€2¢E
ONTI NCIIAZIWLSIA

STUqRTICHoN PT 68T T HIVXIG T-20¥-T¢ BEDECE
2771

aTqeTI0baN v9°8 SHAMCL FIOVNNId TI-DOY¥-TC Le0eze
ONI SHONAIDS

a1qeTiobay 8T €08 LE HITYRH SEWIZNIA¥YId TTI-20¥-1¢ 2¢0€ETE

a1qeTIohbeN 96’ 8% NYWSO ‘NINYId TL-90¥-1¢ SE0EZE

21qeTichbay 0C°005°C SHIDELYYLS 2IAIOVd T1TT-920¥-T¢ PELOETE

aTqRTIc6aN ac oL J0 AINDOD ‘EONYEO TT-DAY-TE ££0¢Ze
) ATANSTIAL

97 qeT106aN BSEFPE’T ALN£OD HONVIO TT-90¥-1€ ZEOETE
ALTYOHLAY

aTqeTIobeN g0°60F FdI4 AINAOD IONVHO TL-90¥-1¢ reneee
OTT SUOLAHINLSIA

aTqeTI0bsN ¥ 9¢EL HMNOSENO TT-9DAY¥-1it 0€CLZE
1¥0dans

sTqeTIobaN or HeEL’ 997 INJWNOISSY NO TTI-DA¥Y-T€ 6TOCZE

STqeTIONaN 85°860°¢€€ NOIIVIOJE0D NITO TI-DAY-TE 8Z0EZE
ONT

sTqeTioban 0% 9%2°ZL TYOINHOHIQED DWN TT-DNAW-TE LTOETE

aTqeTIobaN SL°8%€°9¢€ FJOOW 3 OANIN TTI-DA¥-TE 9z0EZE
ONT FADNUNALNIEA

sTgeTIoban 00" %¥Ig’T MOONTM IJOAMIN TT-DOY-TE §520¢€T¢
’ A0 ALID

aTqeTI0baN 6T 862 ‘HOWVEY LIOAMEN T1T-DOY-T¢ PZ0ETE
0D IAILEYINOD TEXTIW

s1qeTioban 86°000°T AQYIN TENCIIVN TT-90¥-T€ €Z0EZE

arqeriobaNn LZ eve ANYACEd TYALOW TT-DAY-TE ZZOEZE

2TqeTI06aN S5°0T6 ONI TYOMOW TT-90¢¥-T€ TZOEZE
ONI INAWHAINOR
FONYINIINIIA

aTqeTI058N 69°ZSt TYAISINOR  TT-90¥-1¢ 0Zoece
NOTIIWIOZIOT
INANTSWNTH

o1qeriobayN GL 8OT'T VYINCOW HTTEOM TT-20¥-TE 6T0ECE
DNT
SHOIAJAS HAYOSANTI

21qeTIoban 00 Q0L’'T SINVHO¥EW TT-20¥-T€ gi0¢ele

91qeT10baN 9z 9T NIATY ‘HII0W TI-90Y-1€ LTOETE

MDAHD GMYT : juswnoog jusuied
sna=3ag Junouy poxreard s3eg junouy JjuawAed 2318 suey zstiddng 27eq ump sousnbag  IoqunN Juswiezg
pP2IeDTD
oN :ssoiappy xo11ddng Aetdstda 1Ty fodAr 3juswded
{ xelTod S0 )} asn rAocuaian) Juawled ( xerTed sa ) asn sAdUSIIRD IUNODDY HURH
82 1abed ¥d puUeR ¥ buriosyn :3junoosy ssTabuy soT @ youexg CYUN BDTISWY JO Yued INYE

0%:GT TI0Z-4=S-T0 :@3ed 3xcdey TT-90¥-I€ ©L TT-DO¥-10 204 Ieisthey jusuleg IobpaT GMET



6D

STaeTI06SN 00°69€°0T dnous NYWM0d FHIL  IT-90¢-TE oLogzE
ONI ‘SATACIVHOEY'T

sTqet3obox ST°822°T VOINEWVISEL TI-D0%-T€ 690€Z€
"ONI

aTgeTI0baN 00622 fODST BNAQATIEL TI-DNY-TE 890€Z€
"ONI SIDIAHES

aTGeTI068N 69°99¢°¢2 ONILINSNOD DIAINYIS TIT-90d-IE L90€EZE
oTT
SHOTANES TYIDINYNIA

sTqeTIchon 00°00S°T S,¥00d 3 Q¥YANYLIS TI-D0V-TE 990€2¢

aTgeI106aN 00°005'% "ONT ‘FAYM TYIINGS TI-O0¢-TE g90€Z¢E

a1qeTicbeNn 69 112 SLIETMIYdS Ti-90¢-1F $90€£2€
OTT SINYOI¥ENT

sTqeTIctaN ST 06T°T SIIINAOD NTHINOS TT-DOW-TE £90€2€
ANTINOD
NOSTOE YINNOIITYD

ElxeicalelsEN TP 6LS"%FE . NJFHLONOS Ti-DNW¥-TE Z80¢E2t
ONT SNOTIATOS

aTaet30baN T8 LST’T VAINANOD SATVIS TI-DOY-TE 190€Z¢€
ONI

sTqeTIoboN 0L 8% 00 X13dNS ADOEWYHS TT-90¥-T€ 090€2€E
NOIITA0II0D

atqerioban z6°620°¢C JOLVAFTE ¥ITANIHOS TT-DAY-TE 650EZE

stqetrjobay £6°T¥ ATIO0 ‘UANIAYHOS TT-D0W-LE 8S0€ZE
qALYM

aTqeTINbeN 00°005°'T VINGOAITED-5E¥S TL-S0V¥-TE L90€EZE
NOTSSIWWOD

aTqeTiobaN 80°0EE’1Z IONCANOY ODVIINYS TI-ON¥-TE 9S0ETE
IDTULSIA ATTEM

21qeT3obsN 96 "1TT €T YILTAYOUWW YINYS TI-90Y-T€ SG0EZE
INTHE

o1qeTIobaN £9°€98 ANTE YNV YINYS TT-90Y-T1€ »G0EZE

aTgeTIchaN 00°90E'9T ONI ONIAYE SYEANNS TT-90Y¥-T€ £S0EZE

STARTICHHN $5°Z9 qaIWNHY 'DAqYS TI-90¥-1I€ ZS0ETE

aTgeTI0baN 55708 MIHIIVA °‘SSCd TT-90v-1€ TS0EZE

sTgeTIobaN 00°225 ANYAWOD ONCE TI-90Y-I€ 0SCEZE

START3063N 95°9%9°19 ONILINSNOD 48y TI-DAY-T€ 650E2E

S1qeTIobeN T1°9T SYIONCT 'dd¥y¥  TT-D0¥-TE 850¢€2€
D11

oTqRTI068N z8°895 INFWORISNI NINIWY TT-90¥-T€ L¥QEZE

sTaqeT10beN SL°852°T ONI NOIIVMOLNY €%¥ TT-O0¥-T€ 9¥0EZE
TELNANNOATANT

STqeT3063K 9€°90¢C ZTTYAS  IT-D0Y¥-1€ S¥0EZE

sTaeTIobsN 06°Z0%°T SYWOSE TT-90Y-T€ ¥F0EZE
FIANOSAZANG

atgeTIchan 68°S9E°L ONIIEZANYI AHI 854 TI-D0¥-1€ €F0EZE

SFHD IMEI ¢ Jusumdog auawieg

snleas unowy paIesaT) 93eg Junowy Juswieg 2318 swey xa1T7ddng aeg wny Iousndeg aoquny ywawles
paxesTd
ON :ssoxppy x2ttddns Kerdsia 11¢ :8ddiy auswleg
( xerroq sn ) asn  :Acusxind juswleq ( TTO@ SN ) GSH FADUSIIND JUNODDY HUed
62 :sbeg da pUR ¥ BUTHOSYD :IUNODIDOY sarabuy so7 @ youexg CYCN RSTISUY JO Nued INVE

0%:ST TT0Z-43S~T0 :®3eq 1i10dey TT-S0¥-1€ ©L TI-DOVY-T0 Iod roisthey juoudeg ISBPIT aMUI



0€-D

w3 -

ONI d0Qud SADIANIS

aTaeTIobaN I8°910°T A¥aé HONWTEASHI AE0R T1-90¥-T0 0016

2ITM GMYI @ Jusumnoog Juswieg

ST TTT'GLO'ET :{eaI02gNg AUsuUMDod Juswieg

atqerIohben LZ"T9 FI¥N0STY IOV IANEOM TI-D0V-TE T60ETE
oTT

aTgeIIcEeN 00°%%2'T SOOTHOLYM SSTITIIM IT-DN¥¢-T€ gegezeE
ANYIANOD
VOLYNIWIELYTE

aTqeTiIobeN 00°228’e NyHLSaEM IT-DNY¥-TE 6B0EEZE

aTqeTIonaN TL°L9%°2 AY NJELSEM IT-DPOW-1€ 880€Z¢<
ANYIHOD

STqeT106aN 067 L8T AIEdns §TIam TT1-OA¥-1E LBOEZE
ONI

atqeticben 00°065°2 SHIYOLYICEYT M33M IT-ON¥-TE 980€T¢

aTqeTiobaN %6709 QEYATY ‘IIT AYM  IT-DOY-TE 580€ECE
ONI ‘SESIYIITING

oTqeTi0baN 6L 862 S,HIX¥M TI-DOV-TE T80EZE
ZNTINOD

a7geT10baN 90°%2Z'T STYTHHIVW NYDOI0s TTI-DOW-TIE £80gce
"d 1 ‘SIADIAEIS

21qeTI0b6aN €6°Z00 %% HFIYISE TIEH IIOA TII-9A¥-TIT Z80¢€ceE
OT1I SEOIA¥AS

stgeTicban £0°50Z°¢L SSETIVIM NOZI¥IA TI-DAV-TZ T8CETE
ONI

sTaeTiobeN ¥STEP VINMOJITYD NOZI¥IA TIT~ONU-TE 0g0gCe
"ONT
TYIMIICS B HINIEIDS

STgeTIobaN 00-o08L SWILSAS ALITILA TI-DPN¥-TE 6L0EZE

aTqetachan 6% LFE 2COEdNTH €50 TT-DN¥-T¢E 8LOETE
ONI YINHOJATTED
A0 SHOIANES

aTqerIcsaN 40 T HLIS CGALINN TI-D0¥-T¢ LLOEZE

aTqeTiobeN 09°%Z8 SL2NACYE NYSINO TT-DOW-TE 9L0ETE
oT1

2TqeTIChaN 297909 TIYDANTT NIFIONEL TI-D0Y-TE gL0EZE

sTqeTIchaN 0gg"9 OO¥¥dINdL TTI-DOY-TE vLOEZE
ONI AJESEOM

aTaeTichan 197900 ‘02 YZ¥id TYOIA08L TT-D0¥-TE £L0EZE

o1qeriobeN L9°568'2 ANVARKOD SYD HHI T1-90¢-IE TLOEZE

2TqeT3069N zZg LwL'E ANYAROD S¥9 JHL TII1~-ON¥-TE TLOEZZ

ADEHD @MNI ° JuPuwnoog 3uswied

snae3s JUnoWY PaXEsTd 23ed aumowy Juswded 2318 swey I>TTddnS o3 unN sousnbag xaqunN lustiAed

paxeaTd
oN :ssaappy IaT1ddns AeTdstc Tty :edAL Juswizd
( xerToQ@ Sn ) gsn  :Aduszin) JuswAeg { rerTod €0 ) dSn :ADUSIAND JUNODOY MUeg
ne cabeg 1d pue gy Burxosy) :junooow serebuy soT : youmig ‘YN BOTISWY JO Nueg :YNVYE

0%:GT TT0Z-dAS-10 :o3ed 3xodey TT-90¥-T€ O TT-20Y-T0 X0d X335THy Juwdwded T96peTT GMET



arqeriocbsn

oTqeTIchbaN

sTqeTIobaN
aTaeTIcbaN
aTqeTiobaN
STqeTI0beN
STgeTichaN
sTqet3oban
argeriobay
aTqeTIoBaN
argerioban
STqeTIOBaN
aTgetTio5sN
a1g2TIcEaN

aTqeTIobaN

a1qeTichsn

a1qeTIobaN

sTaRTIOBON

a1qeT3069N

aTqeTI0BaN

snuaeis

0¥:5T TICZ-4

1€-D

T1-90¥-T 0216
TT-90%~T¢ 5116
TT-D0¥-1% 8116
TT-oN¥-1¢€ LTI6
TT-0N¥-T¢ 976
TT-20v¥-1¢ STi6
TL-DOV-TE Y16
IT-9N¥-0€ €116
TT-DA¥-0¢€ (AN
TT-DO¥-0€ TTi6
TI-90%-0¢ 0LT6
TT-20¥-0¢ 6016
TT-o0v¥-0€ 8016
TT-20¥-0¢€ LGTs
T1-90¥-0¢ 90Te
TT-20v¥-%2 S0Ts
TI-D0¥-%2 %016
TI-90%~%2 €014
IT-00¥~%Z ZO0tT6
TT-90¥~TO T0Ts

DIATM AMET * JUSWND0J Juawied

a3eg uny =sousnbasg

TaqunN JIusuiAed

IT¥% :odA1 juswded

( TRTTOd SN ) ASQ +AQUSRIAND JUNOIDY Hued

RCILVIDOSSY
£8°6T6°8 SINCT "LSTYNOIIVN XN¥d "S°0
ALNOQOD
ATTIVATONYEO 40 IOIALSIA
SELIT 8BLE’T NIVINNOA FAINM TNAIDINORN
YN ANTYANOD
LSO¥L NOTTEW
S8 £90°0T AAVMAN  MHOA MIN 40 ANVHE
NOIVIOqEMOD ONIANTS
£Z°1S6 MHOA MEN INSLIN OWOLIWAS
QDS LONYEA
ST 65T'E0T’T N¥S YOL¥ANY J0 ANYd
NOLINIDOSSY
8S°9%L’T STAOT "LSTYNOIINVN MNVE "S°il
NOTYHOJ¥0D ONIMNVHE
00°TLO'E MYOR MEN INSLIMN OWOLINOS
HONAT TIIE¥HN
00°000°0%9 A¥d YOIUAWY S0 JANVE
DS LTINS
00°S6€ N¥S  VOIMEWY J0 MNV"E
HONAT TITHEHN
00°000°0S5€’2 A¥d  YOTYAWY JO NNVE
“ONI STV
96 %F6 'TST'E MJOA MEN TYLOTID dNOURILID
NOILVIZOSSY
00° 08¢ SINOT "ISTYNOIIUN MNVE "5°0
QJISIDNVEA
TT°919'2 NYS  YOITJEWY 40 XNVE
NOTIWHEOJdE0D ONIANVE
92 LLO’E N¥OZA MIN INSLIW OWOLIWAS
NADNITIANHL - NISSEH
L8 TEeT MHOA MIN ANVESHCNTI WHIIIEH
8 -
ONI dNO¥O SHEOIA¥IS
05 €zz’e Avd ONYANSNT HI0X
w0 -
ORI dNO¥S SEOIA¥ES
P 897 '€ A9d HONUNSNT MHOR
¥ -
ONI dN0o¥d SADIAYIS
€% 9%L A¥d TIINTANSNT HUCA
¥y -
ONI dNOdS SHADIAHAS
62°965°2 Av¥da ADNTANSNI ¥H0A
NOTINIDOSSY
£€8°0%9°6 SINOT CLSTYNOLLYN ANWd "S°Q
Juncwy pPaxesTd 93eQ IUroury uswAeg 21TS sweyn xaT11ddng
PaIB3TO
oN :ssexppy zaTTddng AeTdstqg
{ IeTTOQ S0 ) asa  :Adusxand auswdAeg
1€ :abeg ¥d pue ¥ BuTYO9uD :Iunoddvy soTsbuy soq
F5-T0 :23eQ axodey TI-O0¥-Tf O IT-ON¥-T0 3I04 193sTHay Juswdeg

yourxs

‘YN PoTIDWY IO jued MNVE
226p9T aMul



e

aTqeTI063N
sTqeTioben
atgetioban
a1qetTioban
aTqRTI0b3N
sTqeTIebaK
aTqeTIobaN

a1qeTICebaN

oTqeTIoban

ITgeTI06N
STqeTI06eN

aoeTachen

srgeTIchay
aTgeTIobeN

o1ceTICHIN

(4
0957 TT0Z-ddS-10

JUNOWY PRIRITD

( xeIT0d so ) asn
dad pue gy Butyosup

rafeg
i93eqg 2xodsy

a3eq
paIesTd

ON

TT-209-T€

TG ZET ' PEE’ LT

$4°0T6°852 "1

¢g-000°0L0°2
€L°89T7LTE
S9°£S6°2
¢0-08c‘Z
$5°9TT S
ZLLEB PES

T LZEPET

356700692

00°T%1°2

9% 818°vT

ZZ'06L°91¢

Zp°980°L8

00°0C0'E06°T

v6°957v‘8

stnouy  Judwled

: JUnoONOY
OL TT-DA¥-T0

Add .

QLNZNVEOVS
OLNEANYEOVS

YNV YINYS

VY YINYS

OLNINTAIYS

HAN

A¥d

OLNINTEOYS

OLNFNTIIYS
).}

E¥d

OLNAWNNHEOYS

HEEMAN

IO ZET'#EE’ LT

:Tezol 3xodey

© TRl03qRS IUNCOIY uedg

:TRI03(MS Jusumood Jusmded

HONZT TITNdEN
YOI¥IWY 30 JANYE
SUHITYD

SYHATYD

NOING LICd¥ED

5. ALNOCD FONYHO
NOINQ

LIJEED TYYHdAd
LS¥Td TOOHOS
S¥AITED

IS5EM IVHYS

ONI ‘LSITVIDAAS
LIJ3INAE JIAOTINA
SIDTALES

Id0Gdns aIIHD

A0 LNENIIYIEA
YINIOAITYD
LNEALIYIEA
LNENGOTEATA
LNEWACTANE

{(¥gq) 3IJIIS

GN¥ ¥O0T1 I¥Cd¥IvY
agyog

XYL GSTHONWYYA
YN ANTAWOD
LSNEL NOTTIW
MYOX MIN JO XNVH
NOILIVIDOSSY

§TN0T "ISTUYNOIIUN ANVYE “S°Q

NOIL¥IDOSSY

SINOT °“ISTYNOIIUYN NNV "5°Q

:sgaxzppy 191iddng Aetdsta
:Aouazin) JuswAed

owey zatrddng

{ ZeTrod sSQ ) @SN AoURIIND JUNODDY UeH
youexg

ssTobuy soT

103 935THou juswied

Ti-90v-1I¢
TT-DOY~-1¢
TT-D0O¥-1€
TT-d¥-1€
TT-DO¥-Tt
TT-DO¥-1¢

IT-o0¢-TE

TT-DOY-~1¢

TT-90¥-T¢

TT-ON¥-T%

IT-OoL¥-T%

TT-O0¢-1¢

TT-90¥-1¢

TT-20¥-T¢

TT-20W-TE

DITH (IMUT

23eq wuny sousnbag

£98 *

ITY

2unod xoday

gtlise
TETE
tEis

TE18
0tTs
626

8216

LZT6

£C16

TCT6

1216

T JuDuNDOg Juswled

:adAL juswhA=g

Tacquny Juswled

YN BOTISWY IO dued MNVE

I2bpoT GMYI



snileis

C%:ST

Junouy paxesTd

€L
1102-435-10

rabeg
t93eq axodey

€e-O

zxe 320d2¥ JO PUR zxx

23eg JuNowy Juswied 231TS swey xsttddns aleq uny sousnbes Isquny Jusuled
paIesTd
o :sseaxppy xetrddng Aetdsta TTY :odiL juswied
} :Aouaxang Juswied ( )} :Adusxand IUNODDY Jurg
Mslingintese). 4 T youeid DINVE
TI-90V¥-TE OL Ti-DNW-T0 04 I93stbey uswAezd I25psT amat






September 26, 2011

Prepared and

Submitted by: Beth Beeman
Approved by: Paul Cool% T,

CONSENT CALENDAR

ACWA COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT NOMINEES FOR THE 2012/2013 TERM

SUMMARY:

IRWD has been an active participant in the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA).
Staff recommends that the District continue its high level of participation by remaining involved
in a number of ACWA Standing Committees. A suggested list of nominees for committee
appointments is included below.

BACKGROUND:

Staff has received correspondence from ACW A requesting nominations for standing committees.

This request is attached as Exhibit “A”. Staff recommends the nomination of the following for
the 2012/2013 term:

Participants Committee/Subcommittee
Communications Committee Beth Beeman
Energy Committee Peer Swan

Federal Affairs Committee Steve LaMar
Finance Committee Peer Swan
Groundwater Committee Doug Reinhart

Legal Affairs Committee Mary Aileen Matheis
State Legislative Committee Kirsten McLaughlin
Water Management Committee Peer Swan

Water Quality Committee Dave Pedersen
FISCAL IMPACTS:

The District will be responsible for all costs associated with representative participation on
ACWA committees.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not Applicable.

BB ACWA Committees 2011.docx

10



Consent Calendar: ACWA Committee Appointment Nominees for the 2012/2013 Term
September 26, 2011
Page 2

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on
September 13, 2011.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD DIRECT STAFF TO SUBMIT THE LIST OF ACWA COMMITTEE
APPOINTMENT NOMINEES FOR THE 2012/13 TERM TO THE ASSOCIATION OF
CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2011.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — ACWA Committee Appointments Memo



EXHIBIT “A”

1910 - 2010

Associat 3 Hall of the States
910 K St 400 N. Capitol St., NW., Suite 357 South,
Sacramento, California 95814-3577 Washington, D.C. 20001-1512
916.441.4545 %.325.4840 202.434,4760 rax 202.434.4763
WWW.aCWa.com
Vision for the Fuiure
Association of California
» Water Agencies
August 16, 2011
MEMORANDUM
TO: ACWA COMMITTEE MEMBERS
FROM: PAUL KELLEY, ACWA BOARD PRESIDENT

SUBJECT: ACWA COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT NOMINATIONS FOR THE
2012-2013 TERM — DEADLINE SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Your service on ACWA’s committee(s) has been invaluable to ACWA., We appreciate your devotion
of time and expertise and look forward to working with you on ACWA issues and activities in the
future. ’

We are fast approaching the end of the 2010-2011 committee term. With a new term comes the
reconstitution of committees. If you would like to continue to serve on the same committee or
would like to be considered for appointment to another committee, your name must be included on a
committee consideration form for your agency. The enclosed consideration form is to be signed by
either your General Manager or Board President.

Even if you are currently serving on a committee, you must submit a committee consideration
form to be considered for the new term. If you are a ‘Friend of ACWA’ serving on a
committee as a representative for a member agency, you will need to obtain the member
agencies approved signature again.

In submitting your name for consideration, please do so with the understanding that committees need
active, involved individuals able to expend the time and provide their expertise if appointed.
Committee attendance at meetings is tracked and reviewed as part of the appointment process.
Please keep in mind that the district is responsible for all costs associated with your
participation on any committee.

Included in this packet
¢ Committee consideration form
s Sample committee consideration form
e Committee Purposes and Responsibilities
e Committee Process/Timeline

If you have any questions please contact Jan Jennings at janj@acwa.com or (916) 441-4545.

PK/jj
Enclosures



1910 - 2018

ACVVA
Viaian for the Future

Association of California
Water Agencies

COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION FORM
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

910 K Street, Suite 100 "
Sacramento, California 95814-3577 Rank
(916) 441-4545 Fax (916) 554-2324 1=first choice
2=second choice

3=third choice

NAME COMMITTEE %
Please print legibly &

QUESTIONS? Please call Jan Jennings at ACWA (916) 441-4548,

RECOMMENDATION SUBMITTED BY:
District/Company Name ____Phone

SIGNATURE: Title

Either the Agency/District General manager or Board President must sign this form.



e forSonPide
Aswclation of California

S COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION FORM

*Rank

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES | 1=firs: choicc

910 K Street, Suite 100 2=second choice
Sacramento, California 95814-3577 3=third choice
(916) 441-4545  Fax (916) 554-2324
NAME COMMITTEE 3
. ) 8
Please print legibly .
Jane Doe, General Manager 1
Jane Doe, General Manager 2
John Smith, President 1
T.0. Goode 1




ACWA COMMITTEES
PURPOSES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE - STANDING/LIMITED (40 MAXIMUM)
MEETINGS ARE HELD 4 TIMES A YEAR
e One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
e One at the Sacramento office between conferences
e One at a member agencies site between conferences

The purpose of the ACWA Communications Committee is to develop and make
recommendations to the Board of Director's and association staff regarding
comprehensive internal and external communications/public affairs programs.
Programs are crafted to support ACWA and its members' positions on legislative,
regulatory, and policy issues.

The committee is responsible for developing and updating a comprehensive
communications plan for ACWA. The committee promotes the development and
implementation of sound public information and education programs and
practices among member agencies. It prepares materials that can be duplicated
or used by member agencies for their local public information/education efforts.
As a member of the committee, you will be enrolled as an active participant in
ACWA’s Outreach Program. The committee also provides guidance to ACWA's
Communications Department.

ENERGY COMMITTEE — STANDING/UNLIMITED
MEETINGS ARE HELD 2 TIMES A YEAR
e One at both the Fall and Spring conferences

The purpose of the Energy Committee is to work with staff in developing and
making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding:
+ Programs to assure an adequate power supply for member agencies,
including energy, availability, pricing, distribution and hydro generation
+ Policy recommendations relating to the development of new power
sources
+ Recommended positions regarding state and federal legislation to the
State Legislative and Federal Affairs Committees
+ Assistance with the development, direction and work associated with
representation before the Public Utilities Commission, the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission and other regulatory agencies dealing with
energy
+ Educate members on all energy matters having impact on their operations

A-4



ACWA COMMITTEES
PURPOSES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

PAGE?2

FEDERAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE - STANDING/LIMITED (5 PER REGION)
MEETINGS ARE HELD 4 TIMES A YEAR
e One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
e Two between conferences (Jan & Sept) in the Sacramento office

The Federal Affairs Committee coordinates with other ACWA committees
regarding their input on any issues directly related to federal issues before both
Congress and the Federal administrative branches. As a member of the
committee, you will be enrolled as an active participant in ACWA’s Outreach
Program.

The committee currently has four separate subcommittees. Committee members
have the opportunity to sign-up for as many of the subcommittees as they want,
plus being supplemented by other members with interest in a focused area. The
subcommittees with areas of responsibility are:
+ Drinking Water & Energy Subcommittee: Responsible for the oversight
and policy direction on Environmental Protection Agency and Energy-
Water Nexus. :
+  Water Supply Subcommittee: Responsible for oversight and policy
direction on the Safe Drinking Water Act and Endangered Species Act.
+ Infrastructure & Agriculture Subcommittee: Responsible for oversight
and policy direction on the Clean Water Act, and agricultural issues.
+ Finance, Technology & Research Subcommiftee: Responsible for
oversight and policy direction on financing water infrastructure
legislation.

FINANCE COMMITTEE - STANDING/LIMITED (2 PER REGION — 1 SPOT IS FILLED BY
REGION CHAIR OR VICE CHAIR; OTHER SPOT IS FILLED BY A REPRESENTATIVE FROM
REGION WITH EXPERIENCE IN FINANCIAL MATTERS)
MEETINGS ARE HELD APPROXIMATELY 4-5 TIMES A YEAR
e One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
o All other meetings are held in the Sacramento office

The Finance Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Directors
regarding annual budgets, investment strategies, annual audits and the selection
of the auditor, the dues formula and schedules and other financial matters that
may come before the committee. Each committee member will be expected to
serve on at least one of the subcommittees, which are:

+ Audit Subcommittee
Budget Subcommittee
Investment Subcommittee
Revenue Subcommittee
Education Subcommittee

* ¢ ¢ o



ACWA COMMITTEES
PURPOSES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

PAGE3

GROUNDWATER COMMITTEE - STANDING/UNLIMITED
MEETINGS ARE HELD 4 TIMES A YEAR
o One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
e One in Northern California between conferences
o One in Southern California between conferences

The Groundwater Committee monitors state and federal regulations and
legislation that could affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, conducts
studies, develops policies regarding the management of groundwater and
coordinates with other ACWA committees on issues directly related to
groundwater.

Committee members are expected to participate in a variety of activities
including writing legislation, preparing comments for state or federal hearings on
groundwater issues, developing programs for workshops and conferences, and
providing input on state and federal legislation. As a member of the committee,
you will be enrolled as an active participant in ACWA’s Outreach Program.

INSURANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - STANDING/LIMITED (2 PER REGION)
MEETINGS ARE HELD 4 TIMES A YEAR
o One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
o Two in the Sacramento office

The Insurance and Personnel Committee works with staff in developing,
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the
following:
+ Sponsor special studies on personnel-related problems and issues
+ Sponsor safety programs for risk management or workers' compensation
claims
+ Define the scope of any audit to be performed by an independent actuary,
as needed
+ Gather, develop and publish comparative data on salary ranges, employee
benefits and other personnel and administrative data pertinent to the
management of member agencies

LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE ~ STANDING/LIMITED (45 MAXIMUM)
MEETINGS ARE HELD APPROXIMATELY 2-3 TIMES A YEAR
o One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
e Asneeded in between the conferences

The committee's primary purpose is to support the mission of the Association,
and more particularly, to deal with requests for assistance involving legal matters
of significance to ACWA member agencies, water rights matters, proposed
ACWA bylaw revisions, etc.



ACWA COMMITTEES
PURPOSES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

PAGE4

LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
The committee also works with staff to produce publications to assist water
agency officials in complying with applicable state and federal laws. The
committee's areas of responsibility include:

*
L 4

Amicus curia filings on important cases -

Commenting on proposed regulations and guidelines of state agencies
such as Fair Political Practices Commission regulations or opinions and
CEQA implementation guidelines

Entering a suit as primary litigant

Dealing with any water rights matters of interest to member agencies
Reviewing all proposed ACWA bylaws for technical competence and
consistency with the nonprofit corporation law and other bylaws

LocAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE ~ STANDING/LIMITED (3 PER REGION)
MEETINGS ARE HELD 4 TIMES A YEAR

One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
Two in between the conferences in the Sacramento office

The Local Government Committee:

+*

Recommends policies to the State Legislative Committee and the Board
of Directors on matters affecting water agencies as a segment of local
government in California, such as planning issues and local government
organization and finance

Plans and presents a program at each ACWA conference relating to local
governance issues affecting water agencies

“Gathers data and disseminates information on the value of special

districts

Disseminates information promoting excellence in service delivery
As a member of the committee, you will be enrolled as an active
participant in ACWA’s Outreach Program.

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE - REGULAR/UNLIMITED
MEETINGS ARE HELD 2 TIMES A YEAR

One at both the Fall and Spring conferences

The Membership Committee takes any suggestions regarding ACWA policy to
the ACWA Board of Directors for approval, meets to review and make
recommendations regarding membership eligibility and all membership
applications; assists the staff with the development of recruitment and retention
programs and reviews and makes recommendations regarding an equitable dues
structure to the ACWA Finance Committee.

STATE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ~ STANDING/LIMITED (4 PER REGION)
MEETINGS ARE HELD APPROXIMATELY 10-12 TIMES A YEAR

Every three weeks during Session in the Sacramento Office

» One planning meeting at the end of the year in the Sacramento Office

A-7



ACWA COMMITTEES
PURPOSES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

PAGES

STATE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
The State Legislative committee sets state legislative policy for the Associations.
Committee members are responsible for reading relevant legislation, developing
positions, working with staff to draft appropriate amendments to bills, providing
input to the ACWA Board of Directors, and directing ACWA legislative staff on
legislative matters. As a member of the committee, you will be enrolled as an
active participant in ACWA’s Outreach Program.

WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - STANDING/LIMITED (4 PER REGION)
MEETINGS ARE HELD 4 TIMES A YEAR
¢ One at both the Fall and Spring conferences
e Two between conferences in the Sacramento office

The purpose of the Water Management Committee is to work with staff in
developing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding
policy and programs on significant areas of concern in water management,
review and recommend positions regarding legislation and regulations as
requested by other committees.

The committee is also responsible for the gathering and dissemination of
information regarding management of agricultural and domestic water,
conjunctive use, water management and conservation activities, development and
use of water resources, and wastewater treatment and its reclamation and reuse.
As a member of the committee, you will be enrolled as an active participant in
ACWA’s Outreach Program.

WATER QUALITY COMMITTEE - STANDING/UNLIMITED
MEETINGS ARE HELD BY SUBCOMMITTEES

Safe Drinking Water Subcommittee meets 4 times a year
¢ One at both Fall and Spring conferences
¢ One in Northern California between conferences
e One in Southern California between conferences

Clean Water Subcommittee meets 3 times a year
o One at both the Fall and Spring conferences

Water Quality Committee was established to recommend policy and programs to
the Board of Directors, State Legislative Committee and/or Federal Affairs
Committee; promote cost effective state and federal water quality regulations
affecting both agricultural and domestic water agencies; and provide a means for
members to work together to develop and present unified comments on water
quality regulations, as well as to coordinate with other organizations. The
ACWA bylaws provide authority to the committee to develop and recommend
ACWA positions and testimony on water quality regulatory issues. As a member
of the committee, you will be enrolled as an active participant in ACWA’s
Outreach Program.



ACWA

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT

Process / Timeline

AUGUST

].].th

].Sth

Committee Appointment Packets are sent to all Agency
general managers, board presidents & Friends of ACWA
contacts.

The packet contains:

B List of all agency staff, directors, associate / affiliate
members currently serving on ACWA committees.

B Committee descriptions, purposes / responsibilities.

B Committee consideration form and sample for the
2012-2013 term.

M 2012-2013 Committee consideration process / timeline
outline.

Letters are sent to all current committee members notifying
them of the process for reappointment to ACWA
committees. Important note: all current committee
members must stand again for reappointment by completing
and submitting to ACWA a committee consideration form.

SEPTEMBER

30th

Deadline: All committee consideration forms must be
submitted to ACWA.



OCTOBER

Committee Considerations are compiled and organized for
recommendations by the new Region Chairs. Copy to
Region Chairs and staff liaisons.

NOVEMBER

17" Deadline: The Incoming Region Chairs / Vice Chairs will
make their recommendations for committee appointments.
They will meet with the Outgoing and Incoming Region
Chairs / Vice Chairs for training, input and continuity of the
committee process.

14" - 25" Region recommendations are compiled and organized for

the new ACWA President.

DECEMBER

1% Region committee recommendations are submitted to the

~ incoming ACWA President and Vice President for their

consideration.

16™ Deadline: for the ACWA President to complete committee
appointments.

31% ACWA sends official appointment letters to new committee

members who will serve for the 2012-2013 term.

JANUARY

6™ ACWA sends letters to those not receiving an appointment to
ACWA committees and places those individuals on a waiting
list for possible future appointment as vacancies occur.

A-10



September 26, 2011
Prepared and
Submitted by: Beth Beeman

Approved by: Paul Cooly/M

CONSENT CALENDAR

ACWA REGION 10 ELECTION FOR THE 2012/13 TERM

SUMMARY:

ACWA is holding elections for the ACWA Region 10 officers and Board members who will
represent the issues, concerns and needs of the region for the 2012/13 term. Ballots are due on
September 30, 2011. Staff recommends that the Board support the slate of candidates selected
by the Region 10 Nominating Committee.

BACKGROUND:

The Region 10 Nominating Committee has recommended the following slate of candidates for
the ACWA Region 10 officers and Board members:

Chair: Darrell W. Gentry, Vallecitos Water District
Vice Chair: Peer Swan, Irvine Ranch Water District
Board Members: Cathy Green, Orange County Water District

Saundra Frances Jacobs, Santa Margarita Water District
Larry McKenney, Moulton Niguel Water District
Richard L. Vazquez, Vista Irrigation District

DeAna Verbeke, Helix Water District

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not Applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on
September 13, 2011.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD SUPPORT THE CANDIDATES AS SELECTED BY THE ACWA
REGION 10 NOMINATING COMMITTEE.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Official Region 10 Board Ballot for the 2012/13 Term

BB ACWA Region 10 Election 2011 .docx

11






EXHIBIT A

I Association
of California

Water Agencies
e S 1910
Leadership
Advocacy
Information

Region 10 Nominating Committee’s
Recommended Slate

] tconcur with the Region 10 Nominating Committee’s
recommended slate below.

Chair:
Darrell W. Gentry, Vallecitos Water District
Vice Chair:
Peer A. Swan, Irvine Ranch Water District
Board Members:
Cathy Green, Orange County Water District
Saundra Frances Jacobs, Santa Margarita Water District
Larry McKenney, Moulton Niguel Water District
Richard L. Vasquez, Vista Irrigation District
DeAna Verbeke, Helix Water District

Please return completed ballot
by September 30, 2011

E-mail: katied@acwa.com
Fax: 916-561-7124
Mail: ACWA
910 K Street, Suite 100
Sacramento, CA 95814

Region 10 Individual Board Candidate Nominations
J 1do not concur with the Region 10 Nominating Committee’s
' recommended slate. | will vote for individual candidates
below as indicated.

General Voting Instructions:

1. Please complete youragency

information. The authorized
representative is determined
by your agency in accordance
with your agency's policies and
procedures.

You may either vote for

the slate recommended by
the Region 10 Nominating
Committee or vote for
individual region board
members. Please mark the
appropriate box to indicate
your decision.

*Please note: DeAna Verbeke was
removed under the Vice Chair candidate

Candidates for Chair: (Choose one)
O] Darrell W. Gentry, Vallecitos Water District
[ DeAnaVerbeke, Helix Water District

Candidates for Vice Chair: (Choose one)

] Larry McKenney, Moulton Niguel Water District

[0 Peer A. Swan, Irvine Ranch Water District

[ Joan C. Finnegan, Municipal Water District of Orange County

Candidates for Board Members: (Max of 5 choices, 2 from
San Diego County and 3 from Orange County)
James F. Atkinson, Mesa Consolidated Water District
Darrell W. Gentry, Vallecitos Water District
Cathy Green, Orange County Water District
Saundra Frances Jacobs, Santa Margarita Water District
Larry McKenney, Moulton Niguel Water District
James B. Murtland Ill, Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water District
Peer A. Swan, Irvine Ranch Water District

Richard L. Vaquez, Vista rrigation District
DeAna Verbeke, Helix Water District

on the individual write-in section due
to a clerical error. San Diego County
candidates are not eligible to be Vice
Chair this term according to the region v
rules. - AGENCY NAME

OOOOoooodd

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE







September 26, 2011
Prepared by: K. McLaughlin
Submitted by: B. Beeman

Approved by: Paul Cook//c A

CONSENT CALENDAR

2011 STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

SUMMARY:

This report provides an update on state legislation of interest to IRWD. A copy of the 2011 State
Legislative Matrix is attached as Exhibit “A”.

BACKGROUND:

September 9 was the last day of the 2011 legislative session and the last day for the Legislature
to complete their work for the year. The Governor has until October 9 to act on legislation sent
to him at the end of session. The Legislature will re-convene for the 2012 session on January 4
and will have until the end of January to act upon two-year bills.

Other 2011 Legislation:

AB 134 (Dickenson): Sacramento Regional Sanitation District

AB 134 (Dickenson), authorizing the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District to apply
for an appropriative water right for their discharged treated effluent, was passed by the
Legislature and sent to Governor Brown. IRWD submitted a letter of opposition to the Governor
and signed onto an opposition coalition letter. Both letters urged the Governor to veto AB 134.
Unfortunately, the Governor signed AB 134 into law raising many questions as to whether other
waste water agencies need to secure legislation in order to have the protection or privilege of
applying for the right to their discharged water. This precedent could complicate California’s
already complicated water recycling laws and could have a detrimental impact on the use of recycled
water across the state.

SB 250 (Rubio): Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta: Delta Plan: conveyance facility

SB 250 (Rubio) was gutted and amended on August 29 from a CEQA-related bill to instead set
statutory deadlines for the completion of the Bay Delta Conservation Plan process and
construction of Delta conveyance facilities. The bill would require the Department of Water
Resources to complete the development of Delta conveyance facilities by February 15, 2013 and
require the construction of these facilities be completed by December 31, 2015.

The timeline provided in the bill is consistent with the deadlines developed between the state and
federal agencies involved in the BDCP process. The author contends that having a deadline in
statute will help to move the BDCP process to completion. Senator Rubio amended SB 250 to
be a two-year bill and plans to hold legislative hearings on Delta conveyance and BDCP issues
and work with stakeholders in the interim this fall.

KGM - Legislative Update 092611.docx

12



Consent Calendar: 2011 State Legislative Update
September 26, 2011
Page 2

SB 215 (Huff): Quagga Mussels

Association of California Water Agencies-sponsored SB 215 (Huff) was passed by the
Legislature and sent to the Governor. This bill would extend the current sunset date on quagga
mussel control programs to 2017. IRWD submitted a letter of support to the Governor.

SB 900 (Steinberg): Regional Boards

SB 900 (Steinberg), sponsored by the Western Growers Association, was originally intended to
secure modest reforms to the Regional Water Quality Boards. As amended in May, the bill
would ease the current requirement that members of the Regional Board cannot receive a
significant portion of his or her income from an entity subject to waste discharge requirements.
In late August Governor Brown expressed an interest in implementing more significant reforms
to the Regional Boards including reducing the number of Boards from nine to seven, reducing
the members of each board from nine to five, and broadening the qualification requirements for
board members. There was some discussion of amending SB 900 to reflect the Governor’s
proposal in order to move something through at the end of session this year. Ultimately, SB 900
was sent to the Assembly Inactive File. It is expected that the Governor will work with President
Pro Tem Steinberg and the Western Growers to develop a proposal for introduction in January.

SB 293 (Padilla): Contract Retentions

SB 293 (Padilla), prohibiting a public entity from retaining more than 5% of a contract price
until final completion and acceptance of a project, is expected to be sent to the Governor.
Similar legislation in recent years has been passed overwhelmingly by the Legislature and
ultimately vetoed by then-Governor Schwarzenegger. IRWD is working with the public works
coalition to urge the Governor to veto SB 293 when it comes across his desk.

FISCAL IMPACTS:
Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS

This item was reviewed and approved at the Water Resources Policy and Communications
Committee on September 13, 2011.

RECOMMENDATION:

RECEIVE AND FILE.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — 2011 IRWD Legislative Matrix



[13 .H I<vu

T1¢T 'oN Jadey)
*91e1S JO AIR1a109S

parean 1ey) arendoidde o1 jmuied e jueI3 01 pIeod [01IU0D) SIOMOSIY
I9Je A\ 911G 9) SIZLIOYINY "SI JOJ SI9A0D9I PUB JIATY OJUIWEIORS Y}

[euo1doy £q pasaydey) - | ojuT SASIRYDSTP IOLNSIP Y 1BY) JOIBMIISEM PIJBAI) JO JWN[OA 9Y) UO paseq 10WsIq (@
OJUAWIRIOES | T10Z/90/60°A0D £q |  SIIBY) 191eM JO JUnowre parjroads e ayerrdoidde o3 yiurrad e 1oy uonestjdde uotneuRS AJUN0)) uosunI(g
:1osuodg | pausIsS - 1102/90/60 ue [ 01 OMISI(Y UoneIURS AIUNO)) [RUOISY OIUSWRIORS OU} SIZUOYINY asoddp [eUOIS Y] OJUSWRIoRS veEr av
‘paueid “Kem-yo-1ySur 1o ‘Kemysry 193ns orqnd
Mg Ieox "¢ UOTBIOPISUOIIY paAoIdwt ue UnyIM JajeM PIfOAoal Jo uonngisip 2yl Joy surjadid mau aurjadig 118 M\
1S LV N U0 wo)) ® Jo uone[eisur oy 10y 109fo1d & sydwaxy suodar 1oeduwy [BIJUSIIUOIIAUD Pa[okoay] :uondwaxyg () souger
1oddng WM | NSV UI -110Z/11/40 19V K)eng) [RIUSWUOIIAUY BIWIOJI[R)) SUIpIESaI me[ SunsIxa spuswy VOHD :JUWUOIIAUY 8 av
"soulj
“JUSUWI[OTUS | [IATO paje[al uonefoia Anenb 1a1em Aed o1 Auedwod yons Aq JUSUISSISSE ue
o], ‘siuowpuawe | soxnbay -souerdwios sprepue)s IAjem SUDULIP 2JeS 0] SAIR[IY "UOTIBXIUUR
ALVNIS 01 soye[ay "Surssaooid uoneoridde pue pun, SUTAJOATY JojeA SunjuLIg
Ul parInouod | ayes ayl Jepun papuny syefoxd o1 sajerey] ‘Sururen Jaquisw preoq sannboy
A TINASSY ‘punj aA19sa1 [eroueuly Auedurod e sannbay ‘[eaoidde moyim uorsuedxo
‘A TINASSY SMO[[eSI(] "SoLIepUNnOq 3o1AJ3s Jewrrxordde Sunordep dew e jruuqns (@) ouojos
uI - 110Z/80/60 01 wsks 191em o1pqud e sojerado jey Kuedwods 1a1em [ennw e sarmboy Iate ( SumyuLI(q rsav
‘s3uneowt
[BLI3S JO SNOSUBINWIIS SUTUIAUOD JO J[NSAT B SB AT [[IM JOqUIdW (OB
16 "ON 1a1dey) | ‘Aue J1 ‘puadns 1o uonesuadwod JO JUNOWER Y] SIOUNOUUL JOQUISIE IO YII[D
"9181S JO A1R)21008 ® J1 AJUo “JOpIO [BLI9S UT JO A[snosueijnuwis ‘Apoq 9Ane[si3a[ Juanbasqns
Kq pasadeyd - 110T a1 JO FUN9osUI B SUSAUOD 0} Apoq 9ANE[SIFO[ Joyi0 Aue Jo winionb 2IMSO[osI(q
/ST/LOSHONIAAOD e so)nnsuod digsraquisur ssoym Apoq SANRISISI] PousAUOd B SAZIoyIny uonjesuadwo)
Kq | -s8unsow re[ngar Surpjoy Joj 9oed pue swn oyl ap1aoid o3 Kouage [eso] B :s3unjooN ) yAwg
pousiS - 110Z/SZ/L0 | 30 Kpoq aane[s1So yoro sormbor yorgm 10y umorg ‘N ydrey sy spusury Koua3y [8007] €cdv
‘pajueid *QISO[ISIP
g ey ¢ UOTJRIOPISUOIY pue Surq[iq 01 sare[ay ‘siuswasinbax paryioeds 199w 01 1339UIgNS 9Y)
INAINJOTIAAA saxmbay] "901AISS JOJEM MOU JO UOTIIPUOD B SB JTUN OB 0] I3JeMm JINSeall
‘0102 ‘(3uo,) ALINNIWINOD 01 J910UIqNS JO J3JOUI 3. JO uone[[eIsur ay) annbar 01 ‘ojep payyroads
SL61 9V Jo ANV ONISNOH © I9)JE UONOaUU0d 19jem & JoJ uonedsridde pue sjmuqns jey Juamdo(aaap
UonONPONUINY U0 9NTWWO)) 1S3I91UT UOWUIOD  Jo 1red ST 1Byl In3onns e Surpnpour ‘amionns saImonng unnmN
‘qnp) ATIWNASSY [BIOISUIIOD PUB [RIUSPISSI ISN-PIXTW JO SIMONIS [BHUSPISAT JIUNT[nu ISIOIIA] JOTR AL () Suog
BUIAIS Josuodsg Ul - [10Z/LZ/P0 | Patonnsuod A[mau e 0] 991A1as Ja1em Jurpiaoid 1oLaaind 1a1em e somnbay :sprepuels§ Surp[ing 6L 9V
uonisoq Joyny
SINON sme)s S)3J/ATeuruIng LR IPLL 'ON 1I'd

10T ‘0T 1oquaydag pajepdn)
XTALVIA JALLVISIDHT IT0T dA Al
«Vs» LIFTHXH




«C V5

OLs sk - payroads 10] suIalsAs aInided 19jemUIRI pue SWAISAS [olreq urel dterado
110Z/L0/60: pajjoug PUE ‘UTBIUIBUI ‘[{RISUI O] SIQUMOPUE] [BIUIUIUISAOS UL ‘[RIOIIWIWOD 1102 JO0 WV (q) ouojos
- 1102/90/60 ‘[enuspIsal SAZLIOYINY *[ 07 JO 10V imde)) Iojemurey] 9y} s1oeuy amde)) 191BMUIEY SiZav
"LVIN DIXOL
ANV ALHIVS ‘preog Spreoq [onuo)
Mg 1L 7 | ANH U0 WOD WSV | [08u0) Aeng) 191 [euorSay 03o1( ues oy pue preog [onuo) Aend Airend) 1o1e M () KoyreH
OL- [10Z/R1/20 | I9BA [PUOISSY vUY BIURS S} JO SOUEPUNOG 9y} JO UOTIALIOSIP Y] SISIATY yore [euo139Y BruIofe) 797 9V
‘NOLLDALOYd “UoTOr UB JULIq OS[E 01 Iom yons Jo uontod e powiojrad oym 10}0enU0D
MANNSNOD POSUIDI © SOZLIOYINY "PASUIDI] 10U Seam J0IOBNUOD Y} dwin o) Junnp
% SNOISSHIONd | 108nU0S 10 108 Aue Jo doueuLroprad 10J 1030BNUOD 9Y) 0) pred spunj 0A0I31
‘SSANISNG 01 uonoe ue 3uriq 01 K11odoad Tenuapisar patyroeds uey 1oyio A1redoid
uo sonuno)) | Jo juouraaoxdulr JO UONOWIISUOD 9} 10] JO)OBIUOD B JO SIOIAIIS JU) SZIIN QD
mg max¢ 0] palIdJal oy uosiod v SOZLIOINY “I0JOBIUOD PISUDIUN € Aq sjuatraaoidur g 1ukizeg
-9y - 1102/22/80 | 10 uononnsuod A11edoid [eruopisal 10J A[qRISA0II saFewep d1f) 0] sAIR[SY yore M $1010BI1UO)) 6b7 av
‘Terouan) Aawiony oyl Jo [eaoxdde uodn Auo pue 10y
Aien) 101 A\ US0[0)-101I0J 9Y) JIpun SUONOE [IAI Futiq 01 uonendod
payroads B yim A0 e Jo Asuione A1 e ‘Aduiolie 10ImSIp g SozZLIoyIny
*9[1 9AnORU] *A1unoo pue K110 B 10] Kswone K110 10 ‘000°0S . Speeoxs 1ey) uonemdod
0], ‘Surpea1 pay e iim K110 ® Jo Aowioie L1190 & ‘ASWIone 10INSIP B [RISUSD) ASUIoNy (@
won] ‘HLVNHS oY1 01 JuowredIojud ferdipnl 1oy Ajdde 01 Ajroyine oy} I9OUJO SATINDIXD JUSWIADIOUF] |  DISMONOIM
uy - 1102/L0/60 S11 01 918339[9p 01 pIeoq [onuod Afenb 191em [eUOISaI B SOZLIOYINY ssoddp :Aureng) 1B A\ P AV
-sosodind urepad 10J spunj puoq
"pIeay 10N 9SO} WOIJ PIJBOO[[E 9q 03 PaJIoads s)unowe 0] suononpal SuIuLIOJuod 1ov K1ddng ro1ep
Mg oA T | -MdM U0 3duwo) SOEIN "T10T J0 WV A[ddng 1ojem SUDULIT S[qeIeY pue Ued]) dJes SunyuLi(y 21qerey () sauygar
NSV Ul - 1102/82/90 | ou 01 juensind pansst oq 0] PpOzZLIOYINE SPU0q JO JUNOWE [810) 3YI SONPNY ssoddQ pue ues) ‘ofes LST 9V
“AUs gap S,Aoudde
[e20[ a1 uo Aotjod sy 1sod 01 Ao170d nonjESUSdOD SOUBPUSIE USPLIM
e pardope sey 1ey) Aouae [800[ B SeINbay] “IS[[0NU0)) 3Y) 0) SPIOSAI
*9ONIWIWOD Ul PIOH oy Jo Adoo e Jtuqns 01 pue ‘Aue J1 ‘9)1s qapy JeuIaju] s Aouage [2oo]
mg oAz | :SNOILLVIIdOdddY o) UO SISQLISU PANII[P [[ JO SpI0oda1 Sururen so1yle oy 3sod 01 AouoTe
UO 991TUIuIO)) [e20[ ay1 sannbay ‘suoneziuedio payroads £q poysIqeIss se sourapingd 2InSopSsI(T
aarzoddng A TINASSY Sumos uonesuadwos IpNOUT 03 JUSUILISA0S [800] € Jo saakordurd :Fururea, somy ) pAwg
-vaso uf - 1102/L2/SO pue s19013j0 Joj Sururen jo sasodind JoJ ‘smef SOIYIS WIS) Y SULS oI M JUSWIIAOL) T80 SP1 dv
‘sjuemraxnbal pajeal patjioads yym Adwios 01 pIeoq oyl
sannbay] ‘pIeoq 9y} AQ PIUTULISJOP SUOHIPUOD Pue SuLId) uodn Jojemalsem
uonIsod Ioyqmny
S3)0N sme)s sy09)yd/A1ewumg amdl AL "ON '

1102/02/6 - XTI LVIN HALLVISIDHT 1107 AMAI




ahml<wu

SMAVd YHLVM

ue 9391dwod 0) AIJJO) S,ISA[EUY ATR[SISYT 2} saiinbay amie[sida

U0 SN0 oy Aq pazuoyine A[ssaxdxa ssafun ‘eife( umbeor ueg-ojusureIoes eue) reroyduag
mg Teax"g ATINASSY 9y} JO YINOS UOTIBOO] B 01 JOATY OJUSWERIORS Y3 ul jutod UOISISATP ‘eyfo uinbeoy () 1qnH
OL- [10Z7/ST/€0 | ® wroif Ja1em sKaAu0o jerp) Teued erayduad e Jo uononnsuod syl spqjolg asoddp ueS-0JUaWRIOBS 0ss av
“JUIW[OTU
0], "SIUSWpUAWE
‘Tennau 0} ALVNAS ‘suonoaroid Aadnnjueq juasqe eare
Vs ‘uolssas Ul pOLINOUO) | 3JTAISS J0 uondIpsun( s,Aouade oy Jo sjuapisal ay) Jo Surag-[jom Io ‘A19Jes
Jo shep Teuy ATINASSY ‘yreay oyy sezipredoal sniels [eroueury s,Aouade ay) Jey) s3urpuly sapnjoul
Ul SUSUIUISA0T 1102/6/6 "HLVNHAS je ‘Surreay orpqnd 20mj0U ® Je UOTIN[OsaI & pajdope sey pue AousSIownd
[200] JO JOARY passed -owim | [8osy v pare[oap sey AouaSe orpqnd [e00[ B JO ‘ssaoold uonen[eAs [ennau e uonenfeAg (@
ur popuswre | piyl pesy 'LVNAS | ut uonedonted Surpnyour sjuswarinbal paryroads jowr sey A1us oy ssafun [ennayN :Aodnnjueg TYSMOYOTM
Apueoyrudig Uy - 1102/60/60 me[ Koydnnjueq [e19pa) Jepun Juify woiy A2 orqad 18007 € S1qryold asoddp JUSWILIAAOYL) [BOO7] 90S 94V
‘pIeay 10N *$90UBISWINOIID PKJIdads Jopun AU
*1DAL0¥d 'SNOD arqud oY) 01 papIeme 2q 01 SISO PUE $99] S,A2UJ0NE SMO[[Y "a3us[[eyd
% SNOISSHJIOUd o Surnsind ur pannour $99J §5,A9UI0NE PUB $1S02 I9A0931 01 AJTIUD s1opplg
Mg oz~ z | ‘SSANISNE uo wo) o17qnd a1 JO SUOTSSIWIO IO SIOLID 0 NP PI[BAUL 2q O} PIUTULINIIP 10BIUOD 10J JoTay :s108nU0D () 1ouSem
JNSV UI - [107/€0/50 | S7om o1[qnd e Jo preme dy) so3ud[[eyd AJ[nJssaoons oym Iappiq & sapnug S3IOM OTqnd LSy a4V
‘sKep (g UeY} 2IOUI 10U JO 9OUBUL] JO
Juaunteda(y oy Aq ma1Aa1 © 01 19alqns are 18y} SpIEpUR)S IdJem ATRPUOIIS
10 Arewrtid 10J S[9A] JURUTUIEIUOD UINTITXEW 0) Surje[al suonengal
*9[L] 2A1I0BU] O], pasodoid oy Suowe WNIUIOIYD JUS[BABXAY 10] pIepue)s Iajem SunjuLip wnIwoIyD
‘SSQUISNY paysiutyu) Areuinid e Jo uondope oy sapnyou] 9IS qaAN 19uIAy] S,Jusun.redap o juareABXaH
wold ‘ATINASSY | U0 WAoo Jus[eARXaY pIepuels Jjem Sunjuup Arewrtrd JO JuswysIqelsd spIepuel§ 1B M (@) sodwe)
91 2AnORU] Uy - 1102/90/60 ap uo ssa13oxd sit 1sod 01 yieay o1qny jo weunreda( oy sarmboy yole M Sunjuriy orqng cov dv
Mg g™ ¢ "J9NTWWO) Ul P[oH | -911S gam Jou sey Apoq ay) J1 uonedo] o1jqad & ur 1o 911S gom J9UIdIUL §)1 U0
:SNOILLVIMdOUddY | sSunum oy pue epuale o) 1sod 01 Apoq 2Ane[sI39] a1 sannbay ‘Sunossw
asoddpo U0 9NTWWO)) re[ngar eyl Jo uoissas uado oy 10 WAl epusSe ue 0] 9je[al Jey) suiodal
VAs) sioieay] ATGNASSY parerouss Jyels pue epuade ayp 1sod 03 ‘Apoq Jeyp Jo Junoowr B3l sepuady Sunsod (@) ofory
:rosuodg Ul - 110Z/LZ/SO | © 210Joq sinoy 7y 1sea] 18 ‘Aouale [eoo] © Jo Apoq 9AnR[SI[ a1 sannbay 0y umorg ‘W ydrey Z6E 9V
‘syred JOLI9IX2
[[e1sul pue U3ISap 01 $I030BNU0D Yons sezLoyiny “uoneduun adeospue]
I0J A[ATISA[OX2 PIsN ST J1 JT ‘WI9ISAS Yons JO UOTIONASUOD S} I0J 1081U0d
swud e ojur 19ud 0 Jojoenued adeospue] & soziroyny ‘wesdord jruriad
NMONITAOD Aue Jo wasAs 1a1em o1jqud B AJnou 03 AouaSe [eoo[ e saraboy] sesodind
uonIsod Joyny
S9JON snjels §199J3/ATenrurng Ml IPLL "ON 1I'd

1102/02/6 - XTILVIN HALLV'ISTOHT TT0C UM AT




«"Vss

"SUOTIOR UTBLIAD
soxe) walsAs 1a1em e J1 douerjdurod jo suondwnsaid pargroads soysijqeisq
‘sjoqino eipaw pue sagendue| payroads ur 2q wA)sAs 193em drqad

® Aq uaA1S 2onou orqnd ) saxrnbay] ‘JuswIssasse eyl AQ PAUTULIdIOP

aq 01 paxnmbar st Jey) 199{o1d oSuTs ® JO $1S00 9y} 0) UOTIBIUAWNIOP

YMONJYTAOD [EIUQUIUOTIAUD SPPY “Al[IqEPIOLJE JO JUSWSSISSE UB AQ POUTULIDIOP
O Lok ek 3q 01 199[01d 913urs & jo Surpuny [8101 saxnbal pue punj SUIA[OASY () A za1d
- 1102/€1/60 ae}§ 19)E | SUDULICT 9JeS Y} SAYSIIQEISI Jey) ME] FUNSIXd spuswly Yore M SwIsAg Ioep OTqnd 8¢€6 AV
"30uenssI
yuzed 03 Joud Jusunedap yireay orqnd [800] 2U) [PIM J[NSUOD SANNUD
Teo0[ ay3 sernboy] ‘sprepuels Suip[ing juaroyip Sutnbal suonpuod
reorydesSodoy 1o Teor3o10a8 ‘onewrpd [8S0] Y3 apafour AjLoyine
st 01 Juensind pajorus 9oUBUIPIO Uk Jey] sarnboy ‘sjuswanmbar ojels spIepuel§
~NMONMAAOD Jopun parinbal ueijl SANOLIISII 9I0UI ATk Jey) spiepuels Jo uondope o) guipring 1o1emAeIin
(o)) pP— sozUOYINY “IoremAeId Jo asn oYy Afemus nqyoid jey) spaepue)s Suip[ing :Kouaroryyg (@) onen
- 110Z/€1/60 1dope 01 Aouage [o0[ Io10 J0 ‘A1Unod ‘Ao © Jo A1ioyine oyl sfeadoy 98[) [IATBM ors av
‘s[eIare] Jomas Junsixa Juredar 10 Juroe[dal 10J pue WAISAS J9M3s o)
901 "oN IadeyD 01 wo Sunosuuod pue swAlsAs ondas aisuo woly sanredord Sunroauod
*91e1S JO ATR1RI00§ Jo asodind oy 10} uorsIA0xd STY) 2SN 0] ‘SONNUD PAULFIP JZLIOYINY
£q pa1aidey) - 1102 ‘Surpuny 01 SOJE[OY "USI] B SIBAID PUB ‘WA)SAS Jomas orjqnd ururofpe oy
/ST/LOSIONATAOD 01 A1xadoid 191 10 1y 105uu0s 01 Sutquinid uonoONIISU0D 1sonbar 01 ‘soul]
£q | IoMmas 10)09[[00 JO SUIP UM UTEW B JO UONIONISUOD JOJ JILNSIP JUSWISSISSE resodsiq | (@) uewyny
poudIsS - 110T/ST/LO ue urqIm papnpout Joumo A1radoid e Surzuoyine me[ SUNSIXS U Spudury Josuodg I21BMAISBAN AUISUQD v 9V
HATTATIM ANV ‘SuonnqgInuod 9soty Jorrn 01 pue ueld
SYIVd “YdLVM a1 Jo uonejuauradunl WoIJ J1Jouaq ABw JBY) SANNUD WO SUOHNQLIuod
UO 2231WIwo)) o} Suipuny £[Tea ureIqo 01 J99S O} ‘SAJINOS INUIAI ULIV)-3U0] FUTIIA[[0D
PAIIJaI-ay] ‘papuswie pue Sundope 210Joq [IOUNOD A} SAZLIOYINY “9)MIeIS AQ PIZLIOYINE SSIUN
pUB W[l pUOIAS sasodind asot) 0] s99] mou Sundope woIj [1OUN0D 2 SNQIYOId 23ep ()
mamax~z | peoy ‘A TAINISSV paoads e £q ue[d w2 oy Sunuawepdun Jo s1s05 a1y 10j Aed o) uerd UOSUTYII(]
Uy - 110Z/1€/€0 soueuty uLra)-guof € dofeasp o3 [ouno)) diyspremals eI oy sarmbay Sumueur :ueid B 9/S gV
‘Knenb
‘SNOLLVIIdOYddV Iorem SurgstuTwip woijy feued Tereydired e Jo uonerado pue uorONINSUOD
pue a1 suqryoiq ‘eued [eroyduad € Jo uononnsuos ) urZLoyine
I TATIM ANV QINJEIS B JO JUSWIoRUS a1 0] JoLid sIsATeur ANTIQISEI) OIUIOU0DD
uonIsog Ioymy
910N smye)s s)oayy/Aremung a1 L "ON II'd

1102/02/6 - XTALVIN HALLVISTOHAT 110T AMAI




aaml<vu

g 18X T uf - 1102/5T/80 PULI(T 3 O SAB[IY "MET JUUWIMNIY SI2YILI ], 3)BIS ) Spusily soakofdury dI[qnd LTS
‘pIEIY
0N ‘NOILDHLO¥d
JFNNSNOD "19enUuod syIom drqnd
BIUIOJIRD) 2 SNOISSTJ0¥Md | © Iopun apew sjuowiked ssarfoid 0} saje[ay "10eNUOD SyIom dljqnd & 1opun
UOTIRIDOSS Y ‘SSANISNY PIAYpIM Spaddord uonuajal 0) SRSy "10eNU0d syIom orjqnd e 1opun
sI010B1IUO0IQNS Uo 22 IUIWI0)) | 1030BMUOD € JO puoq oy} Jsurede wirepd e urpregar ao1jou uayum 10j pourad uonualay :AdNON
ueoLIUY XT9NASSY o) ay1 0} sare[ay] uawiAed ssarFoid yoea jo 1diadar 1ajje sAep / ulpIm [syuowAe ssargoid (q) 12qnH
:Josuodg ur - 110Z/€0/S0 109(0a1d sy1om o1[qnd © uo J010ENUOOQNS B Avd JOJOENIUOD B Jer) sannbay asoddp ISYIO M OT[qNd vsEr av
10y Ajddng 191 M0 5
g 1eax"g "AEDINAOILINI "Z10T J0 10V A[ddng 18 M UpULI] 2[RIy pue ‘Uea[) AJes SunjuLi 2[qeray g IMyALag
- 1102/31/20 a1 01 Sune[a1 uone[SI32[ 198U 01 AIME[SISIT Y JO JUANUT 3Y) SATB[IIT pue ‘ues[) ‘oJeg €821 AV
-9okordura
pauasardaruou e 03 pred uonesuadwod paseardur 03 anp ANjIqer]
[eLrenioR Ur asearour JuedyIusis Aue 03 syuawarnbar oy sarjddy “sares
s Jakopdura ayy 01 syudunsnfpe ayew pue AN[IGRI] UI SSBIIOUT UR SSISSE
"3[1g 2AnORU[ O, | 01 ATemoe uraysAs ay) saxmbay] “AqIqer] pajeoosse oy s1eaq uonesuadwod
*SSQUISNg pPaysIuIyu) paseaIdur 03 anp AN(IQeI] [BITBNIOR UT 9SBAIOUT JUBDIJIUSIS B $3)BAID
wold ‘XA TINASSY ey Aouagde Funoenuod e Jey) 2ansua 03 sefueyd werdord juswayduut SIJOURg JWAWAINAY (@) onen
91 2AnSeuf U - 1107/60/60 | Pue saurfaping do[oA3p 03 SYHd JO UOHENSIUIWPY JO pIeog ay) saInbay saakordury driqnd ySIT 4V
g X STVIIALVIN
‘aonnjos IIXO0L
QATiRISTUIUIPE aNV ALHdVS
ue uo uniiop | TVINHWNOIIANA
‘[1rq a3 Surpnd U0 23[WUWOo))
VMDAS ATINASSY *I19]BMIISEM pLION[ :I21BMIASBM
- ST VMIAS 0] paI11ajaI pue I9)eM PI[OADaI UI APLIONT] JO S[2AQ] J0J sprepuels Surysijqelsa Aorjod puR I21e \\ PI[IAITY () Aayrey
:1osuodg -9y - 110Z/91/€0 apimaels v 1dope 01 preog [0IUO)) SIDINOSIY IAJe A\ A1e1S dY1 sarnbay :Airengd) 1o1e M SYOT AV
*SJUSWIAIINDAI MO[] WIEAX}S 0} SAB[IY "UOTIBIISISAI WIDSAS Wealls
syuawaIbail oyl sap1aoid “asn [ediotunur J0 ON)SAWOP IOF ISUDI] Jo JTunad
e 01 Juensind pasn JO PaAIas AJ[IOR] B JOJ UONBASIZAI asn yous sqIyold
~NONYAAOD ‘uonoajoxd 1501y do1d 10 suonIpuOd sannbay ‘uonensi3al yons auo
O Lsesesesese — | UBLL QIO SMOJ[Y "3SN [RIDIJAUAQ pUe 2[qRUOSEAI 0] I19jem o) Sutkjdde pue
1102/L0/60% Pal[oTuyg pIeOg [ONUO.) SIDINOSIAY JANBA\ 18IS a1 YIIM 9sn 2y Surraysigar uodn uoneudoiddy | () uewynyg
- 110Z/90/60 | osn uoneSuun [ews e 10§ Jo1eM 91enidoidde o) 1ySu e Suturelqo sazuoyiny uoddng SIS 1B vo6 AV
uonisoq Ioyny
910N snye)s $3199)y/A rewuing amyl ML "ON Tl

T102/0T/6 - XTLLVIN HALLVISIDHT 10T Al




n»©|<uw

‘sosuadxa
apnpour 10u
uonesuadwo))
(T) 1500
JoKedoyeryxe)
pue uoneordap
PIOAE 0} SLIOJJ2

$,00S Uo p[ing ‘suorye[nga1 Aouagrowas jo uondope oy sannbay] ‘sisareiul S1IOUOID JO
pInoys sagueyo A THNASSY | 1uowares v op1y 01 parnbar uosiad e £q pay1j w0} amso[osip uonesuaduod
(1) :SpUOWR | OLssxss ALVNHS 9} UOC PaUTLIUOD UOTIBULIOJUT JJIS A Jouraiu] s Aouade e Jo
VMOV/VASD posseq ‘pardope | 1sod 01 AouaSe A10A9 saxmbay] “Teof repuared Surpadard oyl Jo] uoneWLIONUL
109[Jo1) spuawe | asne[d Aouadin ‘own uonesuaduwros sapiaoxd Jey) w0y AInsoosIp uonesuaduiod & apnjoul o) 2InSO[ISI(]
pasodoid | pip peay "HLVNHAS | S1S9I01UI O1wouose Jo Juawale)s € oy ol parrnbar st oym “ad1yjo o1iqnd 101 uonesuaduo)) (q) Ba110)
g Teax"¢ ul - 1107/22/80 | 91epipues v 1dooxs ‘uosiad 1atpjo pue sofojduro pareusisap A19A0 sarmnbay | puswryasoddp :STRIOIO O1and 9% 4S
“901AIS 1q2p pPUOq PIJE[aI
mg 1eex ¢ I0] pue ‘e)a(] umnbeo[ UBS-1USWEIORS JY) UI UoTjRUTWRIu0d Lmotouw ‘uefd
‘SNOLLYIdOYddY | ®eq o pue swerdord paje[ar-1ayem apimalels payidads 10y pojeridordde
‘wsul | uo sapmuwo)) o) ssed aq sAauour 1unodoe ajels sannboy sweifoid pue syooford pajejal-1o1em
ap ur ssaooxd | o 'HONVNII NV | 10J 99 SIunodoe [guordal o) ul Aououl sannbay "puny sy umyim sjunodde
poyayes | ONVNIIAOD uo JUSUISOAUT [RUOISAI JO IOQUINU B PUB PUB PUN] WRISOIJ JUSUISIAU] 1102
B QUoAUO0D | oopmuwo) HILVNAS $90IN0SaY JAJe AN 1e1S oy Ul payisodap 2q 01 weiZ0. JUSUISIAU] Jo 1y uaunsaayuf | (Q) uenmuig
0] p Ioypny woxL] - 110Z/%0/S0 $90IN0SIY ISIB A 91} JOpUN PAIIS[[0J SITILYD pUB SINUIAAI SAINbay asoddp $20INOSY IAB M € as
-IOUBQWIPSTW © JO AIfInS st uoisiaoid
‘SINIINANTNY Kue Jo uonerorA ur uosiad Aue sjoqe pue sopre A[[JI[im 10 A[Suimony 10
TVNOLLNLLLSNOD | ‘uorsiaoxd e sajejoia A[urpiim 1o A[Suimouy oym uosiod Aue jey) sapiaoigd
NV SNOLLOHTH | ‘suorsiaoid asat) 2010Jua pue juswajduil 0] UOISSIWUIOD B 91810 01 Aouade
U0 Y IWUWO)) yoeo saxnboy "sanianoe SutAqqor urenrao Surpredar spodor orporrad
Mmg oz "¢ | ALVNHAS 01 pauojar ayew pue 19151321 01 sjuowrarinbar Surpnjour ‘sarousFe JUSUUIIA0S [8I0] uonensi3ay 1s14qqo1 (@) va110)
-0y - 110Z/1E/€0 £qqof 181 sennua Surfqqor Ae[ngal 0 oWAYDS ATSUIYAIdOD B s)oruy JUIUWIUIDAOL) (8O0 1€ 4asS
‘soFueyd a1eIded Jo UOTIRNSIUIWPY JO preog
o) Anou 03 rokopdure Junedionred wraisA§ JusmwaINay ,sedkoidwy orqng
‘pIeal] 10N | ® sennbay suonngrnuoo weigoid jjeusg doueleq yse) uo o} sjuaunsnlpe
:SNOLLVTIIdOYddV Jodoxduir 10 a1e] 10§ sanjeuad sazuoyiny “uonesuaduod juswainansod
Uo 99NTWWO)) Soakordws amnsqns o) sjefay siuowAed wns-dumny jo 1dreoax
ATINESSY | 9y 01 saje[ay] “uonesuaduros ajqelrpaso pue weigold uswo[ddng 1gousg Juswrarney | () ueniwig
uonIsog Toyny
S9ION smyels 5309)jH/ATeuruung amax ML ‘ON ']

T102/07/6 - XTI LVIN HALLVISIOAT IT0T dAM AT




ﬁnh|<wu

-Kyeuad e 01 100[qns st suoisiaoid 2soy Jo uoTIBIUSWI[AWIT

AU} YIIM S2I2JIAUL JO ‘SIONTISO ‘SAB[IP ‘SISISAT ‘SAIBOIA OYM

uostad B 1B} SOPIAOIJ "SOIIIAIIOR JUQUIADIOJUD Ul 23e3ud 0) douTIsap 1oy

JO SIY 1O QuIey) pue YSL] JO J0I03II(T 9y} SIZLIOYINe pue ‘S[asSnl pIudssIaIp

FONIYAAOD ‘arels oy utyiim Jorem Aue ur payueld Jjo paoerd oq 03 Jursned Jo ‘Sunuerd
OLswwsx ‘Guroerd woiy Jo ‘Sunrodsuen o ‘Surddiys ‘Funsodunr ‘Surssessod wroxy s[assnyA :sa10adg (9) JnH
- 1102/90/60 uosxad ® snquyoxd Afjereuad 1ey) me[ 3unsixa Jo aep [eadalr o SpuAXH 1oddng onenby aAIseAUu] S1c 48
WALV -suorstao1d aso) Aq paquidsaxd syuaurasmbal pargioads pim
ANV SHOUNOSTA JUSISISUOD ST UONOR Ay} 2I0SUS 03 JHAF 2U3 Jo uonoe Aue Sunuswrajdu
TVINLVYN Io Surzuoyine 10] a[qisuodsar st 1ey Aouade ajels Aue sarmbay
U0 9ORIWIWIO)) 0] ‘sjusurarinbar ureras syeowr JHAG AW J ue[d I3 241 ojut uerd oy
parIoyaI-y "papuswre | Jo uonerodroour ot SIZLIOYINE Y} pue ue[d BI[o(f PauIoads B ul uorsn[out UoTRAIISUO)) B2
Mg Teax 7 | pue awm puodds pedy 10J (DY) ueld UoneAIasuUo)) vijo( Aeg Y3 JOPISUOD 0] [1oUNOD) Aegq :e1o urnbeor (Q) oM
‘NAS UI - 110Z/42/€0 | diyspremals Bifo oyl sarmbai 1ey) 600¢ JO 10V ULI0JY B[] S} SPUSWY asoddp ueS-01USWEIORS 002 49S
"S)OSTp
JusuIaAoIduIT SSOUISNQ pUE SIORNUOD UOTIONIISUOD [BO0] ‘Sjuswraaoidur
SONI[IO®] ‘UOTIEXE] [BO0] ‘S99A0[dUId UOIIBIIUES ‘PUB] JO SOUBAIAUOD
pue 10y depy uorsialpqng ‘sunasw o1 qnd ueid [e1ouad ‘spreoq JOMSIp
901AJOS AJUnwiwod “Yueq USIaI0] B UT ISPAUL ‘PUNY [BISUIZ o} 0} puny 1liiig)
“NMONYAAOD | [e10ads ® w0l 10jsuen) Aewl Apoq JATR[SISI] [ES0] B JB) JUNOWR WNWIIXew ddueur pue
O Lt a1 03 S3IR[IY 1OV 198png Auno)) oy} spuaury sp102a1 d1qnd 03 SAB[IY g snqruwiQ QOUBUIAAOL)
- 1102/90/60 | “LJH 10 ‘pIed 3qap ‘pred pard Aq syuswided 1doooe 01 AJunod e sazLoyiny JUQWILLIQAOD) [BI0'] ¥61 4S
‘pajueis -KouaBe juswdofoaapai 1o ‘Kuoyine sxamod jurol Jo1nsip feroads
UONRIIPISUOITY ' 9pn[oul os[e 01 ‘A1unod 3y Jo Al pueid ay) 0] paprwsue) snsal ayy)
INFINNITAOD | Jo Adoo e pue apew 2q AW uoneSNsoAUl ue ‘os[e] axe suodal 1ey} 9A91[2q
TVOO1 0] UOSBaI ST 2I13Y) J1 JO Iouuew parjroads B ur apewl j0u are spodal Ji
uo saniwwo)) | ey Surptaoxd ‘mef Sunsixa spuedxy ‘AousSe juswdoaaapal 1o ‘Ajioyine
AT9INASSY s1omod jutof “onsip [eroads ‘A1 ‘Kjunod Aue Jo uone3nsIAul 1o Jipne (@) 20yay
Mg 1eox"z ul - 1102/62/90 | Ue wuopiad 01 A1110yIne ATRUOTI2IOSIP ISIDIIX2 0] II[[ONU0D) Y] SIZLIOYINY Ia[[onuo) 2y L, 987 4§
uefd Jjuounean a5emas
‘pajueid | [euol3al SIOLISIP Y 01 SHuIWdAoduII [e11ded JO $)S00 A YIM PIJRIOOSse
UOTJBIOPISUOIIY SOSBIIOUT )81 13SJJO 0 I0LNSI(] UOHEIIUBS AIUN0)) [BUOISOY OJUSWEIOLS
ALITVNO ANF Uo | oys 01 soumsisse feroueury apiaoid 0] 9oz JO 10V puog UonIoId [eISR0)) JOLISI(] UoTIBNUEBS
Mg Tex 7 | eenmuwo) 4LVNAS puUE I9ATY ‘[onuo) pooj] ‘A[ddns pue Afend) 191e A ‘I SunyuLcy [euorgay oyuswedes | (1) S1equing
uf - 1102/20/S0 9JeS oY1 WOIJ $20IN0sY Jarep Jo Juaunredac a1 o) spuny sajeudorddy :fend) 1918 Zs 98
uonisoqd roypny
S9JON smyeyg S}9g3F/ATeunung amul ML "ON '

1102/0T/6 - XTILVIA JALLVISIOHAT 1107 A AT




«8°V,

01 10 ‘§109Jap 1O ‘s[enplATpul parjroads Jo 1red oy uodn 1onpuodsTU [AFIM
10 90ua31[SoU 2ATIOR JOJ I8 SWIRID ) U)X Y} O} A[GBIDIOUIUN I
s[enprarpur payroads Ajrutapur Jo ainsur 03 odind yey ‘Aadoid sjearid

Ayruwapu] :$1081U0))

‘pafjoIuyg JO Joumo 9y} Jo ‘Kouage orqnd e iim 19BIUOD JO2IIP B UOTIONISUOD uonoIUINSuUo)) (Q) sueag
- 1102/21/60 [elIUapISal JOJ 10U 9Tk 18} SIOBIUOD UOTIINIISUOD 10 Jelf) SOPIAOI] asoddp [e1oI0WWO)) viv as
‘potueIld "satouage [800[ M sjueuradedus [[e Jo Smels ) pue
WONBIOPISUOISY | SONTUIWIOD 3Y) JO SUOTIOR I} U0 2Imye[sida] o) o) Modar 0) Is[jonuo)) ay)
:INFANIAAOD sannbay "aoueisisse Sunsanbar KouaSe [eoo[ € 10} ue[d A19A0031 [RIOUBULY
TVIOT1 ® PUSUIWIOI3I 0} 93PTWUIOD I} SZLIOYINE 0) PUB PO MITAI
UO 99)) IO [erouruy AouaSe [BOO[ B SUSAUOD 0) PUB M3ITAI Jey) Jo uonajdurod uodn MATARY
ATINASSY npne ue uuoyrad pue ‘we[qoid [erourur Aousge [BOO[ B JO 90UIISIXD A [etoueul] Aouady (@) Asrarg
g Teax ¢ uJ - 1102/62/90 QUIULINAP 0} MITAI ATeuTwiifaId € 1ONPUO0D 0} J[[OTNUO)) AY) SIZLOYINY [8007T :I2[[01IU0D) 6vv as
“UOTIRUTUIIY)
Jojenuooqns pue sjuswAed ssardoid o) sae[oy ‘uondwiaxa ue sapIACIg
*$10enU02 Yons Japun sjuswAed ssa1Soid pue ‘s10e1U0D UOTIONTISUOD JIOM
-asoddo Kfond orqnd ur spaadoid uonua1a1 Jo SUIP[OYINIM ‘SUITR[O YONS 9DI0JU 0) $IJT0U
- uonIEeo)) Areutunrpaid ‘spuoq justiied uo SWHE[O JO JUSUIADIONUS 0] Sune[ar sadueyd
SYIOM OT[qnd MONIAAOD soyeA uswAed ssarSoid e jo 1d1eoa1 19)e sAep Jo Ioquinu payjroads
UONUIAI 96 - O Ltk © UTYIIM SIUNOWER UIBLIAD J0J0BIU0IqNS € 03 Aed 0] Yuswaaordur Jo s1910q®] (@) ®erped
pusWY pue Inn - 1102/+1/60 J1om areanrd Jo orpqnd & ur ‘s1o10enUOOqus JO sio)oenUOod Jwid sarnboy asoddo :spuog Juswked £€6¢ 4S
“alep parjroads e Aq perejdmiod 99 01 SaNI[IoB] 250 JO UONONISUOD ) pue
‘SHTINA | “9rep payioads e 910J9q 10 uo pajerdwiod 2q 0] SANI[IOR] AOUBKIAUOD BI[d(
UO 93NTWWO)) 0} urenao Jjo juawdo[oAap $e0Inosay Jarepp Jo jusunreda( oy sanmnbay
Pa1I9JoI-ay "popuswIEe -saurjadid pue steued paryroads SUIpn[oUT SIATIBUISIE 0URAIAUOD BI[P(
pue Juir) puodAs JO SISATeUR pUB MITAI B 9pn[doul 0} ue[d Aeg 9y} sarnbar pue ueld vifod Anpioeq :ueld
mgmox ¢ | peod "ATHNASSY 31 01T UR[J UOTIBAIISUO) BI[3(] Arvg 9y Jo uornerodroour ai saimbas BIfo( ‘B2 umbeof (@) olqny
ul - 1102/62/80 [ormm 600¢ JO 1Y ulI0joy o umbeor ues-ojusweIdeg ) SpUdUIY UBS-0JUAWEIORS 0Sz 495
‘ploysanp Arejauow
wnwiu payads e pim s1oenuod pue quawidinba [eroads jo uonismboe
J10J $10BIU0D pIeme 0] Juswiedap oy} SIZLONY *SIDIAIIS PIJR[RI
10 ‘7amod Jo uorssTuIsueRn JO ‘9[es ‘uonIsiboe 9y) J0J S90IN0SIY I
Jo juaunreda(y a1 Aq 01T paIaud eNUod Aue 01 d[qesrddeur suorsiaoid
NMONJHAOD as0y1 SayRI "o101oy] uonduiaxa ue Yum ‘spiq 2annaduwod jo raquinu $90IN0SY
OL sk sk wnwium g jo Surmsas oy sa1mbal pue sa01AIag [eIoUaN) JO Jusunredaq Ja1e M\ JO Jusunteda(g (Q) A91aeg
- 1102/¥71/60 o £q speaoxdde 10enuoo orqnd Surpredar me[ Sunsrxs SpuswIy 110ddng :s10BQU0)) JI[qug vz 9S
uonisoq Joymy
S3JON sme)s $103jJH/ATeuruing aMmdl INLL ‘ON 1I'd

1102/02/6 - XTI LVIN HAILVISIOHT TT0C M Al




nhml<uv

*9[1 2ATORUY

‘sIaquIaul pieoq [euoidar 1oy s10)oe] SurApienbsip

01 pue ‘suonesijienb ‘sjuswannbar 03 sa1e[oy 10V WO [BINI0] )
urgm Jsaraqur reroueur) Suiyienbsip g 03 AJuo sardde jsa1ajul Teroueuly
$,JOqUISW Y} UO UOHEIIWI] 3} 18y SAIoadS ‘Pajoduuion ST IoqurIaut

Y3 YOIYM UM JOZIBYISTP 21SeM B IO IOQUISUI I} SAJOAUI Je1f) SUOTIoR

SIOQUISTA] :SpIeOg

oL "ATIWASSY ur Sunedronied woly requiswt paeoq € uniquyord 1oe a1 Jo suorsiaoxd fonuo) Anfen) | () Sroquialg
91 2AnORU uy - 110Z/10/L0 S319[3(] 10V [o1u0)) Anpenyd) 191 AN 2uS0[0)-I91I0d Y} SpUSY 1B A\ [BUOISOY 006 4S
‘Burpuny werd 01 sare[ay] uawaInbaI jey) ajerodioout 0)
sue[d juswaSeue Jojem [euorgar pajeiaiur sannbay -paysiarem ay) Joj
1o1em uo spuadop uordar o J1 ‘Iajem 1o aouelaI-J[as [euordar Suraoxdur
pue A1ddns 191eMm I0] B2 UIMbEO[ UBS-OJUAWIRIORS SY) UO JDULI[I
NMONVAAOD Suronpar Sururasuos As1jod a1e)s parjroads e sroyang uerd ay) yorym Ul SIUAUOY) :SUB[J
OLsssnx Iouuew 9y Anuapt pue sionew A[ddns 1ajem pue Aienb 1ajem paygroads JuowaSeuRIA J9IB A\ () Mom
- 1102/60/60 ssarppe o1 uepd juswafeuet Ia1em TeuoI§ar pajerdajur ue sarmboy [euoigoy parerdajug eSS S
1+ "ON Iadety)
‘31818 JO AI1B12I109S *asn [eo0] Joy sarpddns 19jeM
Aq paraideyd - 1107 [ediorunw aonpoid jey) sanI[Ide] WISAS Jusunean 19)em punoid ysryoelq JUQUIIBAIY,
/90/60: MONIAAOD Ioy areurdordde Aqpesjroads ore yeys suoreIUI] JUINe pue saANISqo I9]leMpuUNOIn)
YADOS Aq Kienb 1arem ssaippe 03 ‘spaepuels ajeredss 1dope 10 ‘ue[g uLadO yspjoerq :preoqg D) sIeM
:Josuods | pauSiS - 17102/90/60 91LIS S} pUSWE JOYND 0] Preog [OIUO0)) SIOINO0SNY IajeA\ ) sarmboy S90IN0SY Ja1e M - 709 9S
mg 1eax" ¢ ‘syroda1 oy Surdojoaap 10y asodind a1 pue
“191eM U0 331eYd | ‘'SNOLLVIIdOYddV suroda a1 JO SIUAUOD Y} SAQLIDSAIJ "UOISSTUIOD a) 0 suiodar pajeal
spoog os1qnd U0 99O 0} |  1TUIqNS 03 $AIOUaTe [BUOISAI puE $33IN0SAY Iaje A\ JO Jusunreda(] arels oy
B 0] Pale[al | PalIgfaI-ay ‘popudwie sannbay] ‘serepdn ueld 105 Louanbaiy oy sopraoi] ‘ue[d JUSUIISIAUL IojeM
(uenmuig) puUB JWI) puUOIIS Jets e pue sorouade Suruued 1a1em [RUOISaT YSI[qRIS? 0] 10y Sutuuel] $90IN0SIY
$€ gS 01 peay "ALVNAS JUSUIISIAU] SAIINOSAY JABA\ Y] S1oBUH JUIWUISA0F a1els ur Aoudge IJB A UB[J JO1BM () oM
pon A[ewiojuy uf - T10Z/€1/40 | 9reredas e se uolssIuIuIo)) 1B A\ 9J€1S 941 JO uoneziuedio ayj J0J SOPIAOI] UOISSTUIWIOD) JAJB AN 1S 9S
-Kinus aearrd oy ‘Aq sesn papruiiad 1930 ap1aoid 1o ‘03 asuadI[ 10 SB[
‘pojueIsd 01 S1uaWaaISe Iy SIULISJ “JuswaaISe o) wiroprad 01 $99IN0SAI [eloUBUL)
UOBIOPISUOIY arenbape apapour o1 JwoweaiSe ue sannbay] -s199foxd armjonnseryur
:AOD T U0 Wwo)H Sunerouag anuaaar Jo sadA) parjioads 1oy Suroueury 10y A1ud Ajeaud Suroueury (@) WSum
Mg meax "z | NSV UL - 1102/62/90 | B Uyl JUawaaide ue ojul I3ud 0) Aouade [BIUSUILISA0S [BD0] B SaZLIoyIny INdNISLIuY SLv 95
‘sjusuraaoxdun awoy sydurexy “sjoenuod oqnd 01 saje[ay “S[enpIAIpuUl
a1 Jo yIom Jo odoos oyl JO IO ISLIB JOU OP SWITR[D 9] JUA)XI )
uonisoq Joyny
Saj0N S TS s109yg/A1euImng amAl apLL "oN T'd

1102/02/6 - XTILVIN HAILVISIOAT 1107 AAMAI




ﬁo.ﬂl<3

‘sarmipuadxs 10 aimipuadxa Aue 03 100dsa1 YIIm S[qR[IBAB UOBWIOJUL
pauoads ayeur 03 “unowre paryroads e Surpaasxa spassoad puoq

INFNNYTAOD Jo amypuadxs Aue noqe 1sanbar e uodn ‘Aouage [eoof Jumsst v soxnbay
AVvOOT | -ponmuqns st uodal ay [nun spadsoid puoq Jo uoisuadsns € ul J[nsal [[eys
U0 s,y | SWm uo 0s Op 01 2IN[Ie] 1Byl SOPIA0IJ “TeaA [BIsT §,Aoudde ay) Jo 25010 o)
ATGINASSY | 19118 shep 09 utgiim £poq Suturoaod sn s papunj 102foxd Lue uo 11odax swodoy | () uoo1 g
mg meax™¢ ol - 110Z/€Z/S0 | © 911 01 spuoq Sunsst AouaSe [e50] © JO 195110 [BOST JoIyD) ) sasinbay :spuog Koualy 1800 116 9S
uonisoq 1oymy
S9)ON smye)s s300y/Aremung aAMAI ML "ON g

I102/07/6 - XTILVIN HALLVISIOHAT 110 UM AL




September 26, 2011
Prepared By: F. Sanchez
Submitted by: G. Heiertz

Approved by: Paul COOVG 4

CONSENT CALENDAR
FREE SPRINKLER NOZZILE PROGRAM EXPANSION
SUMMARY:

IRWD partnered with Western Municipal Water District (Western) in an innovative Free
Sprinkler Nozzle Program to provide 15,000 high efficiency spray head nozzles, free of charge,
to eligible customers within the IRWD service area. The kick-off for the cost-effective program
was September 1, and customer response has been very strong. As a result, within the first six
days of the program approximately 50% of IRWD’s available funding has been allocated. The
program was originally designed to run as a 12-week program, ending November 11. Due to the
strong response and cost-effectiveness of the program, staff recommends that the Board approve
an increase in the FY 2011-12 Operating Budget of up to $113,750 for an additional 35,000
nozzles to be funded from unallocated conservation revenues, and authorize the General
Manager to amend the existing agreement with Western to reflect the increased program budget.
The estimated total water saving associated with the additional funding are 695 acre-feet, based
on 35,000 nozzles and a five-year life. The avoided cost is approximately $265,490 based on
avoided incremental water purchases of $382 per acre-foot.

BACKGROUND:

Western, in partnership with other agencies, and Toro Irrigation developed an innovative, cost-
effective landscape water use efficiency program. The program provides a web site
(www.freesprinklernozzles.com) where customers can obtain vouchers for free high efficiency
spray heads. The program is operated in partnership with Toro and its distributors so that
customers have local supply houses where they can obtain the products. Western offers this
program as a turn-key design to participating agencies by administering all program operations
including website activities, purchase order handling, invoice payments and reporting to
suppliers and participating agencies. Toro provides all nozzles, as well as support in equipment
supplier recruitment and training.

IRWD entered into a partnership with Western and is participating in the current phase of the
Free Sprinkler Nozzle program which was just launched on September 1. IRWD agreed to
provide funding for up to 15,000 nozzles at a cost of $3.25 each for a total of $48,500. Funding
was available in the adopted FY 2011-12 Operating Budget.

In the first six days of operation 348 vouchers representing approximately 8,700 nozzles were
issued to IRWD customers. While participation is anticipated to drop off somewhat following
the program launch, the program is expected to run for a 12-week period, until November 11.
Even with a drop in demand, it is unlikely that IRWD’s funding will last for the entire program
span. Since customer demand is very strong, and the program is cost-effective for IRWD, staff
is recommending that IRWD provide funding for an additional 35,000 nozzles.

fs FreeSprinklerNozzleExpansion.docx

13



Consent Calendar: Free Sprinkler Nozzle Program Expansion
September 26, 2011
Page 2

The estimate of an additional 35,000 nozzles is based on an average of 280 vouchers being
issued per week for the next 11 weeks, for a total of 3080 vouchers. The average number of
nozzles per voucher is 25, which is a total of 77,000 nozzles. Assuming a 50% voucher
redemption rate, 38,500 nozzles would be installed, although some nozzles would be funded
from the original program budget. At a cost of $3.25 per nozzle, the total additional cost for
35,000 nozzles is $113,750. IRWD would only be invoiced on a per unit basis for actual nozzles
installed.

An independent analysis of previous phases of this program revealed an estimated water savings
per nozzle of 0.0199 acre-feet over a five-year life. Therefore, the total estimated water savings
for 35,000 nozzles is approximately 695 acre-feet. The avoided cost to IRWD is $265,490,
based on savings of $382 per acre-foot, which is the incremental difference between imported
water and the IRWD base rate. Staff recommends IRWD’s continued participation in the Free
Sprinkler Nozzle Program by providing additional funding increase of up to $113,750 and
recommends the General Manager be authorized to amend the agreement with Western to reflect
the increased program funding.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The FY 2011-12 Operating Budget would be increased by $113,750 to be funded through
unallocated conservation revenues.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on
September 13, 2011.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE AN INCREASE OF §$113,750 TO THE FY 2011-12
OPERATING BUDGET FROM UNALLOCATED CONSERVATION REVENUES FOR THE
FREE SPRINKLER NOZZLE PROGRAM, AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER
TO AMEND THE EXISTING AGREEMENT WITH WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER
DISTRICT TO REFLECT THE PROGRAM BUDGET INCREASE.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None.



September 26, 2011 % A“‘/
Prepared by: K. Welch/P. Weghorst /0

Submitted by: G. Heiertz &Fk

Approved by: Paul Cook 7 1
CONSENT CALENDAR

STOCKDALE WEST PILOT PROJECT FACILITIES —
FINAL ACCEPTANCE

SUMMARY:

Wood Brothers Inc. has completed construction of the Stockdale West Recharge Facilities Pilot
Project (Pilot Project) in Kern County. Staff recommends that the Board:

e Accept the Stockdale West Recharge Facilities Pilot Project;
Authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for the work; and
Authorize the payment of the retention to Wood Brothers, Inc. 35 days after the date of
recording the Notice of Completion.

BACKGROUND:

On May 9, 2011, the Board approved a construction award to Wood Brothers, Inc. for the Pilot
Project subject to a not-to-exceed amount of $2,500,000. A contract was executed and a notice
to proceed was provided to Wood Brothers, Inc. on May 27, 2011 in the amount of $2,475,885.

The construction of the Pilot Project occurred on a fast track basis in order to maximize the
ability to capture high-flow Kern River water available from Buena Vista Water Storage District
(BVWSD). An agreement was executed with BVWSD that provides for the delivery of up to
10,000 AF of water to the Pilot Project through July 2012. A separate agreement was executed
with Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District for the operation of the facilities. Information
collected from the use of the facilities will assist in the design of a long-term project. The
constructed facilities will be permanent and useable throughout the life of the long-term project.

Three change orders were executed during the course of construction of the project with the last
being approved under the authority of the Director of Planning and Water Resources on
September 20, 2011 for $7,552.50.

The following construction project has received a final inspection by the IRWD Planning and
Water Resources Department and is recommended for acceptance:

Project Title: Stockdale West Recharge Facilities Pilot Project
Project No.: 11595 (1326)

Design Engineer: Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc.

Construction Management by: Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc.

kw_Stockdale West Ranch Project -Final Acceptance.doc

14



Action Calendar: Stockdale West Pilot Project Facilities — Final Acceptance
September 26, 2011

Page 2
Contractor: Wood Brothers, Inc.
Original Contract Cost: $2,475,885.00
Change Orders: $117,253.75
Final Contract Cost: $2,593,138.75
Original Contract Days: 65
Substantial Completion Days: 91
Final Contract Days: 91

Final Change Order Approved On:  September 20, 2011
FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 11595 (1326) is included in the FY 2011-12 Capital Budget and the existing budget and
Expenditure Authorizations are sufficient.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

A Notice of Exemption was filed for the Pilot Project consistent with a Class 6 Categorical
Exemption as provided for in the CEQA guidelines. A new EIR for a long-term water banking
and exchange program for the Stockdale West Ranch will be developed in the future once the
terms and conditions for such a program have been established.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT THE STOCKDALE WEST RECHARGE FACILITIES PILOT
PROJECT; AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF
COMPLETION FOR THE WORK; AND AUTHORIZE THE PAYMENT OF THE
RETENTION 35 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF RECORDING THE NOTICE OF
COMPLETION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None.



September 26, 2011 %
Prepared By: A. McNulty/F. SancheZ

Submitted by: G. Heiertz
Approved by: Paul Cook 1 (”/{_ .

CONSENT CALENDAR

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION GRANT FOR JOINT ENERGY AND WATER
COMMERCIAL AUDIT PIL. OT PROGRAM

SUMMARY:

Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) has been awarded a local field services grant from the
Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) for an innovative water / energy pilot program targeting
small business customers. IRWD is the lead agency, with Southern California Edison (SCE) and
West Basin Municipal Water District (West Basin) participating as project partners. The Joint
Energy and Water Commercial Audit Pilot Program will design and test a comprehensive audit
program for energy and water. The audit will guide the direct installation of water efficiency
plumbing devices to the locations that will yield the greatest water savings. The goal of the
project is to retrofit up to 500 toilets, 50 urinals, and 600 faucets with high efficiency devices
within the IRWD and West Basin service areas. The total project cost is $305,922. Reclamation
funds awarded were $73,500 with IRWD co-funding of $62,500 plus staff time. The remaining
costs will be funded by SCE, and West Basin and its two participating retailers, Cal Water and
Golden State Water Company. As the grant manager, IRWD will need to allocate funds in the
amount of $136,000, with $73,500 being reimbursable by the grant, to implement this pilot
program. Staff recommends the Board approve an increase of $136,000 to the FY 2011-12
Operating Budget, of which $73,500 is reimbursable, and authorize the General Manager to enter
into an agreement with the Bureau for the grant project.

BACKGROUND:

IRWD and West Basin partnered with SCE to apply for funding assistance from Reclamation to
design and implement a pilot program that augments the existing SCE business audit program
with a water component. The pilot partnership with SCE leverages the existing SCE business
audit program to gather information about customer water use and encourages customers to
make upgrades to their water-wasting equipment by presenting them with incentives and/or
direct installation services for high-efficiency plumbing fixtures such as toilets, urinals and
faucet aerators.

Commercial customers are currently eligible for a no-cost energy audit from SCE. The grant
funding will add an inventory of water using devices to the audit. The water device information
will enable the water agencies to follow up with device retrofits where they are most needed.
The retrofits will be prioritized based on the age and performance of the existing toilets and
frequency of use. As a targeting tool the audit will enable the water agencies to leverage their
funding toward achieving water savings directly by retrofitting the oldest and most frequently
used toilets, urinals and faucet aerators.

Achieving water savings from the retrofit portion of the program is a direct benefit to IRWD. An
additional benefit will be derived from the model that this program will provide to the region.
As a demonstration project, the long-term objectives are: a) encouraging Metropolitan Water

am USBRGrantforJointEnergyandWaterCommercial Audit.docx



Consent Calendar: Bureau of Reclamation Grant for Joint Energy and Water Commercial Audit
Pilot Program

September 26, 2011

Page 2

District to partner with SCE to offer the program on a regional basis; b) establishing additional
water-energy partnerships with SCE; and c) seeking California Public Utilities Commission co-
funding for water efficiency programs based on the embedded energy savings associated with
water conservation.

The project is being jointly funded by Reclamation, IRWD, West Basin and SCE. IRWD is the
lead on the project, and will be the recipient of the USBR grant funding. For budget purposes,
IRWD will need to provide sufficient funding for IRWD’s direct funding of $62,500, as well as
the Bureau grant portion of $73,500, for a total of $136,000. All of the USBR $73,500 funding
will be reimbursed to IRWD. SCE’s contribution is all in the form of in-kind services. The
project funding allocations, including IRWD’s contribution is shown in Table 1.

Table 1: Program Funding

Funding Agency Task Total
IRWD Device Installations $ 62,500
USBR Grant Grant Funding $ 73,500

(reimbursable to IRWD)
Sub-total IRWD funding* $136,000
West Basin and Device installations $121,000
participating retail
agencies
IRWD, West Basin, SCE In-Kind Services and $ 48,922
Staff Time
TOTAL PROGRAM BUDGET $305,922

*  $73,500 of the total IRWD expenditures will be reimbursed through the USBR grant. IRWD’s net
funding contribution is $62,500 plus staff time.

The project is anticipated to begin in Fall 2011 and will be completed in 2013. Any program
funding not expended in FY 2011-12 will be requested in the FY 2012-13 Operating Budget.
IRWD will enter into separate agreements with West Basin and with SCE to provide a
mechanism for IRWD to reimburse each of those agencies for their share of the grant funding.

The agreement, which is included as Exhibit “A” must be fully executed by September 30, 2011
in order to access the Reclamation grant funding.

Water Savings:

Throughout the combined service areas of IRWD and West Basin, it is anticipated that
approximately 10.1 million gallons (31 acre-feet) of water will be saved annually, totaling nearly
500 AF water savings over the lifetime of the devices. Additional benefits include the embedded
energy savings and greenhouse gas reductions.



Consent Calendar: Bureau of Reclamation Grant for Joint Energy and Water Commercial Audit
Pilot Program

September 26, 2011

Page 3

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The FY 2011-12 Operating Budget would be increased to add $136,000 for the Joint Energy and
Water Commercial Audit Pilot Program to be funded from unallocated conservation revenues.
$73,500 will be reimbursed to IRWD by Reclamation.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on
September 13, 2011.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE AN INCREASE OF $136,000 TO THE FY 2011-12
OPERATING BUDGET AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE BUREAU OF RECLAMATION FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION
OF THE JOINT ENERGY AND WATER COMMERCIAL AUDIT PILOT PROGRAM.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Grant Agreement between Bureau of Reclamation and IRWD for Joint Water
Energy Pilot Grant






EXHIBIT “A”

7-2279 (04-2011)
Bureau of Reclamation

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT
TA. AGREEMENT NUMBER | 1B. MOD 2. TYPE OF AGREEMENT 3. CLASS OF RECIPIENT
R11AP35323 NUMBER B GRANT Special District
] COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
4. ISSUING OFFICE 5. RECIPIENT

Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, CA 92618-3100

Bureau of Reclamation

Southern California Area Office
27708 Jefferson Avenue, Suite 202
Temecula, CA 92590

EIN #: 95-2232918 County: Orange

DUNS #:

05-927-0884 Congress. Dist: 48

6. ADMINISTRATIVE POINT OF CONTACT

Bureau of Reclamation

Leslie Cleveland

Southern California Area Office

27708 Jefferson Avenue, Suite 202

Temecula, CA 92590

Phone: 951-695-5310, E-Mail: LCleveland @usbr.gov

7. RECIPIENT PROJECT MANAGER

Ms. Amy McNulty

Irvine Ranch Water District

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue

Irvine, CA 92618

Phone: 949-453-5634, E-Mail: mcnulty@irwd.com

8. GRANTS OFFICER TECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE 9A. INITIAL AGREEMENT 9B. MODIFICATION EFFECTIVE

Bureau of Reclamation EFFECTIVE DATE; DATE:
Debra Whitney
Southern California Area Office See block 17a

27708 Jefferson Avenue, Suite 202
Temecula, CA 92590
Phone 951-695-5310, E-Mail: DWhitney @usbr.gov

10. COMPLETION DATE

June 30, 2013

11A. PROGRAM STATUTORY AUTHORITY Omnibus Public Lands Management Act 2009, P.L. 111-11
This grant uses (A)-to conserve water, (B)-to increase water use efficiency and (D)-to enhance water management.
The estimated water availability of 31.04 AFY

11B. CFDA Number
15.530

12. FUNDING RECIPIENT/OTHER RECLAMATION 13. REQUISITION NUMBER
INFORMATION ) 1350100112
Total Estimated Amount $221,484 $73,500 14A. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA
of Agreement A10-1971-6400-100-14-0-0
This Obligation $221,484 $73,500 3501000
Previous Obligation 411G
Total Obligation $221,484 $73,500 14B. TREASURY ACCOUNT FUNDING SYMBOL
Cost-Share % 75% 25% 14X0680

15. PROJECT TITLE AND BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES OF PROJECT:

TITLE: EWC Audit Pilot Program

PROIJECT: The purpose of this pilot program is to determine the effectiveness of integrating a water component into Southern California Edison’s
(SCE) existing small and medium-sized business Non Residential Audit Program. The water agencies are interested in partnering with energy
utilities and using the audit opportunities to leverage resources and maximize savings. A successful pilot could be the basis for an expanded
regional integrated water/energy savings program.. Successful integration will benefit the water and energy utility customers by offering them an
integrated, water and electric energy audit efficiency evaluation and high-efficiency device retrofits as applicable. SCE will benefit from a no-cost
partnership opportunity with water agencies. Finaily, IRWD and West Basin will benefit from a reduced-cost audit program and better targeting
strategies for high efficiency toilet and faucet aerator retrofits.

16a. Acceptance of this Assistance Agreement in accordance with the terms and
conditions contained herein is hereby made on behalf of the above-named
recipient

BY:

17a. Award of this Assistance Agreement in accordance with the terms and
conditions contained herein is hereby made on behalf of the United States
of America, Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation

BY:

DATE:

DATE:

16b. NAME, TITLE, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SIGNER
Mr. Paul Cook

Interim General Manager

949-453-5310 A“ 1

17b. NAME OF GRANTS OFFICER
William J. Steele

Grants Officer

951-695-5310




Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120

04-2011
TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. OVERVIEW AND SCHEDULE .......cccccootiiiitiniiiiniiiintiseereese s sseesnessesssensens 3
L. AUTHORITY oottt s rae s et e b e a e sas s na e 3
2. PUBLIC PURPOSE OF SUPPORT OR STIMULATION ......ccccoovininiiiniiniieieinecnenens 4
3. BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES .....coiiiiintitiicititcinnriieinsisssesenssessessssssaesnens 4
4. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE AND FUNDS AVAILABILITY ....ccccovininininiinicnennene. 5
5. SCOPE OF WORK AND MILESTONES ........cccovuurmunrrreenessessssenssssssassssssssssssssssssesssesssesseses 5
6. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES ........coooiiiiiiiniiiniiner et s 9
T BUDGET ...ttt ittt es s e s esassss e s s s sr b e n e e s e e s e s s ens 10
8. KEY PERSONNEL ......ccooiititiiininiciintitenieirenrnat et sses s san s ennesbesnsenns 13
9. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND DISTRIBUTION.......c.ccceiuiiiiinenreniniiinenseenens 15
10. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE .......cccoivitimiiiinineininiciirinieesissesssssinssessssseesseens 17

II. RECLAMATION STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS - STATES, LOCAL
GOVERNMENTS, AND FEDERALLY RECOGNIZED INDIAN TRIBAL GOVERNMENTS

....................................................................................................................................................... 19
1. REGULATIONS. ...ttt ittt sse st ssas s s st asssa e s sas s saneassbnssbens 19
2. PAYMENT ...ttt bsca s b s ss b et n e b e b s anaranans 20
3. PROCUREMENT STANDARDS (43 CFR §12.76).....ccccoccinmriiriiiriiniiininicnciincnenens 22
4. EQUIPMENT (43 CFR §12.72) c.ccoutriviiiiiiriiiiiiiniciniie s s csaessesvsssaessnssassnsnses 32
5. SUPPLIES (43 CER §12.73) oottt sss s san s st eanens 34
6. INSPECTION .....cotiiiiiiiiiiiiiinicnccnitetsrt sttt et sssssessesss st sas s sas s s sassbesassssenssasenssnsens 34
7. AUDIT (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507) eevvrurereerrnrenrernensreressessssssssesssesesessmsesssssessssessssssssesscasssssesens 34
8. ENFORCEMENT (43 CFR §12.83)..ccuiiiiitiiinriiniictiieececeneecsecs e eanesanns 35
9. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE (43 CFR §12.84) ....cccocvvvmiiivinininiiinicinieiens 35
10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (2 CFR §1400) ......cooccvviiniviiniimnrinnienreisnsiesieninns 36
11. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (2 CFR §182 and §1401) .......cccoouriiirniiniiciiiciniiiens 36
12. ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE........ 36
13. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES........cccooiniininiiininrtininriresnecnsnens 37
14. TRAFFICKING VICTIMS PROTECTION ACT OF 2000 (2 CFR §175.15) ....cccceeueueeee 37
15. NEW RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING (43 CFR §18)....ccccocvvurriirinvieninrecniiriisnsnininnens 39
16. UNIFORM RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AND REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION
POLICIES ACT OF 1970 (URA) (42 USC § 4601 €f S€q.) ...c.corveruvvrieiiinriirneiinseiiiiinnnens 40
17. CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION AND UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER
REQUIREMENTS (2 CFR 25, APPENDIX A)......ccciiiiiiiiiiiicicicnienicnesrcssssssaenens 41
18. PROHIBITION ON TEXT MESSAGING AND USING ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT
SUPPLIED BY THE GOVERNMENT WHILE DRIVING........cccccvnmiiiiiiiriniiiiiiicieeens 42
19. AGRICULTURAL OPERATIONS [Public Law 111-11, Section 9504(a)(3)(B)]........... 42
20. TITLE TO IMPROVEMENTS [Public Law 111-11, Section 9504(a)(3)(D)]......cceceeveuune 43
21. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS [Public Law 111-11, Section
9504(a)(3)E)(AV.)] cenrereriniiiitiiirente ettt st et s n b e 43
22. LIABILITY [Public Law 111-11, Section 9504(a)(3)(F)] .....cevevvivmvmineninmiiiiiiininieeens 43
ATTACHMENT A ..ottt ses s st sa e sase e ssnsene s 44

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A..2 2



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Grant Agreement
Between
Bureau of Reclamation
And
Irvine Ranch Water District
For
Joint Energy and Water Commercial Audit Pilot Program

I. OVERVIEW AND SCHEDULE

1. AUTHORITY

This Grant Agreement (Agreement) is entered into between the United States of America, acting
through the Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, hereinafter referred to as
“Reclamation,” and Irvine Ranch Water District, CA, hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”
or “Grantee,” pursuant to Public Law 111-11 (42 USC 10364). The following section, provided
in full text, authorizes Reclamation to award this financial assistance agreement:

SEC. 9504. WATER MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT.

(a) Authorization of Grants and Cooperative Agreements —
(1) AUTHORITY OF SECRETARY - The Secretary may provide any grant to, or enter into
an agreement with, any eligible applicant to assist the eligible applicant in planning,
designing, or constructing any improvement - -
(A) to conserve water;
(B) to increase water use efficiency;
(C) to facilitate water markets;
(D) to enhance water management, including increasing the use of renewable energy in
the management and delivery of water;
(E) to accelerate the adoption and use of advanced water treatment technologies to
increase water supply;
(F) to prevent the decline of species that the United States Fish and Wildlife Service and
National Marine Fisheries Service have proposed for listing under the Endangered
Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq.) (or candidate species that are being
considered by those agencies for such listing but are not yet the subject of a proposed
rule);
(G) to accelerate the recovery of threatened species, endangered species, and designated
critical habitats that are adversely affected by Federal reclamation projects or are subject
to a recovery plan or conservation plan under the Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16
U.S.C. 1531 et seq.) under which the Commissioner of Reclamation has implementation
responsibilities; or
(H) to carry out any other activity
(1) to address any climate-related impact to the water supply of the United States that
increases ecological resiliency to the impacts of climate change; or

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A"3 3



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(ii) to prevent any water-related crisis or conflict at any watershed that has a nexus to
a Federal reclamation project located in a service area and;

2. PUBLIC PURPOSE OF SUPPORT OR STIMULATION

The purpose of this pilot program is to determine the effectiveness of integrating a water
component into Southern California Edison’s (SCE) existing small and medium-sized business
Non Residential Audit Program. The water agencies are interested in partnering with energy
utilities and using the audit opportunities to leverage resources and maximize savings. A
successful pilot could be the basis for an expanded regional integrated water/energy savings
program.

Successful integration will benefit the water and energy utility customers by offering them an
integrated, water and electric energy audit efficiency evaluation and high-efficiency device
retrofits as applicable. SCE will benefit from a no-cost partnership opportunity with water
agencies. Finally, IRWD and West Basin will benefit from a reduced-cost audit program and
better targeting strategies for high efficiency toilet and faucet aerator retrofits.

3. BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES

The proposal is for RWD and West Basin (collectively referred to as Water Agencies) to pilot a
joint audit program with SCE within their respective service areas. The Water Agencies propose
to partner with and leverage the existing SCE activity through the existing Non Residential Audit
Program to gather water-use information about the site and encourage customers to make
upgrades to their water-wasting equipment by presenting them with incentives/direct install
services for high-efficiency plumbing fixtures.

The SCE Non Residential Audit Program has offered this free service to business customers
since 1978. This program provides customers with energy efficiency recommendations with the
intention of driving customers to the SCE rebate incentive programs. Adding a water efficiency
component will increase the benefit offered to these customers as they will be receiving free
devices and installation as well as reduced costs on their water bill as a result of the additional
upgrades. Providing offerings for both water and energy savings will benefit all parties involved
including the customers themselves.

This project builds on the findings from the USBR’s WEEP Study, and addresses five of the
seven barriers outlined in the Barriers and Incentive Analysis of the WEEP study. They include:
Create a Partnership Framework for Program Implementation; Build CII Customer Expertise;
Selectively Enhance Financial Incentives for CII; Facilitate Participation in Water and Energy
Efficiency Programs; Explore Existing Mechanisms to Fund Water and Energy Efficiency
Programs.

The differences between the two participating water agencies themselves may prove to
demonstrate variation in “on-the-ground” implementation that can be learned from. IRWD is a

Agreement No. RIIAP35323 A-4 4



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

retail water agency and differs in structure to West Basin, a mid-level wholesale water agency.
While IRWD serves water to several cities in Orange County and has direct contact with their
end users/customers, West Basin is involved in an SCE local government partnership called the
South Bay Environmental Services Center and can communicate directly with the cities within
the service area through the partnership. These factors will benefit the pilot in general by
illuminating aspects of the program that are best suited for expansion on a regional scale.

Based on the retrofit of 550 toilets, 50 urinals, and 600 faucets with high efficiency devices, and
using standard savings by device it is anticipated that approximately 10.1 Million gallons of
water will be saved annually or 31 acre-feet per year, totaling 500 AF savings over the lifetime
of the devices. The water savings may vary depending on the mix of devices installed, and will
be documented in any reporting.

Additional benefits include the associated energy savings and greenhouse gas reductions.
According to the California Energy Commission (CEC), delivery of imported water to Southern
California requires about 9,727 kilowatt-hours per million gallons (kWh/MG) because the water
must be pumped over the Tehachapi Mountains. An estimated annual reduction in imported
water of 31 AFY = 10.1 MG x 9,727 kWh/MG = 98 MWh savings. Each MWh = 879 lbs of
greenhouse gas = 86,480 Ibs of greenhouse gas = 39 metric tons of CO2 per year.

4. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE AND FUNDS AVAILABILITY

This Agreement becomes effective on the date shown in Block 17a of Form 7-2279, United
States of America, Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Assistance Agreement.
The Agreement shall remain in effect until the date shown in Block 10 of Form 7-2279, United
States of America, Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Assistance Agreement.
The period of performance for this Agreement may only be modified through written
modification of the Agreement by a Reclamation Grants Officer (GO).

No legal liability on the part of the Government for any payment may arise until funds are made
available, in writing, to the Recipient by the Grants Officer. The total estimated amount of
federal funding for this agreement is $73,500, of which the initial amount of federal funds
available is limited to $73,500, as indicated by “this obligation” within Block 12 of Form 7-
2279, United States of America, Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Assistance
Agreement. Subject to the availability of Congressional appropriations, subsequent funds will be
made available for payment through written modifications to this agreement by a Reclamation
Grants Officer.

5. SCOPE OF WORK AND MILESTONES

Project Tasks
Upon notification of award the following tasks will be undertaken.

1. Enhance Audit Tool

2. Develop Collateral Materials and Installation Voucher
3. Installation Company Request for Proposals

4. Cross Training SCE Auditors

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A- 5 5



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

5. Audit Activity
6. Perform Installation
7. Pilot Program Analysis

Task 1 — Enhance Audit Tool

Integrate the water portion of the audit into the hand-held audit tool currently used by the SCE
auditor. The following plumbing fixture questions, or similarly related questions, will be added
to the electronic hand held audit tool: 1) Number of toilets on site? 2) Are they Tank or Flush
Valve Toilets? 3) Is the toilet flush volume greater than 3.5 gallons per flush (gpf)? 4) Number of
Urinals greater than 1.0 gpf on site? 5) Number of faucets? 6) Faucet aerator flow rate?

The questions above will also be included in the report that is given to the customer at the time
of the audit. The report will contain the water and energy efficiency opportunity
recommendations found on site that day as well as the potential water savings if plumbing
retrofits would be appropriate for their site in addition to the existing energy savings information.

This audit information will be provided to the water agencies for all audit sites. This information
will provide an accurate accounting of devices present and will aid in targeting water-use
efficiency programs.

Task 2 — Develop Collateral Materials and Installation Voucher

Customers with eligible equipment (toilets flushing at a volume greater than 3.5 gpf, urinals
flushing at a volume greater than 1.0 gpf, faucet aerators greater than 0.5 gallons per minute) will
be offered a voucher issued by either IRWD or West Basin for the retrofit of the identified
equipment from the audit report. The voucher will print along with the audit report. The voucher
will include: contact information for the installation company selected by water providers,
expiration date to encourage immediate action and a statement that post-install inspection may be
conducted to verify installs as well as identification of all program funding partners.

Task 3 — Installation Company Request for Proposals

IRWD will issue a Request for Proposals for toilet, urinal and faucet aerator installation
companies. Upon review of the proposals, IRWD will select the installation company using a
competitive bid process according to IRWD’s standard procedures.

For the West Basin pilot area, Cal Water and Golden State Water will hire direct installation
companies to perform the installations. They will go through independent processes to obtain
services from installation companies.

Task 4 — Cross Training SCE Auditors

The SCE auditors will be cross-trained to identify toilet, urinal and faucet flow rates. Auditors
will be trained to look for flow rate stamps on the devices and also how to conduct a simple flow
test on the faucets using a flow bag or the bucket and stop watch method; both processes
measure water by turning the faucet on for a specified duration and measuring the volume of
water collected to calculate the gallons per minute flow rate of the faucet.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A‘6 6



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Task 5 — Audit Activity

SCE auditors will visit businesses as assigned by the SCE Program Manager and perform the
combined water and energy audits. SCE auditors will produce and review an audit report with
the customer that includes both energy and water efficiency recommendations.

Water information includes (all information to be provided by water agencies during Task 1
above): 1) Quantities and flow rates of toilets, urinals and faucets; 2) Replacement devices with
reduced flow rates if applicable; and 3) Estimated water savings if fixtures were retrofitted.

Customers with qualifying equipment will be eligible for water efficiency upgrades at no cost to
them. Qualifying customers will be notified of their eligibility with a notification printing on
the audit report. This notice will serve as a voucher that can be redeemed with the Water
Agency installation companies for applicable high efficiency toilet, urinal and faucet
aerator/flow restrictor installations.

Audit Milestones: 50% of the audits will be completed by the 3™ Quarter 2012 (calendar year)
and the remaining audits completed by no later than the 1% Quarter of 2013 (calendar year).

Task 6 — Perform Installations

Based on the findings from the audit, customers who qualify for plumbing retrofits will receive a
voucher as described in Task 5. The water audit results will be provided by SCE to the
appropriate water agency. The water agencies will provide the eligible customer contact
information to the installation company. The installation company will then: 1) Schedule
installation date with customer; 2) Assess replacement toilet and/or urinal and aerator type and
install efficient equipment; and 3) Redeem the voucher with customer who will sign to confirm
installation. The voucher then becomes the supporting documentation for the invoice from the
installation company to the water agency who serves the customer.

The water agencies will receive all audit findings from the SCE audit team and will therefore
have the ability and opportunity to follow up with the customers to encourage the retrofit be
completed before the voucher expires. The expiration date on the voucher allows for a control
mechanism with regard to program budget for the installation piece.

Installation Milestones: 50% of the installations will be completed by the 3™ Quarter 2012 and
the remaining installations completed by no later than the 2" Quarter of 2013.

Task 7 - Pilot Program Analysis

The nature of this innovative pilot program is to develop an effective model for joint water and
energy audits for small to medium-sized businesses. This program has two performance
measures. First is the number of joint water and energy audits that are completed within the grant
timeline. The second performance measure is the quantity of devices (toilets, urinals and faucets)
that are retrofitted through this program, and associated water savings, using standard estimates
per device.

Evaluation of the pilot will cover the audit and the installation piece. At a minimum, the analysis
for the audit portion will include 1) Coordination with SCE audit team and internal staff; 2) Ease

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-7 7



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

of water measure integration into existing program; 3) Audit payment processing method from
water agencies to SCE. The analysis for the install portion will include: 1) Audit findings of
existing plumbing fixtures within the target customer group; 2) Number of devices installed and
associated water savings; 3) Voucher redemption/Install participation rates.

Survey and analysis of the pilot program will be shared with SCE along with inclusion of their
input on the pilot program evaluation and suggestions for regional implementation.

Program Implementation Strategy
The Program implementation strategy is as described above in the Project Narrative Tasks 1-6.

As mentioned above, the SCE Non Residential Audit Program has been offering business
customers the free energy audit program since 1978 demonstrating a sound implementation
strategy. In addition, the water agencies have both implemented successful direct install
programs in the past and currently offer their customers water audits upon request. This pilot has
been designed as an innovative program to leverage existing efforts and experience from both
SCE and the Water Agencies, with a long-term objective of building a model to greatly expand
water/energy partnerships and resource conservation opportunities.

Program Schedule
The following schedule is based upon notification of award in October 2011. The milestone for

the audit and installations is to be at 50% completion by the 3™ quarter 2012. The remaining
audits will be completed by no later than the 1* Quarter of 2013, and the remaining installations
completed by no later than the 2™ Quarter of 2013.

Start Date End Date
Task 1. Add water measures to SCE audit tool | October 2011 | December 2011
Task 2. Develop collateral materials and October 2011 | December 2011
voucher
Task 3. Hire water installation companies October 2011 | December 2011
Task 4. Cross-train SCE auditors October 2011 March 2012
Task 5. Audit activity (include milestones) January 2012 June 2013
Task 6. Contractor installs devices January 2012 June 2013
Task 7. Program Analysis January 2013 June 2013
Semi-Annual Reports Ongoing Ongoing
Final Report Ongoing June 2013

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-8 8



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

6. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES

6.1 Recipient Responsibilities

6.1.1 The Recipient shall carry out the Scope of Work in accordance with the terms and
conditions stated herein. The Recipient shall adhere to Federal, state, and local laws, regulations,
and codes, as applicable, and shall obtain all required approvals and permits. If the Scope of
Work contains construction activities, the Recipient is responsible for construction inspection,
oversight, and acceptance. If applicable, the Recipient shall also coordinate and obtain approvals
from site owners and operators.

6.1.2 Additional Recipient Responsibilities include:

In support of this Agreement, the Recipient shall comply with and perform the following
activities:

1. Contribute funds and/or in-kind services in the amount of $221,484 to complete project
activities. The amount of funding commitment from IRWD includes both in-kind labor in
the amount of $20,684 and cash contributions in the amount of $62,500. West Basin’s
participating retail agencies, California Water Service Company and Golden State Water
Company have committed $80,000 and $41,000 respectively out of budgets already
allocated for direct-installation activity. Similarly, SCE is contributing funds already
budgeted for audit services in the amount of $17,300.

2. Provide coordination between interested parties and Reclamation, as mutually agreeable
to Reclamation and the Recipient.

3. Clearly mark public literature, such as but not limited to, newsletter, fact sheets,
identifying Reclamation as a funding agency; identify Reclamation funding in
professional papers which may be prepared as a result of this activity; and include
Reclamation’s logo in signs or other artwork.

4. Perform the work and accomplishments in accordance with the Scope of Work

5. Report progress to Reclamation’s Grants Officer (GO) on a semi-annual basis as
outlined in Section 9 Part 9.4, Reporting Requirements and Distribution, of this
agreement.

6. Immediately advice Reclamation’s GO for this agreement of any issues, problems and
other matters that may affect the successful implementation of this project.

7. Prepare and submit the project final report within 90 days of the project or agreement
end, whichever comes first. Report shall be a hard copy and on CD (print ready).

6.2 Reclamation Responsibilities
6.2.1 Reclamation will monitor and provide federal oversight of activities performed under this

Agreement. Monitoring and oversight includes review and approval of financial status and
performance reports, payment requests, and any other deliverables identified as part of the Scope

Agreement No. RI1AP35323 A-9 9



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

of Work. Additional monitoring activities may include site visits, conference calls, and other on-
site and off-site monitoring activities. At the Recipient’s request, Reclamation may also provide
technical assistance to the Recipient in support of the Scope of Work and objectives of this
Agreement.

6.2.2 Substantial involvement between Reclamation and the Recipient is not anticipated during
the performance of this Agreement. This is a grant agreement and not a cooperative agreement.

6.2.3 Reclamation shall;

1. Provide funds of $73,500 in Fiscal Year 2011.
2. Review financial reports and program performance reports.
3. Provide Reclamation graphics and logos.

7. BUDGET

7.1 Budget Estimate. Attachment A is the estimated budget for this Agreement. As federal
financial assistance agreements are cost-reimbursable, the budget provided is for estimation
purposes only. Final costs incurred under the budget categories listed may be either higher or
lower than the estimated costs. All costs incurred by the Recipient under this agreement must be
in accordance with any pre-award clarifications conducted between the Recipient and
Reclamation, as well as with the terms and conditions of this agreement. Final determination of
the allowability, allocability, or reasonableness of costs incurred under this agreement is the
responsibility of the Grants Officer. Recipients are encouraged to direct any questions regarding
allowability, allocability or reasonableness of costs to the Grants Officer for review prior to
incurrence of the costs in question.

7.2 Cost Sharing Requirement

At least 75% non-federal cost-share is required for costs incurred under this Agreement.

7.3 Pre-Award Incurrence of Costs

The Recipient shall not be entitled to have incurred costs for this agreement, which if had been
incurred after this Agreement was entered into, would have been allowable, allocable, and
reasonable under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7.4 Allowable Costs (2 CFR Part §225)

Costs incurred for the performance of this Agreement must be allowable, allocable to the project,
and reasonable. The following Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular, codified
within the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), governs the allowability of costs for Federal

financial assistance:

2 CFR Part 225 (OMB Circular A-87), "Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal
Governments"

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 1 O 10



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Expenditures for the performance of this Agreement must conform to the requirements within
this Circular. The Recipient must maintain sufficient documentation to support these
expenditures. Questions on the allowability of costs should be directed to the GO responsible for
this Agreement.

The Recipient shall not incur costs or obligate funds for any purpose pertaining to operation of
the program or activities beyond the expiration date stated in the Agreement. The only costs
which are authorized for a period of up to 90 days following the project performance period are
those strictly associated with closeout activities for preparation of the final report.

7.5 Changes (43 CFR §12.70).

(a) General. Grantees and subgrantees are permitted to rebudget within the approved direct cost
budget to meet unanticipated requirements and may make limited program changes to the

approved project. However, unless waived by the awarding agency, certain types of post-award
changes in budgets and projects shall require the prior written approval of the awarding agency.

(b) Relation to cost principles. The applicable cost principles (see 43 §12.62) contain
requirements for prior approval of certain types of costs. Except where waived, those
requirements apply to all grants and subgrants even if paragraphs (c) through (f) of this section
do not.

(c) Budget changes.

(1) Nonconstruction projects. Except as stated in other regulations or an award document,
grantees or subgrantees shall obtain the prior approval of the awarding agency whenever any
of the following changes is anticipated under a nonconstruction award:

(1) Any revision which would result in the need for additional funding.

(ii) Unless waived by the awarding agency, cumulative transfers among direct cost
categories, or, if applicable, among separately budgeted programs, projects, functions, or
activities which exceed or are expected to exceed ten percent of the current total
approved budget, whenever the awarding agency's share exceeds $100,000.

(iii) Transfer of funds allotted for training allowances (i.e., from direct payments to
trainees to other expense categories).

(2) Construction projects. Grantees and subgrantees shall obtain prior written approval for
any budget revision which would result in the need for additional funds.

(3) Combined construction and nonconstruction projects. When a grant or subgrant provides
funding for both construction and nonconstruction activities, the grantee or subgrantee must
obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency before making any fund or budget
transfer from nonconstruction to construction or vice versa.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 1 1 11



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(d) Programmatic changes. Grantees or subgrantees must obtain the prior approval of the
awarding agency whenever any of the following actions is anticipated:

(1) Any revision of the scope or objectives of the project (regardless of whether there is an
associated budget revision requiring prior approval).

(2) Need to extend the period of availability of funds.

(3) Changes in key persons in cases where specified in an application or a grant award. In
research projects, a change in the project director or principal investigator shall always
require approval unless waived by the awarding agency.

(4) Under nonconstruction projects, contracting out, subgranting (if authorized by law) or
otherwise obtaining the services of a third party to perform activities which are central to the
purposes of the award, unless included in the initial funding proposal. This approval

requirement is in addition to the approval requirements of 43 §12.76 but does not apply to the

procurement of equipment, supplies, and general support services.

(e) Additional prior approval requirements. The awarding agency may not require prior approval

for any budget revision which is not described in paragraph (c) of this section.
(f) Requesting prior approval.
(1) A request for prior approval of any budget revision will be in the same budget formal the
grantee used in its application and shall be accompanied by a narrative justification for the

proposed revision.

(2) A request for a prior approval under the applicable Federal cost principles (see §12.62)
may be made by letter.

(3) A request by a subgrantee for prior approval will be addressed in writing to the grantee.

The grantee will promptly review such request and shall approve or disapprove the request in

writing. A grantee will not approve any budget or project revision which is inconsistent with
the purpose or terms and conditions of the Federal grant to the grantee. If the revision,

requested by the subgrantee would result in a change to the grantee's approved project which

requires Federal prior approval, the grantee will obtain the Federal agency's approval before
approving the subgrantee's request.

7.6 Modifications

Any changes to this Agreement shall be made by means of a written modification. Reclamation
may make changes to the Agreement by means of a unilateral modification to address
administrative matters, such as changes in address, no-cost time extensions, or the addition of
previously agreed upon funding. Additionally, a unilateral modification may be utilized by

Reclamation if it should become necessary to suspend or terminate the Agreement in accordance with 43
CFR 12.83.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-12



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

All other changes shall be made by means of a bilateral modification to the Agreement. No oral

statement made by any person, or written statement by any person other than the GO, shall be

allowed in any manner or degree to modify or otherwise effect the terms of the Agreement.

All requests for modification of the Agreement shall be made in writing, provide a full

description of the reason for the request, and be sent to the attention of the GO. Any request for
project extension shall be made at least 45 days prior to the expiration date of the Agreement or

the expiration date of any extension period that may have been previously granted. Any
determination to extend the period of performance or to provide follow-on funding for
continuation of a project is solely at the discretion of Reclamation.

8. KEY PERSONNEL

8.1 Recipient’s Key Personnel
The Recipient's Project Manager for this Agreement shall be:

Ms. Amy McNulty

Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, CA 92618

Phone: 949-453-5634
E-Mail: mcnulty @irwd.com

Changes to Key Personnel require compliance with 43 CFR 12.70(d)(3).
8.2 Reclamation’s Key Personnel

8.2.1 Grants Officer (GO):

Bureau of Reclamation

Mr. William J. Steele

Attn: Grants Officer

27708 Jefferson Ave, Suite 202

Temecula, CA 92590

Phone: 951-695-5310
E-Mail: WSteele @usbr.gov

(a) The GO is the only official with legal delegated authority to represent Reclamation. The
GO’s responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) Formally obligate Reclamation to expend funds or change the funding level of the
Agreement;

(2) Approve through formal modification changes in the scope of work and/or budget;

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 1 3

13



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(3) Approve through formal modification any increase or decrease in the period of
performance of the Agreement;

(4) Approve through formal modification changes in any of the expressed terms, conditions,
or specifications of the Agreement;

(5) Be responsible for the overall administration, management, and other non-programmatic
aspects of the Agreement including, but not limited to, interpretation of financial
assistance statutes, regulations, circulars, policies, and terms of the Agreement;

(6) Where applicable, ensures that Reclamation complies with the administrative
requirements required by statutes, regulations, circulars, policies, and terms of the
Agreement.

8.2.2 Grants Officer Technical Representative (GOTR):

Bureau of Reclamation

Debra Whitney

Attn: Water Conservation Specialist
27708 Jefferson Ave, Suite 202
Temecula, CA 92590

Phone: 951-695-5310

E-Mail: DWhitney @usbr.gov

(a) The GOTR’s authority is limited to technical and programmatic aspects of the Agreement.
The GOTR’s responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) Assist the Recipient, as necessary, in interpreting and carrying out the scope of work in
the Agreement;

(2) Review, and where required, approve Recipient reports and submittals as required by the
Agreement;

(3) Where applicable, monitor the Recipient to ensure compliance with the technical
requirements of the Agreement;

(4) Where applicable, ensure that Reclamation complies with the technical requirements of
the Agreement;

(b) The GOTR does not have the authority to and may not issue any technical assistance which:

(1) Constitutes an assignment of additional work outside the scope of work of the
Agreement;

(2) Inany manner causes an increase or decrease in the total estimated cost or the time
required for performance; or

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 1 4 14



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RE-120
04-2011

(3) Changes any of the expressed terms, conditions, or specifications of the Agreement.

9. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND DISTRIBUTION

9.1 Noncompliance. Failure to comply with the reporting requirements contained in this
Agreement may be considered a material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of the
award. Non compliance may result in withholding of payments pending receipt of required
reports, denying both the use of funds and matching credit for all or part of the cost of the
activity or action not in compliance, whole or partial suspension or termination of the
Agreement, recovery of funds paid under the Agreement, withholding of future awards, or other
legal remedies in accordance with 43 CFR §12.83.

9.2 Financial Reports. Financial Status Reports shall be submitted by means of the SF-425
and shall be submitted according to the Report Frequency and Distribution schedule below. All
financial reports shall be signed by an Authorized Certifying Official for the Recipient’s
organization.

9.3 Monitoring and reporting program performance (43 CFR §12.80)

(a) Monitoring by grantees. Grantees are responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
grant and subgrant supported activities. Grantees must monitor grant and subgrant supported
activities to assure compliance with applicable Federal requirements and that performance goals
are being achieved. Grantee monitoring must cover each program, function or activity.

(b) Nonconstruction performance reports. The Federal agency may, if it decides that
performance information available from subsequent applications contains sufficient information
to meet its programmatic needs, require the grantee to submit a performance report only upon
expiration or termination of grant support. Unless waived by the Federal agency this report will
be due on the same date as the final Financial Status Report.

(1) Grantees shall submit annual performance reports unless the awarding agency requires
quarterly or semi-annual reports. However, performance reports will not be required more
frequently than quarterly. Annual reports shall be due 90 days after the grant year, quarterly
or semi-annual reports shall be due 30 days after the reporting period. The final performance
report will be due 90 days after the expiration or termination of grant support. If a justified
request is submitted by a grantee, the Federal agency may extend the due date for any
performance report. Additionally, requirements for unnecessary performance reports may be
waived by the Federal agency.

(2) Performance reports will contain, for each grant, brief information on the following:
(i) A comparison of actual accomplishments to the objectives established for the period.

Where the output of the project can be quantified, a computation of the cost per unit of
output may be required if that information will be useful.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-1 5 15



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(ii) The reasons for slippage if established objectives were not met.

(iii) Additional pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis and
explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.

(3) Grantees will not be required to submit more than the original and two copies of
performance reports.

(4) Grantees will adhere to the standards in this section in prescribing performance reporting
requirements for subgrantees.

(c) Construction performance reports. For the most part, on-site technical inspections and
certified percentage-of-completion data are relied on heavily by Federal agencies to monitor
progress under construction grants and subgrants. The Federal agency will require additional
formal performance reports only when considered necessary, and never more frequently than
quarterly.

(d) Significant developments. Events may occur between the scheduled performance reporting
dates which have significant impact upon the grant or subgrant supported activity. In such cases,
the grantee must inform the Federal agency as soon as the following types of conditions become
known:

(1) Problems, delays, or adverse conditions which will materially impair the ability to meet
the objective of the award. This disclosure must include a statement of the action taken, or
contemplated, and any assistance needed to resolve the situation.

(2) Favorable developments which enable meeting time schedules and objectives sooner or at
less cost than anticipated or producing more beneficial results than originally planned.

(e) Federal agencies may make site visits as warranted by program needs.

(f) Waivers, extensions.
(1) Federal agencies may waive any performance report required by this part if not needed.
(2) The grantee may waive any performance report from a subgrantee when not needed. The
grantee may extend the due date for any performance report from a subgrantee if the grantee
will still be able to meet its performance reporting obligations to the Federal agency.

9.4 Report Frequency and Distribution. The following table sets forth the reporting

requirements for this Agreement. Please note the first report due date listed for each type of
report.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A— 1 6 16



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Interim Reports Final Report

Format No specific format required. See content | Summary of activities completed
requirements within Section 9.3 (43 CFR | during the entire period of
12.80) above. performance is required. See
v content requirements within Section
9.3 (43 CFR 12.80) above.
Reporting Frequency | Semi-Annual Final Report due upon completion
of Agreement’s period of
performance
Reporting Period For Semi-Annual Reporting: October 1 | Entire period of performance
through March 31 and April 1 through
September 30.
Due Date* Within 30 days after the end of the Within 90 days after the completion
Reporting Period date of the Agreement

First Report Due Date | The first performance report is due for N/A
reporting period ending
December 31,2011

Format SF-425 (all sections must be completed) | SF-425(all sections must be
completed)

Reporting Frequency | Semi-Annual Final Report due upon completion
of Agreement’s period of
performance

Reporting Period For Semi-Annual Reporting: October 1 | Entire period of performance

: through March 31 and April 1 through
September 30.
Due Date* Within 30 days after the end of the Within 90 days after the completion
Reporting Period date of the Agreement
First Report Due Date | The first financial report is due for N/A
reporting period ending
December 31,2011
Submit to: GO and GOTR GO and GOTR

* If the completion date is prior to the end of the next reporting period, then no interim report is due for
that period. Instead, the Recipient is required only to submit the final financial and performance
reports, which will cover the entire period of performance including the last abbreviated
reporting period.

10. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Recipient agrees to comply or assist Reclamation with all regulatory compliance
requirements and all applicable State, Federal, and local environmental and cultural and
paleontological resource protection laws and regulations as applicable to this project. These may
include, but are not limited to, the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), including the
Council on Environmental Quality and Department of the Interior regulations implementing

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-17 17



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

NEPA, the Clean Water Act, the Endangered Species Act, consultation with potentially affected
Tribes, and consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office.

Certain environmental and other associated compliance are Federal responsibilities, and will
occur as appropriate. Reclamation will identify the need for and will complete any appropriate
environmental compliance requirements, as identified above, pertinent to Reclamation pursuant
to activities specific to this assisted activity. Environmental and other associated compliance
shall be completed prior to the start of this project. As such, notwithstanding any other provision

of this Agreement, Reclamation shall not provide any funds to the Recipient for Agreement
purposes. and the Recipient shall not begin implementation of the assisted activity described in
this Agreement, until Reclamation provides written notice to the Recipient that all applicable
environmental and regulatory compliance analyses and clearances have been completed and that
the Recipient may begin implementation of the assisted activity. If the Recipient begins project
activities that require environmental and other regulatory compliance approval, such as
construction activities, prior to receipt of written notice from Reclamation that all such

clearances have been obtained, then Reclamation reserves the right to unilaterally terminate this
agreement for cause.

A-18

Agreement No. R11AP35323 18



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

II. RECLAMATION STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS - STATES,
LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND FEDERALLY RECOGNIZED INDIAN
TRIBAL GOVERNMENTS

1. REGULATIONS

The regulations at 43 CFR, Part 12, Subparts A, C, E, and F, are hereby incorporated by
reference as though set forth in full text. The following Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circulars, as applicable, and as implemented by 43 CFR Part 12, are also incorporated by
reference and made a part of this Agreement. Failure of a Recipient to comply with any
applicable regulation or circular may be the basis for withholding payments for proper charges
made by the Recipient and/or for termination of support.

1.1 Colleges and Universities that are Recipients or sub-recipients shall use the following:

2 CFR Parts 215 and 220 (Circular A 21), "Cost Principles for Educational Institutions"
Circular A 110, as amended September 30, 1999, "Uniform Administrative Requirements for
Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit

Organizations" (Codification by Department of Interior, 43 CFR 12, Subpart F)

Circular A-133, revised June 27, 2003, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations"

1.2 State, Local and Tribal Governments that are Recipients or sub-recipients shall use the
following:

2 CFR Part 225 (Circular A 87), "Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal
Governments"

Circular A 102, as amended August 29, 1997, "Grants and Cooperative Agreements with State
and Local Governments" (Grants Management Common Rule, Codification by Department of
Interior, 43 CFR 12, Subpart C)

Circular A-133, revised June 27, 2003, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations"

1.3 Nonprofit Organizations that are Recipients or sub-recipients shall use the following:

2 CFR Part 230 (Circular A 122), “Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations"

A-19

Agreement No. R11AP35323 19



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Circular A 110, as amended September 30, 1999, "Uniform Administrative Requirements for
Grants and Agreements With Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit
Organizations" (Codification by Department of Interior, 43 CFR 12, Subpart F)

Circular A-133, revised June 27, 2003, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations”

1.4 Organizations other than those indicated above that are Recipients or sub-recipients shall use
the basic principles of OMB Circular A-110 (Codification by Department of Interior, 43 CFR 12,
Subpart F), and cost principles shall be in accordance with 48 CFR Subpart 31.2. :

1.5 43 CFR 12.77 sets forth further regulations that govern the award and administration of
subawards by State governments.

2. PAYMENT

2.1 Payment Standards. (43 CFR §12.61)

(a) Scope. This section prescribes the basic standard and the methods under which a Federal
agency will make payments to grantees, and grantees will make payments to subgrantees and
contractors.

(b) Basic standard. Methods and procedures for payment shall minimize the time elapsing
between the transfer of funds and disbursement by the grantee or subgrantee, in accordance with
Treasury regulations at 31 CFR part 205.

(c) Advances. Grantees and subgrantees shall be paid in advance, provided they maintain or
demonstrate the willingness and ability to maintain procedures to minimize the time elapsing
between the transfer of the funds and their disbursement by the grantee or subgrantee.

(d) Reimbursement. Reimbursement shall be the preferred method when the requirements in
paragraph (c) of this section are not met. Grantees and subgrantees may also be paid by
reimbursement for any construction grant. Except as otherwise specified in regulation, Federal
agencies shall not use the percentage of completion method to pay construction grants. The
grantee or subgrantee may use that method to pay its construction contractor, and if it does, the
awarding agency's payments to the grantee or subgrantee will be based on the grantee's or
subgrantee's actual rate of disbursement.

(e) Working capital advances. If a grantee cannot meet the criteria for advance payments
described in paragraph (c) of this section, and the Federal agency has determined that
reimbursement is not feasible because the grantee lacks sufficient working capital, the awarding
agency may provide cash or a working capital advance basis. Under this procedure the awarding
agency shall advance cash to the grantee to cover its estimated disbursement needs for an initial
period generally geared to the grantee's disbursing cycle. Thereafter, the awarding agency shall
reimburse the grantee for its actual cash disbursements. The working capital advance method of
payment shall not be used by grantees or subgrantees if the reason for using such method is the

Agreement No. R1IAP35323 A-20 20



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

unwillingness or inability of the grantee to provide timely advances to the subgrantee to meet the
subgrantee's actual cash disbursements.

(f) Effect of program income, refunds, and audit recoveries on payment.

(1) Grantees and subgrantees shall disburse repayments to and interest earned on a revolving
fund before requesting additional cash payments for the same activity.

(2) Except as provided in paragraph (f)(1) of this section, grantees and subgrantees shall
disburse program income, rebates, refunds, contract settlements, audit recoveries and interest
earned on such funds before requesting additional cash payments.

(g) Withholding payments.

(1) Unless otherwise required by Federal statute, awarding agencies shall not withhold
payments for proper charges incurred by grantees or subgrantees unless—

(i) The grantee or subgrantee has failed to comply with grant award conditions, or
(ii) The grantee or subgrantee is indebted to the United States.

(2) Cash withheld for failure to comply with grant award condition, but without suspension
of the grant, shall be released to the grantee upon subsequent compliance. When a grant is
suspended, payment adjustments will be made in accordance with §12.83(c).

(3) A Federal agency shall not make payment to grantees for amounts that are withheld by
grantees or subgrantees from payment to contractors to assure satisfactory completion of
work. Payments shall be made by the Federal agency when the grantees or subgrantees
actually disburse the withheld funds to the contractors or to escrow accounts established to
assure satisfactory completion of work.

(h) Cash depositories.

(1) Consistent with the national goal of expanding the opportunities for minority business
enterprises, grantees and subgrantees are encouraged to use minority banks (a bank which is
owned at least 50 percent by minority group members). A list of minority owned banks can
be obtained from the Minority Business Development Agency, Department of Commerce,
Washington, DC 20230.

(2) A grantee or subgrantee shall maintain a separate bank account only when required by
Federal-State Agreement.

(i) Interest earned on advances. Except for interest earned on advances of funds exempt

under the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (31 U.S.C. 6501 et seq.) and the Indian
Self-Determination Act (23 U.S.C. 450), grantees and subgrantees shall promptly, but at

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-21 21



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

least quarterly, remit interest earned on advances to the Federal agency. The grantee or
subgrantee may keep interest amounts up to $100 per year for administrative expenses.

2.2 Payment Method

Requesting Payments -- Requests for advance or reimbursement may be made by the following
methods: .

(1) SF-270, Request for Advance or Reimbursement - Recipients may submit an original and
properly certified SF-270 form to the GO. Requests for reimbursement may be submitted on a
monthly basis or more frequently if authorized by the (GO). Recipients may not request advance
payments for anticipated expenses that are greater than one month in advance of the request.

(2) SF-271, Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for Construction Programs -
The SF-271 shall be used for construction Agreements paid by the reimbursement method, letter
of credit, electronic funds transfer, or Treasury check advance, except where the advance is
based on periodic requests from the Recipient, in which case the SF-270 shall be used. This
request may be submitted on a quarterly basis, but no less frequently than on an annual basis.
Recipients may submit an original, properly certified SF-271 form to the GO.

(3) Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) - Recipients may utilize the
Department of Treasury ASAP payment system to request advances or reimbursements. ASAP
is a Recipient-initiated payment and information system designed to provide a single point of
contact for the request and delivery of Federal funds. Recipient procedures must minimize the
time elapsing between the drawdown of federal funds and the disbursement for agreement

purposes.

Recipients interested in enrolling in the ASAP system, please contact Dee Devillier at 303-445-
3461 or Sheri Oren at 303-445-3448.

3. PROCUREMENT STANDARDS (43 CFR §12.76)

(a) States. When procuring property and services under a grant, a State will follow the same
policies and procedures it uses for procurements from its non-Federal funds. The State will
ensure that every purchase order or other contract includes any clauses required by Federal
statutes and executive orders and their implementing regulations. Other grantees and subgrantees
will follow paragraphs (b) through (i) in this section.

(b) Procurement standards.
(1) Grantees and subgrantees will use their own procurement procedures which reflect

applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to
applicable Federal law and the standards identified in this section.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-22 22



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(2) Grantees and subgrantees will maintain a contract administration system which ensures
that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their
contracts or purchase orders.

(3) Grantees and subgrantees will maintain a written code of standards of conduct governing

the performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of contracts. No
employee, officer or agent of the grantee or subgrantee shall participate in selection, or in the
award or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest, real

or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when:

(i) The employee, officer or agent,
(i) Any member of his immediate family,
(iii) His or her partner, or

(iv) An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for award. The grantee's or subgrantee's
officers, employees or agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything
of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or parties to subagreements.
Grantee and subgrantees may set minimum rules where the financial interest is not
substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. To the extent
permitted by State or local law or regulations, such standards or conduct will provide for
penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations of such standards by the
grantee's and subgrantee's officers, employees, or agents, or by contractors or their
agents. The awarding agency may in regulation provide additional prohibitions relative to
real, apparent, or potential conflicts of interest.

(4) Grantee and subgrantee procedures will provide for a review of proposed procurements to
avoid purchase of unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to
consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where
appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other
appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach.

(5) To foster greater economy and efficiency, grantees and subgrantees are encouraged to
enter into State and local intergovernmental agreements for procurement or use of common
goods and services.

(6) Grantees and subgrantees are encouraged to use Federal excess and surplus property in
lieu of purchasing new equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and reduces
project costs.

(7) Grantees and subgrantees are encouraged to use value engineering clauses in contracts for
construction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions.
Value engineering is a systematic and creative analysis of each contract item or task to
ensure that its essential function is provided at the overall lower cost.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-23 23



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(8) Grantees and subgrantees will make awards only to responsible contractors possessing the
ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed procurement.
Consideration will be given to such matters as contractor integrity, compliance with public
policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical resources.

(9) Grantees and subgrantees will maintain records sufficient to detail the significant history
of a procurement. These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following:
rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or
rejection, and the basis for the contract price.

(10) Grantees and subgrantees will use time and material type contracts only—
(i) After a determination that no other contract is suitable, and
(ii) If the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk.

(11) Grantees and subgrantees alone will be responsible, in accordance with good
administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all contractual and
administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are not limited to
source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. These standards do not relieve the grantee
or subgrantee of any contractual responsibilities under its contracts. Federal agencies will not
substitute their judgment for that of the grantee or subgrantee unless the matter is primarily a
Federal concern. Violations of law will be referred to the local, State, or Federal authority
having proper jurisdiction.

(12) Grantees and subgrantees will have protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes
relating to their procurements and shall in all instances disclose information regarding the
protest to the awarding agency. A protestor must exhaust all administrative remedies with the
grantee and subgrantee before pursuing a protest with the Federal agency. Reviews of
protests by the Federal agency will be limited to:

(i) Violations of Federal law or regulations and the standards of this section (violations of
State or local law will be under the jurisdiction of State or local authorities) and

(ii) Violations of the grantee's or subgrantee's protest procedures for failure to review a
complaint or protest. Protests received by the Federal agency other than those specified
above will be referred to the grantee or subgrantee.
(c) Competition.
(1) All procurement transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full and open

competition consistent with the standards of §12.76. Some of the situations considered to be
restrictive of competition include but are not limited to:

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-24 24



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120

04-2011

(i) Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do
business,

(ii) Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding,

(iii) Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies,
(iv) Noncompetitive awards to consultants that are on retainer contracts,

(v) Organizational conflicts of interest,

(vi) Specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an equal” product to be
offered and describing the performance of other relevant requirements of the

procurement, and

(vii) Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

(2) Grantees and subgrantees will conduct procurements in a manner that prohibits the use of
statutorily or administratively imposed in-State or local geographical preferences in the
evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where applicable Federal statutes
expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. Nothing in this section preempts
State licensing laws. When contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services,
geographic location may be a selection criteria provided its application leaves an appropriate
number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for the
contract.

(3) Grantees will have written selection procedures for procurement transactions. These
procedures will ensure that all solicitations:

(i) Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the
material, product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive
procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may
include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be
procured, and when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and
standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product
specifications should be avoided if at all possible. When it is impractical or uneconomical
to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a “brand name or
equal” description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient
requirements of procurement. The specific features of the named brand which must be
met by offerors shall be clearly stated; and

(ii) Identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be
used in evaluating bids or proposals.

(4) Grantees and subgrantees will ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or
products which are used in acquiring goods and services are current and include enough

Agreement No. RI1AP35323 A-25 25



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. Also, grantees and
subgrantees will not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

(d) Methods of procurement to be followed —(1) Procurement by small purchase procedures.
Small purchase procedures are those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for
securing services, supplies, or other property that do not cost more than the simplified acquisition
threshold fixed at 41 U.S.C. 403(11) (currently set at $150,000). If small purchase procedures are
used, price or rate quotations shall be obtained from an adequate number of qualified sources.

(2) Procurement by sealed bids (formal advertising). Bids are publicly solicited and a firm-
fixed-price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid,
conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest
in price. The sealed bid method is the preferred method for procuring construction, if the
conditions in §12.76(d)(2)(i) apply.

(1) In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should be present:

(A) A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is
available;

(B) Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively and
for the business; and

(C) The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the
successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.

(ii) If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:

(A) The invitation for bids will be publicly advertised and bids shall be solicited from
an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them sufficient time prior to the
date set for opening the bids;

(B) The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent
attachments, shall define the items or services in order for the bidder to properly
respond;

(C) All bids will be publicly opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation
for bids;

(D) A firm fixed-price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest
responsive and responsible bidder. Where specified in bidding documents, factors
such as discounts, transportation cost, and life cycle costs shall be considered in
determining which bid is lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine
the low bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken
advantage of; and

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-2 6 26



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(E) Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason.

(3) Procurement by competitive proposals. The technique of competitive proposals is
normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a fixed-price
or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used when conditions are not
appropriate for the use of sealed bids. If this method is used, the following requirements

apply:

(i) Requests for proposals will be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and
their relative importance. Any response to publicized requests for proposals shall be
honored to the maximum extent practical,;

(i1) Proposals will be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources;

(iii) Grantees and subgrantees will have a method for conducting technical
evaluations of the proposals received and for selecting awardees;

(iv) Awards will be made to the responsible firm whose proposal is most
advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered; and

(v) Grantees and subgrantees may use competitive proposal procedures for
qualifications-based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional
services whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified
competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation.
The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in
procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to purchase other types of
services though A/E firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort.

(4) Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is procurement through solicitation of a
proposal from only one source, or after solicitation of a number of sources, competition is
determined inadequate.
(i) Procurement by noncompetitive proposals may be used only when the award of a
contract is infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids or competitive
proposals and one of the following circumstances applies:

(A) The item is available only from a single source;

(B) The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay
resulting from competitive solicitation;

(C) The awarding agency authorizes noncompetitive proposals; or

(D) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-27 27



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(ii) Cost analysis, i.e., verifying the proposed cost data, the projections of the data, and
the evaluation of the specific elements of costs and profits, is required.

(iii) Grantees and subgrantees may be required to submit the proposed procurement to the
awarding agency for pre-award review in accordance with paragraph (g) of this section.

(e) Contracting with small and minority firms, women's business enterprise and labor surplus
area firms. (1) The grantee and subgrantee will take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that
minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when
possible.

(2) Affirmative steps shall include:

(i) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on
solicitation lists;

(ii) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are
solicited whenever they are potential sources;

(iii) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or
quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and women's
business enterprises;

(iv) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage
participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises;

(v) Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the
Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and

(vi) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative
steps listed in paragraphs (e)(2) (i) through (v) of this section.

(f) Contract cost and price.

(1) Grantees and subgrantees must perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every
procurement action including contract modifications. The method and degree of analysis is
dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation, but as a starting
point, grantees must make independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals. A cost
analysis must be performed when the offeror is required to submit the elements of his
estimated cost, e.g., under professional, consulting, and architectural engineering services
contracts. A cost analysis will be necessary when adequate price competition is lacking, and
for sole source procurements, including contract modifications or change orders, unless price
reasonableness can be established on the basis of a catalog or market price of a commercial
product sold in substantial quantities to the general public or based on prices set by law or
regulation. A price analysis will be used in all other instances to determine the
reasonableness of the proposed contract price.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-2 8 28



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(2) Grantees and subgrantees will negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each
contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is
performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration will be given to the
complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's
investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and
industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.

(3) Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under grants will be allowable only
to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices are consistent
with Federal cost principles (see §12.62). Grantees may reference their own cost principles
that comply with the applicable Federal cost principles.

(4) The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of
contracting shall not be used.

(g) Awarding agency review.

(1) Grantees and subgrantees must make available, upon request of the awarding agency,
technical specifications on proposed procurements where the awarding agency believes such
review is needed to ensure that the item and/or service specified is the one being proposed for
purchase. This review generally will take place prior to the time the specification is
incorporated into a solicitation document. However, if the grantee or subgrantee desires to
have the review accomplished after a solicitation has been developed, the awarding agency
may still review the specifications, with such review usually limited to the technical aspects
of the proposed purchase.

(2) Grantees and subgrantees must on request make available for awarding agency pre-award
review procurement documents, such as requests for proposals or invitations for bids,
independent cost estimates, etc. when:

(i) A grantee's or subgrantee's procurement procedures or operation fails to comply with
the procurement standards in this section; or

(ii) The procurement is expected to exceed the simplified acquisition threshold and is to
be awarded without competition or only one bid or offer is received in response to a

solicitation; or

(iii) The procurement, which is expected to exceed the simplified acquisition threshold,
specifies a “brand name” product; or

(iv) The proposed award is more than the simplified acquisition threshold and is to be
awarded to other than the apparent low bidder under a sealed bid procurement; or

(v) A proposed contract modification changes the scope of a contract or increases the
contract amount by more than the simplified acquisition threshold.

Agreement No. RI1AP35323 A-29 29



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(3) A grantee or subgrantee will be exempt from the pre-award review in paragraph (g)(2) of
this section if the awarding agency determines that its procurement systems comply with the
standards of this section.

(i) A grantee or subgrantee may request that its procurement system be reviewed by the
awarding agency to determine whether its system meets these standards in order for its

system to be certified. Generally, these reviews shall occur where there is a continuous

high-dollar funding, and third-party contracts are awarded on a regular basis.

(ii) A grantee or subgrantee may self-certify its procurement system. Such self-
certification shall not limit the awarding agency's right to survey the system. Under a
self-certification procedure, awarding agencies may wish to rely on written assurances
from the grantee or subgrantee that it is complying with these standards. A grantee or
subgrantee will cite specific procedures, regulations, standards, etc., as being in
compliance with these requirements and have its system available for review.

(h) Bonding requirements. For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts
exceeding the simplified acquisition threshold, the awarding agency may accept the bonding
policy and requirements of the grantee or subgrantee provided the awarding agency has made a
determination that the awarding agency's interest is adequately protected. If such a determination
has not been made, the minimum requirements shall be as follows:

(1) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. The “bid
guarantee” shall consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other
negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance
of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.

(2) A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A
“performance bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all
the contractor's obligations under such contract.

(3) A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A
“payment bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required
by law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for
in the contract.

(1) Contract provisions. A grantee's and subgrantee's contracts must contain provisions in
paragraph (i) of this section. Federal agencies are permitted to require changes, remedies,
changed conditions, access and records retention, suspension of work, and other clauses
approved by the Office of Federal Procurement Policy.

(1) Administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or

breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate.
(Contracts more than the simplified acquisition threshold)

Agreement No. R1IAP35323 A-30 30



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(2) Termination for cause and for convenience by the grantee or subgrantee including the
manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (All contracts in excess of
$10,000)

(3) Compliance with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal
Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and
as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter 60). (All construction
contracts awarded in excess of $10,000 by grantees and their contractors or subgrantees)

(4) Compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3). (All contracts and subgrants for
construction or repair)

(5) Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a~7) as supplemented by
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). (Construction contracts in excess of $2000
awarded by grantees and subgrantees when required by Federal grant program legislation)

(6) Compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part
5). (Construction contracts awarded by grantees and subgrantees in excess of $2000, and in

excess of $2500 for other contracts which involve the employment of mechanics or laborers)

(7) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting.

(8) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to patent rights with
respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under
such contract.

(9) Awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to copyrights and rights in
data.

(10) Access by the grantee, the subgrantee, the Federal grantor agency, the Comptroller
General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books,
documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific
contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

(11) Retention of all required records for three years after grantees or subgrantees make final
payments and all other pending matters are closed.

(12) Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section
306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.
1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR
part 15). (Contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of $100,000)

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A'31 31



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(13) Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in
the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

4. EQUIPMENT (43 CFR §12.72)

(a) Title. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this section, title to equipment
acquired under a grant or subgrant will vest upon acquisition in the grantee or subgrantee
respectively.

(b) States. A State will use, manage, and dispose of equipment acquired under a grant by the
State in accordance with State laws and procedures. Other grantees and subgrantees will follow
paragraphs (c) through (e) of this section.

(c) Use.

(1) Equipment shall be used by the grantee or subgrantee in the program or project for which
it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be
supported by Federal funds. When no longer needed for the original program or project, the
equipment may be used in other activities currently or previously supported by a Federal
agency.

(2) The grantee or subgrantee shall also make equipment available for use on other projects
or programs currently or previously supported by the Federal Government, providing such
use will not interfere with the work on the projects or program for which it was originally
acquired. First preference for other use shall be given to other programs or projects supported
by the awarding agency. User fees should be considered if appropriate.

(3) Notwithstanding the encouragement in §12.65(a) to earn program income, the grantee or
subgrantee must not use equipment acquired with grant funds to provide services for a fee to
compete unfairly with private companies that provide equivalent services, unless specifically
permitted or contemplated by Federal statute.

(4) When acquiring replacement equipment, the grantee or subgrantee may use the
equipment to be replaced as a trade-in or sell the property and use the proceeds to offset the
cost of the replacement property, subject to the approval of the awarding agency.

(d) Management requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (including replacement
equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part with grant funds, until disposition takes place
will, as a minimum, meet the following requirements:

(1) Property records must be maintained that include a description of the property, a serial

number or other identification number, the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition
date, and cost of the property, percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property,

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-32 32



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data including
the date of disposal and sale price of the property.

(2) A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with the
property records at least once every two years.

(3) A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss,
damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage, or theft shall be investigated.

(4) Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the property in good
condition.

(5) If the grantee or subgrantee is authorized or required to sell the property, proper sales
procedures must be established to ensure the highest possible return.

(e) Disposition. When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is
no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or previously
supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made as follows:

(1) Items of equipment with a current per-unit fair market value of less than $5,000 may be
retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding agency.

(2) Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $5,000 may be
retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount calculated by
multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the awarding agency's share of
the equipment.

(3) In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition actions, the

awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take excess and disposition actions.
(f) Federal equipment. In the event a grantee or subgrantee is provided Federally-owned
equipment:

(1) Title will remain vested in the Federal Government.

(2) Grantees or subgrantees will manage the equipment in accordance with Federal agency
rules and procedures, and submit an annual inventory listing.

(3) When the equipment is no longer needed, the grantee or subgrantee will request
disposition instructions from the Federal agency.

(g) Right to transfer title. The Federal awarding agency may reserve the right to transfer title to
the Federal Government or a third part named by the awarding agency when such a third party is
otherwise eligible under existing statutes. Such transfers shall be subject to the following
standards:

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-33 33



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(1) The property shall be identified in the grant or otherwise made known to the grantee in
writing.

(2) The Federal awarding agency shall issue disposition instruction within 120 calendar days
after the end of the Federal support of the project for which it was acquired. If the Federal
awarding agency fails to issue disposition instructions within the 120 calendar-day period the
grantee shall follow 12.72(e).

(3) When title to equipment is transferred, the grantee shall be paid an amount calculated by
applying the percentage of participation in the purchase to the current fair market value of the
property.

5. SUPPLIES (43 CFR §12.73)

(a) Title. Title to supplies acquired under a grant or subgrant will vest, upon acquisition, in the
grantee or subgrantee respectively.

(b) Disposition. If there is a residual inventory of unused supplies exceeding $5,000 in total
aggregate fair market value upon termination or completion of the award, and if the supplies are
not needed for any other Federally sponsored programs or projects, the grantee or subgrantee
shall compensate the awarding agency for its share. '

6. INSPECTION

Reclamation has the right to inspect and evaluate the work performed or being performed under
this Agreement, and the premises where the work is being performed, at all reasonable times and
in a manner that will not unduly delay the work. If Reclamation performs inspection or
evaluation on the premises of the Recipient or a sub-Recipient, the Recipient shall furnish and
shall require sub-recipients to furnish all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safe and
convenient performance of these duties.

7. AUDIT (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507)

Non-Federal entities that expend $500,000 or more in a year in Federal awards shall have a
single or program-specific audit conducted for that year in accordance with the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507) and revised OMB Circular A-133. Federal awards
are defined as Federal financial assistance and Federal cost-reimbursement contracts that non-
Federal entities receive directly from Federal awarding agencies or indirectly from pass-through
entities. They do not include procurement contracts, under grants or contracts, used to buy goods
or services from vendors. Non-Federal entities that expend less than $500,000 a year in Federal
awards are exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, except as noted in A-133,

§__ .215(a), but records must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the
Federal agency, pass-through entity, and General Accounting Office (GAO).

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 3 4 34



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

8. ENFORCEMENT (43 CFR §12.83)

(a) Remedies for noncompliance. If a grantee or subgrantee materially fails to comply with any
term of an award, whether stated in a Federal statute or regulation, an assurance, in a State plan
or application, a notice of award, or elsewhere, the awarding agency may take one or more of the
following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances:

(1) Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the grantee
or subgrantee or more severe enforcement action by the awarding agency,

(2) Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and matching credit for) all or part of the cost of
the activity or action not in compliance,

(3) Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the current award for the grantee's or subgrantee's
program,

(4) Withhold further awards for the program, or
(5) Take other remedies that may be legally available.

(b) Hearings, appeals. In taking an enforcement action, the awarding agency will provide the
grantee or subgrantee an opportunity for such hearing, appeal, or other administrative proceeding
to which the grantee or subgrantee is entitled under any statute or regulation applicable to the
action involved.

(c) Effects of suspension and termination. Costs of grantee or subgrantee resulting from
obligations incurred by the grantee or subgrantee during a suspension or after termination of an
award are not allowable unless the awarding agency expressly authorizes them in the notice of
suspension or termination or subsequently. Other grantee or subgrantee costs during suspension
or after termination which are necessary and not reasonably avoidable are allowable if:

(1) The costs result from obligations which were properly incurred by the grantee or
subgrantee before the effective date of suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of it,
and, in the case of a termination, are noncancellable, and,

(2) The costs would be allowable if the award were not suspended or expired normally at the
end of the funding period in which the termination takes effect.

(d) Relationship to Debarment and Suspension. The enforcement remedies identified in this
section, including suspension and termination, do not preclude grantee or subgrantee from being

subject to “Debarment and Suspension” under E.O. 12549 ((2 CFR 29.5.12 and 2 CFR 1400,
Subpart C).

9. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE (43 CFR §12.84)

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-35 35



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Except as provided in 43 CFR §12.83 awards may be terminated in whole or in part only as
follows:

(a) By the awarding agency with the consent of the grantee or subgrantee in which case the two
parties shall agree upon the termination conditions, including the effective date and in the case of
partial termination, the portion to be terminated, or

(b) By the grantee or subgrantee upon written notification to the awarding agency, setting forth
the reasons for such termination, the effective date, and in the case of partial termination, the
portion to be terminated. However, if, in the case of a partial termination, the awarding agency
determines that the remaining portion of the award will not accomplish the purposes for which
the award was made, the awarding agency may terminate the award in its entirety under either
§12.83 or paragraph (a) of this section.

10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (2 CFR §1400)

The Department of the Interior regulations at 2 CFR 1400—Governmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement), which adopt the common rule for the governmentwide system of
debarment and suspension for nonprocurement activities, are hereby incorporated by reference
and made a part of this Agreement. By entering into this grant or cooperative Agreement with
the Bureau of Reclamation, the Recipient agrees to comply with 2 CFR 1400, Subpart C, and
agrees to include a similar term or condition in all lower-tier covered transactions. These
regulations are available at http://www.gpoaccess.gov/ecft/.

11. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (2 CFR §182 and §1401)

The Department of the Interior regulations at 2 CFR 1401—Governmentwide Requirements for
Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance), which adopt the portion of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. 701 et seq, as amended) applicable to grants and cooperative
agreements, are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement. By
entering into this grant or cooperative agreement with the Bureau of Reclamation, the Recipient
agrees to comply with 2 CFR 182.

12. ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The provisions of the Assurances, SF 424B or SF 424D as applicable, executed by the Recipient
in connection with this Agreement shall apply with full force and effect to this Agreement. All
anti-discrimination and equal opportunity statutes, regulations, and Executive Orders that apply
to the expenditure of funds under Federal contracts, grants, and cooperative Agreements, loans,
and other forms of Federal assistance. The Recipient shall comply with Title VI or the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and nay program-specific
statutes with anti-discrimination requirements. The Recipient shall comply with civil rights laws

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A"'3 6 36



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

including, but not limited to, the Fair Housing Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Americans
with Disabilities Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Equal Educational
Opportunities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, and the Uniform Relocation Act.

Such Assurances also include, but are not limited to, the promise to comply with all applicable
Federal statutes and orders relating to nondiscrimination in employment, assistance, and housing;
the Hatch Act; Federal wage and hour laws and regulations and work place safety standards;
Federal environmental laws and regulations and the Endangered Species Act; and Federal
protection of rivers and waterways and historic and archeological preservation.

13. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

The Recipient warrants that no person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or
secure this Agreement upon an Agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide offices established and
maintained by the Recipient for the purpose of securing Agreements or business. For breach or
violation of this warranty, the Government shall have the right to annul this Agreement without
liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement amount, or otherwise recover, the full
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee

14. TRAFFICKING VICTIMS PROTECTION ACT OF 2000 (2 CFR §175.15)

Trafficking in persons.
(a) Provisions applicable to a recipient that is a private entity.

(1) You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this award, and subrecipients'
employees may not

(i) Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the
award is in effect;

(i) Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or
(iii) Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.

(2) We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without
penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity —

(1) Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.l of this award term; or
(ii) Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to terminate the

award to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.l of this award term through conduct
that is either

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-37 37



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011
(A) Associated with performance under this award; or
(B) Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and due process for
imputing the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR
part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as implemented by our agency at 2 CFR part 1400.
(b) Provision applicable to a recipient other than a private entity. We as the Federal awarding
agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without penalty, if a subrecipient that is a private

entity—

(1) Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award
term; or

(2) Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to terminate the
award to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award term through
conduct that is either
(i) Associated with performance under this award; or
(i1) Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the
conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 180, “OMB
Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement),” as implemented by our agency at 2 CFR part 1400.

(c) Provisions applicable to any recipient .

(1) You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source
alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award term.

(2) Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a.2 or b of this section:

(i) Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA),
as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104(g)), and

(ii) Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to us under
this award.

(3) You must include the requirements of paragraph a.1 of this award term in any subaward
you make to a private entity.

(d) Definitions . For purposes of this award term:

(1) “Employee” means either:

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A.. 38 38



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(i) An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is engaged in the performance
of the project or program under this award; or

(ii) Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under this
award and not compensated by you including, but not limited to, a volunteer or individual
whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind contribution toward cost
sharing or matching requirements.

(2) “Forced labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the recruitment,
harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for labor or services, through
the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of subjection to involuntary servitude,
peonage, debt bondage, or slavery.

(3) “Private entity”:

(i) Means any entity other than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or foreign public
entity, as those terms are defined in 2 CFR 175.25.

(ii) Includes:

(A) A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit institution of higher education,
hospital, or tribal organization other than one included in the definition of Indian tribe
at 2 CFR 175.25(b).

(B) A for-profit organization.
(4) “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and “coercion” have the
meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7102).

15. NEW RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING (43 CFR §18)

The Recipient agrees to comply with 43 CFR 18, New Restrictions on Lobbying, including the
following certification:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an
agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A- 39 39



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.

(c) The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify accordingly.
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

16. UNIFORM RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AND REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION
POLICIES ACT OF 1970 (URA) (42 USC § 4601 et seq.)

(a) The Uniform Relocation Assistance Act (URA), 42 U.S.C. § 4601 et seq., as amended,
requires certain assurances for Reclamation funded land acquisition projects conducted by a
Recipient that cause the displacement of persons, businesses, or farm operations. Because
Reclamation funds only support acquisition of property or interests in property from willing
sellers, it is not anticipated that Reclamation funds will result in any “displaced persons,” as
defined under the URA.

(b) However, if Reclamation funds are used for the acquisition of real property that results in
displacement, the URA requires Recipients to ensure that reasonable relocation payments and
other remedies will be provided to any displaced person. Further, when acquiring real
property, Recipients must be guided, to the greatest extent practicable, by the land acquisition
policies in 42 U.S.C. § 4651.

(c) Exemptions to the URA and 49 CFR Part 24

(1) The URA provides for an exemption to the appraisal, review and certification rules
for those land acquisitions classified as “voluntary transactions.” Such “voluntary
transactions” are classified as those that do not involve an exercise of eminent domain
authority on behalf of a Recipient, and must meet the conditions specified at 49 CFR
§ 24.101(b)(1)(E)-(iv).

(2) For any land acquisition undertaken by a Recipient that receives Reclamation funds,
but does not have authority to acquire the real property by eminent domain, to be
exempt from the requirements of 49 CFR Part 24 the Recipient must:

(i) provide written notification to the owner that it will not acquire the property in
the event negotiations fail to result in an amicable agreement, and;

Agreement No. R11AP35323

A_4O 40



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

(i)  inform the owner in writing of what it believes to be the market value of the
property

(d) Review of Land Acquisition Appraisals. Reclamation reserves the right to review any land
appraisal whether or not such review is required under the URA or 49 CFR § 24.104. Such
reviews may be conducted by the Department of Interior’s Appraisal Services Directorate or
a Reclamation authorized designee. When Reclamation determines that a review of the
original appraisal is necessary, Reclamation will notify the Recipient and provide an
estimated completion date of the initial appraisal review.

17. CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION AND UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER
REQUIREMENTS (2 CFR 25, APPENDIX A)

A. Requirement for Central Contractor Registration (CCR)

Unless you are exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, you as the recipient must
maintain the currency of your information in the CCR until you submit the final financial report
required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that you
review and update the information at least annually after the initial registration, and more
frequently if required by changes in your information or another award term.

B. Requirement for Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Numbers
If you are authorized to make subawards under this award, you:

1. Must notify potential subrecipients that no entity (see definition in paragraph C of this
award term) may receive a subaward from you unless the entity has provided its DUNS
number to you.

2. May not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has provided its DUNS number to
you.

C. Definitions
For purposes of this award term:

1. Central Contractor Registration (CCR) means the Federal repository into which an entity
must provide information required for the conduct of business as a recipient. Additional
information about registration procedures may be found at the CCR Internet site
(currently at htzp://www.ccr.gov).

2. Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number means the nine-digit number
established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc. (D&B) to uniquely identify business
entities. A DUNS number may be obtained from D&B by telephone (currently 866—705—
5711) or the Internet (currently at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform).

3. Entity, as it is used in this award term, means all of the following, as defined at 2 CFR
part 25, subpart C:

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 4 1 41



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian Tribe;
A foreign public entity;

A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;

A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and

A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity.

opo o

4. Subaward:

a. This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any
portion of the substantive project or program for which you received this award and
that you as the recipient award to an eligible subrecipient.

b. The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry
out the project or program (for further explanation, see Sec. 11.210 of the attachment
to OMB Circular A-133, ‘‘Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations’”).

c. A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement
that you consider a contract.

5. Subrecipient means an entity that:

a. Receives a subaward from you under this award; and
b. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward.

18. PROHIBITION ON TEXT MESSAGING AND USING ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT
SUPPLIED BY THE GOVERNMENT WHILE DRIVING

Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership On Reducing Text Messaging While Driving, was
signed by President Barack Obama on October 1, 2009 (ref:
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2009/pdf/E9-24203.pdf). This Executive Order introduces a
Federal Government-wide prohibition on the use of text messaging while driving on official
business or while using Government-supplied equipment. Additional guidance enforcing the ban
will be issued at a later date. In the meantime, please adopt and enforce policies that
immediately ban text messaging while driving company-owned or rented vehicles, government-
owned or leased vehicles, or while driving privately owned vehicles when on official
government business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the government.

19. AGRICULTURAL OPERATIONS [Public Law 111-11, Section 9504(a)(3)(B)]

The Recipient shall not use any associated water savings to increase the total irrigated acreage of
the Recipient or otherwise increase the consumptive use of water in the operation of the
Recipient, as determined pursuant to the law of the State in which the operation of Recipient is
located.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A-42 42



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

20. TITLE TO IMPROVEMENTS [Public Law 111-11, Section 9504(a)(3)(D)]

If the activities funded under this Agreement result in an infrastructure improvement to a
federally owned facility, the Federal Government shall continue to hold title to the facility and
improvements to the facility.

(&

21. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS {Public Law 111-11, Section
9504(a)(3)(E)(v.)] '

The non-Federal share of the cost of operating and maintaining any infrastructure improvement
funded through this Agreement shall be 100 percent.

22. LIABILITY [Public Law 111-11, Section 9504(a)(3)(F)]

(a) IN GENERAL.—Except as provided under chapter 171 of title 28, United States Code
(commonly known as the ‘‘Federal Tort Claims Act’”), the United States shall not be liable
for monetary damages of any kind for any injury arising out of an act, omission, or
occurrence that arises in relation to any facility created or improved under this Agreement,
the title of which is not held by the United States.

(b) TORT CLAIMS ACT.—Nothing in this section increases the liability of the United States

beyond that provided in chapter 171 of title 28, United States Code (commonly known as the
‘‘Federal Tort Claims Act’’).

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A_ 4 3 43



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

ATTACHMENT A

Agreement No. R11AP35323

BUDGET

A-44

44



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120
04-2011

COMPUTATION  APPLICANT RECLAMATION  TOTAL
BUDGET ITEM DESCRIPTION $/Unitand  Quantity FUNDING FUNDING COST
Unit

SALARIES AND WAGES

Fiona Sanchez, IRWD $57.30/hour 20 $1,146 $1,146

Amy McNulty, IRWD $45.90/hour 120 $5,508 $5,508
FRINGE BENEFITS

Fiona Sanchez, IRWD $34.40/hour 20 $688 $688

Amy McNulty, IRWD $27.60/hour 120 $3,312 $3,312
EQUIPMENT ,

High-Efficiency Toilets (Tank) $300 500 $150,000 $150,000

High-Efficiency Toilets (Dual— $150 50 $7,500 $7,500
Flush Valve Only)

High-Efficiency Urinals (Valve $150 50 $7,500 $7,500
Only)

Faucet Aerators $2 300 $600 $600

Faucet Flow Restrictors $20 300 $6,000 $6,000
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS

Marketing/Collateral Materials $12.50 400 $5,000 $5,000
CONTRACTUAL/
AUDIT & INSTALLATION

Site Audit $45 400 $17,300 $700 $18,000

Upgrade SCE Audit Tool $2,200 1 $2,200 $2,200

Administration: Installation $25 400 $10,000 $10,000
Company

High-Efficiency Toilets (Tank) $100 500 $33,500 $16,500 $50,000

High-Efficiency Toilets (Dual— $100 50 $5,000 $5,000
Flush Valve Only)

High-Efficiency Urinals $100 50 $5,000 $5,000

Faucet Aerators $10 300 $3,000 $3,000

Faucet Flow Restrictors $15 300 $4,500 $4,500
OTHER

Reporting, IRWD Staff $73.50/hour 20 $1,470 $1,470

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS $212,924 $73,500
INDIRECT COSTS -2.9 % $53.50/hour 160 $8,560 $8,560
TOTAL ACTIVITY/PROJECT $221,484 $73,500 $294,984
COSTS
A-45

Agreement No. R11AP35323

45




Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120

04-2011

Budget Narrative

Salaries and Wages

Amy McNulty, Water Efficiency Supervisor with IRWD, and Elise Goldman Water-Use
Efficiency Specialist with West Basin will be lead coordinators for their respective
agencies. Fiona Sanchez, Water Efficiency Manager of IRWD will provide overall
program oversight. The budget for salaries and wages is $6,654. This cost is based on an
estimated hours of time that will be devoted to management of this project at a rate of
$57.30 for Ms. Sanchez (20 hours) and $45.90 for Ms. McNulty (120 hours). In addition,
there are no proposed salary increases that need to be accounted for.

Fringe Benefits

The fringe benefits for IRWD staff are estimated at $4,000 based on the same number of
hours of time devoted to management of this program per person as described in salaries
and wages. The fringe benefit rates are $34.40 for Ms. Sanchez and $27.60 for Ms.
McNulty. Fringe benefits include vacation, sick, holiday, FICA expense, Medicare
expense, education reimbursement, PERS, life insurance, disability, insurance, health
insurance, dental insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and out-of-pocket
expenses. Fringe benefits are calculated at a rate of 60% for IRWD staff.

Travel

Travel expenses related to audit activity are included in the SCE contribution. In
addition, travel associated with installation work is included in the “‘Contractual”
category. The contractor will only be travelling locally to sites within IRWD and West
Basin’s service areas and these costs are embedded within the task to perform the
installations.

Equipment
This program involves the retrofit of existing, non-efficient water using equipment with
high-efficiency models and therefore purchase of devices is crucial to the program.

The equipment includes high-efficiency toilets, high-efficiency urinals and valves, faucet
aerators and faucet flow restrictors. The total equipment cost for this program is
$171,600.

Supplies

The only supplies needed to implement this program will be collateral/marketing
materials and will amount to $5,000. This covers the costs to design and print the water
portion of the customer's audit report/voucher. Program marketing material design and
printing costs are also included in this estimate. We estimate a total unit cost of $12.50.
This is a unit price per customer for two separate items: 400 marketing pieces/ brochures
(including development and printing costs) and 400 customer reports generated and
printed by the SCE auditors, yielding a total budget of $5,000.

Agreement No. R11AP35323 A - 4 6 46



Bureau of Reclamation Form, RF-120

04-2011

Contractual

The companies hired to perform the installation work will be procured according to the
regular public agency hiring protocol and hiring protocol for the Investor Owned Utility
participants. Contractors will be contacted upon completion of the audit by the SCE
auditors if there is/are qualifying devices at the site. The customer will redeem the
voucher with the hired contractor(s). The contractor(s) will retrofit all listed devices and
return the redeemed voucher to the respective water agency. The contractor(s) will be
responsible for procuring and transporting all new equipment. Contractor(s) will also be
responsible for transporting all old equipment and recycling of old devices if possible.
Contractor(s) will also follow all established schedules and milestones. All of these tasks
are included in the associated costs.

The hired contractor(s) will have all the necessary experience to conduct the work listed
above. The contactor(s) will be available to perform work throughout the duration of the
entire program.

The total cost for the contractor to perform these services is $97,700 assuming a rate of
$100 per hour for administration. The rates were determined based on existing contracts
with contractors implementing similar water conservation programs. A detailed
breakdown of the contractual budge is included above in Table 1.

Environmental and Regulatory Compliance Costs
There are no environmental or regulatory compliance costs associated with this program.

Other

All reporting requirements will be performed by the IRWD Program Manager, Ms.
McNulty. The reports will be submitted bi-annually and a final report upon completion
of the Program.

These hours are counted as in-kind contributions of 20 hours at a rate of $73.50 for a total
of $1,470. This rate is a combination of Ms. McNulty’s “Salaries and Wages” and
“Fringe Benefits” rates.

Indirect Costs

The indirect costs associated with this program include overhead and financial services
and are estimated to be $8,560. This represents 2.9% of the total program budget and is
based on a melded rate of $53.50/hour for a total of 160 hours (number of reporting hours
plus the hours from salaries and wages for both Ms. Sanchez and Ms. McNulty).

A-47

Agreement No. R11AP35323 47






September 26, 2011
Prepared by: J. McGehee/P. Uematsu
Submitted by: K. Burton

Approved by: Paul Cook//é/(

CONSENT CALENDAR
WELLS 21 AND 22 DESALTER CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER
SUMMARY:

The Wells 21 and 22 Desalter design/build is currently being constructed by Pascal & Ludwig
Constructors. Staff recommends that the Board:

e Approve an Expenditure Authorization in the amount of $577,500, and
e Approve Contract Change Order (CCO) No. 7, in the amount of $316,182, to Pascal &
Ludwig Constructors for the Wells 21 and 22 Desalter Design/Build Project.

BACKGROUND:

Design/Build of the Wells 21 and 22 Desalter was awarded to Pascal & Ludwig in June 2010 in
the amount of $14,152,587. This plant will provide reverse osmosis treatment for seven
million gallons per day of groundwater extracted from Wells 21 and 22 located in the City of
Tustin. The project is receiving 25% matching funds, up to a maximum of $11,700,000, in Title
XVI funding through the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) from the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

Contract Change Order No. 7:

CCO No. 7, in the amount of $316,182, consists of the following:

Pump Vibration Panels, $56,881: The original design provided for local non-recording vibration
sensors. It was determined that the Dytran Triaxial Accelerometer sensors and vibration
monitoring PLC control panels would improve the District’s preventative maintenance
diagnostics. These accelerometers provide analog signals, more accurate monitoring, vibration
trending, and can be programmed to provide regular reports. The original bidding documents did
not provide for this type of vibration monitoring. This work item includes Dytran vibration
sensors on the 250-horsepower RO feed pumps and 250-horsepower product water pumps, and
two remote PLC control panels to be connected to the main SCADA system. The original local
vibration sensors were credited.

Jack and Bore Channel Work, $248,975: The original design provided for the air gap discharges
and site drainage to be combined and conveyed to the City of Tustin’s storm drain in Edinger
Avenue. In subsequent discussions with City staff during final design, the City determined that
only site drainage would be allowed into the City’s storm drain due to capacity issues. This
required the design team to initiate discussions with the County of Orange Flood Control staff to
obtain preliminary approval to connect to their Santa Fe Channel. The facilities consist of a
second storm drain discharge system using 20-inch/24-inch steel piping, two manholes, flow
metering station with telemetry and at-grade sampling tap, 42-inch jack and bore across the
OCTA/Metrolink railways and channel headwall outlet structure in the Santa Fe Channel.

pu Wells 21_22_co 7.docx 1 6



Consent Calendar: Wells 21 and 22 Desalter Contract Change Order
September 26, 2011
Page 2

Second Motorized Gate, $23,060: The original contract documents included two sliding gates —
one motorized and one manual. In subsequent discussions with Orange County Fire Authority
(OCFA) staff during final design, it was agreed to motorize both sliding gates. This work item is
to provide for the second electric gate system.

Deleted Injection Quill Enclosures, <$12,734>: The original contract documents required
enclosures around chemical injection quills in 13 locations. In subsequent discussions with
OCFA staff during final design, it was agreed that enclosures were not required at the injection
quills. This work item is for the deletion of these enclosures.

Staff reviewed Pascal & Ludwig’s cost proposal, negotiated changes, and mutually agreed with
Pascal & Ludwig on the costs. CCO No. 7 in the amount of $316,182 is attached as Exhibit “A”.
The construction contract summary is attached as Exhibit “B”.

FISCAL IMPACTS:
Project 10286 (1081) is included in the FY 2011-12 Capital Budget. An Expenditure

Authorization is requested for CCO No. 7, prior Desalter and Pipeline construction change
orders, and other construction-related work as shown in the table below and in Exhibit “C”.

Project Current Addition Total Existing This EA Total EA
No. Budget <Reduction> Budget EA Request Request
10286 (1081) $39,921,300 $-0- $39,921,300 $35,328,800 $577,500  $35,906,300

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act. In conformance with the
California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15004, a Mitigated Negative
Declaration was adopted February 8, 2010. To fulfill requirements of the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009, the project is also subject to compliance with the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). An Environmental Assessment was prepared to achieve
NEPA compliance for the project and the USBR has adopted a Categorical Exemption for the
project.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 20, 2011.
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE AN EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION IN THE AMOUNT
OF $577,500 FOR PROJECT 10286, AND APPROVE CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 7
IN THE AMOUNT OF $316,182 TO PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS FOR THE
WELLS 21 AND 22 DESALTER, PROJECT 10286 (1081).



Consent Calendar: Wells 21 and 22 Desalter Contract Change Order
September 26, 2011
Page 3

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Pascal and Ludwig Constructors Contract Change Order No. 7
Exhibit “B” — Pascal and Ludwig Constructors Construction Contract Summary
Exhibit “C” — Expenditure Authorization






€Ot EXHIBIT “A” *R

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT C.0. No. 7

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue ﬁ:% (] Final

Irvine, California 92619 G

(949) 453-5300 P Project No. 10286 (1081)
Wells 21 and 22 Desalter

Project Title Date:  September 8, 2011

THE FOLLOWING CHANGE TO CONTRACT, DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS IS PROPOSED, SADDITIONS | $DELETIONS | DAYSzx

Pump Vibration Panels $56,881 0
Jack and Bore Channel Work $248,975
Second Gate to be Motorized $23,060

$12,734

Deleted Injection Quill Enclosures

TOTAL $328,916 $12,734 0
DAYS +
1. NET AMOUNT THIS CHANGE ORDER = $316,182 0
2. ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT = $14,152,587 450
3. TOTAL PREVIOUS CHANGE ORDER(S) = $1,721,164.00 135
4, TOTAL BEFORE THIS CHANGE ORDER (2+3) = $15,873,751.00 585

$16,189,933.00 585

B

5. PROPOSED REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT TO DATE (1+4)

We hereby agree to make the above change subject to the terms of this change order for the sum of:

Cuontractor
SIGNATURE DATE APPROVAL LEVEL REQUIRED
( / M— ahz/n Department Director Approval Required
IRW)Englnecg or Consulting Engincer Date General Manager Approval Required
L) K /) /Z//‘/ Committee Approval Required
Principef igineer .i Date Board Approval Required ' X
o &Qk Y/
Director of Engineering and Cunstruction Date By Date
500997
General Manoger Date Purchase Order No.

NOTE:; The documents supporting this Change Order, including any drawings and estimates of cost, if required are attached hereto and made a part
hereof. This Change Order shall not be considered as such until it has been signed by the Owner and the Contraclor. Upon finat approval, distribution
of copies will be made as required. The parties mutually agree the pricing set forth in this Change Order are complete and falr compensation for the
entirely of tha work authorized under this Change Order and that no additional compenaation is warranted nor shall it be allowed.

CHANGES: All workmanship and materials called for by this Order shail be fully in accord with the original Contract Documents insofar as the same
may be applied without conflict to the conditions set forth by this Order. The time for completing the contract will not be extendsd unless expressly

provided for in this Change Order.
C8G-02



WY 0E°8 LI0ZZLE

LaA4! 009VE'LE0T $
%6'T 00°'EST'0LZS
%E'E 00'€S6'591$

%60 00'P06°EL6S

EXHIBIT “B”

a
a seApue ofms amm tonpord paw sayeA tad
a sa8mqosip MEas pupard 7z PR 17 S[oa 50f sk | ou0zi 1T

10T ‘g qUIa03( u0 pasasddy

40404001 osy___{o i (] 00°60E V0T YIS [%E0 10022L Ly jooos 100°CzLLYS ToBeuep [eIoan) A9 poaarddy
RGOSADL] [ERBOD) 01 02 STORROTIPOI — 00600

TOISS SIORTADK] (B ‘SOSmNIo( IR 03 Aumo))

BRI J0 0PSICY RN [eGPFINPY P TRNR) WIFROS
00°03 v 30 DESIQ MR, TEod0NS 0] SSIHD UOREIYIIPIL PPV T |

*oJURITSU] 8,30308DT0]) — HHE0D]
UONISE SUOSIADL] PRAdS (] }9T0007) W Spornsuy
00'08 v TELODIPDS 00 Ayrory 8ues() 30 10U K8 el ppViTT
0107 '9 2q010 1o pasoddy
0T/T0 o5 00LAS'ZSTPIS [0 looos 0008 000§ pus 30 1a &9 panasddy|
amQg gu%%.o.o wepp | e NOTTY waneo) | s a8weg) jo [5=)1 ) mnowy HUOWY WY
sopodmoy pesoy| ong, | FOL | SEED | SO |y ooy | pinipg | ey samemmag | sy smonang | oo ey | sury sspag oty |00 opdneseg 0 B
posay ) nn&»»&*nuﬁﬁu e
TIOAOZRL (532 9L 0 ISCZETVis | oty PRy FaEng
£ ] _ - -
nopsidmo) puEpo)| i w0 R0
ORI/ IETA ‘zoomBny ufisaq
{40a], BNaT) SI0RIISTOD) Bpmpnr 29 [eose Jo10wa0)) prng ulsag



IRVINE RANCH WATER DisTRicT  Exhibit “C”

Expenditure Authorization

Project Name: WELLS 21 & 22 WELLHEAD PIPELINE & TREATMENT PLANT
Project No: 10286 EA No: 13 ID Split: Regional Potable Water Splits (11/08)
Improvement District (ID) Allocations
Project Manager: UEMATSU, PATRICIA ID No. Allocation % Source of Funds
Project Engineer: MORI, RICHARD 112 4.3 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
Request Date: September 13, 2011 113 5.2 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
115 7.3 CAPITAL FUND
Summary of Direct Cost Authorizations 121 15.3 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
s 130 11.8 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
Prmo“sly Approved EA Requests: $35,328,800 140 4'2 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
This Request: $577,500 150 31.2 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
. T ans o 153 34 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
Total EA Requests: $35, 906,300 154 T35 BONDS Y-E-I_'['O BE SOLD™
Previously Approved Budget: $39,921,300 161 8.0 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
182 3.0 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
Budget Adiustment Requmted this EA: $0 184 2.8 BONDS Y__E_T TO BE SOLD**
Updated Budget: $39,921,300 186 1.0 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
188 1.0 BONDS YET TO BE SOLD**
Budget Remaining After This EA $4,015,000 Total 100.0%
Comments:
This
This EA Previous EA EA Requests Budget Previous Updated
Phase Regquest Requests to Date Request Budget Budget Start Finish
ENGINEERING - PLANNING OUTSIDE 0 0 0 0 0 0 2/10 1} 4/12
ENGINEERING DESIGN - IRWD 0 250, 000 250,000 0 250,000 250,000 | |11/09] 6/11
ENGINEERING DESIGN - OUTSIDE 0 2,919,500 2,919,900 0 3,200,000 3,200,000 | | 11/09] 6/11
DESIGN STAFF FIELD SUPPORT 0 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 | | 11/09] 6/11
ENGINEERING - CA&I IRWD 0 250,000 250,000 0 250,000 250, 000 5710 | 6/13
ENGINEERING - CA&I OUTSIDE 100,000 1,425,000 1,525,000 100, 000 1,425,000 1,525,0001 | 5/10 | 6/13
CONSTRUCTION FIELD SUPPORT 0 10, 000 10,000 0 10, 000 10,000 5/10 1 6/13
CONSTRUCTION 450,000 | 24,281,300) 24,731,300 (100,000) =28,375,000| 28,275,000{ | 5/10] 6/13
LEGAL 0 10,000 10,000 0 10,000 10,000 | | 11/09] 6/13
LAND 0 4,325,100 4,325,100 i} 4,325,100 4,325,100 1/10 | 6/10
WATER QUALITY 0 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 | | 11/09| 4/12
ENGINEERING ENVIRONMENTAL-QUTS] 0 75,000 75,000 0 75,000 75,000 | | 6/09 | 6/10
Contingency - 5.00% Subtotal $27,500 31,682,500  $1,710,000 $0  $1,901,200 $1,901,200
Subtotal (Direct Costs) $577,500 $35,328,800 $35,906,300 $0 $39,921,300 $39,921,300
Estimated G/A - 180.00% of direct labor* $0  $1,098,000 $1,098,000 $0  $1,098,000 -$1,098,000
Total $677.6500 $36.426,800 $37.004,300 $0 $41,019.300 $41,019,300
| Direct Labor $0 $610, 000 $610,000 o 8610, 000 $610,000 |

*EA includes estimated G&A. Actual G&A will be applied based on the current ratio of direct labor to general and administrative costs.

EA Originator: C/r" M 113/t
Department Director: YP W ‘:&%-« { m‘ 14/
Finance:

Board/General Manager:

** IRWD hereby declares that it reasonably expects those expenditures marked with two asterisks to be reimbursed with proceeds of future debt to be
incurred by IRWD in a maximum principal amount of $41,840,000. The above-captioned project is further described in the attached staff report and
additional documents, if any, which are hereby incorporated by reference. This declaration of official intent to reimburse costs of the above-captioned
project is made under Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2,







September 26, 2011
Prepared by: D. Lochridge
Submitted by: D. Pederse [;7

Approved by: Paul Cooly%

CONSENT CALENDAR

CATHODIC PROTECTION OF SIX STEEL RESERVOIRS
IN SANTIAGO CANYON — EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION

SUMMARY:

This project consists of installing cathodic protection equipment for six steel reservoirs in the
Santiago Canyon area (Fleming, Benner, Shaw, Williams, Modjeska and Chapman). Staff
recommends that the Board approve an Expenditure Authorization in the amount of $37,400 for
the Cathodic Protection of Six Steel Reservoirs in Santiago Canyon Project.

BACKGROUND:

A survey of the six steel reservoirs in the Santiago Canyon area (Fleming, Benner, Shaw,
Williams, Modjeska and Chapman) showed that only two of the reservoirs have cathodic
protection systems. Fleming Reservoir is equipped with an impressed current system that
requires updating and Chapman Reservoir has a depleted sacrificial anode system. The
remaining four reservoirs have no cathodic protection systems and, therefore, are very vulnerable
to internal corrosion.

The scope of work consists of updating the impressed current system at Fleming Reservoir,
replacing the anodes at Chapman Reservoir, and installing new sacrificial anode systems for the
remaining four reservoirs. All of the new equipment installed in the reservoirs will be
ANSI/NSF 61 certified to comply with California Department of Public Health regulations.
Corrpro Companies, Inc. is currently the only provider of ANSI/NSF 61 certified cathodic
protection equipment, so a sole-source contract will be awarded to them for the project.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 11484 is included in the approved Fiscal Year 2011-12 Capital Budget. The Expenditure
Authorization is provided as Exhibit “A”. The project will be funded by the Replacement Fund.

Project Current Addition Total Exist This EA Total EA
No. Budget <Reduction>  Budget EA Request Request
11484 (1637)  $96,800 $0 $96,800 $59,400 $37,400 $96,800

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
This activity is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to

the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3, Section 15301(b), which
provides an exemption for repair, maintenance, and minor alterations of existing facilities.

wo — Cathodic Prot for 6 Reservoirs



Consent Calendar — Cathodic Protection for Six Steel Reservoirs

September 26, 2011

Page 2

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 20, 2011.
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE AN EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATION IN THE AMOUNT
OF $37,400 FOR THE CATHODIC PROTECTION OF SIX STEEL RESERVOIRS IN
SANTIAGO CANYON PROJECT 11484 (1637).

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Expenditure Authorization



EXHIBIT “A”
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
Expenditure Authorization
Project Name: CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR 6 STEEL RESERVOIRS IN SCWD

Project No: 11484 EANo: 2 ID Split: ~ Miscellaneous
Improvement District (ID) Allocations
Project Manager: LOCHRIDGE, DAVID ID No. Allocation % Source of Funds
Project Engineer: LOCHRIDGE, DAVID [ 101 ] 100.0 | REPLACEMENT FUND
Request Date: September 12, 2011 Total 100.0%
Summary of Direct Cost Authorizations
Previously Approved EA Requests: $59,400
This Request: $37,400
Total EA Requests: $96,800
Previously Approved Budget: $96,800
Budget Adjustment Requested this EA: $0
Updated Budget: $96,800
Budget Remaining After This EA $0
Comments:
This
This EA Previous EA EA Requests Budget Previous Updated
Phase ; Request Requests to Date Request Budget Budget Start Finish
ENGINEERING DESIGN - OUTSIDE 0 24,000 24,000 0 24,000 24,000 7/10 | 6/12
DESIGN STAFF FIELD SUPPORT 0 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 7710 | 6/12
ENGINEERING - CA&I IRWD 0 3,000 3,000 0 3,000 3,000 7/10 | 6/12
CONSTRUCTION 34,000 25,000 59,000 0 59,000 59,000 7/10 | 6/12
Contingency - 10.00% Subtotal $3,400 $5,400 $8,800 $0 $8,800 $8,800
‘Subtotal (Direct Costs) $37.400 $59,400 $96,800 $0 $96.,800 $96,800
Estimated G/A - 180.00% of direct labor* ($800) $9,800 $9,000 $0 $9,000 $9, 000
Total $36.600 $69,200 $105.800 $0 $105.800 $105.800
[ Direct Labor $0 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $5,000 |

*EA includes estimated G&A. Actual G§A will be applied based on the current ratio of direct labor to general and administrative costs.
7~/2J9Y

o912/1/
4

EA Originator:

Department Director:

Finance:

Board/General Manager:
#% [RWD hereby declares that it reasonably expects those expenditures marked with two asterisks to be reimbursed with proceeds of future debt to be
incurred by IRWD in a2 maximum principal amount of $108,000, The above-captioned project is further described in the attached staff report and
additional decuments, if any, which are hereby incorporated by reference. This declaration of official intent to reimburse costs of the above-captioned
project is made under Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2.







September 26, 2011 ﬁé’ m
Prepared by: H. Cho/M. Cortez
Submitted by: K. Burto*= \"/
Approved by: Paul Cook//&/ﬁ ]

CONSENT CALENDAR

LAKE FOREST WOODS SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT
CHANGE ORDER AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE

SUMMARY:

The Lake Forest Woods Sewer Rehabilitation Project installed a Cured-In-Place-Pipe (CIPP)
liner in approximately 40,000 linear feet of sewer in The Woods area and three other areas in
Lake Forest. These sewers have cracked due to tree root intrusion, and the CIPP liner was
installed to create a solid pipe that will prevent tree roots from growing into the sewer and
creating clogs. Additionally, 220 linear feet of 8-inch sewer was replaced with a 15-inch sewer
pipe to prevent surcharging in Old Trabuco Road. A final Contract Change Order in the credit
amount of <$95,117.93> is required to adjust the contract for the final project quantities. The
project has received a final inspection by staff and acceptance is recommended.

BACKGROUND:

Contract Change Order No. 3 in the credit amount of <§95,117.93> is for adjusting the final
project quantities. A Staff Report summarizing the final project additions and deletions
quantities is attached as Exhibit “A”. Contract Change Order No. 3 is attached as Exhibit “B”.

Project Title: Lake Forest Woods Sewer Rehabilitation
Project No.: 20747

Design Engineer: AECOM

Construction Management by: IRWD Staff

Contractor: Insituform Technologies, Inc.
Original Contract Cost: $2,585,897.75

Final Contract Cost: $2,814,216.47

Original Contract Days: 210

Substantial Completion Days: 392

Final Contract Days: 392

Total Budget: $3,304,500

he LF Woods Sewer Rehab Final Accept_1.docx

18



Consent Calendar: Lake Forest Woods Sewer Rehabilitation Project Change Order and Final
Acceptance

September 26, 2011
Page 2

Total Project Cost (Est.): $3,304,500

Final Change Order Approved On: September 26, 2011
FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 20747 (1111) is included in the FY 2011-12 Capital Budget. The existing budget and
Expenditure Authorization were sufficient to complete the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized
under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Sections 15301 and 15302. A
Notice of Exemption was filed with the County of Orange on September 3, 2009.
COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 WITH INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. IN
THE CREDIT AMOUNT OF <$95,117.93>; ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF THE LAKE
FOREST WOODS SEWER REHABILITATION, PROJECT 20747 (1111); AUTHORIZE THE
GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION; AND AUTHORIZE THE
PAYMENT OF THE RETENTION 35 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF RECORDING THE
NOTICE OF COMPLETION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Staff Report
Exhibit “B” — Contract Change Order No. 3



EXHIBIT “A”

Staff Report
For
Lake Forest Woods Sewer Rehabilitation Project

This staff report summarizes Insituform Technologies Contract Change Order No. 3
documenting the additional work required for the project. Contract Change Order No. 3 in the
credit amount of <§95,117.93> includes the following 11 items:

1.

Cost to Set-up Additional Spill Containment Around Creeks

After the construction contract was awarded, staff requested additional spill containment
be placed near the creeks and equipment to be staged on-site in the event of a sewer spill.
The additional cost to place the containment during the work around the creeks is
$28,274.24.

Cost to Install CIPP Liner on Eldamar in Phase 2

During the project, staff identified an additional sewer reach that required rehabilitation
due to continued damage from tree roots. The sewer is an 8-inch sewer on Eldamar in
Phase 2 and is approximately 260 feet long. The additional cost for CIPP installation is
$8,839.05 and is based on the same unit price ($34/ft.) for 8-inch sewer rehabilitation for
the project.

Deduction for Not Installing Top Hats in Truss Pipe Laterals
In The Woods area, there are 28 sewer reaches that were built using truss pipe. Truss

pipe is built with two concentric plastic tubes with the annular space supported by a
lattice structure. All of the truss pipe sewers are 8-inch diameter in The Woods.
However, the sewer laterals were built using 8”x8” wye connections. “Top hats” could
not be installed over these wye connections and the laterals were opened up. There are
108 sewer laterals in truss pipe sections, and the cost for these laterals will be removed
from the contract. The unit cost for top hat installation is $1,700 per top hat, and the total
deduction is $183,600.00.

Cost to Re-open Sewer Laterals without Top Hats

For the 108 sewer laterals that did not have top hats installed, Insituform incurred extra
costs to re-open the 8” sewer lateral opening. The unit cost for this work was $425 per
lateral, and the total cost was $45,900.00.

Cost to Connect Laterals Not on Plans on Old Trabuco Road

The existing 8-inch sewer on Old Trabuco Road was upsized to a 15-inch sewer to
prevent surcharging. The record drawings show the sewer laterals connecting to another
sewer. When the existing sewer was exposed, three sewer laterals were discovered
connected to the sewer main. The additional cost to connect the three laterals to the new
15-inch sewer was $9,650.00.

A-1



6.

10.

11.

Emergency Mobilization to Remove Root Clog at Sewer Lateral Connection

A root clog formed at the sewer lateral connection at 24931 Timberwood after the sewer
was rehabilitated and the top hat was installed. QPS, the top hat installation
subcontractor, was available to clear the root clog. The additional cost was $712.76.

Cost to Re-excavate Sewer Lateral on Eucalyptus

Insituform replaced the sewer at six lateral locations behind Eucalyptus because they
over-cut the liner at the sewer lateral opening exposing the holes where the roots have
grown into the sewer. These sewers were replaced at the laterals with approximately 8
foot long sections of 8-inch sewer. The pipe couplings connecting the old pipe sections
to the new pipe sections were encased in concrete. However at one lateral location, the
replacement pipe section was buried without concrete requiring re-excavation in order to
place the concrete around the couplings. The cost for the additional excavation work was
$8,480.00.

Deduction for Tree Removal on Eucalyptus

There was a large Eucalyptus tree growing over one of the sewer sections to replace on
the sewer behind Eucalyptus. IRWD contracted a tree contractor for the work at a cost of
$800. This amount will be deducted from the construction contract.

Deduction for Inspection Over-Time

During the project, the CIPP installation sometimes went past 4 PM due to the length of
time required to heat the liner and to cure the liner. Field conditions lengthened the time
it took to heat the water or steam to the required temperature to cure the liner. Over the
course of the project, IRWD inspectors spent 77 hours working over-time. At the
standard over-time rate of $150/hour, a total of $11,550.00 will be deducted from the
construction contract.

Deduction for Resident Claim

A resident at 22246 Eucalyptus claimed that the contractor damaged his wood rail fence
and a plant. Additionally, he claimed that a sewer cleanout was opened by the contractor,
and he hired a contractor to CCTV his lateral. The CCTV video showed a small resin lip
at the bottom of the sewer lateral at the lateral connection to the sewer main. This resin
lip was removed by the contractor. The resident filed a claim with IRWD for the fence
repair, plant replacement, and cost to CCTV the sewer lateral. The total cost was
$1,023.98. IRWD paid this claim, and the cost will be deducted from the construction
contract.

Non-Compensatory Time Extension to Complete the Project

Staff issued a non-compensatory time extension of 81 calendar days to complete the
project. Along with the 8 additional work days to complete the additional work in this
change order, the project completion date was extended from May 27, 2011 to August 31,
2011.




EXHIBIT “B”

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue &

Irvine, California 92618 Ged
(949) 453-5300 e

Lake Forest Woods Sewer Rehabiliation Project

C.0. No.

(Q Final

3,Page 1 of 2

Project No. 20747

Project Title Date: __Sept. 19,2011
THE FOLLOWING CHANGE TO CONTRACT, DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS IS PROPOSED. $ ADDITIONS | $ DELETIONS DAYS t
1. Costs to set-up additional spill containment around the creeks during $28,274.24 $-0- 0
the work in Phases 1 through 5.
2. Cost to install CIPP in 260 If of 8” sewer on Eldamar in Phase 2. $8,839.05 $-0- 6
3. Deduction for not installing top hats in 108 laterals in truss sewer $-0- $183,600.00 0
pipe sections with 8” sewer lateral connections at $1,700 per lateral.
4. Cost to open 108 sewer laterals that did not get top hats at $425 per $45,900.00 $-0- 0
lateral.
5. Cost to connect to 3 laterals not shown on plans on Old Trabuco $9,650.00 $-0- 1
Road during the sewer upsizing.
6. Cost for QPS emergency mobilization to remove root clog at 24931 $712.76 $-0- 0
Timberwood.
7. Cost to re-excavate sewer lateral on Eucalyptus to place concrete on $8,480.00 $-0- 1
the pipe couplings.
3. Deduction for the cost of the tree removal above the sewer lateral on $-0- $800.00 0
Eucalyptus.
9. Deduction for inspectors over time costs during the project. $-0- $11,550.00 0
10. Deduction for claim payment to resident Dean Harris. $-0- $1,023.98 0
11. Non-compensatory time extension to complete the project. $-0- $-0- 81
The revised project completion date shali be extended from May 27,
2011 to Aug. 31, 2011.
A
TOTAL | § 19\, 856,05 §146,973.3€
DAYS +
1. NET AMOUNT THIS CHANGE ORDER = <$95,117.93> 89
2. ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT = $2,585,897.75 210
3. TOTAL PREVIOUS CHANGE ORDER(S) = $323,436.65 93
4. TOTAL BEFORE THIS CHANGE ORDER (2+ 3) = $2,909,334.40 303
5. PROPOSED REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT TO DATE (1+4) = $2,814,216.47 1)~ 392

NOTE: The documents supporting this Change Order,
hereof. This Change Order shall not be considered

as such until it has been signed by the Owner and the
of copies will be made as required. The parties mutually agree the pricing set forth in this Change Order ar

including any drawings and estimates of cost, if requi
Contra

entirety of the work authorized under this Change Order and that no additional compensation is warranted nor shall it be allowed.

CHANGES: All workmanship and materials called
provided for in this Change Order.
Rev. 8/2006

B-1

for by this Order shall be fully in accord with the original Contract D
may be applied without conflict to the conditions set forth by this Order. The time for completing the contract will not be

red are attached hereto and made a part
ctor. Upon final approval, distribution
e complete and fair compensation for the

ocuments insofar as the same
extended unless expressly




CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue

Irvine, California 92618

(949) 453-5300

C.0. No. 3, Page 2 of 2
E Final

Project No. 20747

Lake Forest Woods Sewer Rehabiliation Project
Project Title Date: __Sept. 19,2011

We hereby agree to make the above change subject to the terms of this change order for the sum of:
<NINETY FIVE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED SEVENTEEN AND 93/100 --——-—swecemomem - - - = = = »9- Dollars

q/ Zo / 1 Insituform Technologies ﬂ[_' %?/M

Date © Contractor y By: (/

SIGNATURE DATE APPROVAL LEVEL REQUIRED
.-U?’}( C(/VS/ i ’ 2| I\ Department Director Approval Required
Ww or Consylting Engineer ' Date, - General Manager Approval Required
Zo & ‘7‘/ YAYAL Committee Approval Required
Principal Engineer ~ Enginecring-©ferations Support Date Board Approval Required
Director of Engineering and Construction Date By Date
General Manager Date Purchase Order No.

NOTE: The documents supporting this Change Order, including any drawings and estimates of cost, if required are attached hereto and made a part
hereof. This Change Order shall not be considered as such until it has been signed by the Owner and the Contractor. Upon final approval, distribution
of copies will be made as required. The parties mutually agree the pricing set forth in this Change Order are complete and fair compensation for the
entirety of the wark authorized under this Change Order and that no additional compensation is warranted nor shall it be allowed.

CHANGES: All workmanship and materials called for by this Order shall be fully in accord with the original Contract Documents insofar as the same
may be applied without confiict to the conditions set forth by this Order. The time for completing the contract will not be extended unless expressly
provided for in this Change Order.

Rev. 8/2006

B-2



September 26, 2011
Prepared by: J. Dayer/D. Lochridge
Submitted by: D. Pedersen ﬁ//

Approved by: Paul Cook//é/(

ACTION CALENDAR

LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE CONTRACT AWARD
SUMMARY:
The current three-year landscape and irrigation maintenance contracts for the District’s properties
expired on June 30, 2011 and have been extended on a month-to-month basis until new contracts
are awarded. Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to award three-year
landscape and irrigation maintenance contracts to Tropical Plaza Nursery, Inc. for $631,440,

Pinnacle Landscape for $240,923 and Merchants Landscape Services for $262,080.

BACKGROUND:

Staff circulated a Project Manual to three contractors to solicit bids for landscape and irrigation
maintenance services required for 136 District-owned sites divided into seven geographical areas.
Bids were received from all three contractors: Tropical Plaza Nursery, Inc., Pinnacle Landscape
and Merchants Landscape Services. These contractors are currently performing the work for the
District and staff has been very pleased with their service and responsiveness.

The contractors were informed that the work may be awarded to multiple firms and, therefore, they
were required to submit individual bids for each geographic area. The distinct advantage of this
approach is that an overall cost savings of $106,837 can be achieved by awarding the work to the
lowest bidder for each geographic area rather than to the single lowest overall bidder. As shown on
Exhibit “A”, the lowest bid was received from Tropical Plaza Nursery, Inc. for Areas 1,2, 5 and 7,
Pinnacle Landscape for Areas 3 and 6 and Merchants Landscape Services for Area 4.

The total amount for the three-year contracts is $1,134,443, which is $108,422 or approximately
nine percent less than the same amount for the recently expired contracts.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Sufficient funds for the first year of the contracts, at a total cost of $376,560, were included in the
approved Fiscal Year 2011-12 Operating Budget. Funds will be budgeted for the remaining two
years of the contracts through the District’s budget process.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
This activity is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to

the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3, Section 15301(h), which
provides an exemption for maintenance of existing landscaping.

wo — Landscape & Irrigation Maint Contract 1 9



Action Calendar: Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Contract Award
September 26, 2011
Page 2

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 20, 2011.
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THREE-YEAR

LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS WITH TROPICAL PLAZA
NURSERY, INC. FOR $631,440, PINNACLE LANDSCAPE FOR $240,923 AND MERCHANTS

LANDSCAPE SERVICES FOR $262,080.
LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Bid Evaluation Sheet









W

September 26, 2011
Prepared by: P. Uemat
Submitted by: K. Burtoh ¥

\,.
Approved by: Paul COOW

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT SERVICES

ACTION CALENDAR

SUMMARY:

Due to the District’s current high volume of projects and overlapping deadlines, additional
construction management services are needed for approximately the next nine months. Staff
recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services
Agreement with CH2M Hill in the amount of $300,000 for construction management services for
various capital projects.

BACKGROUND:

The District’s Capital Projects Engineering staff consists of six engineers. This staff is currently
performing tasks associated with numerous projects, including: the preliminary design, design,
and construction of the Wells 21 and 22 project (three construction packages); the Baker
Treatment Plant (two or three construction packages); nine new or existing wells that are either
being drilled, rehabilitated, or equipped; several significant pipeline projects; and various other
capital projects. Two of these engineers are also assigned to the Michelson Water Recycling
Plant (MWRP) Biosolids and Energy Recovery Project, which requires approximately 50 to 75%
of their time.

The majority of these projects are currently being constructed, and they require significant efforts
to keep the construction on schedule and within budget . For example, there is heavy staff
involvement in the Wells 21 and 22 Pipelines due to City of Tustin coordination, traffic control
issues, unforeseen utility conflicts and revised pipeline lay drawing requirements, scheduling
issues, and contractor difficulties. There will also be six concurrent well construction projects;
namely Wells 21 and 22 rehabilitating and equipping, Well 78 drilling and equipping, Well 107
drilling and equipping, Lake Forest well equipping, Well TL-1A drilling, and OPA well drilling
and equipping.

Based on currently active and upcoming construction projects, staff requires one additional full-
time construction manager / resident engineer for a period of up to nine months. Upon
completion of the current high volume of construction projects, staff anticipates that the
construction services will no longer be required, as the workload should return to a level that can
be supported by the District’s in-house engineering staff.

Consultant Selection Process:

Over the last year, staff has requested proposals for construction engineering services for both
large, more complex capital projects as well as small, simpler projects from several consultants,
including Butier, CH2M Hill, HDR, Arcadis (formerly Malcolm Pirnie), SAIC (formerly R.W.
Beck), Psomas, and Project Partners. Staff has evaluated several candidates from various firms
and selected key individuals from HDR and Arcadis as construction engineers on the MWRP

pu CM Services.docx



Action Calendar: Construction Management Consultant Services
September 26, 2011
Page 2

Phase II Expansion Project, as well as construction inspectors from HDR, Arcadis, Tetra Tech,
and Butier for other projects.

To support the construction of the current and upcoming projects, staff has identified an
individual from CH2M Hill with extensive construction experience working as the Owner’s
Representative, familarity with pipeline and mechanical construction, and the demonstrated
ability to manage and coordinate multiple construction projects simultaneously. CH2M Hill has
successfully worked on past District projects, and the selected individual would be immediately
assigned to the Wells 21 and 22 Pipelines, Wells 21 and 22 Wellheads, and Lake Forest Well
No. 2 Equipping. CH2M Hill will also be available to assist with other capital construction
projects on an as-needed basis.

The scope of work for the construction engineer is defined as on-call services. Staff negotiated a
very favorable fully-burdened rate of $161 per hour, which includes a vehicle and fuel, cell
phone and all out-of-office expenses. Staff recommends awarding a Professional Services
Agreement with CH2M Hill in the amount of $300,000 for on-call construction management
consultant services. CH2M Hill’s proposal is attached as Exhibit “A”.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Funding for the construction engineering services will be provided from the various capital
projects being constructed as part of each project’s budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed at the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 20, 2011.
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CH2M HILL IN THE AMOUNT OF
$300,000 FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT SERVICES.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — CH2M Hill Construction Management Consultant Services Proposal



Exhibit “A”
CH2M HILL
GHZMH ' LL 6 Hutton Centre Drive
Suite 700
Santa Ang, CA 92707

Phone: 714.429.2000
Fax: 714.420.2050

September 9, 2011

Mr. Kevin Burton, P.E

Director of Engineering and Construction
Irvine Ranch Water District

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue

Irvine, CA 92618

Subject:  Request for Proposals - Construction Manager for Various Projects Including Wells and Pipelines
Mr. Burton and Members of the Selection Committee:

CH2M HILL is pleased to submit our candidate Steve Bomkamp for the Construction Manager (CM) position. It is our understanding
that the CM will be the District's Project Manager on multiple construction projects and will be working at the District’s offices under
the District's supervision. Our proposal is based on the knowledge we gained from our meetings with Irvine Ranch Water District
(District) staff, and our experience providing construction management experience on wells, pipelines and water/wastewater
treatment plant projects. We are confident we are providing a qualified and skilled candidate to address the key areas of concems
for the District and for making these projects a success.

Specifically, the CH2M HILL candidate offers the District the following:

¢ Ahands-on interactive CM who is experienced in managing Third Party canstruction management projects including
multiple engineering firms and general contractors.

¢ A CMexperienced in contract administration of pipeline, wells, and water/wastewater projects. The projects will require
extensive callaboration with the District, the design team, the general contractor, the engineer of record, public relations,
and other project stakeholders.

» The CM's General Contractor experience, which will provide the perspective and skills to interact with contractors and
support the team.

e ACMthatis local to Southern California and is experienced on large-scale public works projects.

We are confident that the experience and background of our candidate will help the District successfully deliver this project. As
requested, Exhibit A includes the resume of our proposed CM. Exhibit B includes the candidate’s associated billing rate and total
contract amount. Should you have any questions regarding our submittal, please contact Fred Soroushian at 714-435-6232, or
Azhar Khan at 323 401 7830. Fred Soroushian is CH2M HILL’s corporate principal with contractual responsibility to bind our firm to
the terms of the project.

Sincerely,
CH2M HiLL
§ @W —
/JI\O —"
Fred Soroushian, P.E. Azhar Khan, P.E
Vice President Construction Management Services — Operations Lead
experiencen el




Irvine Ranch Water District | Construction Manager

-

EXHIBIT A — RESUMES

This exhibit includes resumes for the following:

Construction Manager — Steve Bomkamp

EXPERIENCED R PROBLEM-SOLVING




Steve Bomkamp

L iR
E b

Emmaté@n

B.S., Mechanical Engineering, University of
Washington

Project Experience

Resident Englnesr; Various Wastewater
Traztmaent Plant Projects and Caplital
Improvements Program; Orange County
Sanitation District; Huntington Beach,
California; 2008 to Present. Resident engineer
providing constructicn management leadership
as an integrated client staff member on assigned
projects within a $2.4 biillion capital
improvements program. Responsible for direct
oversight of the general contractor on various
projects while administering all aspects of the
construction contract and managing the
contributory roles and responsibllities of design
consultants, engineers, inspectors, schedulers,
estimators, operations and maintenance
personnel, environmental and safety
professionals, and other client staff.

Specific projects included:

549 Bitter Point Pump Station and 5-50
Rocky Point Pump Station.

These projects involve a significant amount of
buried piping work of various diameter sizes up
to 60" diameter for the assocciated sewer, water,
drain, etc services to and from the stations. The
most relevant examples are:

A-3

e @ section of 30” sewer piping placed in
the Caltrans right of way paralleling the
curb Coast Highway in Newport Beach

o @ 12” jack and bore sewer crossing of
Coast Highway

e @ 12" open cut sewer cressing of Coast
Highway

These jobs involved extensive interfacing with
City of Mewport Beach, Caltrans, Community
Groups, Business Owners, Home Owner Groups,
Residents, and the Public. The project also
involved specific permits and planning for traffic
lane closures, traffic control, mitigating impacts
to public traffic routes around seasonal demands,
and minimizing and managing impacts to
adjacent businesses and residential areas.

Job Mo, J-77, Plant No. 2 Efffuent Pump
Station Annex (EPSA), $45 million. The
project consisted of construction of a new
effluent ocean outfall pump station, electrical
building, standby power facility, associated plant
piping additions and modifications, and
appurtenant works. The project also involved The
project also included significant lengths of
welded steel pipe as large as 144" diameter. The
Pump Building houses three 2,500-horsepower,
120-mgd, vertical centrifugal, dry pit pumping
units; primary and secondary inlet wet wells;
junction box annex structure; pump discharge
piping and valves; pump motor cocling water
system; and various appurtenances. The
Electrical Building, located adjacent to EPSA,



Steve Bomkamp (continued)

houses the control room, pump VFDs,
switchgear, motor control centers, and
appurtenant equipment. The suction piping
ranges from 96-inch diameter to 144-inch
diameter; associated hydraulic structures
(junction boxes) convey fiow to EPSA from
00BS, Plant 2 primary clarifiers, and Plant 2
secondary clarifiers. The discharge piping ranges
from 102-inch diameter to 120-inch diameter,
associated junction boxes convey fiows from the
EPSA pumps to either of the District's main and
back-up outfalls. The Standby Power Facility
houses three 2-MW generator sets, 12.47 kV
switchgear, 125 VDC battery bank and chargers,
voltage reguiators and excitation system,
synchronizing system and protective relaying,
grounding resistors, and 480V motor controliers.

Job No. P2-80, Plant No. 2 Primary
Treatment System Rehabilitation and
Refurbishment, $20 mlilllon. The project
consisted of the rehabilitation and refurbishment
of 14 primary clarifiers, 7 sludge pump stations,
and appurtenant facilities within a continuously
operating treatment plant. Modifications to the
pump stations include: installation of 21 new
progressive cavity-type primary sludge pumps;
21 new grinders; pneumatically operated plug
valves on the primary clarifier siudge withdrawal
lines; new check valves, plug valves, pressure
relief valves, steam and plant water flushing
systems, seal water systems, and pumping
appurtenances; new primary sludge flow and
density meters; and new sludge sample systems.
Construction of three new electrical buildings and
refurbishment of four existing buildings to house
complete new electrical, instrumentation and
control systems, and air conditioning systems.
Rehabilitation and refurbishment of the existing
scum systems for each pump station, including:
removal of the existing submersible scum box
pumps, baffles, and appurtenances; installation
of a new chopper type scum pumps with integral
three-way valve for scum box mixing; new scum
piping, valves, and appurtenances; and removal
of the existing, and installation of new scum
troughs, scum skimmers and appurtenances in
each clarifier. Modifications to the existing foul
air condensate sumps. Complete electrical,
instrumentation, and control systems.
Miscellaneous site work.

Job No. P2-91, Plant No. 2 Primary Sludge
Feed Systam, $17 million. The project
consisted of construction of a Sludge Blending

@ CH2NVIHILL
i

Facility (SBF), SBF Electrical Building, tunnel and
yard piping and piping modifications, power feed
system, modifications to the Thickener Building,
and other items. Two farge blending tanks
equipped with supporting mixer/chopper pumps
are to work as an integral part of an elaborate
sludge conveyance system between the plant’s
primary clarifiers and digesters to provide more
uniform process operation of the various holding
basins.

Deputy Construction Manager; Water
Department Capital Improvements
Program; City of San Diego; California; 1999
to 2005. Construction Manager providing full-
scope construction management services for a
major component of the capital improvements
program (CIP), a comprehensive program
covering flscal years 1998 to 2008, with an
estimated cost of nearly $800 million. The
ptanned CIP includes projects to repair, replace,
upgrade, and expand water treatment plants,
pump stations, pipelines, and reservoirs.
Responsibilities included all aspects of
administration and management of individual
construction contracts at the project level within
the overall program and executing project
controls and quality assurance. Reviewed and
interpreted specifications and drawings;
evaluated and processed change order requests;
oversaw and coordinated offsite resource
personnel, such as estimators, project engineers,
and specialty inspectors; supervised subordinate
project engineer and inspectors; negotiated
changes and resolved disputes; processed pay
requests, change orders, and fleld orders,
Responsible for budgetary estimating,
monitoring, and reporting; coordinating owner,
engineer, and contractor relations; project
documentation control and tracking all
deliverables; and schedule analysis, progress
reporting, and impact mitigation.

Specific projects included:

Alvarado Water Treatment Plant Expansion
and Upgrade, Phase 1, $52 million. This
project increased the rated capacity of the plant
from 120 mgd to 150 mgd. Construction included
a new 200-mgd, three-stage, rapid-mix facility
with two parallel trains, each train having an
inline jet mixer first stage and turbine-type
mechanical mixers in the second and third
stages. Also included were eight new dual-cell
anthracite/sand filters with a capacity of
75-mgd; a new raw water chemical building

A-4



Steve Bomkamp (continued)

providing storage for 114,000 gallons of ferric
chloride, 48-ton containers of chlorine, 13,600
galions of liquid polymer, and housing two
6,600-gallon ferric chioride day tanks, two
750-galion liquid polymer day tanks, a 55-
pound-per-hour dry polymer feed system, and a
600-gph potassium permanganate feed system.
A new finished water chemical building was
designed to provide storage for a new 19,000~
gallon bulk tank and two 2,800-gallons-per-day
tanks for sodium hydroxide, and space for two
relocated 4,000-gallon aqua ammonia storage
tanks with new metering pump feed systems for
all chemicals. The project also included a four-
pump, 10,000-gpm, 1,000-horsepower finished
water pump station supplying the high zone
distribution system, which was rehabilitated,
including three new pumps and ail new piping. A
new six-pump, 114,000-gpm, 2,200-horsepower
raw water pump station was designed. Three
450-horsepower and two two-speed, 200-
horsepower pumps were instalied initially with
pump can and piping instailed for a future 450-
horsepower pump. The pump station provided
raw water from Lake Murray to the front end of
the treatment plant as a supplemental and
emergency water source. Auxiliary facilities
included two 1,500-KVA substations, one 480-
VAC and another at 12-KV. A stationary
1,200-KW standby power generator, and one
portable 350-KW standby generation unit, along
with a plantwide fiber optics system were also
part of the project. The LM pump station is rated
at 80 magd but can produce higher flows with all
the pumps operating.

Alvarado Water Treatment Plant, Phase 14,
Earl Thomas Reservoir Replacement, $27
milllon. This project entailed the construction of
the world's largest, circular, prestressed concrete
reservoir and included the following principle
components of work: demolition and disposal of
the existing reservoir; excavation, shoring,
backfill, and disposal of excess excavation and
other spoil materials; interim and final grading
and paving; import of all required backfill
materials; construction of the 35-million-gallon
reservoir and appurtenances; inlet, outlet,
overflow, underdrain, and miscellaneous piping
(up to 72 inches in diameter); construction of a
tunnel for installation of approximately 900 feet
of 60-inch-diameter piping to connect to the
plants other reservoirs; inlet/outlet vaults
holding 72-inch butterfly vaives, underdrain
inspection vault, reservoir overflow structure,

@ crzmHLL
g

and other valve vaults; 72-inch-diameter effluent
and distribution piping and connections, storm
drain systems; associated electrical and control
systems; new guard station, restroom, access
gates and columns, and perimeter security
fencing; and, landscaping and irrigation systems.

Alvarado Water Treatment Plant, Phase 2,
$30 million. The project entailed the expansion
of the rated capacity of the plant from 150 to
200 mgd and included the following principle
components: two new 80-million-gallon
flocculation and sedimentation basins with
influent, effluent, and overflow channels; new
flocculation equipment; new chain and flight
sludge removal equipment; rehabilitation of the
control system for the original eight filter bays;
replacing hydraulic valve actuators with electric
for the filter valves; rehabilitation of the existing
control consoles; new filter instrumentation,
venturi flow transmitters, differential pressure
transmitters, and turbidimeters; new
programmable controllers; process
instrumentation and plant control systems;
electric power distribution facility; yard piping;
site drainage piping; cathotic protection system;
railings; perimeter security fencing and retaining
walls; curbs, sidewalks, paving, and surface
improvements; valve and meter vaults; and
plant piping and connections.

Experience Prior to CH2M HILL

Field Engineer; Distribution Construction
(Underground Gas General Construction);
Pacific Gas and Electric Company; Northern
Californla; 1991 to 1993. Assisted the
Regional Superintendent in the San Joaquin
Valley region; served on cost management
policies and procedures committee; and provided
technical and managerial support to crews in the
San Joaquin Valley and Sacramento Valley
regions. Responsibilities included regional
department training and support for cost
management systems, personal computer use,
and all other technical training and support to
the field offices; monitoring and reporting job
cost and schedule performance, client
satisfaction, and workload forecasting for the
performance incentlve plan; setting up and
monitoring department overhead and capital
tools accounts; policies and procedure contact to
field offices; monitoring department estimators'
workload and assisting with estimating and CAD
work as needed; providing input and opinion on
continuous improvement to the cost

A-5



Steve Bomkamp (continued)

management systems; communicating input and
concerns from and to the systems' field users;
and keeping field users informed and updated on
cost management systems issues.

Senior Project Engineer and Interim Project
Manager; Various Projects; Western Summit
Constructors, Inc.; San Diego, California;
1996 to 1999. While working for Western
Summit Constructors completed the following
projects: WWTP upgrade for Clark County
Sanitation District, $6.5 million; Water Pump
Station for the Las Vegas Valley Water District,
$3.5 million; and WWTP Expansion for the City of
Corona, $30 million. Responsibilities included
project scheduling, schedule updates, and impact
analysis; reviewing equipment and layout for
compliance with specifications and design;
reviewing and estimating change order requests;
managing the contract; responding to requests
for clarification to specifications and drawings;
generating project pay requests and invoices;
budget monitoring and reporting; owner,
engineer, sub-contractor, vendor, and supplier
management and relations coordination;
equipment and material take-offs, submittal
reviews, and quality control; and project
documentation control and tracking of all
deliverables.

Project and Field Engineer; Various
Projects; Mediand Controls, Inc.; San Diego,
California; 1996. Responsibilities included
performing fabrication, wiring, testing, installing,
and startup of control panels and systems.
Provided control system installation,
maintenance, and repair. The project also
required project progress reporting, directing
project drafting activities, initiating and directing
research and development, and supervising
assigned staff.

Professional Development

CH2MHILL Construction Project Administration
Training, October 2000

CH2MHILL Design-Build Contracts Training,
October 2000

CH2MHILL Health, Safety, Security, and
Environmental Training Program -~ continual

CH2MHILL Drug Free Workplace - continual

Expedition, Contract Control Software Course,
CH2M HILL, Inc., February 2000

@ cHzmHLL
>

Business Course, Santa Rosa Junior College, Fall
1994

Primavera P3 Advanced Project Scheduling
Course, Granite, TIC, and Western Summit
Constructors, May 1998

Basic Project Management Course, American
Management Association, July 1993

HVAC Direct Digital Control Course, University of
California, San Diego, Spring 1996

Wide variety of safety, SWPPP, environmental,
permitting, technical, management,
administrative, and computer courses and
training

A-6



Steve Bomkamp (continued)

References

Gino Rapagna, Program Manager, IPMC,
Orange County Sanitation District

10844 Ellis Avenue, Fountain Valley, CA 92708
Direct line: (714) 593-7893

Email: Gino.Rapagna@CH2M.com

Chris Cervellone

Engineering Supervisor

Orange County Sanitation District

10844 Ellis Avenue, Fountain Valley, CA 92708
Direct line: (714) 593-7360

Email: ccervellone@ocsd.com

A-7

@ cuzmviHL
.W,

Iraj Asgharzadeh
Senior Civil Engineer
City of San Diego

600 B Street, Suite 800
San Diego, CA 92101
(619) 533-5105

Email: IAsgharzadeh@sandiego.gov

Kirk Whitaker

PM for City of San Diego (now with San Diego
County Water Authority)

PH: 858-522-6850



Irvine Ranch Water District | Construction Manager

A
Vg
o,
..

EXHIBIT B — PROPOSED RATE SCHEDULE and CONTRACT
AMOUNT

The following proposed hourly rate is fully burdened and includes all consultant overhead charges, including benefits,
vehicle, phone, and all out-of-office expenses. The District will provide office area and computer for the construction
manager. The total not-to-exceed contract amount is $300,000 billed on a time and materials basis. The proposed rate is
valid through June 30, 2012, and subject to negotiations after this date.

Pasition Rate pl‘.’[' hour

Construction Manager - Steve Bomkamp $161.00

Additional support staff can be made available at the request of the District.

Foot Notes:

(1) Overtime rate will be same as straight time rate.

| EXPERTENCED . PROBLEM-SOLVING :




September 26, 2011
Prepared by: Tony Mossbarger
Submitted by: Debby Chemey Q(/

Approved by: Paul Cook//é/C\

ACTION CALENDAR

ENTERPRISE ASSET MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE
NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION — CONSULTANT SELECTION

SUMMARY:

The IRWD Application Strategic Plan finalized earlier this year recommended several steps be taken to
better align the District’s software applications with its strategic vision, including the implementation
of an Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) system. An EAM system will improve the District’s
ability to manage its assets from acquisition to retirement, providing tools for preventive and predictive
maintenance, financial analysis, and reporting. While the Application Strategic Plan made
recommendations regarding the replacement of existing EAM tools, a more detailed study is needed to
establish the District’s approach and desired outcomes from an EAM system, as well as to identify a
preferred software alternative.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the addition of two projects to the FY 2011-12 Capital
Budget and accompanying Expenditure Authorizations in the amount of $125,000 each, and authorize
the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with EMA, Inc. in the amount of
$196,880 for the Enterprise Asset Management Software Review project.

BACKGROUND:

In July 2010, the Board approved a Professional Services Agreement with Pacific Technologies, Inc. to
develop an Applications Strategic Plan with an emphasis on Utility Billing, Asset Management,
Customer Relationship Management, and Budgeting and Planning. The completed Application
Strategic Plan determined that a new EAM system to replace the District’s existing TABWARE
system (implemented over 15 years ago) should be a high priority for the District. While certain
components of the TABW ARE system have been utilized (tracking preventive maintenance activities,
for example), TABWARE'’s limited capabilities did not allow staff to develop a fully functional asset
management system.

Modern EAM systems are designed to manage the entire life of an asset, from acquisition to
retirement. The functions performed by an asset management system include support of asset
maintenance and renewal optimization, monitoring and managing performance maintenance and asset
management work, responding to unplanned asset events, planning and scheduling non-urgent
maintenance tasks, assigning and performing non-urgent asset work, managing inventory, and
producing asset maintenance reports. These systems have become substantially more sophisticated in
the 15 years since the District implemented the TABWARE system.

While the Applications Strategic Plan provided a high-level gap-fit analysis and recommended
direction, a more detailed review of requirements and specific system selection was also
recommended. Whichever system is ultimately selected, integration with other District applications
such as Utility Billing, Oracle ERP (fixed assets, payroll, business intelligence), and Geographical
Information Systems (GIS) will be required. The selected software system must also have the ability
to manage vertical assets (treatment and pumping facilities, buildings, etc.), linear assets (pipelines),

tm EAM Consultant .docx

21



Action Calendar: Enterprise Asset Management Software Needs Assessment and Evaluation —
Consultant Selection

September 26, 2011

Page 2

and rolling assets (trucks, portable generators, etc.). The different EAM systems have differing levels
of strength in their ability to manage these various asset-classes.

Consultant Selection Process:

It was determined that a consultant team that understands the sophistication of EAM systems,
including a system’s ability to manage multiple types of assets throughout the enterprise, should be
retained to provide the expertise to assist in identifying, evaluating, and selecting a new EAM system.
Staff prepared a Request for Proposal for consulting services to perform a needs assessment for and
evaluation of EAM software. The scope of work was summarized in eight phases:

Phase 1 — Project initiation and management

Phase 2 — Develop asset management strategy

Phase 3 — Survey existing system and develop requirements
Phase 4 — Prepare proof of concept and test cases

Phase 5 — Conduct demonstration

Phase 6 — Check references

Phase 7 — Conduct site visits

Phase 8 — Prepare final report

The Request for Proposal was issued on June 3, 2011 to five pre-selected consultants with experience
in reviewing, assisting with selection, and implementing Enterprise Asset Management software:
EMA, Inc., Five Point Partners, Pacific Technologies, Inc., RMC, and Westin. All five consultants
submitted proposals. Staff from multiple departments reviewed and ranked the proposals, as shown in
the Consultant Selection Matrix which is attached as Exhibit “A”. Based on the initial consensus
ranking, the three consultants ranked highest were interviewed on August 29, 2011.

Based on the proposals and interviews, staff believes that EMA, Inc. demonstrated the best
understanding of the Enterprise Asset Management project and has extensive experience not only
developing Enterprise Asset Management strategies, but utilizing software systems to support the
strategy. EMA, Inc. had the most experienced project team and is the most capable of assisting the
District with development of an EAM strategy and a proof of concept to support it. EMA, Inc.’s
proposal is attached as Exhibit “B”.

While EMA, Inc.’s proposed fee is higher than second-best ranked Westin’s fee, the major difference
is the amount of time devoted to developing an asset management strategy. EMA, Inc. proposed to
devote more effort to Enterprise Asset Management strategy development than Westin, a process
which staff believes will be valuable in the ultimate selection and successful implementation of
software. Staff recommends awarding a contract to EMA, Inc. in the amount of $196,880.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Costs to implement an Enterprise Asset Management software package are expected to vary widely

depending on the software selected and necessity and complexity of integrating that with the District’s
existing technology. At this time, subject to Board approval, staff will add two new projects to the FY
2011-12 Capital Budget to fund the project from replacement funds, as summarized in the table below:



Action Calendar: Enterprise Asset Management Software Needs Assessment and Evaluation —
Consultant Selection
September 26, 2011

Page 3
Project Current Addition Total Existing This EA Total EA
No. Budget  <Reduction>  Budget EA Request Request
11619 $0 $125,000  $125,000 $0 $125,000 $125,000
21619 $0 $125,000  $125,000 $0 $125,000 $125,000
Total $0 $250,000  $250,000 $0 $250,000 $250,000

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This activity is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized under
the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15060 (c)(1) Preliminary Review. An
activity is not subject to CEQA if the activity will not result in a direct reasonably foreseeable indirect
physical change to the environment.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee meeting on September 20,
2011.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE ADDITION OF PROJECTS 11619 AND 21619 TO THE
FY 2011-12 CAPITAL BUDGET AND ACCOMPANYING EXPENDITURE AUTHORIZATIONS
IN THE AMOUNT OF $125,000 EACH, AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO
EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EMA, INC. IN THE AMOUNT
OF $196,880 FOR THE ENTERPRISE ASSET MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE REVIEW PROJECT.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit “A” — Consultant Selection Matrix

Exhibit “B” — EMA’s Scope of Work and Fee Proposal
Exhibit “C” — Expenditure Authorization

Exhibit “D” — Expenditure Authorization






EXHIBIT "A"

CONSULTANT EVALUATION MATRIX

ENTERPRISE ASSET MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION CONSULTANT SELECTION

Item

Description

Welghts

EMA

Five Point Partners

PTl

RMC

Wastin

TECHNICAL APPROACH

25%

Overall Project Understanding / Approach

40%

Scope of Proposal

60%

I( hnical Approach;

ALIFICATION AND ENCE

Project Manager

Project Team

Firm's Experience

20%

Interview

30%

INED WEIGHT] E

34

a5

25

23

Ranking of Consuitants

SCOPE OF WORK

TASK

Task Hours FEE

Task Hours

FEE

Task Hours

FEE

Task Hours

FEE

Task Hours FEE

Project initiation and Management

174

$32,440

66

$8,240

104

$18,802

$19,320

Develop Asset Management Strategy

296

$47,080

$32,000

112

$14,020

228

$46,145

$16,640

Survey Existiing System & Develop Requirements

204

$25,360

0

$12,680

254

$41,240

$25,920

Prepare Proof of Concept and Test Cases

232

$28,600

$32,000

88

$9,810

314

$58,968

$18,720

Conduct Demonstrations

48

$8,640

62

$11,720

132

$26,277

$20,520

Check References

40

$4,920

$2,170

66

$10,628

$4,080

Conduct Site Vistis

120

$18,480

$32,000

$4,410

118

$20,821

$10,200

oi~v|jojolsfoln]-

Prepare Final Report

668

$9,360

$32,000

$15,200

148

$26,769

$15,120

Additional Expenses

$22,000

$20,000

$10,350

$12,980

TOTAL HOURS AND FEE

1,182

$196,880

$148,000

632

$68,600

1384

$249,650

0 $143,500

OTHER

Joint Venture

None

None

None

None

None

Sub Consultants

Spatial Wave

Sliver Bridge Asscclates, Inc Van
Denburgh Consuiting

Exceptions taken to IRWD Std. Contract

None

Yes

Yes

None

None

insurance {Professional & General Liability)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

RANKINGS:

1- Best

2 - 2nd Bast

3 - 3rd Best

4 - 4th Best

9/19/2011

im EAM Consultant Exhibit A.xis




[Exhibit B_]

EMA, inc.
1970 Oakcrest Avenue, Suite 300

' A . St. Paul, MN 55113-2630
y phone: 651.639.5600

~ Improving Performance Through fax: 6;1&?35;3"2
PEQPLE & IDEAS ' '

June 30, 2011

Tony Mossbarger

Director of Administrative Services
Irvine Ranch Water District

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, CA 92618

SUBJECT: Consulting Services to Perform an Enterprise Asset Management Software Review
Dear Ms. Mossbarger and Selection Committee:

EMA is pleased to submit this proposal in response to the District's RFP for Consulting Services to Perform
an Enterprise Asset Management Software Review.

EMA has been selecting and overseeing the implementation of EAM systems for over 20 years. Our
industry expertise allows us to not only understand how your current systems are used but determine to
what extent these systems are used to implement industry best practices.

We will conduct an interactive, entertaining educational curriculum to prepare IRWD personnel to actively
participate in all phases of the project. We will introduce IRWD staff to essential concepts and best
practices related to asset management and program-driven maintenance.

EMA is familiar with all of the potential EAM vendors. Our staff provides all the diverse skill sets
necessary to evaluate your existing Enterprise Asset Management process and collect the necessary
requirements for the software demonstrations and reviews.

We have successfully applied our assessment approach with hundreds of clients and are confident that
our final recommendation will identify the required software modules necessary to meet all
documented requirements.

We fook forward to working with you on this project. If you have any questions about our approach, please
do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

Craig Yokopenic
Executive Vice President
EMA, Inc.

B-1



PROJECT APPROACH

2
b
B
T P RON ORI INGANGRRATNOADINOIGORIOONCNOONOIAONOIARGOGANPOOOINOIVOIROORONOOROOINOROOR

EMA is a utility industry leader in the development and dissemination of asset and work
management best practices and the selection and implementation of enterprise asset
management systems. EMA's extensive experience with technology design and
integration, asset performance management, risk mitigation strategies, critical
infrastructure protection and security planning, and service level definition provide the
necessary context for a balanced, sustainable asset management program that
addresses the unique needs of a utility. We have a proven track record of utility clients
who have implemented successful EAM systems and improved asset reliability.

PHASE 1: PROJECT INITIATION, PROJECT MANAGEMENT,
PROJECT KICKOFF

This Phase is comprised of a request for information to IRWD, an updated project plan,
and a kick-off meeting. It also includes identifying or finalizing the IRWD Project Team, a
core group that will provide input and review project goals and deliverables.

The requested information will likely take 1 - 2 weeks for IRWD to compile. The data
provides a foundation for EMA’s understanding of current business processes and
business rules. Key topics of the kick-off meeting will include project goals, metrics of
success, assumptions, constraints, roles and responsibilities, and the project schedule.
Following the workshop EMA will finalize the project plan and provide meeting minutes.

Metrics will be identified for project critical or high risk issues. An example of project
metrics for a current EMA Enterprise Asset Management Implementation project are
shown below:

Performance Dimension Current Activity .~ Project to Date

Stakeholders are a7,
Committed %}%
Business Benefits are a5
Realized @gg
Team.is High Performing %f}
Work and Schedule are ‘
Monitored

Seope is Realistic and

Manhaged

Challenges and Risks are

Mitigated

Figure 1: Sample EAM Implementation Project Metrics

Specifics of the various performance dimensions are not shown. Metrics for IRWD’s
project will be developed during the project kickoff.

B-2



S22V EHTARGCI OB ONBEICOBANSERNCLUERSEREAICPBOSCENSORICRBOEBRADIOGOENEIOPUCOOCGGORNCTOISENIEORE

EMA’s Responsibility: Maintain the project plan, meet monthly with IRWD’s
project manager to address outstanding issues and validate invoicing, manage the EMA
consuitant resources, and manage the delivery of the project.

Deliverables Include:

s Updated Project Plan

» Kickoff Meeting Minutes

* Project Goals and Project Metrics documentation

* Progress Reports

PHASE 2: ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

To be a world class organization IRWD needs an asset management strategy that
defines a set of steps (projects and practice changes) for implementing an asset
management program to meet the District’s business objectives and to adopt
industry best practices. We will work interactively (interviews and workshops) with
IRWD staff and the IRWD Enterprise Asset Management Committee to formulate this
strategy. EMA will assist IRWD through education, assessment, and strategy
development based on industry
leading practices for asset
management in the water and
wastewater industry.

The first step will be to validate the
asset value life cycle as shown in
Figure 2 with IRWD staff. This
provides a basis for the interviews
with engineering, planning, water
operations, wastewater operations,
finance, and water quality staff to
determine IRWD’s business needs
for an enterprise asset management
system.

The objectives of this phase Figure 2: Asset Value Life Cycle
include:

* Introducing asset management concepts to include leading practices for the entire
asset life-cycle

* Developing a vision for asset management at IRWD

EMA, INC . 1-2

B-3



BSARFPIPNEODADUOBGIDEDIOSNGSBEOEGOOONIOESRNGOOSSESBOOERRUEISIOOBENGITIEPERDDOIDESERDERSBD

o Developing a draft asset management strategy and presentation to inform and gain
commitment from the IRWD Enterprise Asset Management Committee for asset
management program implementation

¢ Incorporating committee comments and finalize asset management strategy
Task 1 — Interviews Education and Asset Management Vision
Development Workshop

EMA will conduct interviews with key maintenance, engineering, planning, water
operations, wastewater operations, finance, water quality, and management stakeholders
to gain an understanding of their perspectives on the current systems, identifying issues
associated with the systems and related business processes, and documenting
stakeholder goals for the replacement system and needed business process changes.

Using the data gathered from the desk audit, interviews with staff, and by observations in
the workplace, EMA will assess all business practices regarding the following asset
management functions: :

1. Overall Maintenance Strategy

2. Maintenance Tactic Selection

3. Information Technology Infrastructure

4. EAM Software Access and Use

5. EAM Software Data Quality

6. Planning and Scheduling

7. Material Management

8. Condition Based Maintenance

9. Reliability Analysis

10. EAM Software History and Performance Measures
11. Asset Management

12. Workforce Flexibility

13. Education, Training, and Skill Management

Specifically, this assessment will be done through the use of an assessment tool
deveioped by EMA.

EMA, INC . 1-3



BV ARV CGODCDEODGIICBICICODCDTODGOTCIEIBTQROBCIEIBENSRDISNGRECNOGDUEREDESDOEOGRANEORS

EMA will then rank current maintenance and asset management capabilities against
industry practices. Figure 3 below, is an example (for Condition Based Maintenance)
from a recently completed asset management strategy project. Along with the
assessment score, we capture our observations, possible solutions - including ideas
provided by your staff, and an urgency score. The information becomes the cornerstone
in our strategic asset management plan development process.

Vil Sonditions Based Maintenanoe

Clear responsibility for
collectioncondition based

4 2 .‘w&VERAGE

Perfarm condition baged

monitoring: / e

Perform condition based
mainteriance tasks

Mainterance performance
iz monitored via

dastiioard
Clearprocedures use;:ii Condition based tools
when failure is discavered meet eondition monitaring
needs
oo RESPONEE

et B3 S0 INE

Figure 3: Asset Management Assessment is the basis for planning

Also as part of this task, EMA will conduct an interactive, entertaining, and educational
workshop to prepare IRWD personnel to actively participate in all remaining phases of
the project. Through a simulation activity, we will introduce IRWD staff to essential
concepts and best practices related to asset management and program-driven
maintenance. Together we will craft a shared vision for the outcomes of the asset
management strategy. EMA'’s educational workshop includes simulation exercises that
will allow IRWD staff to put new concepts into practice and immediately see the impact of
asset management and maintenance management decisions based on varying
information quality, different business practices, and organizational structures. At the
conclusion of the workshop, the IRWD team will be ready to create an asset
management strategy. They will understand why certain practices, certain types of data,
and certain system functionalities are important. They may even be able to implement

some “quick win” improvements to current practices that take immediate advantage of
what they have learned.

EMA, INC . 1-4

B-5



REPVGOVTRNCAITOREREIVBEODECSARNTONSRNDAIEEREDOEDEIDERTRBINVOODERNICDEROADPOODEGTOOSODS

Task 2 — Asset Management Strategy Design

EMA’s asset management strategy design
philosophy encompasses business practices, s Administrative
i . % Business

technology, and organizational issues. A Procesaes
successful asset management strategy e Perormanes
requires more than a set of business Measurement
rules or a piece of software — it

. Operetions &
requires that people change the way Hinintenance
in which they work and the way in iﬁ;ﬁufﬂf Bost

. . 3873

which work is completed.
Organizational, business process, and
technology changes are interdependent. When
fntroducmg a. new business pract|c.:e, itis «  Vision, Culture, Alignment
important to introduce the supporting technology e Education & Training
at the same time and to align the organization *  Roles, Communication, Interaction
to effectively execute the new practice. This
may involve new job positions or new
responsibilities for existing positions and it may
require training to prepare staff to take on the
newly created roles.

® Data &
Information

« Systems &
Technology

. integration
& Decision
Support

Figure 4: EMA’s OPT Approach to Asset
Management Strategy

The asset management strategy will be based on your need to address the gaps within
the 13 asset management best practices competencies. By applying priority values to the
competencies and identifying their dependencies, we will help your organization develop
a Plan that is both valuable and practical. The plan will address the following subjects:

1. Overall maintenance strategy — Recommendations for any improvements to the
overall maintenance strategy will be made in a high-level plan that addresses
requirements, risk mitigation, and equipment reliability while optimizing available
wrench-on-bolt time and controlling costs. Factors like organization structure and
deployment options will also be examined.

2. Maintenance tactic selection — Identifying the best methods for selecting
maintenance tactics for your assets such as Reliability Centered Maintenance
(RCM), the less rigorous Maintenance Task Analysis (MTA) approach, or task
replication depending on asset criticality.

3. Information technology infrastructure — Identify benefits and costs of technology
devices and requirements of the computing infrastructure to support any technology
recommendations stemming from this plan.

EMA, INC . 1-5

B-6



PRGDUCDNSSENBEORICTIIBEONGCTODRECDECUOGINODOOBUREORONEOROOBOOEONRONOOEGNEORNENEOROODS

4.

10.

11.

12

13.

Enterprise asset management access and use — We will ensure appropriate
access to your system based on individual roles and responsibilities. We will develop
a plan to ensure access and speed levels.

Data quality — We will develop a plan to define static and transactional data needed
for all levels of management and reporting (as defined in competency #8 & #9) and
assigning responsibility for the input of said data.

Planning and scheduling — We will develop a plan to define quality work plans from
the tactic selection competency (competency #2). The plan will define how to best
manage the work plans through work bundling and how to effectively assign and
schedule work.

Material management — We will focus on identifying the best stocking / purchasing
options based on reliability requirements of your different assets and also focus on
how to track materials as inventory items.

Condition based maintenance — Tying into the maintenance tactic selection, we
provide a framework to develop an appropriate condition based maintenance
program based on your CBM needs, the frequency of the tests, and your asset
geography.

Reliability analysis — We will develop a plan to ensure appropriate reliability data is
captured to support proper reliability analysis. Along with a proper data infrastructure,
we will define the skill and training requirements needed for a proper reliability
analysis program.

Maintenance history and performance measures — We will identify the
requirements for an appropriate maintenance performance management dashboard
and develop a plan for the development of such a tool using the selected asset
management software backlog management and maintenance history data.

Enhancements to asset management with the maintenance section - Full life-
cycle management of assets will transition from maintenance to replacement through
capital projects, likewise causing a transition and coordination between the
maintenance section and engineering. The plan will leverage on work already done
by the IRWD staff.

Education, training, and skill management — the implementation of an asset
management program strategic plan must be supported by education training and
skill management. We will define in each individual competency the appropriate level
of training and education needed to support proper implementation. This includes the
effort needed to inform or include maintenance customers and other stakeholders in
the plan.

Workforce flexibility — Flexibility of the workforce will be a key element of the
strategic plan to enable minimizing travel time and fleet expense while optimizing
wrench-on-bolt time. We'll help you develop a plan to identify the appropriate levels
of flexibility needed within your organization and how to put in place such a program.

EMA, INC . 1-6

B-7



SESIGPRENCOIDANOGENTORTONTERNIOIRCONGNIVEOTINNODNECTENTODNTINEINEOVINIENTODGNNEOENOSORE

In a series of workshops we will discuss the assessment results and develop the asset
management strategy. While we need to address multiple competencies with varying
levels of importance to IRWD, in the end we will deliver one single integrated strategy.
The strategy will include multiple task or “projects” which will be consistently laid out to
present vital information including the project name, the desired outcomes/solutions to
problems, clear recommended actions, associated priority values, the estimated time to
achieve the results, the resource requirements including funding and staff’s time. While
the projects will be prioritized, we will also show clear interdependence of various
projects to ensure the work is done in an intrinsic order.

We will conduct interviews with IRWD staff and facilitate collaborative workshops to
determine what the specific requirements of the Asset Management Strategy Plan are.
Armed with a comprehensive understanding of best practices along with business
objectives and the specific personnel and site information accrued in Tasks above, IRWD
staff will be able to participate actively in this collaborative process. By including the
IRWD staff, the level of success of the final program will be greatly enhanced. Ultimately,
it is the IRWD staff that will make the strategy work.

We will work with the IRWD team members to ensure the workflows and asset
management concepts address the specific business needs and priorities of IRWD.

The result will be viable, defendable asset management strategies that will help IRWD
take optimal care of their assets now as well as in the future.

EMA’s Responsibility: Conduct Interviews with each department identified in the
RFP and up to three workshops, develop a draft AM strategy based on these interviews
and industry best practices, conduct a workshop with IRWD EAM committee to review
the draft plan, accept comments, and finalize the strategy.

Deliverables Include:

o Asset Management Assessment report with strengths and weaknesses identified and
quantified

e Review of AM best practices

¢ AM Vision and draft AM Strategy, including Asset life cycle decision workflows and
identification of supporting tools, specific inspection and condition assessment
procedures, job descriptions and any changes to the organizational structure to
support the asset management strategy

o Presentation of draft strategy
¢ Finalized AM strategy which will include:
— Desired outcomes/solutions to problems

— Recommended actions with priority

EMA, INC . 1-7

B-8



BECHIERRNERAZEBOODEOEERIOIBLORIVNTENCEIRNDECTLOBENEODERSUENENDNCGOITSCTIIDNBOESDNISNEIRNSOIESDS

— Estimated time to achieve the results
- Resource requirements

— Interdependence of actions

PHASE 3: SURVEY EXISTING SYSTEMS AND DEVELOP KEY
PROCESS REQUIREMENTS

Task 1 — Review and Document Current Systems

During this phase we will build on the documentation review that was done in phase one
by reviewing the existing work order management system(s). EMA has previously
developed requirements documents for implementing Enterprise Asset / Work
Management systems in the utility industry. We will provide these as survey tools to
analyze the existing systems. This approach will allow us to not only understand how the
current systems are used but determine to what extent these systems are used to
implement industry best practices. We will review any existing documentation on
standard operating procedures not provided in phase one. We will observe and
document the execution of all existing Enterprise Asset Management processes for each
of the systems.

Task 2 — Document required Enterprise Asset Management
Processes

During this task we will compile process requirements into a comprehensive
requirements document. This document will be supplemented with requirements by EMA
that are needed to support EAM best practices. EMA has a library of EAM requirements
as well as documented workflows for support of utility and fleet operations. These will be
added to the requirements document and reviewed with District staff to determine which
are appropriate.

We will meet with each user group to validate their requirements. A second workshop
will be held with representatives of all the groups to identify common requirements that
may have been missed, requirements for integration to other systems, and requirements
or workflows that cut across more than one group. A final workshop will be held with the
EAM committee to review the requirements document and add any additional high level
asset management requireme